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APPOINTMENT TO THE MADHYA PRADESH HIGH COURT

We congratulate Shri Subhash Raosaheb Kakade on his appointment
as Judge of the High Court of Madhya Pradesh. Shri Subhash Raosaheb
Kakade took oath of the High Office on 01 -04-2013

JUSTICE SUBHASH RAOSAHEB KAKADE

Born on January 23, 1955 in Dewas. After completing B.A. LL.B.,
joined Judicial Services on 29-10-1979. Confirmed as Civil Judge in the year
1983. Appointed as C.J.M. in the year 1991. Posted as Offg. District Judge in
Higher Judicial Services in the year 1992. Worked as Registrar S.A.'T'.,
Bhopal in the year 1997. Confirmed as District Judge in Higher Judicial
Services in the year 1997. Was granted Selection Grade Scale w.e.f.
08.05.1999. Posted as Special Judge SC/ST (P.A.) Act at Tikamgarh in the
year 2003. Posted as District and Sessions Judge at Neemuch and thereafter
at Guna in the year 2004. Posted as Registrar High Court of M.P., Bench at
Indore in the year 2006. Was granted Super Time Scale w.e.f. 19.05.2006.
Posted as District and Sessions Judge, Bhopal in the year 2009. Was posted as
Registrar General, High Court of M .P. from 03.01.2011 till elevation.

Elevated as Additional Judge to the High Court of Madhya Pradesh
and took oath on 01.04.2013.

We wish Shri Justice Subhash Raosaheb Kakade, a successful
tenure on the Bench.
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APPOINTMENT TO THE MADHYA PRADESH HIGH COURT

We congratulate Shri Bhagwan Das Rathi on his appointment as
Judge of the High Court of Madhya Pradesh. Shri Bhagwan Das Rathi took
oath of the High Office on 01-04-2013.

JUSTICE BHAGWAN DAS RATHI

Born on September 16, 1953. After completing B.Sc. L.L.B., was
enrolled as an Advocate in the year 1978 and started practice in Civil and
Criminal sides in High Court and Lower Courts at Indore. Joined Judicial
Services on 04.09.1979. Confirmed as Civil Judge in the year 1983.
Appointed as C.J.M. in the year 1991. Posted as Offg. District Judge in
Higher Judicial Services in the year 1993. Was deputed as Additional
Director, Judicial Officers Training Institute, Jabalpur from August, 1994 to
April, 1996. Confirmed as District Judge in Higher Judicial Services in the
year 1997. Was granted Selection Grade Scale w.e.f. 08.05.1999. Posted as
Special Judge for cases under SC/ST (P.A) Act and N.D.P.S. Act, in the year
2000. Was granted Super Time Scale w.e.f.19.10.2006. Was posted as
Principal Registrar, High Court of M.P., Bench Gwalior from 01.09.20009 till
elevation.

Elevated as Additional Judge to the High Court of Madhya Pradesh
and took oathon 01 .04.201 3.

We wish Shri Justicc Bhagwan Das Rathi, a successful tenure on
the Bench.
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APPOINTMENT TO THE MADHYA PRADESH HIGH COURT

1

We congratulate Shri Mahendra Kumar Mudgal on his appointment as Judge
of the High Court of Madhya Pradesh. Shri Mahendra Kumar Mudgal took
oath of the High Office on01-04-2013.

JUSTICE MAHENDRA KUMAR MUDGAL

Born on August 28, 1954 at Gohadi, Tahsil Gohad, District Bhind.
Completed Primary Education in village Gohadi. After completing L.L.B.
Degree from Jiwaji University Gwalior, started practice in the year 1976.
Joined Judicial Services on 16.11.1981. Confirmed as Civil Judge in the year
1985. Appointed as C.J.M. in the year 1991. Posted as Offg. District Judge in
Higher Judicial Services in the year 1993. Confirmed as District Judge in
Higher Judicial Services in the year 1997. Was granted Selection Grade Scale
w.e.f. 04.06.1999. Posted as Dy. Secretary Law Department, Bhopal in the
year 1999 and as Additional Secretary in the year 2001. Posted as Special
Judge SC/ST (P.A.) Actand N.D.P.S. Act in the year 2004 at Chhatarpur and
as Special Judge SC/ST (P.A.) Act at Sheopur in the year 2006 . Was granted
Super Time Scale w.e.f. 10.10.2007. Posted as Principal Registrar (Exam &
Training) at High Court of M..P., Jabalpur in the year 2008 and continued upto
May 2010. Posted as District and Sessions Judge, Indore from May 2010 to
March 2012. Was posted as Principal Registrar (Inspection & Vigilance) at
High Court of M.P., Jabalpur from 15.03.2012 till elevation.

Elevated as Additional Judge to the High Court of Madhya Pradesh
and took oathon 01 .04.2013.

We wish Shri Justice Mahendra Kumar Mudgal, a successful
tenure on the Bench.
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APPOINTMENT TO THE MADHYA PRADESH HIGH COURT

We congratulate Shri Dharmdhwaj Kumar Paliwal on his
appointment as Judge of the High Court of Madhya Pradesh. Shri
Dharmdhwaj Kumar Paliwal took oath of the High Office on 01-04-2013.

JUSTICE DHARMDHWAJ KUMAR PALIWAL

Born on March 16, 1955 in Hamirpur, Uttar Pradesh. After
completing B.Sc.L.L.M., joined Judicial Services on 05.11.1981. Confirmed
as Civil Judge in the year 1985. Appointed as A.C.J.M. in the year 1991 and
as C.J.M. in the year 1992. Posted as Offg. District Judge in Higher Judicial
Services in the year 1993. Confirmed as District Judge in Higher Judicial
Services in the year 1997. Was granted Selection Grade Scale w.e.f.
04.06.1999.Worked as President, District Consumer Forum, Rewa in the
year 2001. Worked as Additional Secretary M.P. Law and Legislative Affairs
Department, Bhopal. Worked as Legal Remembrancer and Secretary (Law),
Law Department, Bhopal, in the year 2004. Posted as District & Sessions
Judge. Bhind in the year 2005, and as District & Sessions Judge, Shivpuri in
the year 2008. Was granted Super Time Scale w.e.f. 10.10.2007. Posted as
District Judge (Inspection and Vigilance), High Court of M.P. at Bench
Gwalior, in the year 2009 . Was posted as District and Sessions Judge,
Gwalior from 01.06.2010 till elevation.

Elevated as Additional Judge to the High Court of Madhya Pradesh
and took oathon 01.04.2013.

We wish Shri Justice Dharmdhwaj Kumar Paliwal, a successful
tenure on the Bench..
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Shri R.D. Jain, Advocate General, M.P., while felicitating the
New Judges, said : ' ‘

I feel great pleasure in extending hearty welcome to Hon'ble Justice
Shri Subhash Raosaheb Kakade, Hon'ble Justice Shri Bhagwan Das Rathi, "
Hon'ble Justice Shri Mahendra Kumar Mudgal and Hon'ble Justice Shri
Dharmdhwaj Kumar Paliwal appointed as Additional Judges of the High Court

- to whom oath of Office has been administered today. I congratulate the Hon'ble

Judges on their elevation as Additional Judges of the High Court of Madhya
Pradesh. ' _

Shri Subhash Raosaheb Kakade was born on 23" of January 1955
in Dewas. After passing B.A LL.B in'1# division My Lord joined Judicial
Services'on 29 October 1979. You have held all the important assignments
in lower judiciary. After your appointment you were promoted as Chief Judicial
Magistrate on 18" January 1991 and posted in Hoshangabad. Further
promoted in Higher Judicial Service on 27 ® July 1992 in Ujjain. Selection
grade was granted on 18" May 1991 and super time scale on 19th May
2006, while posted in Indore.-It is apparent from this narration that your
Lordship possesses long experience of judicial working in different capacities

_of almost all different places in Madhya Pradesh including Bilaspur, Indore,

Ujjain, Bhopal and finally Jabalpur. You have worked as Registrar General of
High Court of Madhya Pradesh. I am sure that this vast experience on Judicial
and Administrative side will bring landmark improvement in our judicial system.

Shri Bhagwan Das Rathi was born on 16" of September 1953 in
Indore and obtained the degree of B.Sc. LL.B. in 1% division. Your Lordship
joined judicial service on 04™ September 1979. You were selected on the
post of Civil Judge by the M.P.P.S.C. and promoted to the post of Additional
District Judge in the year 1993 in Jabalpur and on the post of District and
Session Judge in the year 2005 in Morena. Looking to your acumen on the
administrative and Judicial side you were picked up for the post of Registrar,
High Court of Madhya Pradesh Bench at Gwalior in August 2009 and in
September 2009 appointed as Principal Registrar, High Couirt of Madhya
Pradesh Bench at Gwalior where you have worked in the capacity of Principal
Registrar till elevated as a judge of this Court.
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Shri Mahendra Kumar Mudgal was born on 28" August 1954 in
district Bhind and after studies joined judicial service on 16% November 1981.
You were appointed as Chief Judicial Magistrate on 30th August 1991 and as
District and Session Judge on 1¢ May 2005 in Morena district. Super time
scale granted on 10/10/2007 and thereafter in September 2009 posted as
Principal Registrar, (Examination and Training) High Court of Madhya Pradesh
in Jabalpur and in March 2012 you were posted as Principal Registrar,
(Inspection and Vigilance), High Court of Madhya Pradesh.

Shri Dharmdhwaj Kumar Paliwal was born on 16" March 1955 in
Hamirpur, Uttar Pradesh and after earning the degree of B.Sc. and LL.M.,
joined Judicial Services as Civil Judge, Class II in November, 1981 and posted
in Shivpuri. You were appointed as C.J.M. in the year 1992 and from
September 2001 to 2004 held the post of Additional Secretary, M.P. Law &
Legislative Affairs Department. You were appointed as District and Session
Judge on 9™ May 2005 in Bhind and worked in Shivpuri and Gwalior till
elevation as a Judge of this Court.

We the members of legal fraternity are happy on this occasion of
appointment of four judges in the Hon'ble High Court. These seats were lying
vacant since long. I congratulate the Hon'ble Judges on the occasion of their
elevation as Judges of this Court.

The legal disputes are multiplying with the consciousness of people
about their Constitutional and legal rights. Every individual is eager to protect
hus fundamental rights, legal rights and human rights.

Increasing load of cases is now a challenge to our Judicial system.
Vacant seats of Judges result in multiplying the problems of pendency of cases
and unfortunately in our Courts, cases pending since 10-15 years are in huge
number. This is causing frustration in common man and this is likely to result in
asituation leading to eruption of violence. We are extremely happy and full of
pleasure on the appointment of Hon'ble Judges which will be a step towards
amelioration of this condition.

While dealing with the qualities of a good Judge Justice R.V.
Raveendran has once observed that :-
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"Rendering justice in a larger sense means giving every person,
his or her due. All those entrusted with power - power fo govern, power
to legislate, power to adjudicate and power to punish or reward - in a
sense, render justice. In the context of Judges, rendering justice, means
speedy, effective and competent adjudication of disputes and complaints
in a fair and impartial manner, in accordance with law, tempered by equity
and compassion wherever required and permissible, after due hearing. "

The appointment of your Lordships having the vast judicial experience
will be an asset and we are sure that under your stewardship the staff will
remain public and bar friendly which will resuit in smooth functioning of the
whole system. In this direction the State Government and the law Officers of
the State will provide full cooperation and assistance.

¢

Needless to say that cordiality of relation and mutual respect will solve
major problems in the path of speedy and efficient judicial functioning. With
the vast experience there would not be any problem to the Hon'ble T udges to
strike balance between conflicting claims of speedy disposal according to
law. We all know that we are not infallible but the chances of mistake may be
avoided if we adhere to the path shown by the veteran judges. The High
Court is a superior court of record. It has original and appellate jurisdiction
and possess plenary powers due to which the responsibilities are multiplied
but the judge should have bastion for the people to uphold the majesty oflaw
which is the backbone of fair and impartial dispensation of justice.

AccordingtoJ ustice K.Ramaswami of the Supreme Court "In this
ongoing complex of adjudicatory process, the role of the judge is not merely
to interpret the law but also to lay new norms of law and to mould the law to
suit the changing social and economic scenario to make the ideals enshrined
in the Constitution meaningful and aTeality." We hope that this ideal will be
materialized.

The great jurist Holmes once remarked that” the law is not mere logic
but is also experience" and I believe that the vast expenence which My Lord
hold, will be a great asset to the High Court in rendering justice. According to
another jurist S. Shetreet, a Judge decides cases based on fundamental values
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of the legal system and it is from this angle that we can say that the adjudication
- based on such long experience as a judge would be fruitful to litigant public
and advocates of Madhya Pradesh and the Society. I hope My Lord will
innovate new tools and find out new methods to evolve a way for quick
dispensation of justice.

Justice R.C.Lahoti has succinctly observed what should a judge appear
to be and in his own words relying on a poem he proclaims :~

"God give us men, a time like this demands,

Strong minds, ‘great hearts, true faith and ready hands
Men whom the lust of Office does not kill

Men whom the spoils of office cannot buy,

Men who possess opinion and a will,

Men who have honour, men who will not lie

Men who can stand before a demagogue and damn
Lies, treacherous flatteries without talking

Tall men, sun crowned, who live without the fog,

In public duty and in private thinking,

However, they may be trained to strengthen those who are weak and
wronged." '

Talso recollect a judge's diary in which Justice Shivdayal emphasized
that judges are, "Thy servants whom thou sufferest to sit in earthly seats of
judgement to administer Thy justice to Thy people.”

May God bless the newly appointed judges with all the above qualities.

I once again congratulate your Lordships on behalf of the State of
MP, on my own behalf and on behalf of Law Officers of the State on their
appointment as additional Judges of the High Court of Madhya Pradesh.

*
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Shri Adarsh Muni Trivedi, President, M.P. High Court Bar
Association, Jabalpur, while felicitating the New Judges, said:-

We all have assembled here in this congregation in this Temple of
Justice to extend our felicitation to My Lord Shri Justice Subhash Kakade;
My Lord Shri Justice Bhagwan Das Rathi; My Lord Shri Justice Mahendra
Kumar Mudgal and My Lord Shri Justice Dharmdhwaj Kumar Paliwal on
Your Lordships' adorable adornment as Judges of this High Court. This is the
auspicious occasion of beginning of your odyssey on the golden chariot of
Justice. The destiny has marked Your Lordships for greatness; and the hands
of destiny are sure and certain.

Today, it is the 1st April. The day of 1st April has its own significance.
But thanks to God, it is for the first time that we have not been befooled on
1st April. In the words of T.S. Eliot, the April is month of mixing memories
and desire. The sun is yet to stake us with its hot angle summarising its wings
over the day. At this moment joining of ranks by Your Lordships in winged
chariot has come to us flying with the moderate cool breeze. This cool breeze
in the portal of this High Court is emerged from the very roots of values,
virtues and visions. '

Your Lordships have joined today the high Judicial fraternity of robed
brethrens. Tennyson says:-

"Heights by great men reached and kept
Were not attained by sudden flight.
They, while their companions slept
Were toiling upward in the night."

We welcome Your Lordships on your elevation to Godly seats of this
Temple, where the Almighty have conferred upon you the greatest opportunity
to wipe off the tears from every eye and to adjudge the fates of the persons in
plight, with sublime humanism and to assure excellence and freedom from
prejudice,

Kathopnishad exhorts as follows:-
“IRTSS ST W SRraied |
IR 9T AT gReaan
v g g Wiehed! a_fd |
_ [Kathopnishad-I (iii) 14]

[Arise, awake and approaching great souls, receive instructions from
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them. The wise says that the road is difficult to tread; it is like treading
on the sharp edge of a razor.]

" My Lords, I on behalf of all 4600 members of M.P. High Court Bar
Association and on my own behalf wish you all a very happy and successful
tenure as Judges of this High Court.

My Lord Shri Justice Subhash Kakade;-

Now, I congratulate and welcome My Lord Shri Justice Subhash
Kakade. We, at Jabalpur have had many occasions and privilege to
acknowledge your ability as an upright, intelligent and experienced Judge as
well as a good administrator in your capacity as Registrar General of High
Court of M.P.; simultaneously having judicial quality as well as quality of
controlling the situations. Your Lordship were borm on 23rd January, 1955, a
significant day on which Netaji Subhash Chandra Bose was also born. I bet if
Your Lordship have had not joined the Judicial Services, must have been a
revolutionary like Netaji', working in independent India for vital changes in
the system of this country. Your Lordship's Home District is Dewas in Malwa
region of Madhya Pradesh, a land of fertile thoughts. 'Dewas’ is virtually Dev
vas', the land where the Gods reside. So you represent in your personality the
character and qualities of Supreme Being. You obtained your B.A. and LL.B.
degrees in First Division with flying colours, and joined Judicial Service of the
State on 29th October 1979; appointed as C.J.M. w.e.f. 18th January 1991;
promoted as Officiating D.J. in Higher Judicial Service w.e.f. 27th July 1992,
granted Selection Grade Scale w.e.f. 8th May 1999 and granted Super Time
Scale w.e.f. 19th May 2006. Your Lordship have vivid and varied experience
of the territory of Madhya Pradesh and its people being posted and worked
at different places like Shajapur, Sehore, Seoni Malwa, Bilaspur, Indore,
Hoshangabad, Ujjain, Barwaha, Bhopal, Tikamgarh, Neemuch, Guna and
now at Jabalpur as Registrar General of High Court before your elevation as
a Judge of this Court. When the going gets tough; the tough get going.

Your Lordship are also a great cricketer with a good running between
the wickets, for stealing a run and you have stolen the show in cricket match
held on 16th March this year. We hope you will run between the two wickets
of Bench and Bar as well. Robert Callier has said:-

"Success is the sum of small efforts repeated day in day out."

Your Lordship have thus possessed variegated experience and
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knowledge and made a name as an impartial and intrepid Judge in Higher
Judicial service of this State. We hope that your commitments to impart Socio-
Economic Justice to the deprived people would bring you eminence as a Judge
of this Court. I again congratulate you and wish you a very happy and
successful forensic tenure as a Judge of this Court.

My Lord Shri Justice Bhagwan Das Rathi :~

. Inow congratulate and welcome My Lord Shri Justice Bhagwan Das
Rathi. As1 stated earlier Shri Justice Subhash Kakade hails from the land of Gods
"Dewas' and Your Lordship's very name reflects another Godly significance, which
means being a keen devotee to Almighty God. Your ability to relate to the world,
begins with your spirituality to relate to yourself by diving deeper into your inner
being and to better understand your true identity. Your Lordship were bornon
16th September 1953 as elder son of Shri S.L. Rathi at Indore, which place
stands for 'doors to inside’. There is some inter-connection also as Dewas is
door-step to Indore. You qualified your graduation in science and also obtained
LL.B. (Honours) degree from Indore University on 10th of January 1978, and
after your enrolment as an Advocate in year 1978 became the member of ML.P.
High Court Bar Association, Indore. You joined the office of an eminent lawyer of
Indore Late Shri K.B. Joshi, and started practice in Civil and Criminal Law, under
able guidance of prominent lawyer Late Shri K.B. Joshi, Late Shri S.L. Ulhasand
Late Shri Pradhan. Your Lordship joined the Judicial Service on 4th September
1979; promoted as C.J.M. w.e.f. 17th January 1991; then promoted further as
Officiating D.J. in Higher Judicial Service w.e.f. 29th March 1993; granted
Selection Grade Scale w.e.f. 8th May 1999 and Super Time Scale w.e.f. 19th
October 2006. You were also a member of Executive Committee of M.P. Judicial
Officers Association and later on became its treasurer and must have good
knowledge of accountancy. Your Lordship have talent of leadership and were
always popular amongst the Advocates wherever You were posted as a Judge.
During the posting at Shajapur Your Lordship prepared a guide in Hindi for smooth
operation of laptop based on Lynux System under the able guidance of the then
Chief Justice Shri A.K. Patnaik and Chairman of E-Court Project Shri Justice
K K. Lahoti, which guide was published by M.P. High Court. Your Lordship
have arare quality of verifying Your Judgments in different colours of Law. You
were the Additional Director of JOTI and efficiently trained the Judges of sub-
ordinate judiciary, and were posted as Principal Registrar of High Court Bench at
Gwalior. Your Lordship have worked at different places like Bhopal, Bilaspur,
Jabalpur, Vidisha, Balaghat, Rajgarh, Morena, Shajapur and at last at Gwalior
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and tasted the water of different rivers like Arpa, Narmada, Benganga and also
that of Chambal. Really I do not know water of which river has effected you

most. Your Lordship are also a great Astrologer reading the destiny of others, but
now you have to write the fate of the people at large.

Your Lordship have deep roots of spirituality, great vision and
enlightened virtues. We hope that Your Lordship will achieve eminence as a
Judge of this Court when the destiny has thrust uponyouaroletoactasa
true sentinel of liberty and Justice.  again wish you a very happy and successful
tenure as a Judge of this Court.

My Lord Shri Justice Mahendra Kumar Mudgal :-

Now, I congratulate and welcome My Lord Shri Justice Mahendra
Kumar Mudgal. We at Jabalpur, have privilege to acknowledge Your
Lordship's great virtues and excellence as Registrar (Examinations & Training),
then Principal Registrar (Examinations) and thereafter as Principal Registrar
(Inspection & Vigilance) during last five years before your elevation. Your
Lordship also have a great resemblance to other newly elevated Judges, so
far as Godhood concerns. Your Lordship are not only 'Indra’ the King of
Gods, but the greatest of the Indras who adorned the said kingly seat being
'Mahendra'. Your Lordship were born on 28th August 1954 in the rainy
season when the torridly tormented Goddess Earth with her folded thousand
hands praised the God of Rains 'Indra’ for sweet showers and Your Lordship
have been gifted to the Goddess Earth. You obtained your B.A. and LL.B.
degrees with flying colours and joined State Judicial Service on 16th November
1981; appointed as C.J.M. w.e.f. 30th August 1991; promoted as Officiating
D.J. inHigher Judicial Service w.e.f. 17th October 1993; granted Selection Grade
Scale w.e.f. 4th June 1999 and Super Time Scale w.e.f. 10th QOctober 2007.
Your Lordship being born at Bhind in Chambal Valley, have tasted the water of
great river Chambal and therefore, no water from any other river may change
your courageous and brave individuality, and great confidence. Your Lordship in
Higher Judicial Service have measured almost entire territory of Madhya Pradesh

like steps of "Vaman', who in three steps measured the Chasm (Patal); the Earth.

(Dharti) and Cosmos (Akash); You have been posted at different places like
Morena, Dabra, Niwari, Shujalpur, Sabalgarh, Sehore, Chhindwara, Ratlam,
Indore, Bhopal, Chhatarpur, Sheopur, and at last at Jabalpur.

Your Lordship thus, possess vast and varied experience and knowledge
and are endowed with sterling character, impeccable integrity and upright behaviour,

al

\'_\
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As a Judge, you have a mission to carry forward through a rugged voyage with its
sharp and strange turns and stormy high waves. Jurist Ehrlich says:- -

"There is no gnarantee of Justice except the personality of the Judge."

We hope that your personality, eicperience and knowledge would bring
you eminence as a Judge of this Court. ] again congratulate you and wish you
a very happy and successful forensic tenure as a Judge of this Court.

My Lord Shri Justice Dharmdhwaj Kumar Paliwal :-

" Now at last, I congratulate and welcome My Lord Shri Justice
Dharmdhwaj Kumar Paliwal. We at Jabalpur have heard much about your
qualities, eminence and great knowledge of law, though you have never been
posted at Jabalpur during Judicial Service and Higher Judicial Service. So far
as God-hood concerns, you also resemble to all three other Judges elevated
today. You, yourself, are 'Dharmdhwaj' carrying in hands the flag of Justice
since your birth -'Manu-Smirati’ says:- '

e ¢g g B |
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[Those who destroy the Dharma, Dharma itself destroys then and
those who protect the Dharma, Dharma itself protects them]

'"Dharma’ in our traditions does not mean any religion or dogma in
particular. A Spiritual path does not require any dogma, priests, rules and
absolute authority of scriptures. 'Dharma’ is another name for Justice. .

Your Lordship were born on 16th March 1955 at Hamirpur (Uttar
Pradesh) in Bundelkhand regions, which is full of sagas of great warriors like
King Chhatrasal, Alha and Udal. 'Kautilya in his 'Arth Shastra’ says:-

"The fragrance of flowers spreads only in the direction of the wind.
But the goodness of a person spreads in all directions."

Your Lordship possess the degrees of B.Sc. and LL.M. and joined
Judicial Services of Madhya Pradesh on 5th November 1981; appointed as
C.JM. w.e.f. 23rd August 1991; promoted as Officiating D.J. in Higher Judicial
Service w.e.f. 18th October 1993; granted Selection Grade Scale w.e.f. 4th
June 1999 and Super Time Scale w.e.f. 10th October 2007. Your Lordship
have remained posted at various places like Shivpuri, Lahar, Multai, Betul,
Maihar, Gwalior, Ashok Nagar, Gohad, Sironj, Rewa, Bhopal, Bhind, Shivpuri
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and at last again at Gwalior as District & Sessions Judge before your elevation
to the Bench, as a Judge of this Court.

TR g X |
fagm wd= goan 1~

[The King is praised only in his own county. The wise-man is praised
every where.]

We hope that your great visionary knowledge, wide experience and
decency would bring you eminence as a Judge of this Court with Flag of
Justice in your firm hands. ] once again congratulate you and wish you a very
happy and successful forensic tenure as a Judge of this Court.

It is the only suitable occasion when the Bar may express its view
before the Bench, enjoining somewhat more liberty. A J udge in this country
like India should not only be excellent in the field of Law, but should be able
enough to translate the law into a language being prone to the ground realities
facing by the common man day to day. Just recently the Census Commissioner
of India released a new report that 6.4 crores people live in slums with
unsanitary conditions "unfit for human habilitation in urban areas of the country,
Conditions are for worse in most villages. It appears that we are still living
under the mentality left and thrusted upon us by the Bristishers and prone to
the interpretation of statutes in colonial manners, treating the citizens of India
still as subjects. The 'de-rigueur’ sense of Colonialism and Feudalism in the
minds of Administrators in Executive and their mechanism to deprive common-
men from their rights is stand - still and some times prevail over the minds of
Members of the Judiciary as well.

AFive Judge Bench of Apex Court in M. Nagraj Vs. Union of India'
[(2006) 8 SCC 212] have held thus:-

"20. This principle of interpretation is particularly apposite to the
interpretation of fundamental rights as a gift from the State to its citizens
Individuals possess basic human rights independently of any
Constitution by reason of the basic fact that they are members of the
human race. These fundamental rights are important as they possess
intrinsic value. Part-Ill of the Constitution does not confer fundamental
rights. It confirms their existence and gives them protection.”

Shakespear says in "Merchant of Venice":-

"Justice is always tampered with mercy:"
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But the character like Shylock scarely deserves mercy. The high
pedestal of Justice rests on our faith in the administration of Justice and on the
instinct for justice, and which finds its expression in the "Rule of Law". Emily
Dickinson says thus:-

"If I can stop one heart from breaking,

I shall not live in vain,

[fI can ease one life the aching,

Or cool one pain,

Or help one fainting Robin unto his nest again,
I shall not live in vain."”

It is what the word 'Justice’ means in its true spirit. Then there must be
a departure from 'status quo'. In a changing society such as in India, Law
must be dynamic. The questions before us are:- why not to obliterate
procedural anfractuosities, why not to broaden the old anglo-saxon idea of
'locus standi’, why not to enable the penurious many to exercise their right to
access to the step doors of the 'Temples of Justice'. Mark Twain once said :-

"It is by goodness of the God that in our country we have those
unspeakably precious things; freedom of speech, freedom of
conscience and the prudence; never to practice either of them."

_ The lawyer's profession is one of the Ruskin's Five great intellectual
professions relating to daily needs of the life. Without a strong, united and
independent Bar it is not easy for the Court to receive proper Guidance which
is essential for Justice Delivery System. There must be a fear of the Bar which
is most efficient check upon the power which necessarily must be vested in
the Judge. We both have to broaden the horizon. Things are only worth, when
we make them worth.

My Lords, turn your face to the sun and the shadows fall behind you. It
is definitely the Bar which protects the Administration of Justice and independence
of Judiciary from the outside assaults. Justice Benjamin Cardozo says:-

"The inn that shelters for the night is not the journey's end; law like the
travellers must be ready for tomorrow."

At this juncture I must pay enshrined feelings of the entire Bar to Your
Lordship, the Chief Justice as a magnanimous man for your obeiable prolixity
and at times, logomachic pronouncements which are clear depattures from
orthodox ways and manners of colonial system; and prone to people - oriented.,
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soctal philosophy, free from encumberance of personal ego. Your Lordship
are titan morally and jurally, open minded, and willing to listen, adjust and
learn and decide without Victorian vintage legalisms, the Judgments being
weighty without being heavy. Your Lordship are a living Light House for both
Bar and the Bench.

Shakespeare Says:- "What is there in a name"? But I differ. The name
reflects the very inner qualities and deep personality of an individual. Your
Lordship the Chief Justice Shri Sharad Arvind Bobde bears the name which
is significant in many respects. The word 'Sharad' denotes a weather which
brings forth charms. The moon looks like a flower and the Sun comes dancing
from the East rising with warm beginning of a new atmosphere and the leaves
and petals of flower in early morning become dew-pearled. The word 'Arvind'
is 2 symbol of purity and reflects the holiness. The poet Shelly says:-

"If winter comes, can spring be far behind."

And the spring was not far behind. The spring came with a pure love -
affair between the Bench and the Bar. It is beginning of a long courtship. However
it is the mater of chemistry. Benjamin Franklin says - "there will be love without
marriage.” Your Lordship as the Head of the Institution and patron of the Bar
have opened anew chapter with new dimensions of relationship, understanding
and mutual love and respect. As a good cricketer, you have shown your courtesy
and sportsmanship. We at Bar hope for rising of a new horizon.

We are proud enough that as a class our Judiciary maintains a higher
standard of values ethics and impartiality than their counter-parts in the Executive
domain. [ again expect that Your Lordships elevated today will leave an indelible
stamp of scholarship, learning, impartiality, pleasing Court manners, judiciousness
and morality on the pages of the great history of this Court.

Rigveda Says:-

'w:ﬁamﬁr:.wawﬁa: [
HHIER], @) T 9T 9 gHEN | [

[Let there be oneness in your resolutions, hearts and minds. Let the
Strength to live with mutual co-operation be firm in you all.]

Your Lordships now have vision and promises to keep. -
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Shri D.K. Dixit, President, M.P. High Court Advocates' Bar
Association, Jabalpur, while felicitating the New Judges, said :

It is my proud priviledge to extend hearty warm and cordial welcome
to the new Judges who have been added to the galaxy of this great institution.

First, I welcome Hon'ble Justice Subhash Kakade and congratulate
my Lord ont his appointment as Addl. Judge of this Hon'ble Court. My lord
have vast experience of justice dispensation system being one of the best
judicial officer of the State. My Lord is also having enough experience of
Admn. side being the Registrar General of this Court. My Lord have obtained
the degrees of BA & LLB in Ist Division and joined judicial service on
29.10.1979 as Civil Judge, Class-II and thereafter, promoted as C.J.M. on
18.01.91, officiating D.J. in Higher judicial service on 27.07.92, granted
sleection grade from 08.05.99 and super time scale from 19.05.06. After
working at so many places ultimately posted as Registrar General in High
Court, Jabalpur on 03.01.11. We have seen him very closely and find in him
a very pious, soul, a very sincere and gentle personality. ° '

* My Lord, on behalf of the members of M.P.H.C.A. Bar Association
and on my own behalf wish you a very successful tenure as a Judge.

Now, I welcome and congratulate my Lord Hon'ble Justice Shri
Bhagwandas Rathi on his appointment as Addl. Judge of this Hon'ble Court.
My Lord were born on 16.05.53 at Indore, obtained the degrees of BA &
LLB and appointed as C.J. IT on 04.09.1979, promoted as C.J.M. on
17.01.91, officiating D.J. on 29.03.93, granted selection grade on 08.05.99
and super time scale on 15.10.06. :

My Lord have worked as judicial officer at so many places and
ultimately posted as Registrar, High Court at Gwalior in August 2009 and
Principal Registrar in September 2009, which post my Lord were adorning
till elevation. My Lord have worked for some time at Jabalpur and I had the _
occasion to appear before my Lord, having a very pleasant personaliiy always
ready to help aright litigant.

My Lord on behalf of the High Court Advocates Bar Association and
on my own behalf wish you a very successful tenure as a Judge of this August
Institution. '
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Now, I welcome and congratulate my Lord Hon'ble Justice Mahendra
Kumar Mudgal on his appointment as Addl. Judge of this Court.

My Lord were born on 28.08.1954 at Bhind and after schooling
obtained the degrees of BA, LLB. Thereafter, joined judicial service as C.J.
IIon 16.11.1981. Soon promoted as C.J.M. on 30.08.1991; officiating D.J.
on 17.10.93, granted selection grade from 04.06.1999 and super time scale
from 10.10.2007. After working at so many places in different capacities of
judicial officer my Lord is posted as Principal Registrar, High Court, Jabalpur
on 14.01.2008 and worked as such till elevation. My Lord have vast
experience of judicial working and also of Admn. side and we hope that it will
help my Lord in dispensation of justice in this Coutt.

I, on behalf of the members of H.C.A. Bar Association and my own
behalf wish my Lord a very successful tenure as a Judge of this Court.

Now, I welcome and congratulate my Lord Hon'ble Justice Shri
Dharmdhwaj Kumar Paliwal on his appointment as Addl. Judge of this Court.

My Lord were born on 16.03.1955 at Hamirpur (U.P.) and after
schooling obtained the degrees of B.Sc. LLM, joined judicial service of the
State on 05.11.1981 as C.J. II, promoted as C.J.M. on 23.08.1991; as
officiating D.J. on 18.10.1993, granted selection grade from 04.06.99 and
super time scale from 10.10.2007. My Lord were posted in different capacities
of judicial officer at various places and ultimately posted as District & Sessions
Judge, Gwalior on 01.06.2006; which post my Lord held till elevation. My
Lord have also vast experience of judicial as well as of Admn. side; as my
Lord have been working in Department of Law of the State as Addl. Secretary
and Secretary in between 2001 to 2004.

I on behalf of the members of H.C.A. Bar Association and on my
own behalf wish my Lord a very successful tenure as a Judge of this Court.

Once again I welcome and congratulate my Lords, Hon'ble Justice
Shri Kakade, Shri Rathi, Shri Mudgal and Shri Paliwal and wish them very
successful tenure as a Judge and good and healty life.

Ed
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Shri Shivendra Upadhyay, Chairman, M.P. State Bar Council,
while felicitating the New Judges, said :

FAYRY 9vd AATAY B T 3WR B 915 I8 Wawifys aor smar €
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Shri Rashid Suhal Siddiqui Asstt. Solicitor General, Madhya
Pradesh, while felicitating the New Judge, said :

It gives me immense pleasure to extend a hearty welcome to Hon'ble
Shri Justice Subhash Raosaheb Kakade, Hon'ble Shri Justice Bhagwan Das
Rathi, Hon'ble Shri Justice Mahendra Kumar Mudgal and Hon'ble Shri Justice
Dharmdhwaj Kumar Paliwal on their appointment as Additional Judges of
this Hon'ble Court.

il
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My Lord Hon'ble Shri Justice Subhash Raosaheb Kakade was born
on 23rd January 1955. He joined Judicial Service as Civil Judge, Class-II on
29th October 1979. Before elevation he was working as Registrar General of
High Court of Madhya Pradesh. He also served as District and Session Judge
of Neemuch, Guna and Bhopal.

My Lord Hon'ble Shri Justice Bhagwandas Rathi was born on
16/09/1953 and joined Judicial Service as Civil Judge, Class-II on 4*
September 1979. Before elevation he was working as a Principal Registrar,
MP High Court, Bench at Gwalior. He also served as District and Session
Judge of Morena and Shajapur.

My Lord Hon'ble Shri Justice Mahendra Kumar Mudgal was born on
28/08/1954 and joined Judicial Service as Civil Judge, Class-Il on 11th Nov. 1981.
Before elevation he was working as a Principal Registrar, (Insp. & Vig.) MP High
Court. He also served as District and Session Judge of Sheopur and Ratlam.

My Lord Hon'ble Shri Justice Dharmdhwaj Kumar Paliwal was born
on 16/03/1955 and joined Judicial Service as Civil Judge, Class-II Sth Nov.
1981. Before elevation he was working as a District and Session Judge,
Gwalior. He also served as District and Session Judge of Bhind and Shivpuri.

My previous speakers. have already extolled the various virtues of
the newly appointed my Lords, so I will not elaborate further.

I, on behalf of Union of India, my colleagues who represent Union of
India and my own behalf welcome your Lordships and wish a successful tenure
as Judges of this Hon'ble High Court with the assurance of our optimum
cooperation to my Lords in dispensation of justice.

Shri T.S. Ruprah, General Secretary, Sr. Advocates Council,
while felicitating the New Judge, Said :

I deem it to be my proud privilege to offer felicitations to your
Lordships on your appointment as Judges of this High Court. We welcome
Hon'ble Shri Justice Subhash Kakade, Hon'ble Shri Justice Bhagwandas
Rathi, Hon'ble Shri Justice Mahendra Kumar Mudgal and Hon'ble Shri
Justice Dharmdhwaj Kumar Paliwal. '

My Lords, today you Jjoin the select and distinguished group of jurists
and administrators of justice. Your appointment is recognition of your juristic
talent and qualities of head and heart.
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My Lords, Judicial responsibility, accountability and independence
must be embodied in the institution of the judiciary. As Lord Delvin has said,
"The prestige of the judiciary and their reputation for stark impartiality is not
at the disposal of any government, but is an asset that belongs to the whole
nation. Itis justice that saveth and defendeth a nation that maketh it happy,
fruitful and prosperous. The frontiers of a nation may be guarded with men of
arms, but it will not be preserved thereby it must be justice in the midst of it.
The judiciary gives a smile on the face of the nation."

My Lords it is a state where the majority of the people are poor,
aboriginals and downtrodden. They need justice. People have great
expectations from Your Lordships. My Lords will bring to your task a wealth
of experience, the vast knowledge of law, an almost inexhaustible fund of
patience, tolerance and compassion. Let "to do justice" be the motto of Your
Lordships judicial career.

I'am sure, Your Lordships having taken the oath of upholding the provisions
of the constitution will ensure the well being of the people of the nation.

I, on behalf of all the members of the Senior Advocates Council and
on my own behalf welcome Your Lordships to this glorious institution and
wish your Lordships a very meaningful and successful tenure.

Reply to Ovation, by Hon,Shri Justice Subhash Raosaheb Kakade :

First of all, I offer my salutation to the Almighty God for showering his
divine grace on me. I am here only because of His bountiful blessings.

I'would also like to express my sincere thanks, to the learned speakers,
for the kind and encouraging words spoken on this occasion. I am deeply
touched by the noble sentiments expressed by them. Indeed, I feel very humble
for all the praise showered upon me by the esteemed speakers .Being a
member of the District Judiciary for well over three decades, I am fully aware
of the responsibilities of this high office. I sincerely think that all that has been
said rather is an expression of the high expectations from me in discharge of
my duties.  hope that these good wishes and sentiments will throughout stand
by me in good stead. I assure you all that I will try to discharge my
responsibilities with full courage, confidence and devotion.

I would like to express my heart-felt gratitude to My Lord Hon'ble
Shri Justice Sushil Harkauli, the then Acting Chief Justice of this High Court
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and members of the collegium, Hon'ble Shri Justice K.K. Lahoti and Hon'ble
Shri Justice Ajit Singh for considering and recommending my name for elevation
to the Bench of this August Court. I am also grateful to all the Hon'ble Judges
of this court for their blessings and good wishes.

1 express my gratitude for the kindness bestowed upon me by the
Hon'ble Judges of the Collegium ofthe Supreme Court.

It is a matter of great privilege and honor for me that the oath of the
office has been administered to me by eminent jurist Hon'ble the Chief Justice
Shri Sharad A. Bobde. His Lordship's able guidance has always been a source
of strength and inspiration for me.

Ladies and Gentlemen, I would be failing in my duty if T do not express
gratitude to all my seniors in the profession as well as in personal life. During
my formative years as a Subordinate Judge, I had the privilege of being molded
by Late Hon'ble Shri Justice R.P. Awasthi, the then District Judge Indore.
Later, as Addl. District Judge I was ably guided by Hon'ble Shri Justice V.K.-
Agrawal, the then District Judge, Ujjain.

. The practical training and valuable tips imparted by Justice Agrawal
helped me, in a big way, in shaping my career as a judge. I also owe special
thanks to Hon'ble Shri Justice M.A. Siddiqui, the then District Judge,
Tikamgarh.

I am grateful to all my Teachers and Gurujis who inculcated proper
values in me.

Whatever 1 am today, is because of the blessings of my mother Smt.
Sunanda Kakade, who always strove to shape me as a better human being.
Today, I also remember my late uncle Shri Bapurao Kakade who always
encouraged me.

Last but not the least; I am extremely thankful my wife Smt. Bharati
Kakade, not only for her unstinted support, dedication and cooperationin all
walks of my life but, also for her prayers and good wishes, which gave me the
courage and strength to traverse through good and bad times and to devote
my selfto my duties and responsibilities as a judge.

I am extremely grateful to my elder daughter Aakansha, son-in-law
Nikhil Pawar, younger daughter Maitry and son Aditya who have been a source
of constant solace to me.

I am extremely thankful to my relatives and friends who have come
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here to shower their blessings and good wishes on me.

Thanks to all Members of the Bar and all the ministerial officials with
whom I came in contact, wherever I was posted, who helped me perform my
duties diligently,

Iexpress deep gratitude to my colleagues, personal staff and Registry
officials who have always extended their fullest co- operation to me during my
tenure as District Judge, Neemuch, Guna and Bhopal, Registrar, Indore Bench
and Registrar General.

Finally, I conclude by thanking you all once again.

Reply to Ovation, by Hon'ble Shri Justice Bhagwan Das Rathi:

A very good morning to each and every person who is part of this
august gathering, Almighty Incorporeal God Lord Shiva has always showered
his blessings and grace on me & my family so this day has come into my life.
I pray to almighty God to continue his blessings and kind support to all of us.
It is my privilege and pleasure to welcome all and to receive the blessings and
good wishes of all my loved ones.

I am grateful for the excess of generosity in the remarks you have
made thls morning.

It is a matter of pride for me in being elevated as Judge of this august
High Court. I am obliged to my Lord Hon'ble Shri Justice Sushil Harkauli,
Judge of Allahabad High Court and the then Acting Chief Justice of this High
Court, Hon. Members of the collegium Hon. Shri Justice K.K.Lahoti & Hon.
Shri Justice Ajit Singh ,for having considered and recommended my name for
elevation. I pay my special regard to Hon'ble the Chief Justice of India &
Hon. Members of the Supreme Court collegium for having found me worth.

I'am highly obliged to Hon. the Chief Justice of Madhya Pradesh Shri
Sharad Arvind Bobde who has administered oath to me of this pious office.

I'take this opportunity to pay my sincere regards to my Lord Justice
A KPatnaik, Judge, Supreme Court of India, former Chief Justice of this Court,
Hon 'ble Shri Justice Dipak Misra, Judge of Supreme Court, Hon. Shri Justice
Arun Mishra, Chief Justice of Calcutta High Court, Hon. Shri Justice Rajendra
Menon, Senior Judge of this High Court & Chairman, JOTRI of Madhya
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Pradesh, Jabalpur and all the Hon. Judges of Madhya Pradesh High Court
for the love, guidance and affection bestowed on me.

I feel privileged in offering this ovation to late Hon. Shri Justice Shri G. L.
Ojha, Former Judge of'the Supreme Court, his Lordship's brother late Shri Radha
Kishenji Ojha, Maternal uncle Shri Tarachandji Malpani and Shri Prahladji Rathi
without whose blessings this golden day could not have come in my life.

This pious moment will be incomplete without the remembrance of
my mentors Advocate from Indore late Shri K.B.Joshi, Late Shri Pradhan,
Late Shri S.L.Ukas from whom I undertook the training of legal ethics and
Shri B.KShrivastava, Former senior District Judge in Madhya Pradesh, who
always used to enlighten me in my Judicial career. '

I cannot forget the great spiritual institution popularly known as
Prajapita Bharmakumari's Ishwariya Vishswavidyalaya having its international
headquarter at Mount Abu from where [ have got knowledge of Rajyog to
live life with all human'’virtues. I pay my tribute, on this occasion to late
Dadiprakash Maniji who had been Chief Administrator of this great spiritual
institution. She always used to teach me Godly versions which has enabled
me to lead a divine life. ] also pay my respect to Dadi Jankiji who is presently
Chief Administrator B. K. Nirwerji, Secretary General of the institution, B.
K. Aartzji Zone Incharge Indore, B. K Pushpaji Incharge Rajim Centre,
Chhattisgarh, B.KSuresh Guptaji ,B.KSagarmalji and all B.K brothers and
sisters who have always showered their love and blessings on me.

Now its time to introduce my family members to this august gathering.
I fondly remember the teachings given by my Grandpa late Shri Pannalalji
Rathi, my father Shri Shankarlalji Rathi & my mother Smt. Phoolkunwar Rathi
and it is only due to their noble teachings & love, I could always achieve
success, including the day today. I am also thankful to all my family members
‘who have always helped and encouraged me specially my beloved wife Smt.
Asha Rathi, my elder son Advocate Shri Vikas Rathi and my younger son
Advocate Shri Aakash Rathi , who have stood by me at all times. I also
acknowledge the love, affection & support extended ,by my elder daughter in
law Smt. Neha Vikas Rathi and Younger daughter in law Smt. Deepti Aakash
Rathi and all my siblings & their spouses to fulfill my dream.

I have always learnt and also received cooperation from the respected
bar members of Indore, Bhopal, Bilaspur, Bagli, Khategaon, Sardarpur, Kukshi,
Gangjbasoda, Vidisha, Jabalpur, Balaghat, Rajgarh(Biora), Morena, Shahjapur
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and Gwalior ,so I would like to thank all of them. I have high regards for the Bar
and believe that their cooperation and assistance will enhance my efficiency.

I always got love, support & inspiration for doing hard work, therefore
from the core of my heart, I deeply acknowledge the love and unconditional
support of my esteemed seniors, collegues and staff members.

I have vowed to defend my oath of office as Judge of High Court at
all times in whatever situation. As the oath of office is the root of our
independent Judiciary. I firmly believe in the fact that in exercising judicial
function a Judge must not only be free but must also be perceived as being
free. We have been conferred with independence in the adjudicative process
so that Justice can be dispensed without fear or favour and sanctity of judiciary
can also be preserved at all times. The independence and competency of
Judges help instill public confidence in the Judiciary. Competency of Judge
reflects when a Judge possess necessary knowledge and skills to give his
opinion about the values, qualities, true, right and correctness of something.
Knowledge and skills originate from following. eight spiritual powers and nine
gems. the eight Powers are: - 1. Power to withdraw, 2.power to packup,
3.power to tolerate, 4. power to adjust, 5. power to discriminate, 6.power to
judge, 7.power to face and 8. power to cooperate . Similarly nine gems are :-
1.purity, 2.introvertness, 3.patience, 4. sweetness, 5. cheerfulness,
6. fearlessness, 7. humility, 8. tolerance and 9. voicelesness. Source of these
powers and gems is only and only one incorporeal God. Therefore, we say
"Hey Prabhu tum Ashtasidhi Navnidhi ke Data ho ". Thus by way of
rememberance of God, we can achieve all these to gain required knowledge
and skills to become the best and competent person in the field of law.

To gain faith of public, firstly we will have to establish faith in ourselves and

in our judicial system by saying "Jai" to ourselves, no doubt in a positive and ego less
way. I would like to quote a very popular prayer written by Gulzar, for film Guddi.
"Humko Mann ki shakti dena,
Mann Vijay Karein ...........

Dusron ke Jai se pehle...........
Khud Ko jai Karein...........

A beautiful Shayari written by Jaffar Gorakhpuri is very relevant:

YA WLl |17 o g,
T ST6Y) T8 B axIg |1 8l |

I extend my heartly congratulations to fellow collegués Hon.Shri Justice

i
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Subhash Kakade Hon'ble Shri Justice Mahendra Kumar Mudgal Hon. Shri
Justice D.K_Paliwal on their elevation as Judge of this prestigious High Court.

Lastly, I pledge to myself to perform the work entrusted upon me
with integrity, conviction, purity and dedication to ensure a judiciary that is
dignified and respected. In upholding my pledge, I seek blessings of my mentors
& distinguished seniors, cooperation & motivation of my esteemed colleagues,
unconditional support of the Bar members, dedication of the staff and last but
not the least the faith of the public at large. '

1 am extremely honored to be one among the many to be a part of this
institution and on this momentous occasion I feel thankful and obliged to all
my well wishers assembled here in person or present through their thoughts,
to witness this memorable occasion.

Thank you
"Jai Hind."

Reply to Ovation, by Hon'ble Shri Justice Mahendra Kumar
Mudgal:

At the very outset, I would like to beg your pardon for trying your
patience with a rather long expression of my gratitude, [ have here to embark
upon at the call of my conscience and demand of the occasion.

1 pay my reverence to the merciful Almighty for showering his blessings
upon me.

Next, I would like to express my deep sense of gratitude to Hon'ble
Shri Justice Sushil Harkauli, the then Acting Chief Justice of MP High Court,
Hon'ble Shri Justice K.K. Lahoti, Administrative Judge and Hon'ble Shri Justice
Ajit Singh, Senior Judge of the High Court, who were kind enough to consider
me worthy for this prestigious office.

1 am very grateful to Hon'ble the Chief Justice Shri S.A. Bobade who
has administered the oath of office to me for the coveted post. I hope that 1
would be able to properly discharge the responsibilities of this high office
under the able guidance of Hon'ble the Chief J ustice and shall be able to
come true to His Lordship's expectations.

I'am very much beholden to the esteemed speakers for the kind words
spoken about me, words which express their affection to me and the high
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expeétations as well. Indeed, I am very thankful to them.

I'would be failing in my duty if I don't pay my regard to Hon'ble Shri
Justice A K. Patnaik, Judge, Supreme Court of India, the then Chief Justice
of M.P. High Court. When His Lordship was Chief Justice here, he called me
to the Registry from Ratlam where I was working as District & Sessions
Judge, and thus encouraged me in the advancement of my career.

On this occasion, I remember, my revered parents Late Shri Thakur
Prasad Mudgal, my father and late Smt. Kanthshree Mudgal, my mother and
bow my head at their lotus feet. Without their continued blessings, I could not
have been standing where I do today. If they had been alive, they would have
been the happiest persons to witness this occasion. I am very much proud of
my father who served with devotion and dedication the District ] udiciary in
the capacity of a Ministerial Officer for around 38 years. His rich experience
of the working ofjudiciary, instilled in me the virtues of hard work, discipline,
simplicity and honesty. Virtues without which it would not have been possible
for me to progress this far in my career, albeit at a heavy cost to myselft in
terms of great hardship,sufferings and struggle.

I'was born in village Gohadi, Tahsil Gohad, Distt. Bhind where my
grandfather late Shri Subalalji was Zamindar and there were no facilities for
proper schooling. When I was studying in 10th standard, my father retired. If
my elder brother, Shri Mahesh Mudgal had not undertaken the responsibility
of my further education, my career would have been cut short and I would
have been tilling land in my native village. I am highly indebted to him as also
to my sister-in-law Smt. Kalpana Mudgal without whose valuable help, I would
not have been able to complete my academic career.

After graduating in law, in submission to the wishes of my father, I
started practising law in the year 1976 at Gohad, Distt. Bhind where I was
exposed to the salutary guidance of Shri Krishan Swaroop Shrivastava, a
learned civil lawyer, a guidance without which I would not have been able to
top the examination held in 1981 for recruitment of Civil Judges. I take this
opportunity to express my deep sense of gratitude to him.

As CIM, Sehore in 1992, I came in contact with late Shri C.S. Gupta,
the then District & Sessions Judge, Sehore, who eventually retired as Registrar
General, High Court of M.P. l imbibed from him salutary qualities of hard
work and devotion to the dignity of the institution. I am highly grateful to him
for inducing in me the above qualities by example.
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Y am very thankfuil to all my senior Judges under whose valuable guidance
I have successfully completed 31 years of my judicial service hitherto. My thanks

toall the colleagues, Registry Officers, friends, advocates, staff members, especially
of Vigilance Cell who co-operated withme in my judicial and official work.

I am thankfisl to both my elder sisters Smt.Shanti Devi Sharma, Smt.
Pushpa Sharma and Shri P.K. Sharma, Brother-in-Law for showering their
blessings on me and to other elder brother Dr. Shiv Kumar Mudgal whose
blessings always gave me strength. I also express my thanks to my nephew
Dr. Satyendra Sharma and his wife Dr.Pratibha Sharma for encouraging me
all the time in my pursuit. T am also thankful to all other family members and
relatives for their support and affection.

Last but not least, I am grateful to my loving, wife Smt. Rajani Mudgal
who always stood by my side and fully supported me in times - fair and foul.
[ am grateful to my beloved son Mridul Mudgal and my daughter-in-law Smt.
Suruchi Mudgal who have by their merit and industry landed a career that
leaves me free of all worries on their account. And of course, how canl omit
the mention of my grandson who has arrived only a fortnight back in this
world as if to herald the present occasion.

I promise youall to strive ceaselessly to uphold the dig{ﬁty ofthe office,Jam

going to occupy and do nothing out of fear or for favour as would compromise it.

Once again, Thanks to all the dignitaries and invitees for being a witness
to this occasion.

Reply to Ovation, by Hon'ble Shri Justice Dharmdhwaj Kumar -
Paliwal:

Frankly, I am searching for words to adequately express my gratitude for
the platitudes spoken about me. This is an occasion which is so rare in one's life
that one is bound to be overwhelmed by the sentiments expressed. I must with all
the humility, express that, possibly,  do not have such attributes to deserve such
appreciation which has taken me to exalted heights. All I can say is that you have
been generous in your praise and very indulgent in overlooking my drawbacks.

Elevation to the Bench is an ambition which is rooted in the very
beginning when a judicial officer enters into the service. I am fortunate enough
to got the opportunity to come up in the hierarchy.

I express my heart felt gratimde to Hon'ble Shri Justice Sushil Harkauli,
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Hon'ble Shri Justice K.K. Lahoti and Hon'ble Shri Justice Ajit Singh, for
considering me, worthy enough for appointment to this august office. I also express
my gratitude to the Hon'ble members of the collegium of the Supreme Court.

I'would like to pay my sincere regards to all my District Judges under
whose able guidance I could develop my legal acumen,

Ibelieve that the most important mission of the Judiciary as mandated by
the constitution is to build a stable and peaceful society by ensuring consistency
and predictability through the implementation of the rule of law, Only then, the
dignity and value of the individual the most precious value in free democracy will
be fully assured and every citizen can pursue happiness in a harmonious life while
enjoying their basic human rights. Another important mission is to protect the
rights of the disadvantaged from being treated unfairly in a society. -

I pledge, that I will devote all my capabilities in administering justice
according to laws and conscience and it shall be my endeavor to come up to
your expectations as well as of litigant public and to make all efforts to maintain
the great traditions laid down by the distinguished judges of this Court.

Today I fondly remember my late parents Shri P.D. Paliwal & Smt. Lila
Paliwal. It is sad that they are not here today to witness the swearing in ceremony
but I feel from the innermost of: my soul, they are still blessing me. Ipay my highest
regards to them. I also remember my father-in-law, Late Shri Manik Chandra
Sharma who was very anxious to see me as judge of this Court unfortunately he
left for heaven abode last year and his last wish remained unfulfilled. I feel that he
is blessing me from heaven. I dedicate this moment to him.

I'am delighted that so many of my friends, well wishers, professional
colleagues are present here to bless nme. I appreciate that they have traveled
a long distance to extend their moral support. Time is preventing me from
identifying them all but I express my heartiest gratitude towards all.

Tam extremely thankful to my mother-in-law Smt. Indu Sharma, uncle in
law Shri 8.D. Sharma, and all the relatives who have come hereto blessme. I am
grateful to my wife who stood by me as strong pillar and sacrificed a lot to ensure
that our children may get best education and by the grace of almighty God both
the sons Mayank and Priyank are doing well in UK. & U.S. Respectively.

T'am sure that I will continue to get the co-operation from the Bar to
enable me to perform the pious duty of dispension of justice.

I once again sincerely thank to all of you.

{5
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NOTES OF .CASES SECTION -

Short Note
*(15) .
Before Mr. Justice A.K. Shrivastava & Mr. Justice GD. Saxena
" W.A. No. 398/2012 (Gwalior) decided on 8 February, 2013 '

GANESH KUMAR SHARMA - ...Appellant
Vs..
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ' ...Respondents

Service Law - Police Regulations - Regulation 226 -
Punishment - Removal from Service - Quantum - Police Regulations
are having statatory force - Clauses (iii) and (v) of Regulation 226 are
applicable to constables and pertains to the penalty to be awarded to a
Constable - Charges were framed in regard to disobeying lawful orders
of Superiors, therefore, before passing the extreme order of punishment
of removal from service, clauses (iii) and (v) of Regulation ought to
have been seen by Disciplinary as well as Appellate Authority - Matter
remanded back to disciplinary authority to examine the case vis-3-vis
Regulation 226 and fresh order in accordance to lJaw may be passed.
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The order of the Court was delivered by : A.K. SHRIVASTAVA, 3.
Cases referred :

2007(1) JLI 333, (2003) 4 SCC 231, (2005) 2 SCC 489, (2005)
12 SCC 182, (2005) 13 SCC 709, (2001) 9 SCC 592, (2009) 16 SCC
621, (2004) 4 SCC 560.

" D.K. Katare with Arun Katare, for the appellant. *
Vivek Khedkar, Dy. A.G. ft. the respondents.
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Short Note
*(16)
Befoi‘e Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul
W.P. No. 96/2012 (Gwalior) decided on 19 February, 2013

PRATAP WAHINI SAMAJ KALYAN SANSTHAN ...Petitioner

Vs,

STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents
A. Constitution - Article 226 - This court can entertain a

petition when it challenges vires of any act, rules etc. or when the order
is contrary to natural justice or when such an order is passed by the
authority who has no jurisdiction - In such cases the plea of Alternative
remedy may be rejected.
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B. Society Registrikaran Adhiniyam, M.P. (44 of 1973),
Sections 31(I) & 32(3)-If a thing is required to be done in a particular
manner in a statute, it has to be done in the same manner or not at all

- The other methods which are not in consonance with the statute are
forbidden,

A afmé? Wortevr affran wg (1973 w1 44), grerg

31(1)aaz(s)-ﬁﬁswﬁmaﬁ'ﬁwﬁmaﬁ-%wﬁﬁﬁmévﬁﬁm
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Cases referred :

(2009) 2 SCC 187, (2010) 11 SCC 159, (2003)2 SCC 111, 2004(1)
MPHT 89 (CG), 1967 SC 295,(1997) 1 SCC 444,

R.N. Singh with V.X. Bharadwaj and Anvesh Jain, for the petitioner,
Pravin Newaskar, Dy. G.A. for the respondents No. 1 to 3/State,
Rohit Arya with Purushottam Rai, for the respondent No.4.
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Short Note
*17)
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
C.R. No. 20/2012 (Gwalior) decided on 1 March, 2013

RIYAJ KHAN & ors. ...Applicants
Vs, ’ '
KASAM KHAN & ors. ...Non-applicants

A. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908}, Section 115, Order
9 Rule 9 & Limitation Act (36 of 1963), Section 5 - If on the date,
counsel of the party did not appear then instead to dismiss the suit
or to proceed exparte, it is the duty of the court to inform the party
through summons by fixing the case on some future date - If party
did not appear on that day then the court may pass order either for
dismissal of the suit or to proceed exparte - In such circumstances
trial court ought to have allowed the application u/s 5 of Limitation
Act and Order 9 Rule 9, C.P.C. - The appellate court has not
committed any error in setting aside the order of the trial court
and in allowing restoration of the suit.
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B. Limitation Act (36 of 1963), Section 5 - Condonation of
delay - Besides considering all other things, the court is also bound to
consider the stake of litigation.

. TR A9 (1963 &7 36) &IRT 5 — [F7r T &} WIH) —
Fg |t gt &1 fauR o @ I, Ty {$ed # a 19 B
frar & |3 & fag  sem 2
Case referred :

(2001) 6 SCC 176.

D.D.Bansal, for the applicants.

Ankur Maheshwari, for the non-applicants.

Short Note
*(18)
Before Mr. Justice K.K. Trivedi
W.P. No. 7865/2007 (S) (Jabalpur) decided on 2 November, 2012

S.K.SAXENA (DR.) & anr. ...Petitioners

Vs.

STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents
Service Law - Promotion - From Speciality to

Administrative Post - Petitioners were senior to respondents as
Assistant Surgeon - Respondents got promotion due to availability
of vacancy in their speciality and become senior as specialist to
petitioner - However, for promotion to the administrative post the
original seniority of Assistant Surgeon ought to be considered -
Petition allowed.
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Case referred :
(1990) 14 ATC 780 (SC).

GS. Ahluwalia, for the petitioners.

Yogesh Dhande, Dy. G.A. for the respondents No.1& 2
S.D. Tiwari, for the respondents No. 3 & 5.

P.D. Gupta, for the respondent No. 4.

Short Note
*19)
Before Mr. Justice Brij Kishore Dube
Cr. A. No. 414/2010 {Gwalior) decided on 19 March, 2013

SHRIKRISHNA & ors. ...Appellants
Vs,
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 374 -
Appeal from Convictions - Misappreciation of Evidence - There is
no evidence on record to establish that the deceased was ever
provoked or encouraged or persuaded or compelled by the
appellant/ accused to commit suicide - Act of commission of suicide
was not the consequence of any of acts allegedly committed by the
accused - Ingredients of Section 306 have not been established -
Hence, conviction recorded by the trial court cannot be maintained.

g8 GhHdr giedl, 1973 (1974 &T 2), &RT 374 — iolyfe &
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Cases referred :

2010(1) SCC (Cr.) 917, 2004 Cr.L.I. 197, 1995 SCC (Cr.) 1157,
2008(1) CAR 492, 2002 SCC (Cr.) 1088, 2002(1) MPWN 40,(2010) 1
SCC 750.

V.K. Saxena with Shipra Agrawal, for the appellants.
Prabal Solanki, P.P. for the respondent/State. -
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LLR[2013]MP. RK. Soni Vs. State 6f M.P. (SC) 741

L.L.R. [2013] M.P,, 741 .
SUPREME COURT OF INDIA
Before Mr. Justice T.S. Thakur &
Mr. Justice Fakkir Mohamed Ibrahim Kalifulla
Cr. A. No. 353/2013 decided on 26 February, 2013

RAMESH KUMAR SONI ...Appellant
-Vs. ' '
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

- A. Cnmmal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), First
Schedule, Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 408, 420, 467, 468 &
471 - Whether Triable by Court of Sessions or Magistrate - Offence
under Sections 408, 420, 467, 468 & 471 of LP.C. was registered

_against appellant on 18.05.2007 - Amendment in first schedule of

Cr.P.C. making the offences triable by Court of Sessions received
assent of President on 22.02.2008 - Charge sheet was filed
subsequently - Case is triable by Court of Sessions as no case was
pending before the Magistrate on the date the amendment Act came
into force. . _(Paras 4 to 8)

& T T w?%ar 1973 (1974 BT 2), 9T JLA, TS
GTear (1860 ®7T 45), €IRIQ 408, 420, 467, 468 T 471 — FT GA ~IIiq
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B. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (20f 1 974) (Amendment) '

" Act, M.P,, 2007 - First Schedule - Change of Forum - Whether .

Retrospective or Prospective - Fill Bench of High Court held that all”
cases pending before the Magistrate on 22.02.2008 remained unaffected

" by amendment and were triable by J.M.F.C. - Held - Any amendment‘

shifting the forum of trial has to be on principle of retrospectwe in |
nature in absence of any indication in the amendment Act to the .
contrary, although proceedings concluded under the old law cannot be
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reopened for the purpose of applying the new procedure - nght of
forum is not recognized as vested right - Judgment of Full Bench that
amended provision to be applicable to pending cases is not correct on
principle - Decision rendered by Full Bench overruled.

(Paras 9 to 19)
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C. Prospective Overruling - Overruling of Judgment passed
by Full Bench will not affect cases which have already been tried or
are at an advanced stage before Magistrates in terms of said decision.

' : (Para 25)
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Cases referred :

Re : Amendment of First Schedule of Criminal Procedure Cody by

- Criminal Procedure Code (M.P. Amendment) Act, 2007 2008(3) MPLJ 311

- Overruled.

AIR 1964 SC-1541, (1976) 3 SCC 252, (1980) 2 SCC 91,:(1975)

2 SCC 840, (1994) 4 SCC 602, (2006) 1 SCC 141, (1952) 54 Bom. LR
330, AIR 1967 SC 1419, (1996) 8 SCC 388, (2003) 1 SCC 444,(1979) 4
SCC 214, AIR 1970 SC 1636, AIR 1958 SC 915, AIR 1967 SC 1643,

(1997) 5 SCC 201, (1999) 3 SCC 362, (2001) 9 SCC 550, (2003) 4 SCC

147, (2009) 4 SCC 299.
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LL.R.[2013]M.P. R.K. Soni Vs. State of M.P. (SC} 743
'  JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered -by.:
T.S. THAKUR, J. :- Leave granted. o

2. The short question that falls for determination in this appeal is whether
the appellant could be tried by the Judicial Magistrate, First Class, for the
offences punishable under Sections 408, 420, 467, 468 and 471 of the IPC
notwithstanding the fact that the First Schedule of the Code of Criminal
Procedure, 1973 as amended by Code of Criminal Procedure (Madhya
Pradesh Amendment) Act of 2007, made offences punishable under Sections
467, 468 and 471 of the Penal Code triable only by the Court of Sessions.
The Trial Court of 9th Additional Sessions Judge, Jabalpur has answered that
question in the negative and held that after the amendment the appellant could
be tried only by the Court of Sessions. That view has been affirmed by the
High Court of Madhya Pradesh at Jabalpur in a criminal revision petition filed
by the appellant against the order passed by the Trial Court. The factual matrix |
in which the controversy arises may be summarised as under: B

3. “Crime No.129 of 2007 for commission of offences punishable under
Sections 408,420,467, 468 and 471 of the IPC was registered against the
appellant on 18th May, 2007, at Bheraghat Police Station. On the date of the

_ registration of the case the offences in question were triable by a Magistrate

of First Class in terms of the First Schedule of Code of Criminal Procedure;,
1973. That position underwent a change on account of the Code of Criminal

. Procedure (Madhya Pradesh Amendment) Act 02007 introduced by Madhya

Pradesh Act 2 of 2008 which amended the First Schedule of the 1973 Code
and among others made offences under Sections 467, 468 and 471 of the

* IPC triable by the Court of Sessions instead of a Magistrate of First Class.

The amendment received the assent of the President on 14th Fcbruziry, 2008
and was published in Madhya Pradesh Gazette (Extraordinary) on 22nd
February, 2008. Consequent upon the amendment aforementioned, the Judicial
Magistrate, First Class appears to have committed to the Sessions Courtall -
cases involving commission of offences under the above provisions. In one
such case the Sessions Judge, Jabalpur, made a reference to the High Court
on the following two distinct questions of law: :

1. Whether the recent amendment dated 22nd FeBruary,
2008 in the Schedule-I of the Cr.P.C. is to be applied -
retrospectively? ' ‘
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2. Consequently, whether the cases pending before the
.. Magistrate First Class, in which evidence partly or wholly has
" beenrecorded, and now have been committed to this Court
are to be tried de novo by the Court of Sessions or should be-
remanded back to the Magistrate First Class for further trial?

4. A Full Bench of the High Court of Madhya Pradesh in Re: Amendment
of First Schedule of Criminal Procedure Code by Criminal Procedure
Code (M. P. Amendment) Act, 2007 2008 (3) MPLJ 311, answered the
reference and held that all cases pending before the Court of Judicial Magistrate
First Class as on 22nd F ebruary, 2008 remained unaffected by the amendment
and were triable by the Judicial Magistrate First Class as the Amendment Act

did not contain a clear indication that such cases also have to be made overto

“the Court of Sessions. The Court further held that all such cases as were
pending before the Judicial Magistrate First Class and had been committed to
the Sessions Court shall be sent back to the Judicial Magistrate First Class in
accordance with law. The reference was answered accordingly.

5. Relying upon the decision of the Full Bench the appellant filed an
application before the trial Court seeking a similar direction for remission of
the case for trial by a Judicial Magistrate. The appellant argued on the authority
of the above decision that although the police had not filed a charge-sheet

" against the appellant and the investigation in the case was pending as on the

date the amendment came into force, the appellant had acquired the right of
trial by a forum specified in Schedule I of the 1973 Code. Any amendment to
- the said provision shifting the forum of trial to the Court of Sessions was not
" attracted to the appellant’s case thereby rendering the committal of the case
to the Sessions Court and the proposed trial of the appellant before the
. Sessions Court illegal. The trial Court, as mentioned earlier, repelled that
" contention and held that since no charge-sheet had been filed before the’
Magistrate as on the date the amendment came into force, the case was
exclusively triable by the Sessions Court. The High Court has affirmed that
view and dismissed the revision petition filed by the appellant, hence the present
appeal. ' '

6. The Code of Criminal Procedure (Madhya Pradesh Amendment) Act,
2007 is in the following words:

“An Act further to amend the Code of Criminal Procedure,
1973 in its application to the State of Madhya Pradesh. .
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. Be it enacted by the Madhya Pradesh Leglslature
in the Fifty-eighth Year of the Republic of India as follows:

1. Short title. — (1) This Act may be called the Code
‘of Criminal Procedure (Madhya Pradesh Amendment) Act,
2007.

"2 Amendmem‘ of Central Act No.2 of 1974 in its
apphcanon to the State of Madhya Pradesh — The Code
of Criminal Procedure, 1973 (No. 2 of 1974) (hereinafter
referred to as the Principal Act), shall in its application to
' the State of Madhya Pradesh, be amended in the manner
hereinafter provided.

3 Amendment of Secnon 16 7 - e
XXXX XXX xxXx

4. ‘Amendment of the First Schedule — In the First
Schedule to the Principal Act, under the heading “I-
Offences under the Indian Penal Code” in column 6
against section 317, 318, 326, 363, 3634, 365, 377, 392,
393, 394, 409, 435, 466, 467, 468, 471, 472, 473, 475,
476, 477 and 477A, for the words “Magistrate of First
Class” wherever they-occur, the words “Court of
Sessions"” shall be substituted,”

7. The First Schedule to the Criminal Procedure Code 1973 classifies .
offences under the IPC for purposes of determining whether or not a particular’
offence is cognizable or non-cognizable and bailable or non-bailable. Column
6 of the First Schedule indicates the Court by which the offence in question is
triable. The Madhya Pradesh Amendment extracted above has shifted the:

_ forum of trial from the Court of a Magistrate of First Class to the Court of

Sessions. The question is whether the said amendment is prospective and will
be applicable only to offences committed after the date the amendment was
notified or would govern cases that were pending on the date of the amendment
or may have been filed after the same had become operative. The Full Bench
has taken the view that since there is no specific provision contained in the -

Amendment Act making the amendment applicable to pending cases, the same.

would not apply to cases that were already filed before the Magistrate. This
implies that if a case had not been filed upto the date the Amendment Act

- L
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came into fc;rce, it would be governed by the Amended Code and hence be
triable only by the Sessions Court. The Code of Criminal Procedure does
not, however, provide any definition of institution of a case. It is, however,
trite that a case must be deemed to be instituted only when the Court competent
to take cognizance of the offence alleged therein does so. The cognizance
cam, in turn, be taken by a Magistrate on a complaint of facts filed before him
which constitutes such an offence. It may also be taken if a police report is
filed before the Magistrate in writing of such facts as would constitute an
offence. The Magistrate may also take cognizance of an offence on the basis
of his knowledge or suspicion upon receipt of the information from any person
other than a police officer. In the case of the Sessions Court, such cognizance
is taken on commitment to it by a Magistrate duly empowered in that behalf.
All this implies that the case is instituted in the Magistrate’s Court when the
Magistrate takes cognizance of an offence, in which event the case is one
* instituted on a complaint or a police report. The decision of this Court in
Jamuna Singh and Ors. v. Bahdai Shah AIR 1964 SC 1541, clearly explains.
the legal position in this regard. To the same effect is the decision of this Court
in Devrapally Lakshminarayana Reddy and Ors. v. Narayana Reddy and
Ors. (1976) 3 SCC 252 where this Court held that a casé can be said to be
instituted in a Court only when the Court takes cognizance of the offence
alleged therein and that cognizance can be taken in the manner set out in
clauses (a) to (c) of Section 190(1) of the Cr.P.C. We may also referto the
decision of this Court in Kamiapati Trivedi v, State of West Bengal (1980)
2 SCC 91 where this Court interpreted the provisions of Section 190 CL.P.C.
and rejterated the legal position set out in the earlier decisions.

8. Applying the test judicially recognized in the above pronouncements
to the case at hand, we have no hesitation in holding that no case was pending
before the Magistrate against the appellant as on the date the Amendment Act
came into force. That being so, the Magistrate on receipt of a charge-sheet
which was tantamount to institution of a case against the appellant was duty
bound to commit the case to the Sessions as three of the offences with which
he was charged were triable only by the Court of Sessions. The case having
been instituted after the Amendment Act had taken effect, there was no need
to look for any provision in the Amendment Act for determining whether the
amendment was applicable even to pending matters as on the date of the
amendment no case had been instituted against the appellant nor was it pending
before any Court to necessitate a search for any such provision in the
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Amendment Act: The Sessions Judge as also the High Court were, in that .
view, perfectly justified in holding that the order of committal passed by the
Magistrate was a legally valid order and the appellant could be tried only by
the Court of Sessions to which the case stood committed.

9. Having said so, we may now examine the issue from a sllghtly different
angle. The question whether any law relating to forum of trial is procedural or

substantive in nature has been the subject matter of several pronouncements

of this Court in the past. We may refer to some of these decisions, no matter

briefly. In New India Insurance Company Ltd. v. Smt. Shanti Misra, Adult

(1975) 2 SCC 840, this Court was dealing with the claim of payment of
compensation under thé Motor Vehicles Act. The victim of the accident had

passed away because of the vehicular accident before the constitution of the

Claims Tribunal under the Motor Vehicles Act, 1939, as amended. The legal -
heirs of the deceased filed a claim petition for payment of compensation before

the Tribunal after the Tribunal was established. The question that arose was

whether the claim petition was maintainable having regard to the fact that the

cause of action had arisen prior to the change of the forum for trial of a claim

for payment of compensation. This Court held that the change of law operates - .
retrospectively even if the cause of action or right of action had accrued prior
to the change of forum. The claimant shall, therefore, have to approach the
forum as per the amended law. The claimant, observed this Court, had a
“vested right of action” but not a “vested right of forum”. It also held that
unless by express words the new forum is available only to causes of action
arising after the creation of the forum, the general rule is to make it
retrospective. The following passages are iri this regard apposite:

“5. On the plain language of Sections 110-A and 110-F
there should be no difficulty in taking the view that the
change in law was merely a change of forum i.e. a change
of adjectival or procedural law and not of substantive law.
It is a well-established proposition that such a change of
law operates retrospectively and the person has to go to
the new forum even if his cause of action or right of action
accrued prior to the change of forum. He will have a
vested right of action but not a vested right of forum. If
" by express words the new forum is made available only to
* causes of action arising after the creation of the forum,
then the retrospective operation of the law is taken away.
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Otherwise the general rule is to make it retrospective. The
expressions “arising out of an accident” occurring in sub-
section (1) and “over the area in which the accident
occurred”, mentioned in sub-section (2) clearly show that
the change of forum was meant to be operative
retrospectively irrespective of the fact as to when the
accident occurred. To that extent there was no difficulty
in giving the answer in a simple way. But the provision of
limitation of 60 days contained in sub-section (3) created

‘an obstacle in the straight application of the well-

established principle of law. If the accident had occurred
within 60 days prior to the constitution of the tribunal then
the bar of limitation provided in sub-section (3) was not
an impediment. An application to the tribunal could be
said to be the only remedy. If such an application, due to
one reason or the other, could not be made within 60 days
then the tribunal had the power to condone the delay under
the proviso. But if the accident occurred more than 60 days
before the constitution of the tribunal then the bar of
limitation provided in sub-section (3) of Section 110-4 on
its face was attracted. This difficulty of limitation led most
of the High Courts to fall back upon the proviso and say
that such a case will be a fit one where the tribunal would
be able to condone the delay under the proviso to sub-
section (3), and led others to say that the tribunal will have
no jurisdiction to entertain such an application and the
remedy of going to the civil court in such a situation was
not barred under Section 110-F of the Act. While taking
the latter view the High Court failed to notice that primarily
the law engrafted in Sections 110-4 and 110-F was a law
relating to the change of forum.

6. In our opinion in view of the clear and
unambiguous language of Sections 110-4 and 110-F it is
not reasonable and proper to allow the law of change of
forum give way to the bar of limitation provided in sub-
section (3) of Section 110-A. It must be vice versa, The
change of the procedural law of forum must be given effect

LY
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to. The underlying principle of the change of law brought
about by the amendment in the year 1956 was to enable
the claimants to have a cheap remedy of approaching the
claims tribunal on payment of a nominal court fee whereas
a large. amount of ad valorem court fee was required to be
paid in civil court.”

10.  In Hitendra Vishnu Thakur and Ors. etc. ect. v. State of
Maharashira and Ors. (1994).4 SCC 602, one of the questions which this
Court was examining was whether clause (bb) of Séction 20(4) of Terrorist
and Disruptive Activities (Prevention) Act, 1987 introduced by an Amendment
Act governing Section 167(2) of the Cr.P.C. in relation to TADA matters was
in the realm of procedural law and if so, whether the same would be applicable
to pending cases. Answering the question in the affirmative this Court speaking
through A.S. Anand, J. (as His Lordship then was), held that Amendment Act
43 of 1993 was retrospective in operation and that clauses (b) and (bb) of

‘sub-section (4) of Section 20 of TADA apply to the cases which were pending

investigation on the date when the amendment came into force. The Court
summed up the legal position with regard to the procedural law being
retrospective in its operation and the right of a litigant to claim that he be tried
by a particular Court, in the following words:

“26. xxx XxXx

() A statute which affects substantive rights is
presumed to be prospective in operation unless made
relrospective, either expressly or by necessary intendment,
whereas a statute which merely affects procedure, unless
such a construction is textually impossible, is presumed to
be retrospective in its application, should not be given an
extended meaning and should be strictly confined 1o its

" clearly defined limits.

(1)) Law relating to forum and limitation is procedural
in nature, whereas law relating to right of action and right of
appeal even though remedial is substantive in nature.

(iii) Every litigant has a vested right in substantive
law but no such right exists in procedural law.

(iv) A procedural statute should not generally
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speaking be applied retrospectively whére the result would
be to create new disabilities or obligations or to impose
new duties in respect of transactions already accomplished,

(v) A statute which not only changes the procedure

but also creates new rights and liabilities shall be construed

" to be prospective in operation, unless otherwise provided,
either expressly or by necessary implication.”

11.  We may also refer to the decision of this Court in Sudhir G Angur
and Ors. v. M. Sanjeev and Ors. (2006) 1 SCC 141 where a three-Judge
Berich of this Court approved the decision of the Bombay High Court in Shiv
Bhagwan Moti Ram Saraoji v. Onkarmal Ishar Dass and Ors. (1952) 54
Bom LR 330 and observed:

“12....1t has been held that a Court is bound to take notice

of the change in the law and is bound to administer the
law as it was when the suit came up for hearing. It has
been held that if a Court has jurisdiction to try the suit,
when_it comes on for disposal, it then cannot refuse to
assume jurisdiction by reason of the fact that it had no
jurisdiction to_entertain it at the date when it was
instituted. We are in complete agreement with these
observations...”

(emphasis supplied)

12.  In.Shiv Bhagwan Moti Ram Saraoji s case (supra) the Bombay High
Court has held procedural laws to be in force unless the legislatures expressly
provide to the contrary. The Court observed:

“...Now, I think it may be stated as a general principle
that no party has a vested right to a particular proceeding
or to a particular forum, and it is also well settled that all
procedural laws are retrospective unless the Legislature
expressly states to the contrary. Therefore, procedural laws
in _force must be applied at the date when a suit or
proceeding comes on for trial or disposal...”

(emphasis supplied)

13.  The amendment to the Criminal Procedure Code in the instant case
has the effect of shifting the forum of trial of the accused from the Court of
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Magistrate First Class to the Court of Sessions. Apart from the fact that as'on
the date the amendment came into force no case had been instituted against
the appellant nor the Magistrate had taken cognizance against the appellant,
any amendment shifting the forum of the trial had to be on principle retrospective
in nature in the absence of any indication in the Amendment Act to the contrary.
The appellant could not claim a vested right of forum for his trial for no such
right is recognised. The High Court was, in that view of the matter, justified in
intérfering with the order passed by the Trial Court.

14.  The questions formulated by the Full Bench of the High Court were
answered in the negative holding that all cases pending in the Court of Judicial
Magistrate First Class as on 22nd February, 2008 when the amendment to
the First Schedule to the CrP.C. became operative, will remain unaffected by
the said amendment and such matters as were, in the meanwhile committed to
the Court of Sessions, will be sent back to the Judicial Magistrate First Class
for trial in accordance with law. In coming to that conclusion the Full Bench
placed reliance upon three decisions of this Court in Manujendra Dutt. v.
Purnedu Prosad Roy Chowdhury & Ors. AIR 1967 SC 1419,
Commissioner of Income-tax, Bangalore v. Smt. R. Sharadamma (1996)
8 SCC 388 and R. Kapilanath(Dead) through L.R. v. Krishna (2003) 1
SCC 444. The ratio of the above decisions, in our opinion, was not directly
applicable to the fact situation before the Full Bench. The Full Bench of the
High Court was concerned with cases where evidence had been wholly or
partly recorded before the Judicial Magistrate First Class when the same
were committed to the Court of Sessions pursuant to the amendment to the
Code of Criminal Procedure. The decisions upon which the High Court placed
reliance did not, however, deal with those kind of fact situations. In
Manujendra Dutt s case (supra) the proceedings in the Court in which the
suit was instituted had concluded. At any rate, no vested right could be claimed
for a particular forum for litigation. The decisions of this Court referred to by
us earlier settle the legal position which bears no repetition. It is also noteworthy
that the decision in Manujendra Dutt’s case (supra) was subsequently
overruled by a seven-Judge Bench of this Court in ¥ Dhanapal Chettiar v.
Yesodai Ammal (1979) 4 SCC 214 though on a different legal point.

15.  So also the decision of this Court in Smr. R. Sharadamma’s case
(supra) relied upon by the Full Bench was distinguishable on facts. The
question there related to a liability incurred under a repealed enactment.
Proceedings in the forum in which the case was instituted had concluded and
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the matter had been referred to Inspecting Assistant Commissionér before the
dispute regarding jurisdiction arose.

16.  The decision of this Court in R. Kapilanath's case (supra), relied
upon by the Full Bench was also distinguishable since that was a case where
the eviction proceedings before the Court of Munsif under the Karnataka
Rent Control Act, 1961 had concluded when the Karnataka Rent Control
(Amendment) Act, 1994 came into force. By that amendment, the Court of
Munsif was deprived of jurisdiction in such cases. This Court held that the
change of forum did not affect pending proceedings. This Court further held
that the challenge to the competence of the forum was raised for the first time,
that too as an additional ground before this Court and that, for other factors,
the Court was inclined to uphold the jurisdiction of the Court of Munsif to
entertain and adjudicate upon the eviction matter. The fact situation was thus
different in this case.

17.  Evenotherwise the Full Bench failed to notice the law declared by this
Court in a series of pronouncements on the subject to which we may briefly
refer at this stage. In Nani Gopal Mitra v. State of Bihar AIR 1970 SC
1636, this Court declared that amendments relating to procedure operated
retrospectively subject to the exception that whatever be the procedure which
was correctly adopted and proceedings concluded under the old law the same
cannot be reopened for the purpose of applying the new procedure. In that
case the trial of the appellant had been taken up by Special Judge, Santhal
Paraganas when Section 5(3) of the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1947 was
still operative. The appeliant was convicted by the Special Judge before the
Amendment Act repealing Section 5(3) was promulgated. This Court held
that the conviction pronounced by the Special Judge could not be termed
illegal just because there was an amendment to the procedural law on 18th
December 1964. The following passage is, in this regard, apposite:

“.... It is therefore clear that as a general rule the amended
law relating to procedure operates retrospectively. Biit there
is another equally important principle, viz. that a statute
. Should not be so construed as to create new disabilities or
obligations or impose new duties in respect of transactions
which were complete at the time the amending Act came
into force--(See In re a Debtor, and In re Vernazza. The
same principle is embodied in Section 6 of the General
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XX xx xX (Section 6 is quofed) XX XX XX

... The effect of the application of this principle is. that
pending cases although instituted under the old Act but
still pending are governed by the new procedure under the
amended law, but whatever procedure was correctly

adopted and concluded under the old law cannot be
opened again for the purpose of applying the new
procedure. In the present case, the trial of the appellant

was taken up by the Special Judge, Santhal Parganas when
Section 5(3) of the Act was still operative. The conviction
of the appellant was pronounced on March 31, 1962 by
the Special Judge, Santhal Parganus long before the
amending Act was promulgated. It is not hence possible
- to accept the argument of the appellant that the conviction
pronounced by the Special Judge, Santhal Parganas has
become illegal or in any way defective in law because of
the amendment to procedural law made on December | 8
-1964. In our opinion, the High Court was right in invoking
the presumption under Section 5(3) of the Act even though
. it was repealed on December 18, 1964 by the amending
Act. We accordingly reject the argument of the appellant
on this aspect of the case.”

(empﬁasis supplied)

18.  Reference may also be made upon the decision of this Court in Anant
Gopal Sheorey v. State of Bombay AIR 1958 SC 915 where the legal
* position was stated in the following words:

“4. The question that arises for decision is whether to a
pending prosecution the provisions of the amended Code
have become applicable. There is no controversy on the
general principles applicable to the case. No person has a
vested right in any course of procedure. He has only the
right of prosecution or defence in the manner prescribed
for the time being by or for the Court in which the case is
pending and if by an Act of Parliament the mode of
procedure is altered he has no other right than to proceed
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according to the altered mode. See Maxwell on
_Interpretation of Statutes on p. 225; The Colonial Sugar
Refining Co. Ltd. v. Irving (1905) A.C. 369, 372). In other
words a change in the law of procedure operates
retrospectively and unlike the law relating to vested right
is not only prospective.”

19. The upshot of the above discussion is that the view taken by the Full
Bench holding the amended provision to be applicable to pending cases isnot
correct on principle. The decision rendered by the Full Bench would, therefore,
stand overruled but only prospectively. We say so because the trial of the
cases that were sent back from Sessions Court to the Court of Magistrate
First Class under the orders of the Full Bench may also have been concluded
or may be at an advanced stage. Any change of forum at this stage in such
cases would cause unnecessary and avoidable hardship to the accused in
those cases if they were to be committed to the Sessions for trial in the light of
the amendment and the view expressed by us.

20.  Theprinciple of prospective overruling has been invoked by this Court,

no matter sparingly, to avoid unnecessary hardship and anomalies. That doctrine

was first invoked by this Court in L.C. Golak Nath and Ors. v. State of
Punjab and Ors. AIR 1967 SC 1643 followed by the decision of this Court

in Ashok Kumar Gupta and Anr. v. State of U.P. and Ors. (1997) 5 SCC

201. ’

21.  In Baburamv. C.C. Jacob and Ors. (1999) 3 SCC 362, this Court
invoked and adopted a device for avoiding reopening of settled issues,
multiplicity of proceedings and avoidable litigation. The Court said:

“S. The prospective declaration of law is a devise innovated
by the apex court to avoid reopening of settled issues and
to prevent multiplicity of proceedings. It is also a devise
adopted to avoid uncertainty and avoidable litigation.
By the very object of prospective declaration of law, it is
deemed that all actions taken contrary fo the declaration
of law prior to its date of declaration are validated. This is
done in the larger public interest. Therefore, the subordinate
forums which are legally bound to apply the declaration
of law made by this Court are also duty-bound to apply
such dictum to cases which.would arise in future only. In
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matters where decisions opposed to the said principle have

been taken prior to such declaration of law cannot be

interfered with on the basis of such declaration of law...”
(emphasis supplied)

22.  Tothe same effect is the decision éfthis Court in Harish Dhingrav.
State of Haryana & Ors. (2001) 9 SCC 550 where this Court observed:

“7. Prospective declaration of law is a device innovated
by this Court to avoid reopening of settled issues and to
prevent multiplicity of proceedings.lt is also a device
adopted to avoid uncertainty and avoidable litigation.
By the very object of prospective declaration of law it is -
deemed that all actions taken contrary to the declaration
of law, prior to the date of the declaration are validated.
This is done in larger public interest. Therefore, the
subordinate forums which are bound to apply law declared
by this Court are also duty bound to apply such dictum to
cases which would arise in future. Since it is indisputable
that a court can overrule a decision there is no valid reason
why it should not be restricted to the future and not to the

.past. Prospective overruling is not only a part of
constitutional policy but also an extended facet of stare
decisis and not judicial legislation.

(emphasis supplied)

23.  InSarwan Kumar and dnr. v. Madan Lal Aggarwal (2003) 4 SCC
147, this Court held that though the doctrine of prospective overruling was
initially made applicable to the matters arising under the Constitution but
subsequent decisions have made the same applicable even to cases under
different statutes. The Court observed: -

“15. The docirine of "prospective overruling” was initially
made applicable to the matters arising under the
Constitution but we understand the same has since been
made applicable to the matters arising under the statutes
as well. Under the doctrine of "prospective overruling”
the law declared by the Court applies to the cases arising
in future only and its applicability to the cases which have
attained finality is saved because the repeal would
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otherwise work hardship to those who had trusted to its
existence. Invocation of doctrine of "prospective
overruling” is left to the discretion of the court to mould
with the justice of the cause or the matter before the court.”
(emphasis supplied)

24,  In Rajasthan State Road Transport Corporation and Anr. v. Bal
Mukund Bairwa (2009) 4 SCC 299, this Court relied upon the observations
made by Justice Benjamin N. Cardozo in his famous compilation of lectures
The Nature of Judicial Process — that “ in the vast majority of cases, a

judgment would be retrospective. It is only where the hardships are too
" great that retrospective operation is withheld.”

25.  The present case, in our opinion, is one in which we need to make it

clear that the overruling of the Full Bench decision of the Madhya Pradesh
High Court will not affect cases that have already been tried or are at an
' advanced stage before the Magistrates in terms of the said decision.

26. Wlth the above observatlons, this appeal fails and is here by dismissed.
Appeal dismissed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 756
FULL BENCH
Before Mr. S.A. Bobde, Chief Justice, Mr. Justice R.S. Jha &
Mr. Justice Alok Aradhe
[.T.R.No. 38/1995 (Jabalpur) decided on 7 March, 2013

LILASONS BREWERIES LTD., BHOPAL (M/S) ...Applicant
Vs, . :
COMMISSIONER OF INCOME TAX, BHOPAL ... Non-applicant

Income Tax Act (43 of 1961), Section 256 (1), (2) - Dharmada

. Account - Assessee was charging Dharmada at the rate of 2% and was
maintaining separate account - However, the said account was treated
as Revenue Receipts as the assessee had failed to bring on record any

. material to indicate contribution on regular basis to some of the
Institutions - M.C.C. No. 668/1993 was dismissed - However, in the
~ case of Commissioner of Income Tax Vs. Bijli Cotton Mills (P) Limited,
Hon'ble Supreme Court had held that an amount collected as Dharmada
and deposited in a separate account is not a revenue receipt - Earlier

&
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judgment passed was not contrary to the judgment passed by Hon'ble
Supreme Court as no law was laid down or no decision was taken -
Authorities are entitled to ascertain on the basis of the facts of each
individual case as to whether the amount collected in the name of
Dharmada is actually meant for a charitable purpose or not - Decision
passed in case of M.C.C. No. 668/1993 was based on peculiar facts of
that case and no law contrary to law laid down in Bijli Cotton Mills,
therefore, judgment passed in ML.C.C. 668/1993 cannot be said to be
bad law. (Paras 6 to 10)

ITIHT ATAFIIT (1961 BT 43), GINT 256 (1)(2) — sHer dar —
frefRedt 2 yRnma 31 R | adsr W aR o @7 o iR yuF Wl gl
W@ oT — g, S @ B e wiftaar A o waie e
FfeE W YT BT ¥ W9 A Fwwd e 9l g% qmiar & FredRd
frafia vu 4 5 Y oSS HRar 2 — .. 5. 668 /1993
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Cases referred :

M.C.C.668/1993 Decided on 16/7/1996, (1979) 116 ITR 60 (SC),
1993 Supp (3) 546. :

~ A.P. Shrivastava, for the applicant.
Sanjay Lal, for the non-applicant.
ORDER
The Order of the court was delivered by:
R.S. Jua, J:- This reference to a Full Bench has been made to decide the
correctness of the decision of a Division Bench of this Court in the case of

Lilasons Breweries Pvt. Limited vs. Commissioner of Income Tax, inM.C.C
No.668/1993 decided on 16.7.1996, in the light of a decision of the Supreme .
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Court, in the following terms:-

“Whether the reference in MCC No.668/1993 decided
by the Division Bench on 16.7.1996 in the case of Lilasons
Breweries Pvt. Limited, Bhopal Vs. Commissioner of
Income Tax, Bhopal, is good law in the light of the
pronouncement of the Apex Court in Commissioner of Income
Tax vs. Bijli Cotton Mills (P) Limited, (1979) 116 ITR 60
SC)”

2. The learned counsel for the applicant submits that the applicant/assessee
M/s Lilasons Breweries Limited is a limited company and collects a sum of
Rs.20 per Rs.1,000/- of the bill amount as Dharmada which is kept and
maintained in a separate account. It is submitted that as the amount collected
by the assessee towards Dharmada was included as revenue receipt and
assessed to tax by the Assessing Officer for the Assessment Year 1981-82
and 1984-85 to 1986-87, therefore, on the instance of the assessee the
following alongwith another question of law was referred to this Court for its
opinion:-

“Whether, on the facts and circumstances of the case,
the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal was justified in holding that
the sum of Rs.42,649/- inthe A.Y. 1981-82; Rs.76, 870/- in
the A.Y. 1984-85; Rs.1,18,179/- in the A.Y. 1985-86 and
Rs.1,67,588/-inthe A.Y. 1986-87 received from the various
customers through bills and credited to the Dharmada Account
was in the nature of revenue receipt and, hence, liable to be
taxed as the income of the assessee during these assessment
years 77 <

3. It is submitted that the aforesaid question was answered by this Court
by order dated 16.7.1996 passed in M.C.C No 668/1993 in the following
‘terms:-

“4. The facts relating to the second question are that -
the assessee was charging Dharmada at the rate of 2% in the
bills from the purchaser. The assessee had maintained a
separate Dharmada account to which the amounts so realised
~were credited. The assessee claimed that the said amount was
calculated with the intention of realising the same for charitable
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purposes. The Assessing Officer, however, treated the said
amount as income of the assessee. The CIT(A) sustained the
assessment orders against which yet another appeal was filed
before the Tribunal, but the Tribunal also endorsed the finding
in this respect. The Tribunal held that the assessee had failed -
to bring on record any material to indicate contribution on
regular basis to some of the institutions. The said finding of the
Tribunal purely relates to the appreciation of evidence and we
find that the same does not give rise to any question of law or
the question No.2 as referred to us. Under these
circumstances, the second question is also answered against
the applicant-assessee and in favour of the revenue.”

4. It is submitted by the learned counsel for the applicant that the decision
in the case of Lilasons Breweries Pvt. Limited (supra) is not good law in the
light of the pronouncement of the Apex Court in the case of Commissioner
of Income Tax vs. Bijli Cotton Mills (P) Limited, (1979) 116 ITR 60 (SC), .
wherein the Supreme Court has held that an amount collected as Dharmada
and deposited in a separate account, is not a revenue receipt and is, therefore,
not liable to be included in the income of the assessee that is chargeable to
tax. It is submitted that the aforesaid decision of the Supreme Court was not
considered while deciding M.C.C No0.668/1993 on 16.7.1996 and, therefore,
the order passed therein deserves to be overruled and to be declared to be
bad law. .

3. The learned counsel for the revenue, per contra, submits that the
decision of the Division Bench dated 16.7.1996 in M.C.C No.668/1993 was
decided on its own facts and, therefore, cannot be found fault with. It is
submitted that in the case of Lilasons Breweries Pvt. Limited (supra) this
Court categorically held that the question referred to it was a pure question of
fact and not a question of law and, therefore, the occasion to adjudge the
decision in the case of Lilasons Breweries Pvt. Limited (supra) in the light of
the decision of the Supreme Court in the case of Bijli Cotton Mills (supra)
does notarise. It is submitted that the order passed in M.C.C No.668/1993
dated 16.7.1996 was not assailed in appeal before the Supreme Court by the
applicant and the same has become final and binding.

6. We have heard the learned counsel for the parties at length. From a
bare perusal of paragraph 4 of the decision dated 16.7.1996 in M.C.C
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- N0.668/1993 Lilasons Breweries Pvt. Limited (supra), quotedabove, it is
abundantly and apparently clear that this Court, while deciding the question of
1aw referred to it under Section 256(1) of the Income Tax Act (hereinafter
referred to as'the Act), has clearly stated that the finding recorded by the
Tribunal purely relates to appreciation of evidence and it does not give rise to
any question of law and has answered the question accordingly. It is, therefore,
clear that the Division Bench did not decide the issue at all nor did it lay down
any law in respect of the issue of Dharmada but simply stated that the finding
of the Tribunal and the issue raised before it was a question of fact and no
question of law arises for decision. In other words, this Court in the case of
Lilasons Breweries Pvt. Limited (supra) has not laid down any law or taken
any decision which can be said to be contrary to or in derogation of the law
laid down by the Supreme Court in the case of Bijli Cotton Mills (supra).

7. At this stage, we are also constrained to observe that there can be no
cavil about the law laid down by the Supreme Court in the case of Bijli Cotton.
Mills (supra) to the effect that an amount collected as Dharmada which is
kept in a separate account and is utilized for charitable purposes, is not liable
to be included in the income of the assessee. However, a mere statement to
that effect on the part of the assessee is not sufficient and the revenue authorities,
if so required, are entitled to ascertain on the basis of the facts of each individual
case as to- whether the amount collected in the name of Dharmada is actually
meant for a purpose which is charitable and is in fact spent for such a charitable

purpose.

8. This aspect has been clarified by the Supreme Court itself in a
subsequent decision in the case of Commissioner of Income Tax (Central),
Ludhiana and Others vs. Amritsar Transport Company Private Limited
and Another, 1993 Supp (3) SCC 546. after taking into consideration the
decision in the case of Bijli Cotfon Mills (supra). In the case of Amritsar
Transport Company (supra) the matter was taken up before the Supreme
Court by the Revenue on the rejection of their application under Section 256(2)
' of the Act by the High Court to call for a similar question of law and it was
held that:-

“4. So far as inclusion of amounts collected as
'‘Dharmada’ which are kept in a separate account and are
utilised for charitable purposes is concerned, there can'be no
dispute that they are not liable to be included in the income of

-
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the assessee vide CIT v. Bijli Cotton Mills (P) Ltd.(1979)
116 ITR 60, but the Revenue's case herein is that though
collected in the name of 'Dharmada’, these amounts were
neither meant for any charitable purpose nor were they spent
on ¢charitable purposes. In support of the same they rely upon
the aforesaid written reply of the respondent-assessee itself.

5. In our opinion this was a’proper case where the
High Court ought to have directed the Tribunal to state the
said question under Section 256(2) of the Act. We do not
think it necessary to say more than this on this occasion, lest it
may prejudice the case of the parties at the hearing of the
reference.

6. The appeal is accordingly allowed, the judgment

and order of the High Court is set aside and the application

. filed by Revenue under Section 256(2) is allowed. The Tribunal
shall state the aforesaid question for the opinion of the High
Court under Section 256(2) of the Act. No order as to costs.”

9. Apparently, the decision in the case of Amritsar Transport Company
. (supra) was not brought to the notice of the Court while referring the matter
to this Full Bench. We consciously refrain from saying anything more on this
issue as it may prejudice the decision in the reference.

10.  Inconclusion, we are of the considered opinion that as the decision in
the case of Lilasons Breweries Pvt. Limited (supra) dated 16.7.1996 in
M.C.C No.668/1993 was based on the peculiar facts of that case and as the
question of law referred to it was not answered by laying down any law
contrary to the law laid down by the Supreme Court in the case of Bijli Cotton
Mills (supra) and in fact nothing in that regard was actually decided therein
nor is there any conflict or contradiction between them, therefore, the decision
of the Division Bench of this Court in the case of Lilasons Breweries Pvt.

Limited (supra) dated 16.7.1996 cannot be said to be bad law and the
- reference made to this Full Bench is uncalled for.

11.  The question referred to this Full Bench is answered accordingly. The
matter may now be placed before the Regular Division Bench for decision in
accordance with law.

Order accordingly.

]
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WRIT APPEAL
Before Mr. Justice A.K. Shrivastava & Mr. Justice GD. Saxena
W.A. No. 729/2010 (Gwalior) decided on 5 February, 2013

APARN GRAMIN VIKAS SANSTHA SAMITI SOCIETY  -...Appellant
Vs,
STATE OF M.P. & anr. ’ ~...Respondents

Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Sections 57 & 247, Mines

and Minerals (Development and Regulation) Act (67 of 1957), Section

10, Minor Minerals Rules (M.P.), 1996, Rule 9 - Govt. Lessee
(Patteddars) on the land quarry lease have limited rights - State Govt.
is the owner of minerals lying beneath even on a private land - Hence
it can grant a lease without the prior consent of the owner or occupier
of such Iand - As all the land belongs to the State Govt. and land includes
mines and minerals & quarries also. ; (Para8)
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Case referred :
2008(4) MPLJ 255.

N.K. Gupta, for the appellant.
Raghvendra Dixit, G.A. for the respondents.

ORDER "

The” Order of the court was delivered by :
A.K.SHRIVASTAVA, J:- The writ appeal under Section 2(1) of the M.P. Uccha
Nyayalaya (Khand Nyayapeeth Ko appeal) Adhiniyam, 2005 has been filed
against the order dated 25.11.2010 passed by learned Writ Court in W.P.
No.4281/2010 whereby writ petition of the appellant has been dismissed,

2. The cause to file writ petition under Article 226/227 of the Constitution

&
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of India is the order dated 01 .06.2010 (Annexure-P/1) and order dated
24.07.2010 (Annexure-P/2) whereby the flag stone quarry lease (in short
"quarry lease") of the writ-petitioner has been cancelled by the Collector
(Mines), District Shivpuri.

3. Certain unfolded facts are as under :-

22.02.2009  Vide Order (Annexure-P/4), an order to grant quarry lease
was passed by the Collector (respondent no.2). for a period
of 10 year in favour of appellant:

20.05.2009  vide Order (Annexure-P/S) lease-deed was executed and the
appellant was allowed to operate the quarry lease:

01.06.2010  the quarry lease which was granted in favour of petitioner and
mining extraction which was being carried out for last one year,
it was withdrawn and cancelled by the order of respondent
no.2 (Annexure-P/1):

10.06.2010  vide Annexure-P/6 learned Single Bench of this Court in W.P.
N0.3091/2010 {dparn Gramin Vikas Sanstha Samiti v.
State of M.P. & Anr;) directed respondent no.2 to decide the
matter afresh; and

24.07.2010  vide Annexure-P/2 again the same order, which was passed
. vide Annexure-P/1, was passed by respondent no.2.

4. The contention of learned counsel for the appellant is that the consent
of the owner of the private land was not at all required to be obtained before
the grant of mining lease. In this context, learned counsel has invited our
attention of Section 57 of the M.P. Land Revenue Code (in short "Code™)
and has submitted that the State Government is the owner of all land including
the mines, quarries, minerals, etc. and therefore no consent was required from
the government lessee to whom the surface area of the land was earlier allotted.
Learned counsel has also invited our attention to Section 247 of the Code
which speaks about Government's title to minerals. By inviting our attention
to Section 10 of the Mines and Mineral (Development and Regulation) Act,
1957 (in short "Act of 1957") and also Rule 9 of the M.P. Minor Mineral
Rules, 1996 (in short 'Rules of 1996"). It has been put-forth by learned counsel
that this point has already been put to rest by Division Bench of this Court in
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Shyam Bihari Singh vs. State of M.P. and others 2008(4) MPLJ 255.
Learned counsel then propounded that the entire order of learned Writ Court
is in favour of appellant but in para 9 of the impugned order the writ petition
has been dismissed solely on the ground that petitioner did not pay any
compensation to tribal persons, Patta holder and further that looking to the
provisions contained in Clause 17 of part-4 of Revenue Book Circular, there
is no provision to give consent, therefore, in such circumstances. the Collector
has rightly cancelled the quarry lease of the petitioner. Hence, it has been
prayed that by allowing this appeal, writ petition of the writ-petitioner be
allowed.

5. On the other hand Shri Raghvendra Dixit, learned Government
Advocate argued in support of the impugned order and submitted that there is
absolutely no document on record to show as to whether the tribal persons
who were Pattedharis gave any consent to operate the quarry lease to the
petitioner and even if there was any consent, the same was withdrawn by
them and therefore by taking note of all these facts and circumstances and by
placing reliance upon Clause 17 Part-4 of the Revenue Book Circular the writ
petition has been dismissed and thus the order is not at all €IToneous or requires
any interference. Hence, it has been prayed that this appeal be dismissed.

6. Having heard learned counsel for the parties we are of the view that
this appeal deserves to be allowed.

. On bare perusal of Section 57 of the Code this Court finds that all
lands beJong to the State Government and further, the land shall include standing
and flowing water, mines, quarries, minerals and forests reserved or not and
all rights in the sub-soil of any land are the property of the State Government.
Since the quarry lease in questionis a quarry in terms of Section 57 of the
Code including rights in the sub-soil of any land which would mean the quarry
in question also is the property of the State Government, therefore for all
practical purposes the State Government is the owner of quarry in question.
For ready reference it would be appropriate to quote Section 57(1) including
the proviso, which reads thus;

37. State ownership in all lands;- (1) All lands belong to the
State Government and it is hereby declared that all such lands,
including standing and flowing water, mines, quarries, minerals
and forests reserved or not, and all rights in the sub-soil of any
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land are the property of the State Government.

Provided that nothing in this section shall, save as otherwise
provided in this Code, be deemed to affect any rights of any
person subsisting at the coming into force of this Code in any
such property.

8. Itisnobody's case that under the proviso to sub-section (1) of Section -
57 any right has been saved of the Pattedars (zovernment lessee). Thus, we
are of the firm view that the land in question having quarry lease including
right in the sub-soil is the property of the State Government and none-else. At
this juncture. this Court would also like to go through Section 247 of the
Code, which speaks about Government's title to minerals and for better
understanding it would be fruitful to quote Section 247 in its entirety, which
reads thus;

247. Government's title to minerals;- (1) Unless it is
otherwise expressly provided by the terms of a grant made by
the Government, the rights to all minerals, mines and quarters
shall vest in the State Government which shall have ail powers
necessary for the proper enjoyment of such rights.

(2)  Theright to all mines and quarries includes the right of
access to land for the purpose of mining and quarrying and
the right to occupy such other land as may be necessary for
purpose subsidiary thereto, including the erection of offices,
workmen's dwellings and machinery, the stacking of minerals
and deposit of refuse, the construction of roads, railways or
tram-lines, and any other purpose which the State Government
may declare to be subsidiary to mining and quarrying.

(3)  Ifthe Government has assigned to any person the right
over any minerals, mines or quarries, and if for the proper
enjoyment of such right, it is necessary that all or any of the
powers specified in sub-section (1) and (2) should be
exercised, the Collector may, by an order in writing, subject
to such conditions and reservations as he may specify, delegate
such powers to the person to whom the right has been asmgned
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Provided that no such delegation shall be made until notice
* has been duly served on all persons having rights in the land
affected, and their objections have been heard and considered.

(4)  If,in the exercise of the right herein referred to over

' any land, the rights of any person are infringed by the occupation
or disturbance of the surface of such land, the Government or
the assignee shall pay to such persons compensation for such
infringement and the amount of such compensation shall be
calculated by the Sub-Divisional Officer, or, if his award is not
accepted, by the Civil Court, as nearly as may be, in
accordance with the provisions of the Land Acquisition Act,
1894 (1 of 1894).

(5)  No assignee of the Government shall enter on or
occupy the surface of any land without the previous sanction
of the Collector, and unless the compensation has been
determined and tendered to the persons whose rights are
infringed.

(6) If an assignee of the Government fails to pay
compensation as provided in sub-section (d), the Collector
may recover such compensation from him on behalf of the
persons entitled to it, as if it were an arrears of land revenue.

(7)  Any person who without lawful authority extracts or
removes minerals from any mine or quarry, the right to which
vests in, and has not been assi gned by, the Government shall,
without prejudice to any other action that may be taken against
him be liable, on the order in writing of the Collector, to pay
penalty not exceeding a sum calculated at double the market
value of the minerals so extracted or removed.

Provided that if the sum so calculated is less than one thousand
rupees, the penalty may be such larger sum not exceeding one
thousand rupees as the Collector may impose.

- (8)  Without prejudice to the provisions in sub-section (7)
the Collector may seize and confiscate any mineral extracted
or removed from any mine or quarry the right to which vests
in, and has not been assigned by the Government.

]
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On bare perusal of this section as it is borne from the title of this section that
Government is having title to minerals. Sub-section (1) to Section 247 confers
right upon the State Government to enjoy all minerals, mines and quarries
which shall vest in the State unless otherwise provided by the terms of grant
made by the Government. Since as per the case of the respondent/State
government and as it also appears from the impugned orders Annexure-P/1
and P/2 as well as from the order of learned Writ Court that some persons
are Pattedars (government lessee) on the said quarry lease but according to
us their right is limited and they have only right to occupy or enjoy on the
surface area. Admittedly, beneath the land in question quarry is there and
eventually the quarry lease has been granted in favour of appellant under Rule
6 of Rules of 1996. Thus, if any right of Pattadharis is there it is limited fo
sub-section (4) to Section 247 only and therefore the appellant has to pay
compensation for the infringement of their. right and the compensation should
be calculated in terms of sub-section (4). There is nothing on record whether
any such compensation has not been paid although in para 9 learned Writ
Court has so held that in the impugned orders of the Collector Annexure-P/1
and P/2 it is found that compensation has not been paid. However, after going

" through the impugned orders of Collector Arinexure-P/1 and P/2 we do not

find that there is any such finding of Collector in this regard although simply it
has been mentioned in its order that the tribals have submitted that they have

‘not received the compensation and therefore the earlier consent is withdrawn

by them. Indeed the finding of the Collector in the impugned orders is not that
since compensation has not been paid therefore quarry lease is cancelled. On
the contrary it has been cancelled because the consent has been withdrawn
by the tribals. Thus, only right which vests in the government lessee/Pattedhari
s to obtain compensation. At this juncture, on this point we would like to
place reliance on the decision of Division Bench of this Court in Shyam Bihari
Singh (supra) wherein Hon'ble the Chief Justice Shri AK. Patnaik (as His
Lordship then was) who spoke for the Bench in para 9 held as under:

0. We. will, therefore, have to look into the provisions of
1957 Actto find out whether the consent of the owner of the
private land and an opportunity of hearing to the owner of the
private land are mandatory before grant of a mining lease. It is
not disputed that the right over the minerals in respect of which
amining lease can be granted is vested in the State by virtue
of Section 57 read with section 247 of the Code. Accordingly
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the State is  owner of the minerals lying beneath even on a
private land and as the owner of siich minerals, the State can
grant a lease in favour of a lessee by way of transfer or
assignment. Neither section 10 of the 1957 Act nor Rule 22 of
the 1960 Rules on which Mr. Tankha has placed great reliance,

- lays down anywhere that a mining lease in respect of minerals
vested in the Government where the surface land belongs to a
private person cannot be granted without the prior consent of
the owner of such private land. In the absence of such clear
statutory provisions, either in the 1957 Act or in the 1960
Rules, the State Government as the owner of the minerals can
grant a mining lease in favour of a lessee without the consent
of the owner of a private land, even where the minerals are
embedded in such private land.

In para 13 of the said decision further it has been held as under:

13.  Areading of Rule 22(3)(i)(h), quoted above, would
show that where the land is owned by some private owner, the
statement in writing has to be made by the applicant that the
consent of such owner for starting mining operations has been
obtained. The language of Clause (h) is clear that consent of
the owner is required "for starting mining operations” and not
for grant of mining lease. Similarly, the second Proviso to Clause
(h) states that consent of the owner "for starting mining
operations" in the area or part thereof may be furnished "after
the execution of the lease-deed" but "before entry into the area".
The expression "after execution of the lease-deed" again would
show that no consent is required for execution of the lease-
deed. The expression "before entry into the area" confirms
that consent is required not for execution of lease-deed but
for entering into the lease. area. Rule 22(3)(i)(ii) therefore does
not indicate that consent of the owner of the land is a pre-
condition for a mining lease in favour of the lessee. All that it
indicates is that such consent is required before entering into
the lease area.

9. Admittedly earlier to the passing of impugned orders Annexure-P/1
and P/2 by respondent no.2 the appellant was carrying on the quarry lease
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operation for one year. In this regard, the order of respondent no.2 dated
22,02.2009 may be seen by which the quarry lease was granted to him for 10
years.

10.  Theonly ground upon which the quarry lease which was earlier granted
to the petitioner has been cancelled is that government lessee/Pattedars have
withdrawn their consent, but, neither there is any provision in the Act of 1957
nor in the Code and so also in the Rules of 1996 that any prior consent' is
required to be obtained. Although Rule 9 (k) speaks about filing of an affidavit
and we would like to quote Rule 9(k) which reads thus: '

9. Application for quarry lease;- An application for
the grant or renewal of a quarry lease shall be made in Form I
in triplicate for the minerals specified in Schedule [and II. The
application shall be affixed with a court fee stamp of the value
of five rupees and shall contain the following particulars
together with documents in support of the statements made
therein:- - ' ' :

(@)
(b)
(c)
@
(e)
®
®
(h)
@
0 |
k) An affidavit to the effect that the applicant has,
where the land is not owned by him, obtained surface rights

over the area or has obtained the consent of the owner/owners
for conducting mining/quarrying operations: o

% % ¥ OB ¥ OB ¥ X ¥

R EEEEE R

XX

Provided that no such affidavit shall be necessary where the
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Land-rights vest with the State Government.

From the impugned orders of respondent no.2 Annexure-P/1 and P/2 itis
clear like a noon day that earlier the consent of the owner (Pattedar) was
obtained to permit the appellant to enter upon the surface area of the quarry
lease. But. because they have withdrawn their consent, therefore, the impugned
orders Annexure-P/1 and P/2 have been issued by the Collector. According
to us, once permission has been granted by the Pattedar/ government lessee
to petitioner to carry out the quarry lease upon the surface area and to enter
upon it which they were enjoying there is no provision in the law that
subsequently it can be withdrawn. Learned Government has also not pointed-
out any such provision either under the Code or under the Act of 1957 or
cven under the Rules of 1996. According to us, there cannot be any such
statutory provision for the simple reason that if there would have been any
such provision, the quarry lease holder like petitioner would depend and would
live upon the mercy of those persons who may at any point of time may change
their mind and may withdraw such consent which was earlier given and therefore
according to us since there is no statutory provision to withdraw the consent
to use the surface area, which was earlier given, therefore, the impugned orders
of the Collector Annexure-P/1 and P72 stand nowhere.

11.  Learned Writ Court has treated those persons to be Pattadharis
(government lessee) and thus has placed reliance upon Clause 17 (part-4) of
the Revenue Book Circular. We have already held hereinabove that
Pattadharis are having limited right to the extent of sub-section (4) of Section
247. From the impugned orders of Collector, it is revealed that the consent to
obtain surface area for the quarry lease was already obtained by the appellant
from Pattadharis and therefore according to us the provisions of Revenue
Book Circular have no applicability which speaks about that Pattadhari has
no power and right to sell and transfer the and in favour of any person.
According to us, in the present case, the grant of quarry lease cannot be said
to be a sale or transfer in terms of Clause 17 Part-4 of Revenue Book Circular
and thus such provision has no applicability in the present case.

12. For the reasons stated hereinabove this appeal is allowed and the
order dated 25.11.2010 of learned Writ Court is set aside and the orders of
Collector dated 1.6.2010 (Annexure-P/1) and 24.07.2010 (Annexure-P/2)
are also set aside, However, on being submitted by the Pattedharis of the
government land who are tribal necessary compensation etc. may be directed
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to be paid according to the law if already not paid and in this regard the
Collector shall be free to initiate proceedings and may decide it in accordance
with law after providing opportunity of hearing to the Pattedharis (government
lessee) as well as to writ-petitioner. Let this exercise be done within a period
of 6 months from the date of this order. However, it is made clear that
assessment of the compensation etc. will not come in way of operating the
quarry lease by the appellant because from-the impugned orders of Collector
(Annexure-P/1 and P/2) there is no adjudication that compensation has not
been paid to the Pattadharis however it will be obligatory on the part of writ-
petitioner to pay compensation as fixed by the Collector subject to statutory
remedy of appeal etc. available to both the parties. No costs.

Appeal allowed.

b
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WRIT PETITION

- Before Mr. Justice Shantanu Kemkar & Mr. Justice Prakash Shrivastava

W.P. No. 10069/2011 (Indore) decided on.27 August, 2012

ONKAR YADAV (M’s) ...Petitioner
Vs. . ’ :
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

A. Contract Act (9 of 1872), Section 7 - Acceptance - Notice
Inviting Tender - There was no condition in NIT requiring a successful
bidder to deposit any performance security - Since the respondent has
imposed such a condition at the stage of acceptance of tender and

.before the execution of the agreement, therefore, such an aceeptance

cannot be held to be unconditional acceptance of tender - No concluded
contract had come into existence - Forfeiture of Earnest Money for
want of deposit of 12% P.A. bad in law. . (Paras 8 to 13)

z wlaer gferfaam (1872 %71 9), grr 7 — WElr — Afaer
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aftrifug &), gufae, sva Wafa o fBOfagr @ o Aafa =
eI ol g&bdl — 1y o dfaer afRas & = amft — 12 ufoew
gfuad w9 9 e oA 9 afuw <l &1 gwuseer faftr siawa staa
el | :
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B. Contract Act (90f 1872), Section 5 - Proposal - Proposal
can be revoked at any time before the communication of its acceptance
is complete against the proposer. (Para 12)

& GI9er Jff7T (1872 7 §), &rer 5 — UEHT — WA BY
Wigfa 3 wqaT vwes ¢ fay gof s 4 gea e fofl A 9o
sfrdga far o wear €1

C. Contract Act (9 of 1872), Section 7 - Acceptance -
Unqualified and absolute - Acceptance must be based or founded on 3
components - Certainty, commitment and communication - If there is
variance between the offer and acceptance even in respect of any
material term, acceptance cannot be said to be absolute and unqualified
and the same will not result in formation of a legal contract. (Para 15)

T w1a%T AT (1872 BT 9), e 7 — W@l — R o
v gof — Sigfa & 9 gesl ® senRa g1 wifke — Frfyeaa,
gfoagar iy wq=T — 3ft ywE @ wefr ¢ =9 aax 8, 9 fed
mmﬁama?ﬁaﬂﬁﬁwqﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁraﬁ@fmﬁmwﬂtﬁ
Bl Wl GHar MY 8ad ¥ fafere wiysr fffa = 2

Cases referred :

AIR 1970 SC 706, AIR 1972 Delhi 110, AIR 1988 Delhi 224, AIR
2000 Bombay 405.

Pushyamz:tra Bhargava, for the petitioner.
M. Ravindran, Dy. G.A. For the respondents.

ORDER

The Order of the. court was delivered by:
PRAKASH SHRIVASTAVA, J:- This order will govern the disposal of W.P.
No0.5241/2012 and W.P. No.10432/2011 since it has been submitted by
learned counsel for both the parties that these writ petltlons mvolve identical
issue in the same fact situation. .

2. For convenience facts have been taken from W.P. No. 10069/201 1.

3. The petitioner is aggrieved by the communications dated 9.11.2011
(Annexure P/5)and 5.12.2011 (Annexure P/8) requiring the petitioner to deposit
12% performance security, failing which the earnest money is directed to be
forfeited.
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4. In brief'the petitioner, {vho is aregistered “A-Civil” Class contractor,
had submitted tender for upgradation of Barwai, Bhawati, Morkatta, Borkhedi
road in Barwani district in response to the NIT dated 27.6.2011. The
percentage rate tender submitted by the pétitioner after depositing earnest
money was found to be lowest being 22% below of relevant SOR of road
and bridge work issued by Engineer-in-Chief, and the same was accepted on
[.11.2011 but the said acceptance was not unconditional. The respondent
no.3 Chief Engineer had issued the communication dated 9.11.2011 requiring
the petitioner to deposit 12% amount of P.A.C. as an additional performantce
security to execute the contract document stating that on failure to do so the
earnest money will be forfeited. The petitioner objected to it, vide
communication dated 16.11.2011, and requested for deleting the said condition
or to return the earnest money. The respondent no.3, vide communication
dated 16.11.2011, had conveyed to the Secretary, Public Works Department
that in the NIT there is no such condition, therefore, the condition of deposit
of 12% performance security be reconsidered and deleted and in case of
adverse decision, the refund of the earnest money be considered. Thereafter
by the impugned communication dated 5.12.2011 the petitioner was again
informed by the respondent no.4 to deposit the performance security of 12%
within 7 days, failing which earnest money would be forfeited.

5. Learned counsel appearing for the petitioner submits that in the NIT
there is no condition requiring deposit of 12% performance security. He further
submits that no concluded contract has come into existence in the absence of
unconditional ‘acceptance by the respondents and in the changed
circumstances, the petitioner is not inclined to enter into the contract, therefore,
the respondents be directed to refund the earnest money. He has further
submitted that as per the contract the offer was valid for 120 days and
thereafter offer has come to an end. He has also submitted that even condition
of deposit of 2.5% performance security is not acceptable and such a
communication also does no result into the concluded contract.

6. Learned counsel appearing for the respondents has submitted that the
bid submitted by the petitioner was accepted with the condition of deposit of
12% performance security, therefore, the concluded contract has come into
existence and failure on the part of the petitioner to take steps in pursuance to
the contract has resulted into forfeiture of earnest money. She further submits
that even otherwise the condition of deposit of 2.5% performance security

- was within the knowledge of the petitioner and the respondents subsequently
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have taken the stand that instead of 12%, the petitioner can give 2.5%
performance security, which has resulted into concluded contract.

7. We have heard the learned counsel for the parties and I;erused the
record.

8. It is undisputed before this Court that the petitioner's bid was found to
be lowest. The percentage rates and tender submitted by the petitioner was
@22% below SOR of road and bridge work issued by Engineer-in-Chief. It
is also undisputed that in the tender document there is no condition requiring
successful bidder to deposit any performance security. Clause 1 and 3.5 of
the conditions of contract relates to the security deposit and provide as under :-

“Clause 1 ~The person whose tender may be accepted
(hereinafter called the contractors, which expression shall unless
excluded by or repugnant to the context, include his heirs,
executers, administrators, representatives and assigns) shall
permit Government at the time of making any payments to him
for the value of work done under the contract to deduct the
security deposit as under :

The Security Deposit to be taken for the due
performance of the contract under the terms and conditions
printed on the tender form will be the earnest money plus a
deduction of 5 percent from the payment made in the running
bills, till the two together amount to 5 percent of the cost of
work put to tender or 5 percent of the cost of works executed
when the same exceeds the cost of work put to tender.”

“3.5 Security Deposit — (a) The Security Deposit shall
be recovered from the Running Bills @5% percent as per
Clause — 1 of the agreement read with para 3.5 of the N.I.T.

(b) The amount of the Earnest Money shall not be
adjusted when value of work done reaches the limit of the
amount of contract or exceeds the probable amount of the
contract.”

0. Admittedly the performance security as demanded by the respondents
is not covered by these clauses. It is also undisputed that in pursuance to the
tender conditions, the petitioner has deposited the earnest moriey.
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10.  The material clause which is relevant for the purpose of the present
controversy is Clause 8.1.1 of the detailed NIT which provides for execution
of agreement and forfeiture of earnest money, and reads as under :-

“8.1.1 Execution of Agreement — The tenderer whose
tender has been accepted hereinafter referred to as the
contractor, shall produce an appropriate solvency certificate,
if so required by the Executive Engineer and will execute the
agreement in the prescribed form, within a ten days of the
date of communication of the acceptance of his tender by
competent authority. Failure to do so will result in the earnest
money being forfeited to Govt. of M.P. and tender being
cancelled."

11.  Under the aforesaid clause after communication of acceptance of
tender if the successful party fails to execute the agreement within the prescribed
period of 10 days, then the earnest money deposited by him is forfeited and
tender is cancelled.

12.  Section 7 of the Indian Contract Act, 1872 (for short “the Act”)
provides that in order to convert a proposal into the promise, the acceptance
must be absolute and unqualified. Under section 5 a proposal can be revoked
at any time before the communication of its acceptance is complete as against
the proposer.

13.  Inthe present case there was no condition in NIT requiring a successful
bidder to deposit any performance security. Since the respondent has imposed
such a condition at the stage of acceptance of tender and before the execution
of the agreement, therefore, such an acceptance of tender by respondent can
not be held to be unconditional acceptance of tender. The bid which was
submitted by the petitioner was not accepted by the respondents
unconditionally. The acceptance was not absolute and unqualified but while
accepting the petitioner's bid, the respondents had imposed the condition of
deposit 0of 12% of P.A.C. as an additional performance security, therefore,
no concluded contract had come into existence. Such a condition of deposit
of 12% additional performance security was missing in the tender document
and was imposed by the communication dated 9.11.2011. Since the tender of
the petitioner was not accepted absolutely and unqualifiedly in terms of Section
7 of the Act, therefore, it can not be treated to be an acceptance and Clause
8.1.1 will not come into operation empowering the respondents to forfeit the
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garnest money.

14. The counsel for the respondent has submitted that the petitioner was
aware of the communication of the State addressed to the Chief Engineer
dated 11.3.2011 containing the guideline relating to deposit of 2.5% additional
security. We have given out thoughtful consideration to this argument. In the
present matter such a condition was not incorporated in the tender document
nor the petitioner had submitted the bid agreeing to such a condition and there
is also no communication by the respondents on record accepting the
petitioner's bid on the condition of deposit of 2.5% additional secrity. The
endorsement in Annexure R/3 dated 22.12.2011 in this regard at a later stage
was made subject to the final outcome of the writ petition. Though the O.I.C.
has filed an affidavit before this Court dated 5.3.2012 stating that the State
has agreed for charging 2.5% amount as additional performance security but
the learned counsel for the petitioner has made his stand clear that with the
lapse of time it is not possible for the petitioner to perform the contract at this
stage, therefore, even the condition of furnishing additional 2.5% security can
not be accepted. Counsel for the petitioner has also referred to Clause 4.7 of
the detailed NIT relating to validity of the offer which provide that the tender
will remain open up to 120 days from the date of receipt of tender and earnest
money will be forfeited on withdrawal of offer before that period and submitted
that after expiry of 120 days offer had lapsed. The Chief Engineer had also
sent communication dated 16.11.2011 to the Secretary, Public Works
Department stating that in the NIT there is no condition for deposit of the
additional security, therefore, the said issue be reconsidered and the condition
of deposit of 12% additional security be deleted.

15.  The Supreme Court in the matter of Badri Prasad Vs. State of
. Madhya Pradesh and another reported in AIR 1970 SC 706 has settled
that in the absence of unconditional acceptance the concluded contract does
not come into existence. The Delhi High Court in the matter of Union of
India Vs. M/s Uttam Singh Dugal & Co. (Pvt.) Ltd. reported in AIR 1972
- DELHI 110 has also taken the view that acceptance must be absolute and if
there is variance between the offer and acceptance even in respect of any
material term, acceptance can not be said to be absolute and unqualified and
the same will not result in the formation of a legal contract. In the matter of M/
8. Suraj Besan and Rice Mills Vs. Food Corporation of India reported in
AIR 1988 DELHI 224 it has been held that a person can withdraw or modify
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his offer or tender before communication of the acceptance is complete as
against him that is before its acceptance is intimated to him and that the
acceptance under law should be absolute and unconditional. The Government
by merely providing a clause to the contrary in the tender notice could not
take away the legal right of a person. The Bombay High Court in the matter of
Kilburn Engineering Ltd. Vs. Oil and Natural Gas Corporation reported
in AIR 2000 BOMBAY 405 referring to Section 7 of the Act has held that the
offer and acceptance must be based or founded on three components; certainty,
commitment and communication. If any one of the three components is lackmg *
either in offer or in acceptance, there can not be a valid contract.

16.  Keeping in view the aforesaid relevant aspect of the matter, we are of
the considered opinion that since the petitioner’s tender was not accepted
unconditionally, therefore, no concluded contract had come into existence. In
view of this Clause 8.1.1 of the NIT will not be attracted. The respondents
are not justified in taking action for forfeiture of the earnest money deposited
by the petitioner, hence the impugned action of the respondents in respect of
forfeiture of earnest money as contained in communication dated 9.11.2011
(Annexure P/5) and 5.12.2012 (Annexure P/8) is set aside. For the same
reasons the similar impugned action of the respondents in W.P. No 5241/
2012 and W.P. No.10432/2011 is also set aside.

17. Wit petltlon is allowed to the extent indicated above.

18.  Thessigned order be kept in the file of W.P. N0.10069/2011 and copy -
thereof be kept in the file of W.P. N0.5241/2012 and W.P. No.10432/2011.

Petition allowed.
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WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Shantanu Kemkar & Mr. Justice Prakash Shrivastava
W.P. No. 5547/2012 (Indore) decided on 28 August, 2012

SATISH MEHARWAL ...Petitioner
Vs. : !
STATE OF M.P. : ) ...Respondent

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 65-B - Admissibility of
Electronic Evidence - Public Prosecutor desired to exhibit the C.D. -
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Objection as to the admissibility of C.D. was raised which was rejected
by Trial Court - Held - Special Judge is required to properly appreciate
the requirement of Section 65-B of the Act, more particularly the
requirement of the certificate as contained in Section 65(4) of the Act -
Order of Trial Court set aside with a direction to decide the objection
afresh in the light of provisions of Section 65-B of the Act. (Paras 5 & 6)
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Case referred :
2012 (1) MPLJ 452.

Piyush Mathur with R.K. Sharma, for the petitioner.
M. Raveendran, Dy. G.A. for the respondent.

ORDER

The Order of the court was  delivered by:
PRAKASH SHRIVASTAVA, J:- This Writ Petition under Article 226 and 227 of
the Constitution is directed against the order of Special Judge (under Prevention
of Corruption Act) dated 22/5/2012 whereby the learned Judge has rejected
the petitioner's objection in respect of admission of audio CD in evidence.

2. The petitioner is facing a trial before the Special Judge in Crime No.28/
2011 for offence under Section 7, 13(1){(d) and 13(2) of the Prevention of
Corruption Act, 1988. According to the petitioner, during the examination of

chief panch witness L.R.Meena the Special Public Prosecutor had desiredto

exhibit the CD and the envelope of the CD to which the petitioner had submitted
an objection in the form of application to the admissibility of the electronic
evidence of CD, thereafter the recording of the statement of panch witness
L.R.Meena was suspended without deciding the objection. Then the statement

A
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of the complainant Mohd. Faruq started and the Special Public Prosecutor
again insisted on exhibiting and opening the envelope containing CD which
was again objected by the petitioner and the said objection has been rejected
by the Special Judge by the impugned order dated 22/5/2012.

3. Learned counsel for petitioner submits that while rejecting the
petitioner's objection, the Special Judge has not properly considered the
provisions contained in Section 65-B of the Indian Evidence Act 1872. He
further submitted that though the learned Special Judge has taken note of the
judgment of this Court in the matter of Kailash Vs. Suresh Chandra reported
in 2012(1)MPLJ 452 but has not considered the ratio of the said judgment.
He further submitted that the objection which has been raised by the petitioner
has not been properly decided by the learned Special Judge.

4. Learned counsel for respondent State has supported the impugned
order,
5. Having heard the learned counsel for parties, it is noticed that the

petitioner vide application dated 26/4/2012 had raised the specific objection
that the conditions enumerated in Section 65-B of the Act are not complied
with, therefore, the CD is not admissible in evidence. Learned Special Judge
is required to properly appreciate the requirement of Section 65-B of the Act
more particularly the requirement of the certificate as contained in 65(4) of
the Act which he has failed to appreciate in the present matter. It is also found
that though the learned Special Judge has taken note of the judgment of this
Court in the matter of Kailash (supra) but has not examined the ratio of the
said judgment and its effect in the present case.

6. Having considered the aforesaid aspect of the matter, we find that the
impugned order passed by the learned Special Judge cannot be sustained and
is hereby set aside with a direction to the learned Special Judge to decide the
petitioner's objection afresh keeping in view the provisions of Section 65-B
of the Act and the aforesaid judgment of this Court and other relevant judgments
on this point.

7. The Writ Petition is allowed to the extent indicated above.

Petition allowed,
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WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul
W.P. No. 8092/2012 (Gwalior) decided on 19 December, 2012

K.K.ARYA ... Petitioner
Vs.

M.P. MADHYAKSHETRA VIDYUT _

VITRAN COMPANY LTD. & ors. ...Respondents

A. Service Law - Transfer - Is a condition of service -
Order can only be interfered if it violates any statutory provision,
proved to be malafide, changes service conditions of an employee to
his detriment or is contrary to law. (Para13)
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®a 99 foar o1 wFar @ wf 98 et B SuSE w1 afteEe e
2, U wifya giar &, ard st e ugEn gy War wd 99w Qar
g ar fafyr faeg €

B. Administrative Law - Once the discretionary element in
the administrative action has been exercised by the proper authority
itself, it is then immaterial as to who is entrusted to discharge the
mechanical or non discretionary part of the function. (Para 11)
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Cases referred :
(2006) 4 SCC 348, (2007) ILR MP 1329, AIR 1968 SC 850.

Prashant Sharma, for the petitioner.
Vivek Jain, for the respondents.

ORDER

Sujoy PauL, J.:- Since the similar issues are involved in these matters.
with the consent of parties, matters are finally heard analogously and decided
by this common order. The only difference in W.P. No. 8092/2012 is that the
petitioner of this case is an Office Bearer of a recognized association and he is
claiming immunity from transfer being an Office Bearer. The other things are
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similar in nature.

(2) Shri Prashant Sharma, learned counse] for the petitioners, submits
that the transfer order dated 17.10.2012 is bad in law and liable to be set
aside for following reasons:-

") As per circular dated 22.09.2012 (Annexure P- 19), the
powers are delegated for the purpose of transfer of different category of
employees. He submits that as per Part-A Section (v), the General Manager
(Estabhshmcnt) has no authority jurisdiction and competence to issue the
transfer order. He further submits that transfer order can be issued only by
CE-CGM (Regional Office) after obtaining approval from the MD.

(@)  Theorder is malafide and is punitive in nature.

(i) In W.P.No. 8092/2012, the petitioner could not have been
transferred being an Office Bearer.

To elaborate, learned counsel for the petitioner submits that as per
schedule of powers, the note-sheet could have been initiated by CE-CGM
(Regional Office) alone and after obtaining approval from MD, orders could
have been passed by the same authority i.e. CE-CGM (Regional Office). By-
drawing the attention of this Court, Shri Sharma submits that Annexure R-5
contains signature/approval of MD but the recommendation/ note-sheet is
not initiated by CGM (Regional Level), whereas it is done by CGM (HR&A),
an authority who is sitting in the Head Quarter. The transfer order is criticized
on the ground that it is neither initiated by the competent authority nor issued
by the same authority. Merely because the MD has given approval, the transfer
order cannot be permitted to stand unless it fulfills all the requirements of the
said circular. By placingreliance on a communication dated 11.10.2012
(Annexure-X) filed with an affidavit, Shri Sharma submits that the contents of
this letter shows that CGM (Gwalior Region) was annoyed with the petitioner
and he as a punitive measure, recommended the transfer of the petitioner
outside Gwalior and this recommendation is acted upon by the respondents.
Accordingly, the impugned order has a punitive element and it is malafide in
nature, Shri Sharma submits.

(3)  Lastly for the petitioner in W.P. No. 8092/2012, Shri Sharma submits
that as per the transfer policy dated 16.03.2012 (Annexure R-3), the petitioner
being a Circle Secretary has an immunity for additional three years in addition
to the normal tenure of posting.
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(4)  Per Contra, Shri Vivek Jam, learned counsel for the respondents,
controverted the stand of the petitioner and supported the order.

(5) ©  Leamed counsel for the employer produced certain note-sheets and it
is stated that the decision to transfer the petitioner was taken by the competent
authority i.e. Manging Director and merely because the transfer order contains
the signature of GM, it will not vitiate the transfer order. In other words, Shri
Jain submits that the note-sheets were initiated and placed before the competent
authority (MD) who approved the transfer of the petitioner and in obedience
of that approval, the transfer order Annexure P-1 is passed. No fault can be
found in the said transfer order. By placing reliance on the Supreme Court
judgment reported in (2006) 4 SCC 348 fA. Sudhakar Vs. Postmaster
General, Hyderabad and another], Shri Jain submits that even in quasi judicial
proceeding, if the higher authority passes an order, it will not be vitiated unless
aright of appeal of the employee is taken away by the said decision. He
submits that in the present matter, there is no right of appeal etc. and if
something can be done in a quasi juridical proceedings it can always be done
in administrative matters. In nutshell, transfer is approved by the competent
authority i.e. MD. It is hyper technicality to submit that transfer order should
be issued by CGM (Regional) only. Learned counsel for the employer submits
that note-sheet will indicate that transfer order is passed in administrative
exigency and public interest. It has not been done on the request and at the
instance of the CGM (Gwalior Region). In other words, it is stated that the
confidential letter dated 11.10.2012 (Annexure-X) is not the basis for
transferring the petitioner and transfer is based on an administrative exigency.
By filing affidavit of respondent No. 3, the allegations of malafide were .
specifically denied by the employer.

(6)  Atthecost of repetition, Shri Jain submits that the transfer file makes
itcrystal clear that the reason or the transfer of the petitioner is the administrative
exigency. In absence of establishing that transfer is based on any malafides,
mere allegations will not serve any purpose and no interference is warranted.
Lastly, he submits that the petitioner in W.P. No. 8092/2012 is posted at
Gwalior since more than 20 years and, therefore, no further immunity can be
givento him.

(7)  Shri Sharma submits that the petitioner of the said case although
remained at Gwalior but in different capacities and in the capacity of Assistant
Engineer, he is at Gwalior only for two years. Thus, he claims immunity on the
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- basis of said policy. _

(8)  Learned counsel for the parties have not raised any other contention.
9 Thave heard the learned counsel for the parties and perused the record.

(10)  The first contention of the petitioners is regarding competence of
transferring authority. A bare perusal of the circular dated 22.09.2012 shows
that the powers are delegated to different authorities for the purpose of transfer.
A careful reading of this document (Page-62) shows that the Managing Director
is competent to approve the transfer of an Assistant Engineer Manager.
Annexure R-5 (Note-sheet) makes it clear that the competent authority/
Managing Director has approved the transfer. The circular, Annexure P-19,
is silent regarding the procedure by which the note-sheet would be put up
before the Managing Director. Therefore, the contention of Shri Prashant
Sharma, learned counsel that the note-sheet was not put up by CGM (Regional)
and it is put up by CGM (Head Quarter) does not establish any violation. He
criticized the order on yet another ground that the order impugned is passed
by the General Manager (Establishment) whereas it could be passed as per
the said circular only by CGM-CE (Regional Office). A bare perusal of the
circular shows that the authority competence to approve is Managing Director.
Admittedly, the Managing Director has approved the transfer of the petitioners.
I find force in the argument of Shri Vivek Jam that transfer order was not
issued by CGM (Gwalior Region) because he made the complaint dated
11.10.2012 (Annexure P-10). To ensure fairness, after approval by the
competent authority, the consequential order is passed by General Manager
(Establishment)

(11)  Inthe opinion of this Court, it cannot be forgotten that the circular
dated 22.09.2012 is only an executive instruction. It does not have any
statutory force. Accordingly, a violation if any will not render the transfer
order asillegal. A Division Bench ofthis Court in R.S. Chaudhary Vs. State
of M P. and others [(2007) ILR M.P. 1329] has already taken this view.
Apart from this, the basic decision regarding transfer of the petitioner is
required to be taken by way of approval by the Managing Director. He did
so. Itis apt to refer few lines from a book of " Administrative Law" Once the
discretionary element in the administrative action has been exercised by the
proper authority itself, it is then immaterial as to who is entrusted to discharge
the mechanical or non-discretionary part of the function. (Chapter-14 Page
449 of principles of administrative law) (Revised by Justice G.P. Singh and
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Shri Alok Aradhe, Advocate) (As his Lordship then was). The Apex Court in
Union of India Vs. P.K. Royreported in AIR 1968 SC 850 opined as under:

"if the administrative authority named in the statute has and
retains in its hands general control over the activities of the
person to whom it has entrusted in part the exercise of its
statutory power and the control exercised by the administrative
authority is of a substantial degree, there is in the eye of law no
'delegation’ at all and the maxim 'delegatus non potest
delegare’ does not apply...In other words, if a statutory
authority empowers a delegate to undertake preparatory work
and to take an initial decision in matters entrusted to it but
retains in its own hands the power to approve or disapprove
the decision after it has been taken, the decision will be held to
haye been validly made fi the degree of control maintained by

the authority is close enough for the decision to be regarded

as the authority's own."”

(Emphasis Supplied)

In the light of aforesaid, in the considered opinion of this Court, the
issuance of transfer order is at best a ministerial act. A basic power and decision
to transfer the petitioner was already taken by the competent authority i.e.
Managing Director. Hence, no fault can be found in issuance of transfer order
on hyper technical and mechanical ground. Thus, this contention i5 rejected.

(12)  Thesecond contention of the petitioners is that transfer order is malafide
and is punitive in nature. I have carefully gone through the relevant note-sheet
which deals with the transfer of the petitioner. There is no material on record

nor it is reflected from the relevant transfer file that the reason for transfer of .

the petitioner is the recommendation of the CGM (Gwalior Region)
(Annexure-X) dated 11.10.2012. The allegations of malafides raised by the
petitioner are specifically denied by respondent No. 3. The allegations alone
are not sufficient unless the same are proved to the hilt. There is no material
which shows that the transfer order is arising out of any malice. Accordmgly,
this contention is also rejected.

(13)  The third contention with regard to petitioner of W. P. No. 8092/
2012 also based on executive instruction. Petitioner is claiming immunity from
transfer on the basis of a clause of transfer policy. The said clause has no
enforceability and violation thereof will not render the transfer order as illegal.

[%
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Petitioner is at Gwalior for quite some time. The different capacities in which
he is in Gwalior is not relevant. Transfer is a condition of service. Transfer
order can be interfered with only if it violates any statutory provision, proved
to be malafide, changes service condition of an employee to his detriment or
is contrary to any law. No such ingredients are available in this petition.

(14)  Accordingly, I find no reason to interfere in these matters. Resultantly
petitions are dismissed. Ad-interim orders are vacated. No costs.

Petition dismissed.

L.L.R. [2013] M.P., 785
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice K.K. Trivedi
W.P. No. 6653/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 2 January, 2013

BABY JOHN - ...Petitioner

Vs. ' ‘

-STATE OF M.P. & anr. ...Respondents
A Service Law - Krammonati - Scheme - Annual

Confidential Report - In case an employee is granted the benefit of
Krammonati or the first Higher Pay Scale, his A.C.R.s are not required
to be considered for the purposes of granting second higher pay scale,
as per the scheme. (Para 4)
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B. Civil Services (Classification, Control and Appeal) Rules
M.P., 1966 - Rule 14 - Major Penalty - Withholding of increment with
cumulative effect - Withholding of increment with cumulative effect
amounts to major penalty - Cannot be sustained in absence of a detailed
. enqmry in terms of Rule 14. (Para5)
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C. Service Law - House Rent Allowance - Grant of - H.R.A.
is required to be paid to only one spouse and not to both if they are
living together in one house. (Para 6)
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Case referred :

1991 Supp (1) SCC 504.

D.K. Dixit, for the petitioner.
Yogesh Dhande, Dy. G.A. for the respondents.

ORDER

K.K. Trivepy, J.: The petitioner, who was serving as Assistant
Supenntendent in the Directorate of Sericulture, Bhopal, has approached this
Court by way of filing this writ petition under Article 226 of the Constitution of
India, ventilating his grievance against the order dated 09.11.2011 by which the
petitioner is granted the second higher pay scale in the time scale pay with effect
from 09.11.2009 and has also called in question the order dated 15.03.2011 by
which a show cause notice has been issued to him and on the basis of which a
major penalty has been imposed on him. He has also called in question the
action of respondents by which house rent allowance with effect from May,
2002 to 31.10.2009 has been denied to him and has also complained about
non-finalization of the benefit of pay scale of Rs.5000 — 8000 as has been
recommended by the Brahmaswaroop Committee but which has not been
implemented in the Sericulture Department, on the grounds that the petitioner
was entitled to be considered for grant of benefit of higher pay scale in terms of
the policy made by the State Government on 24.01.2008. However, in complete
ignorance of the said policy, the benefit was extended to the petitioner but not
from the appropriate date. Though he was due for grant of second Kramonnati
with effect from 01.04.2006, the order in that respect was not issued on the
other hand by order dated 09.11.2009 the petitioner was extended the benefit
of second higher pay scale with effect from 09.11.2009. The representation in
this respect was made but nothing was done, therefore, the petitioner was required
to approach this Court. Since the representation was made by the petitioner
against such an action of the respondents, he protested against the action of not
paying the house rent allowance, by memo dated 15.03.2011 it was said that
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theactionis initiated against the petitioner for committing misconduct of remaining
absent from the office. It is contended that a reply was submitted but since
nothing was done, a monetary loss was caused to the petitioner just at the fag
end of service when he was intimated to superannuate with effect from
29.12.2012. Therefore, he was required to approach this Court by way of
filing this writ petition. It is contended that all such actions taken by the
respondents are, thus, bad in law. The petitioner would be entitled to grant of
relief claimed in this respect. '

2. Refuting the allegations made in the writ petition, areturn has been
filed and it is contended that in fact the petitioner was not entitled to the relief
claimed in the writ petition. A show cause notice has been issued to the
petitioner on account of his remaining absent from duty. Areply has been
filed by the petition in respect to the said show cause notice. The.orderin
that respect has been issued and, therefore, now the petitioner is required to
challenge such an order if at all he is aggrieved by filing an appeal. Itis
contended that as far as the house rent allowance is concerned, the wife of
the petitioner was also employed in the Income Tax Department of Government
of India and was thus entitled to get the house rent from her employer.
Husband and wife were living together and, therefore, the petitioner was not
entitled to get the benefit of house rent allowance. The wife of the petitioner
has retired with effect from 31.10.2009 and a representation was made by
the petitioner on the basis of which the order has already been passed
sanctioning the house rent allowance to the petitioner with effect from the
month of November, 2009. In view of this, no relief whatsoever can be
granted to the petitioner and his petition is, thus, liable to be dismissed.

3. Heard learned Counsel for the parties at length and perused the record.

4, Now first of all it has to be seen whether the case of the petitioner
was rightly considered for grant of higher pay scale or not. Itisnot in dispute
that the policy was made by the State Government on 24.01.2008
implementing the scheme of grant of higher pay scale to those employees/
officers, who have worked only on one post, in one pay scale for a period of
8/10 years. The second higher pay scaleis to be granted on completion of
. 16/20 years of service. The criteria prescribed for grant of such higher pay
scale is on the consideration of ACRs of all such persons, who have completed
the requisite years of service in the same manner as is prescribed for
consideration for grant of promotion in the relevant statutory rules. The scheme
further contemplates that if an employee is found fit for grant of first higher
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. pay scale, it is not necessary to consider the five years ACRs for the last five
years working for the purposes of granting the second higher pay scale. Time
and again this bas been pointed out by the respondents by issuing the clarification
that in case an employee is granted the benefit of Kramonnati or the first
higher pay scale, his ACRs are not required to be considered for the purposes
of granting second higher pay scale. This particular aspect has also been
considered by this Court in the case of Rajaram Patel vs. State of Madhya
Pradesh and other, W.P. N0.20038/2011 (S), decided on 14.12.2012. It is
not in dispute that the petitioner was found fit for grant of Kramonnati pay
scale. He was due to be considered for grant of second higher pay scale
w.e.f. 2006 as all such persons similarly situated were granted this benefit
w.e.f. 01.04.2006. Only with respect to the claim of the petitioner it is said
that when the consideration was done and meeting was held on 21.11.2008,
the petitioner was not found fit for grant of this benefit. Though for others it
was said that they were found fit for grant of such benefit. This was mainly
done only on account of consideration of the ACRs of the petitioner for last
five years. The criteria as prescribed by the respondents was that there should
not be any adverse remarks in the ACRs and the last two ACRs should be
good. The master chart appended with proceedings indicates that there were
no adverse remarks in respect of the petitioner and he was having good remarks
for the two years but in the last three years ACRs, average marking was done
and, therefore, it was said that the petitioner was not found fit for grant of
such benefit. The persons, who were considered along with the petitioner,
one was having only four years ACRs but he too was found fit for grant of
such benefit. Next consideration of the claim of the petitioner was done on
09.11.2009 and in that year though only in one year's ACR good remark was
there and remaining four years remarks for the ACRs were average, yet the
petitioner was found fit for grant of such benefit w.e.f. 09.11.2009. This
consideration by the Committee for the purpose of granting of this benefit to
the petitioner is not understood by this Court. Firstly, there was no requirement
of considering the ACRs for the purposes of granting the second higher pay
scale in terms of the scheme dated 24.01.2008 wherein in paragraph 12 this
condition was specifically mentioned. Secondly, the criteria was not dependant
on the wish of the committee members. An uniform criteria should have been
made applicable. As has been reflected herein above, for the year 2006
when the consideration was done, despite there being two good remarks in
the ACRs, the petitioner was not found fit for prant of second higher pay scale
whereas in comparison to this in the year 2009 he was found fit for grant of
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benefit of second higher pay scale despite the fact that he was having only
one good remark and rest of the four were average. Thus, such consideration
for the purposes of grant of second higher pay scale done by the respondents
cannot be said to be just and proper.

5. Now the question would be whether any major penalty could have been
imposed on the petitioner as has been done vide order dated 07.05.2011. Itis
not in dispute that if an increment of pay is withheld with cumulative effect, the
same would be a major penalty [Please see ‘Kulwant Singh Gill vs. State of
Punjab, 1991 Supp(1) SCC 504]. In view of the law laid-down by the Apex
Court, if the increment of pay is withheld with cumulative effect, it will amount to
nothing but a major penalty and same cannot be done without detailed enquiry as
prescribed under Rule 14 of the Madhya Pradesh Civil Services (Classification,
Control & Appeal) Rules, 1966 (herein after referred to as 'Rules’). Itisnotin
dispute that the petitioner was given a show cause notice dated 15.03.2011,
which he has called in question in this writ petition. The response was submitted
by the petitioner to the said show cause notice. The result of the said show cause
notice is the order (Annexure R-3) filed by the respondents by which a penaity of
withholding of one increment of pay with cumulative effect has been imposed on
the petitioner. It is not the case of the respondents that they conducted a detailed
enquiry in terms of Rule 14 of the Rules and thereafter they imposed the penalty.
Thus, in view of the law laid-down by the Apex Court in the case of Kulwant
Singh Gill (supra), the order of penalty cannot be sustained.

6. Now the question would be whether the petitioner was rightly given the
benefit of house rent allowance from the month of November, 2009 or not ? Itis
not disputed by the petitioner that his wife was also in the Government employment
serving with the Central Government and Wwas posted at Bhopal and she too was
living with the petitioner. It is not disputed by the petitioner that his wife was not
getting the house rent allowance from the Central Government. The house rent
allowance is required to be paid to only one spouse and not to both if they are
living together in one house. It is mentioned that wife of the petitioner had retired
from service on 3 1st October, 2009. Thereafter, the representation was made by
the petitionier and the order was passed giving him house rent allowance w.e.f.
November, 2009. This being so, nothing wrong was committed in the matter of

granting house rent allowance to the petitioner.

7. Now the last claim of the petitioner is with respect to grant of pay
scale of Rs.5000 — 8000 as has been recommended by the Brahmaswaroop
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Committee. It is contended by the respondents in their return that
recommendations in this respect have been sent to the Department on
03.07.2007 and the same are pending consideration before the State
Government for rectification of the mistake committed in granting the lower
pay scale to Assistant Superintendent. This being so, it would be appropriate
to direct the respondents-authorities to take final decision in that respect within
the time fixed by this Court.

8. Consequently, the writ petition is allowed in part. Itis held that the
petitioner is entitled to grant of the benefit of second higher pay scale w.e.f.
01.04.2006 from the date the same was made available to other persons
serving in the department of the petitioner. It is further held that the order of
penalty issued against the petitioner on 07.05:2011 is bad in law and cannot
be sustained. However, it is held that the petitioner has rightly been given the
house rent allowance from the date he became eligible for the same. The
respondents are further directed to finalize the claim of grant of pay scale of
Rs.5000 — 8000 to the persons like petitioner in terms of the recommendations
made by the department on 03.07.2007 expeditiously.

9. Resultantly, this writ petition succeeds to the extent that the petitioner
is entitled to the benefit of grant of second higher pay scale w.e.f. 01.04.2006

instead 0f 09.11.2009. All the arrears of salary after refixation of pay of the
petitioner be calculated and paid to him. Consequently, the benefit of revised
retiral dues and the pensionary benefits in terms of the revised pay scale be
granted to the petitioner immediately. The order of penalty dated 07.05.2011

(Annexure R-1) is hereby quashed. The amount of increment so illegally
withheld be repaid to the petitioner immediately. The petitioner would be
entitled to the benefit of house rent allowance only from the date the same is
made available vide order dated 01.12.2009 (Annexure R-3). The
respondents would finalize the claim with respect to grant of pay scale of
Rs.5000 — 8000 as has been recommended by the department on 03.07.2007
within a period of three months from the date of order and in case it is found
that the persons like petitioner are to be granted this pay scale, the pay of the
petitioner be accordingly refixed and all the arrears of salary be paid to him
within the aforesaid period.

10.  The writ petition is allowed to the extent indicated herein above.
However, there shall be no order as to costs.

Petition allowed.
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WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice K. K. Trivedi
W.P. No. 4030/2009 (Jabalpur) decided on 2 January, 2013

YUGUL KISHORE SHARMA ...Petitioner
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. : ...Respondents

Fundamental Rules (As Amended in M.P. Act 29 of 1967), Rule
56(1-a) - Term "Government Educational Institution” - Meaning -
Women Weaving Centres under the Women and Child Development
Department are to be treated as educational institutions - Petitioner
appointed on the post of Instructor in such centre must be treated as a

teacher and would be entitled to continue on the post till he attains the
age of 62 years. (Paras 9 & 10)
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Cases referred :
AIR 1968 SC 662, AIR 1997 SC 1436, 2007(4) MPHT 147.

Umesh Shrivastava, for the petitioner.
S.D. Tiwari, G.A. for the respondents.

ORDER

K.K. Triveby, J.: This petition under Article 226 of the Constitution
of India has been filed challenging the order dated 6.3.2009 passed by the
respondents retiring the petitioner at the age of 60 years on the grounds that
the petitioner was working on the post of Junior Instructor in the Women
Weaving Centre, Rewa, and thus, is termed to be a teacher. By an amendment
made in the M.P. Shaskiya Sevak (Ardhvarshiki Ayu) Adhiniyam, 1967
(hereinafter referred to as the Act for brevity), the amendment in the age of
superannuation for the teachers serving in the Govt. institutions has been made
enhancing such age to 62 years, by amending Fundamental Rule 56. It is
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contended that the petitioner though is appointed on the post of Instructor,
but in fact is performing the teaching job, therefore, he could not have been
superannuated at the age of 60 years. According to the petitioner, the
amendment and the explanation attached to the Amending Act specifically
prescribes that those who are appointed on teaching post, have to retire on
attaining the age of 62 years. It is contended that the similar issue was raised
before this Court in some what similar circumstances by one Annapurna Prasad
Shukla by filing Writ Petition No.2289/2003 and the said writ petition has
been allowed interpreting the provisions of the Amending Act and treating that
the persons like Lab Technician and Assistant Librarian are to be treated as
teachers within the definition of the amending provisions and, therefore, are
entitled to continue on the post upto the age of 62 years. It is further contended
that when the age of superannuation of the teachers was enhanced from 58
years to 60 years way back in the year 1987, the persons working on the post
of Instructor have approached the High Court of Madhya Pradesh by filing
the writ petition which subsequently was transferred to the M.P. Administrative
Tribunal and was registered as T.A.No.747/1988 (Ku. Chandra Kakker Vs.
State of M.P) and was allowed vide order dated 14.11.1991. In terms of the
said provision and in terms of the explanation appended to the Act of 1998, it
would be abundantly clear that Instructors appointed in the institute to impart
training are also to be treated as Teacher and, therefore, they are to be granted
the benefit of extension of services upto the age of 62 years. Thus, it is contended
that the order impugned passed in respect of the petitioner is bad in law.

2. This Court has entertained the writ petition granted an interim order
in favour of the petitioner on 15.6.2009 and till the date of final hearing of the
writ petition, in fact the petitioner has completed the age of 62 years. Itis
contended that since the petitioner has worked on the post, he would be
entitled to the payment of salary of the post and the question involved in the
present writ petition has become only an academic question which need not
to be adjudicated in this petition as after the working, the petmoner would be
entitled to the salary of the post.

3. However, refuting such submissions made by the petitioner, a return
has been filed. Placing full reliance in the amending provisions of the Act
aforesaid as notified vide amending Act of 1998, it has been contended that
the amendment would become applicable only in cases of those for whom
specific provisions are made in the amending Act. It is contended that every
Govemment teacher has been specifically mentioned in the amended provisions
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and for the purposes of interpretation of the word "Teacher” an explanation
has been appended to the Amending Act. Since the explanation is the part of
the Amending Act, unless a person is appointed in the educational institutions
which are covered under the said explanation, he or she cannot be designated
as Teacher. Therefore, it is contended that even if the petitioner has performed
the duty as Instructor for more than 20 years, he would not be entitled to
grant of benefit of enhancement of age of superannuation by the amending
Act. However, it is contended that since the petitioner had worked on the
post because of an interim stay granted by this Court, ultimately, on attaining
the age of superannuation as per the amending Act, the petitioner stood retired
on 30.6.2011. It is refuted by the respondents that since the petitioner was
allowed to continue to work on the post, he would be entitled to the salary. It
is contended that in terms of the provisions of the amending Act, since the

_petitioner is not-one, who can be termed as teacher, the writ petition is

misconceived and the same is liable to be dismissed.

4. Heard learned counsel for the parties at length and perused the record
“minutely. :
5. It is not in dispute that the petitioner has continued to work on the

post on the strength of an interim order passed by this Court and has ultimately
retired on attaining the age of 62 years. However, it has to be seen whether
the petitioner was entitled to continue on the post of Instructor treating him as
a Teacher working in an educational institution, so as to make the provisions
of amending Act applicable in his case ? This is primarily important because
only on the strength of interim stay granted by this Court, the petitioner has
continued on the post after the actual age of superannuation, he may not be
entitled to the salary for the period he remained working on the post after the
age of superannuation unless the said period is treated as period spent on re-
employment, therefore, the petition is not to be disposed of only because of
the fact that the petitioner has now completed the age of superannuation even
according to the amending Act. The question is thus not academic purely as is
contended.

6. Now the scheme of amendment made in the Act is required to be
seen and it has to be interpreted that the petitioner can be treated as teacher
or not. The explanation appended to the Act prescribing the age of
superannuation for the teachers upto the age of 62 years is required to be
examined at length. For the said purpose, the entire provisions of Section 2 of
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the amending Act is required to be reproduced where the amendment has
been prescribed. The amending provisions of the Act read thus :-

"2. In Section 2 of the Madhya Pradesh Shaskiya Sevak (Adhivarshiki-
Ayu) Adhiniyam, 1967 (No.29 of 1967), after sub-rule (1) of rule 56, of the
Fundamental Rules, the following sub-rule shall be inserted, namely. -

"(1-a) Subject to the provisions of sub-rule(2), every
Government Teacher shall retire from service on the afternoon
of the last day of the month in which he attains the age of sixty
two years:

Provided that a Government teacher whose date of
birth is the first of a month shall retire from service on the
afternoon of the last day of the preceding month on attaining
the age of sixty two years.

Explanation.- For the purpose of this sub-rule
"Teacher" means a Government servant by whatever
designation called appointed for the purpose of teaching in
Government educational institution including technical or
medical educational institutions in accordance with the
recruitment rules applicable to such appointment and shall aiso
include the teacher who is appointed to an administrative post
by promotion or otherwise and who has been engaged in
teaching for not less than twenty years provided he holds a
lien on a post in the concerned School/Collegiate/Technical/
Medical education service."

7. A plainreading of the aforesaid provisions will make it clear that the
word every Govt. teacher is specifically mentioned in sub-rule (I-a) of the
amending provisions. The proviso is not relevant for the purposes of
interpretation. The word "Teacher" is defined in explanation appended to
the aforesaid Rule. The teacher means a Government servant by whatever
designation called appointed for the purposes of teaching in Govt. "Educational
Institution”. Certain educational institutions have been inserted in the same for
the purposes of example such as technical or medical educational institutions.
However, the word "Educational Institution"” has not been defined
completely nor it is said in the said explanation that the institutions only where
the classroom teaching in primary, middle or secondary education or even the
collegiate level education is imparted, would be termed to be educational
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institution, therefore, the word "Educational Institution” is required to be
interpreted and it has to be seen whether the institution where the petitioner
was engaged for imparting instructions, could be termed as an educational
institution or not. This is required to be done only because persons like
petitioner even working on the post of Laboratory Assistant in the colleges
were termed to be Teachers by this Court. In the case of Ku. Chandra Kakker
(supra), the Tribunal has interpreted the word "Teacher" and has included
the Instructor, appointed for tailoring and cutting classes as Teacher within
the definition given in the amending Act. This being so, this has to be examined
whether again the same analogy is to be made applicable and again it has to
be treated that the centre where the petitioner was working was in fact an
educational institution established by the State Government or not. This
particular aspect was not considered either by the ‘Tribunal or by this Court
while dealing with such a situation. Obviously, the Laboratory Assistant and
Technicians were appointed in the colleges and schools, therefore, it was not
necessary for this Court to interpret the word "Educational Institution"

8. The educational institutions are not defined in the amending Act nor
their status is clear from the statutory provisions of the Rules, therefore, the
literary meaning of the educational institution is required to be seen, The
definition of educational institution according to the literary meaning means a
pre-primary, primary or secondary school owned or managed or recognised
by any local authority, State or Central Government or any college affiliated
to or established or managed by any university established by law. However,
the Apex Court in the case of S Azeez Basha and another Vs. Union of
India (AIR 1963 SC 662) while interpreting the provisions of Article 30(1)
has categorically said that the word "Educational Institutions" are of very
wider import and would include a university also. The Noise Pollution
Regulation and Control (Rules) 2000 defines the word "Educational
Institution”. As per the definition given in Rule 2(¢) of the Rule aforesaid,
the educational institution means a school, seminary, college university,
professional academies, training institutes or other educational establishment,

"not necessarily a chartered institution and includes not only buildings, but also

all grounds necessary for the accomplishment of the full scope of educational
instruction, including those things essential to mental, moral and physical
development. However, such a wider definition of word "Educational
Institution” is given under the Rules only for the purposes of making the
Noise Pollution Regulation applicable. :
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9. While raking the provisions for constitution of the Panchayat in Part-

IX of the Constitution of India, specific provision are made under Article 243-
G of the Constitution of India, prescribing the powers, authority and
responsibilities of Panchayat. One of the subject entrusting such responsibilities

to the Panchayat is for preparation of plans for economic development and
social justice. In Schedule X1 of the Constitution, the education is included as
aresponsibility or the Panchayats and social justice which includes primary
and secondary school education. In the entry 18 of Schedule XI, technical
training and vocational education are included as the responsibility of the
Panchayat. Thus, if an institution is opened for the purposes of imparting
vocational education, it has to be treated as an educational institution. Inthe
case of Aditanar Educational Institution Vs. Additional Commissioner of
Income Tax (AIR 1997 SC 1436) evena Society established for the purposes
of establishing an educational college, was termed as an educational institution
by the Apex Court for the purposes of assessment of the said Society for
income tax. This Court has come accrossed such a situation and has looked
into the provisions of the amending Act and has held that the Weaving Master
appointed in a prison cannot be termed to be a teacher appointed in a teaching
institution as the prison is differently defined and the welfare schieme run within
the prison for the purposes of providing some vocational training to the
prisoners, cannot be termed to be a teaching institution. Please refer S.4. M.

Ansari Vs. State of M.P (2007(4) MPHT 147]. The distinction is to be seen.

Ifa Scheme is started by the State Government for the purposes of economic
upliftment of the weaker section and the vocational trainings are prescribed in
the said institution whether such an institution can be termed as educational
institution or not? This particular aspect is required to be seen in view of the
law laid down by the Apex Court in the aforementioned cases. The Apex
Court in various cases though has specifically dealt with the admissions, the
systems of regularating the fees, but has normally dealt with all such cases in
respect of the educational institutions like schools and colleges and has not
considered whether a vocational training institute started by the State
Government under the Scheme of prescribing education to the weaker section
can be termed as an educational institution or not. However, from the narration
of the fact and the provisions of the Constitution of India specially the
responsibility of the State to make Schemes for upliftment of the weaker
section, if a vocational training centre is opened prescribing vocational training
to the members of the weaker section so as to make them self sufficient to
make earning, it has to be held that the said institution or centres started by
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the State Government are covered as educational institutions. Prescribing
training or providing such elementary information to make a member of the
society to become self sufficient is in fact a part of imparting éducation. It is
more so important looking to the growth of population in the country and,
therefore, all such institutions established by the State Government for
prescribing the training are to be treated as educational institutions. One more
reason of giving such a finding is that in the amending Act, the State Government
itself has included the institution established for the purposes of providing
technical education. All industrial training institutions are to be treated as
educational institutions. Similarly, the training centres started by the
respondents under the Women and Child Development Department are also
to be treated as educational institutions.

10.  This Court has already held that instructors are to be treated as
teachers. The Tribunal has also equated the instructors as teachers, therefore,
the petitioner has to be treated as a teacher and, thus, would be entitled to
continue on the post till he actually atfained the age of 62 years. Since the
petitioner has already worked upto the age of 62 years, in view of the aforesaid
finding, he would he entitled to payment of salary of the post till he worked on
the said post. Ifthe salary has not been paid to the petitioner, now the amount
be paid to him within a period of two months from the date of order. The
petitioner would also be entitled to all benefits of services including, counting
the period of two years of service, for the purposes of fixation of pension.

11.  The writ petition stands allowed to the extent indicated herein above.
However, there shall be no order as to costs.

Petition allowed.

I.L.R. [2013] ML.P., 797
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Sanjay Yadav
W.P. No. 4352/2012 (Jabalpur) decided on 8 January, 2013

AMITABH SHUKLA (DR.) o ...Petitioner
Vs. .
RANI DURGAWATI VISHWA VIDYALAYA & anr. ...Respondents

Service Law - Promotion - Committee constituted for
considering the Senior Lecturer for promotion to the post of Reader
recommended the name of petitioner along with other Senior Lecturers
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- Recommendations of Committee also approved by Executive Council
- Promotion of petitioner was stayed on the ground of pendency of
Departmental Enquiry - Held - There is no material to show that when
the promotion was recommended by Committee, any chdrge sheet was
issued to the petitioner or any Departmental Enquiry was pending -
Issuance of Charge sheet subsequent to promotion will not hamper the
promotion recommended on merit - Petitioner be promoted as per
recommendation of committee which were affirmed by Executive
Council - Petition partly allowed. (Paras 2,7 & 8)
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Cases referred :

AIR 1991 SC 2010, AIR 1993 SC 1488, AIR 1968 SC 1113, (1989)
2 SCC 541, 1994 Supp (2) 222.

Rajendra Mishra, for the petitioner.
P.K. Kaurav, for the respondents.

ORDER
SANJAY YaDav, J.: Heard.

L. Being aggrieved by this non-promotion to the post of Reader
(Economics), petitioner, Senior Lecturer, University Teaching Department,
Rani Durgavati Vishwavidyalaya, has filed this writ petition seeking direction
to the respondent to implement the recommendation dated 24.5.2004.

2. Appointed as Lecturer (Economics) in the year 1988, petitioner
became a Senior Lecturer. In the year 2004, on 24.3.2004, a Committee
constituted for consideration of Senior Lecturer for promotion of teachers
under Career Advancement Scheme recommended the petitioner along with

F
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three other Senior Lecturers for promotion to the post of Reader. The
Executive Council of the University in its meeting convened on 24.5.2004
affirmed the recommendation; however, except the petitioner, other Senior
Lecturers were promoted as Readers either from 27/7/98 or from the date
they acquired qualification as per Career Advancement Scheme. In respect
of petitioner it was stated that his promotion is stayed because of pending
departmental enquiry.

3. Aggrieved petitioner preferred the representation; however, having
not succeeded thereby, as no heed being paid, present writ petition is filed.

4. It is urged that, there was no departmental enquiry pending against
the petitioner nor was the same initiated against him either on 24.3.2004 when
the petitioner was interviewed and found suitable by the Committee, nor on
24.5.2004 when the executive Committee accepted the recommendation. It
is contended that the counci! addressing to non existing facts erroneously
stayed the promotion. It is further submitted that though nomenclatured as
promotion it was basically an up-gradation and under Career Advancement
Scheme enabling enhancement of pay, i.e. Senior Lecturer was upgraded as
Reader and the Reader as Professor.

5. The respondents on their turn though have taken a stand that the
conduct of the petitioner was not in commensurate with his status as Senior
Lecturer as he remained unauthorised absent from 7.2.2004 which led the
University to issue a charge sheet on 12/10/2004 which later on culminated in
the decision of holding the petitioner unauthorised absence from 7.4.2004 to

or extra ordinary leave. It is contended that earlier also the pay of the petitioner
was stopped from March 2003 because of his remaining unauthorised absent.
Furthermore, it is urged that the petitioner was placed under suspension on
23.8.2004 which was revoked by order dated 17.10.2006 w.e.f, 8.9.2006.
(It is strange to note when the petitioner was placed under suspension on
23.8.2004 which was revoked on 17.10.2006; how could the said period be
treated as without pay or extraordinary leave; as resolved on 8.9.2006. Be
that as it may.)

6. It is however, not established by the respondents that as on 24.3.2004,
when the petitioner was interviewed by the Committee for promotion to the
post of Reader and or 24.5.2004 when the council accepted the
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recommendation, any charge sheet was issued to the petitioner or any
departmental enquiry was pending against him.

7. Treitisthat pending departmental enquiry or currency of punishment
have the bearing or promotion. In the former case, subject to the Rules/
Regulations in vogue, the recommendations are kept in sealed cover, the
opening whereof depends on the outcome of enquiry. In case of exoneration
the sealed cover is opened. However, in the later case, i.e, currency of
punishment, the consideration is deferred. None of these eventualities however
were present when the petitioner was considered for promotion. There is no
material on, record to show that the departmental enquiry was pending. The
verdict of the Executive Council holding that because of pending departmental
enquiry the promotion is stayed is thus on non-existing fact.

8. Issuance of charge sheet subsequent to promotion will not hamper the
promotion recommended on merit merely because some administrative opinion
was formulated to take a disciplinary action , as has been put forth by learned
counsel for respondent, nor the same can be the ground for deferment of
promotion.

9. In Union of India V. K.V. Jankiraman: AIR 1991 SC 2010, it has
been observed:

"6............The contention advanced by the learned counsel for
the appellant-authorities that when there are serious allegations
and it takes time to collect necessary evidence to prepare and
issue charge-memo/charge-sheet, it would not be in the interest
of the purity of administration to reward the employee with a
promotion, increment etc. does not impress us. The acceptance
of this confention would result in injustice to the employees in
many-cases. As has been the experience so far, the preliminary
investigations take an inordinately long time and particularly
when they are initiated at the 800 instance of the interested
persons, they are kept pending deliberately. Many times they
never result in the issue of any charge-memo/chargesheet. If
the allegations are serious and the authorities are keen in
investigating them, ordinarily it should not take much time to
collect the relevant evidence and finalize the charges. What is
further, if the charges are that serious, the authorities have the
power to suspend the employee under the relevant rules, and
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the suspension by itself permits a resort to the sealed cover
procedure. The authorities thus are not without a ,remedy.

10.  Inrespect of the proposition as to the stage of initiation of disciplinary
proceeding whether it would be when an administrative decision is taken or
when the charge sheet prepared on the basis of such decision is issued, it has
been held in Delhi Development Authority V. H.C. Khurana: AIR 1993
SC 1488: :

B (- TOOPP The 1ssue of a chargesheet, therefore,
means its despatch to the government servant, and this act is
complete the moment steps are taken for the purpose, by
framing the chargesheet and despatching it to the government
servant, the further fact of its actual service on the government
servant not being a necessary part of its requirement. This is
the sense in which the word 'issue’ was used in the expression
'chargesheet has already been issued to the employee’, in para
17 of the decision in Jankiraman.".

11.  Inthe case at hand since the respondents have failed to show the

~ existence of a departmental enquiry (as observed by the Executive Council in

its meeting on 24.5.2004) the inevitable conclusion would be that the decision
to defer the promotion is not sustainable.

12. Whether respondents can be directed to give promotion and whether the

" petitioner would be entitled for actual wages from the date when recommended

for promotion are the corollary issues.

13.  Inthe State of Mysore and another V. Syed Mahmood and others:
AIR 1968 SC 1113 it was held:

"5.We are of the opinion that the State Government
should be directed at this stage to consider the fitness of Syed
Mahmood and Bhao Rao for promotion in 1959. If on such
examination the State Government arbitrarily refuses to
promote them, different considerations would arise. The State
Government would upon such consideration be under a duty
to promote them as from 1959 ifthey were then fit to discharge

- the duties of the higher post and if it fails to perform its duty,
the Court may direct it to promote them as from 1959."
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14. Inview whereof, the respondents are directed to promote the petitioner
as per recommendation by the Committee on 24.3.2004 and as affirmed by
the Executive Council on 24.5.2004.

5. Regarding backwages it is observed that, the petitioner was denied
promotion on 24.5.2004 formulating into a decision on 27.5.2004 whereas,
the petitioner has filed this petition on 15.3.2012,i.¢, after almost 8 years,
during which period, besides on alleged medical leave, petitioner was at ICFAI,
Pune and Eritrea (North East Africa) in 2008; Ethiopia in 2009, Kualalumpur
in2010 and joined back in 2011. Thus instead of seeking redressal of grievance
of non-promotion in 2004, the petitioner was taking various assignments,
therefore he has no entitlement for the actual wages of the post of Reader, _
which he can be held entitled from the date of petition, i.e. 15.3.2012.

16. In this context reference can be had of a decision in Paluru
Ramkrishnaiah and others V. Union of India and another (1989) 2 5CC
541 and Telecommunication Engineering Service Association (India) and
another V. Union of India and another :1994 Supp (2) 222.

_ Intheresult the petition is partly allowed to extent above. However,
there shall be no costs.

Petition partly allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 802
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice K.K, Trivedi
W.P. No. 11269/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 18 January, 2013

GANESH PRASAD TIWARI ...Petitioner

Vs. ) o :

THE SECRETARY/ADDL. SECRETARY, M.PS.EB. & ors. ...Respondents
A. Service Law - Higher Pay Scale - Scheme was formulated

for giving the benefit of placement in pay scale on completion of 9/18/25
years of service - Benefit was denied on the ground that he was not
sent for training on account of becoming overage - Held - Respondents
have failed to show any scheme for selection was pres¢ribed for sending
any persons for technical training in training institute - Petitioner cannot
be held responsible in absence of any such scheme - He on his own
also could not have made an application to the Training Institute for
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admitting him for such training - There was no fault on the part of the
petitioner so as to deny the benefit of consideration for grant of second
higher pay scale. (Para$)

Z. war f3f — e=gav da7ar7 — A4 @ 9/18/25 I qvi
P TR AT A WIFA &1 o9 9379 @9 @ ford gierr a8 o oft
~ 39 IER R 949 DR faar v f5 4fe 98 afre sy w1 8 W=
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off — AT B MY ¥ FIF 9 78 o7 frwd ¥ oAy 9999 UeE a7
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B. Service of Higher Pay Scale - Job Responsibility -
Respondents have not clarified that any greater responsibility or a
different higher technical job is required to be discharged by the Line
Asstt. Grade II - Petitioner was already working as Line Attendant
Grade I for a considerable long time - If the job responsibility was
same, the benefit of experience of working could not have been denied
to the Petitioner. ' (Para 6)
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Case referred :
AIR 1990 SC 371.

Rajesh K. Pandey, for the petitioner.
M.B. Shrivastava & Jitesh Shrivastava, for the respondents.

ORDER

K.K. TriveD], J.:- The main grievance of the petitioner in the present
petition is that he has been denied the benefit of consideration ofhis claim for
grant of placement in the next higher pay scale for which he has completed
the requisite years of service, It is contended by the petitioner that a scheme
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was made by the respondents circulated on 19.07.1990 (Annexure P-4) for
giving the benefit of higher placement in the pay scale on completion of 9/18/
25 years of service. Such benefit was extended to Class-Ill and ClassIV
employees. The object of making such a scheme was to make available at
least the pay scale of a promotional post to such employees, who were working
in the cadres, having less opportunity of promotion in the next cadre post. It is
contended that in Clause (xiii) of the scheme it was specifically provided that
the second option will be allowed in only such cases in which higher grade
posts are available for promotion and the employee is eligible for promotion
based on educational/professional qualification as prescribed for the
promotional post by the Board from time to time.

2. it is contended that the petitioner had worked on the post of Line
Attendant Grade-I (Assistant Lineman) for considerabie long time but was
not allowed to be given the pay scale of the Line Assistant Grade-II (Lineman)
only because it was said that the petitioner has not obtained the training or a
certificate of competency in overhead and/or underground cable work. It is
contended that it was not the fault on the part of the petitioner in not obtaining
the said training as up to the age of 50 years he was not sent for such a training
by the respondents and lastly it was said that he could not be sent for such
training since he has completed the age of 50 years. Accordingly, the petitioner
was made to retire from the post of Line Attendant Grade-I by a notice dated
07.05.2008, w.e.f. 30.06.2009. Since such a benefit of placement in the higher
pay scale was not given to the petitioner, he has not only suffered monetary
loss while in service but is continuously suffering the loss by not getting
appropriate pension and retiral dues.

3. In response to the notice issued by this Court in the writ petition, a
reply has been filed by the respondents. It is contended by them that the
scheme of recruitment prescribes the educational and general as well as
technical qualification for appointment/promeotion on the post of Line Assistant
Grade-Il (Lineman) in the schedule of regulations, which prescribes primary
(4th standard) as minimum qualification in education and a competency
certificate in overhead and/or underground cable work. The petitioner was
having the educational qualification but was not having the competency
certificate and since he was not to be sent for such training on account of
becoming overage, his claim was not to be considered for grant of second
placement in the higher pay scale as per the scheme. It is contended that
though the condition mentioned in the scheme referred to herein above was
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subsequently changed inasmuch as availability of the promotional post was

deleted but the condition of obtaining technical training was very much there

and that being so, the-case of the petitioner was not considered for grant of
benefit of second higher pay scale in terms of the scheme. By issuing’
instructions, specific condition was made that the qualified persons in education

were required to be sent for such training only up to the age of 50 years. The

persons, who have attained the age of 50 years or above, were not to be sent

for training. Accordingly, it is said by the respondents that rightly the claim of
the petitioner was not considered and as such he is not entitled to any relief.

The writ petition, according to the respondents, deserves to be dismissed.

4, Heard learned Counsel for the parties at length and minutely perused
the record.

5. As was directed by this Court, the respondents have not been able to
show that any scheme for selection was prescribed for sending any person
for technical training in the training institute and that the petitioner after taking
part in the said process was not selected. This makes it clear that it was the
responsibility of the respondents to select and send the persons for training so
as to become eligible for promotion on the next post as prescribed in the
schedule of the Regulations. Those who were nearing the age of 50 years,
were required to be sent for training on earlier occasion so that non-obtaining
the certificate from training institute may not come in their way for getting the
benefit of next promotion. However, if the scheme was not made in this respect
by the respondents, the petitioner cannot be held responsibie for the same. It
is not that on his own the petitioner could have made an application to the
Central Training Institute for admitting him for such training. The persons are
required to be sent for training by the respondents. In view of this, it cannot
be said that there was any fault on the part of the petitioner on account of
which he could be denied the benefit of consideration for grant of second
higher pay scale.

6. The other aspect is that the respondents have not clarified that any
greater responsibility or a different higher technical job is required to be
discharged by the Line Assistant Grade-II (Lineman). The petitioner was also
working as Line Attendant Grade-I for considerable long time. If the job
responsibility was same, the benefit of experience of working could not have
been denied to the petitioner. Apex Court in the case of Bhagwati Prasad
vs. Delhi State Mineral Development Corporation, AIR 1990 SC 371, ‘



806 Sampat Bai (Smt.)Vs. State of M.P. IL.R.[2013]M.P.

has held that long working on one post, even on adhoc basis, prescribes
obtaining of experience of working on the said post, which cannot be said to
be inferior in any manner so as to the minimum educational certificate prescribed
for the said post. This being so, it was to be seen by the respondents that the
petitioner by virtue of working on the post for a long time has obtained the
experience and thus was required to relax such a condition of obtaining the
technical training certificate of the similar nature and to consider the case of _
the petitioner in appropriate manner. In fact there was no question of promotion
on the next higher post. Only the pay scale of the post was to be made available
as per the scheme made by the respondents. In that situation, merely because
of prescription of such a condition, the claim of the petitioner was not to be
denied. Apparently, the respondents have not at all considered the case of the
petitioner in terms of his second option only because of his not obtaining the
training certificate,

7. This being so, it cannot be said that the claim of the petitioner was
rightly rejected by the respondents. In view of this, the writ petition is allowed.
The respondents are directed to consider the case of the petitioner for placement
in the second higher pay scale in terms of his option from the date of his eligibility,
ignoring the obtaining of technical training certificate and in case the petitioner is
found fit for grant of such a benefit, to extend the said benefit from the date the
same was due. All the consequential benefits be also made available to the
petitioner. The aforesaid exercise be completed within a period of two months
" from the date of receipt of copy of the order passed today.

8. The writ petition is allowed to the extent indicated herein above.
However, there shall be no order as to costs.

Petition allowed,

I.LL.R. [2013] M.P., 806
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Sanjay Yadav
W.P. No. 17240/2012 (Jabalpur) decided on 5 February, 2013

SAMPAT BAI (SMT.) ...Petitioner
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

Work Charged and Contingency Paid Employees Pension Rules
M.F. 1979, - Rule 44 - Family Pension - Entitlement - Deceased was
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employed as Jeep Driver in the office of Horticulture Dgpartnient, on
daily wages, thereafter, was appointed as Jeep Driver on Regular Work
Charged Establishment - Before his death, the deceased qualified the
qualifying service as "permanent employee” by virtue of Rule 2(c)-
Widow of the deceased would be entitled for family pension.(Para2,11)
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Case referred :
2011(3) MPLJ 2010.

S.K. Sharma, for the petitioner.
S.M. Lal, G.A. for the respondent/State.

ORDER
SANJAY YADAY, J.:- Heard

L. This is the second round of litigation. Earlier also petitioner visited this
Court vide W, P, N0.3495/2009 (s) which was decided on 24.07.2010.

2. Order dated 07.05.2012, is being assailed vide this petition. Vide
impugned order claim of the petitioner for grant of Family Pension in lieu of
death of her husband Prahlad Patel has been turned down. Husband of the
petitioner was initially appointed in the Horticulture Department, on daily
wages. Thereafter, he was appointed as Jeep Driver on Regular Work Charged
Establishment.

3. °  While discharging his duties as Jeep Driver on Regular Establishment
petitioner's husband died in harness on 29.9.1986. Petitioner approached the
authorities for settlement of retiral dues including Family Pension which was
turned down by respondents by order dated 25.06.1997.

4, Aggrieved, whereby, petitioner preferred W. P No.3495/2009 (s).
The said petition was allowed on 27.08.2010 and the respondents were
directed to settle Family Pension in favour of petitioner along with interest @

6% till final decision.
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3. Respondent/State and its functionaries preferred Writ Appeal against
the order placing reliance on Full Bench judgment of this Court in case of
Mamta. Shukla v. State of M.P. and others: 2011 (3) MPLJ 2010. The
Division Bench while recording the concession of learned counsel for the parties,
regarding legal position in view of law laid down by the Full Bench, set aside
the order passed in W. P. N0.3495/2009 (s) and directed that the matter
deserves to be re-examined in light of law laid down by the Full Bench in
Mamta Shukla (supra).

6. It was further expressed by Division Bench that the aspect of

entitlement of the petitioner has not been examined and the same is to be
" examined by the respondents keeping in view all the facts and facets into
- consideration.

7. Armed with aforesaid order passed in Writ Appeal No.305/2011 dated ‘
12.04.2012, the respondents have passed the impugned order declining the
petitioner's entitlement for family pension holding-
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8. Question is whether the respondents are justified in rejecting the claim
and whether the proposition of law laid down in Mam¢ta Shukla (supra) and
the provisions of M. P. (Work Charged and Contingency Paid Employees)
Pension Rules, 1979 and M. P. Civil Services (Pension) Rules 1976, supports
the rejection order.

9. And whether rendering 10 years of service in a work charged
establishment will also be condition precedent for granting of family pension,
could be ascertained after examining the relevant provision of 1979 Rules
and that of 76 Rules.

10.  Rule4 Aofthe Rules of 1979 and Rule 6 thereof respectively provide
for:

"4 A. Not withstanding anything contained in rule 4 the family
of a permanent employee, who dies while in service or after
retirement on pension on or after the 1% April 1981 shall be
entitled to family pension at the rate of 30% of his/her pay
drawn at the time of death/retirement subject to minimum, of
Rs.40/-per month and maximum of Rs. 100/~ per month subject
to other conditions of Rule 47 of Madhya Pradesh Civil
Services (Pension) Rules, 1976 except sub-rule (3) of the said
Rules. it

6. Commencement of qualifying service-(1)

subject to the provisions of Chapter Il of the Madhya Pradesh
Civil Services (Pension) Rules, 1976 or section 1V of the
Madhya Pradesh New Pension Rules, 1951 as the case may
be, for calculating qualifying service of a permanent employee
who retires as such, the service rendered with effect from the
1st January, 1959 onwards shall be counted.

(2) On absorption of a permanent employee without
interruption against any regular pensionable post, the service
rendered with effect from 1* January, 1959 onward shall be
counted for pension as if such service was rendered in a regular
post.

(3) On absorption of temporary employee without interruption
against any regular pensionable post, the service rendered with
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effect from 1st January, 1974 onwards, if such service is of
less than six years shall be counted for pension as if such service
was rendered in a regular post.

When the aforesaid two Rules are read together, it is clear as
crystal that the provisions which govern the family pension has
a different field of operation than the provisions regarding
pension to an employee who retires from the work-charged
establishment and are governed by Rule 6 of Rules of 1979,

'By virtue of Rule 4 A the provisions as contained under Rule
47 of the M.P. Civil Services (Pension) Rules, 1976 are
attracted. The said Rule provides for

- 47.Contributory Family Pension - (1) The provisions of this
rule shall apply:-

(a) to a Government servant entering service in a
pensionable establishment or on after 1st April 1966, and

(b) to a Government servant who was in service on 3 1st
March, 1966 and came to be governed by the provisions of
the Family Pension Scheme for State Government Employees,
1966 contained in Government of Madhya Pradesh Finance
Department memo No 1963/C.R903-IV-R. Ii dated 17th

. August, 1966 as in force immediately before the
commencement of these rules.

(2)  Subject to the provision of sub-rule (5) and without
prejudice to the provisions contained in sub rule (3), where a
government servant dies-

(a) during the period of service he was found medically fit
at the time of appointment.

(b)  after retirement from service and was on the date of
death in receipt of a pension or compassionate allowance,
referred to in Chapter V other than the pension referred to in
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. Rule 34, on the date of death, the family of the deceased shall
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* Pay of Government Servant
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be entitled to a contributory family pension (hereinafter in this
rule referred to as Family pension) the amount of which 'shall
be determined as follows:

Amount of monthly Family Pension

() BelowRs.400 30 per cent. Of pay subject to minimum

of Rs. 60 and maximum of Rs, 100.

(if) Rs.400 and above but not 15 per cent of pay subject to minimum
exceeding Rs. 1200 of Rs.100 and a maximum of Rs.160.

(iil) Above Rs. 1200 12 per cent of pay subject to a

minimum of Rs. 160 and a maximum of
Rs. 250.

Aharmonious reading of Rule 4 A of Rules, 1979 and Rule
47(2) (a) of Rules, 1976 would fresco that if a person
employed in a regular work-charged establishment dies while
in service, his family cannot be deprived of the pension which
it would be entitled for by virtue of Rule 4 A of Rules, 1979.

811

As to the Jaw laid down by Full Bench in Mamta Shukla (supra) the
issue before the Full Bench was -

"(i) Whether the decision of the Division Bench in W.A. No.
725/2007, Smt. Rahisha Begum vs. State of M. P. and others
is not a good law in view of the decision of the earlier Division
Bench of this Court vide order dated 18-7-2005, passed in
W.P. No. 127372000, State of M.P. And others vs. Ram
Singh and another?

(ii) Whether an employee is eligible for the benefit of family
pension in accordance with the provisions of Madhya Pradesh
(Work Charged and Contingency Paid Employees) Pension
Rules, 1979 after completing qualifying service in accordance
with the provisions of Recruitment Rules framed by the
concerned Department for work charged and contingency paid
employees or in accordance with the definition of Rule 2 of
Madhya Pradesh (Work Charged and Contingency Paid
Employees) Pension Rules, 1979 in regard to "contingency
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fn hn

paid employee", "work-charged employee” and permanent
employee"?

(iif) Whether for counting qualifying service of an employee
for the purpose of grant of benefit of pension it is necessary
that the employee has to be appointed in accordance with the
provisions of contingency paid employees recruitment rules
framed by the concerned department in regard to work charged
and contingency paid employees ?"

The reference was answered in the following terms-

"24- On the basis of above discussion, we hold in regard to
the substantial questions of law Nos: 2 and 3 that an employee
is eligible to count his past service as qualifying service in
accordance with Rule 6 of the Pension Rules, 1979, ifhe was
appointed in accordance with the provisions of Recruitment

Rules of 1977. We further hold that an employee, who was

not appointed in accordance with the provisions of Recruitment
Rules framed by the concerned department, i.e., the
Recruitment Rules of 1977, would not be eligible to count his
past service as qualifying service for the purpose of grant of
pension in accordance with the Pension Rules of 1979 and we
answer the substantial questions of law Nos. 2 and 3

accordingly.

25.  Inregard to substantial question of law No. 1 Earlier
Division Bench of this Court in W.P. No. 1273/2000, State of
M.P. vs. Ramsingh and another, as held that a daily wager
employee would not fall within the definition of work charged
and contingency paid employee, hence his case would not be
covered by Madhya Pradesh Workcharged and Contingency
Paid Employees Pension Rules, 1979, has not been noticed
by the subsequent Division Bench of this Court in Rahisha
Begum vs. State of M.P. And other, 2010(4) MPLJ 332.
However, in the subsequent case, the Division Bench has held
that if an employee comes within the definition of work charged
and contingency paid employee as defined the Pension Rules
of 1979, then he is eligible to count his past service for the
purpose of qualifying service in accordance with the Rules of
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1979. In our opinion, there is no conflict between the Division '
Berich judgments, because the findings of the Division Benches
are based on different factual aspects. Accordingly, we answer
the substantial question of law No. 1 that there is no conflict
of opinion between the two Division Bench judgments. Hence,
the decision of the Division Bench in the case of Rahisha
Begum vs. State of M.P. and others, 2010(4) MPLJ 332, is
not per incuriam. We answer substantial question of law No.

1 accordingly.” '

12.  Apparent, itis from the above proponement that, the issue asto grant -
of family pension to a widow of an employee of work charged who are
apparently covered by Rule 4A of Rules of 1979 was not the term of reference
and nor was the same dwelt upon by the Full Bench.

13.  Inviewofabove, the respondents are not justified in denying the family
pension to the petitioner only on the ground that the petitioner's husband did

~ not complete 10 years of service in Regular Work Charged Establishment.

14.  Inview whereof, the impugned order dated 07.05.2012 is quashed.
The respondents are directed to grant family pension to the petitioner from
the date of entitlement. Petitioner shall also be entitled for the interest @
7.5% on the difference till its final payment.

15. The petition is allowed, to the extent above.
- . Petition allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 813
* WRIT PETITION
. Before Mr. Justice Alok Aradhe .
W.P. No. 4204/2005 (J abalpur) decided on 7 February, 2013

MOHD. SAGIR ... Detitioner
Vs. .
BHARAT HEAVY ELECTRICALS LTD.BHOPAL & ors. ...Respondents

A.  Industrial Relations Act, M.P. (27 of 1960), Section
31(3), Industrial Disputes Act (14 of 194 7), Section 25-F - Petitioner
appointed as Medical Attendant, remained absent for a period
exceeding 30 days - Notice was sent to resume duty - He neither joined
nor submitted any explanation for his un-authorised absence -
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Thereafter, drawing a presumption under Clause 42(10) of Standing
Order, that the petitioner had voluntarily abandoned the services, name
of the petitioner was struck off from the roll of the company and
intimation was sent to him which was refused to accept - The petitioner
thereafter approached the Company - Demanded copy of order, which
was supplied to him on the same day - Labour Welfare Supervisor also
met petitioner on 30.05.78 at his residence and persuaded him to join
duty, however the petitioner did not resume duty - Held - There is no
violation of principles of natural justice in dispensing with the services
of the petitioner as the same were complied with. (Para2)

7 e s g st oy (1960 &7 27), erer 31(3),
a?‘é?fﬁarﬁai?azﬁﬁwﬁgﬂwm), &7 257% — fafesar oRax & vy
% e ard, 30 oAl } aftre #Y srafr 3 fd arqofers w1 — wref
TS & @ ford wifew e TAT — 899 Tl s Tewr fear s o

'ﬁmﬁmw&qﬁﬂmﬁﬂ%maﬁs‘wuﬁm%—-

. TN, It Seer @ @S 42(10) @ o SyEeon Tl gy % arh
#ﬁmﬁmﬁmmﬂé,mﬁaﬁm@mﬂwmmw
mvaﬁmﬁvﬁﬂ?ma#ﬁs'mﬁmw—urmmm
a%mw—améwaﬁuﬁraﬁqﬁraﬁ,ﬁmﬁﬁqaﬁumaﬁﬁ—
ﬂwwwgwﬁmtﬁwﬁmﬁvmwao_osnaﬁﬁmﬂvw
mummﬁ$mﬁwﬁm,ﬁﬁq,miﬁ#mmaﬁm—
aﬁrﬁafﬁa—m?ﬂaﬁﬁmmm##ﬁvﬁfwﬂma%ﬁaﬁfmaﬁs‘
mmaﬁgm?m%mmﬁmﬁ%mel

B. Industrial Disputes Act (14 of 1947), Section 2(o0)(bb) -
Non-renewal of contract - Since the service of the petitioner have been
terminated as a result of non-renewal of contract of employment the

same would not amount to retrenchment - No relief can be granted.
(Para 11)

Cases referred :

2004(2) MPLJ 359, AIR 1976 1111, AIR 1978 SC 8, AIR 1982 SC
854, AIR 1993 SC 259, 1994 MPLJ 482, AIR 1998 SC 1681, (2002) 6

p
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SCC 552 ‘(2012) 3 SCC 178, 2004(103) FLR 32, AIR 1996 SC 1623,
2000(1) CLR 451, (2006) SCC (L&S) 250, 2000 SC (L&S) 601, 2001(88)
FLR 383, 2005 SCC (L&S) 689.

R.N, Shukla with R.B. Tiwari for the petitioner.
Ajay Gupta, for the respondents.

"ORDER

4 LOK ARADHE, J.:- In this petition under Article 227 of the Constitution
of India the petitioner has challenged the validity of the order dated 16.3.2005
passed by the Industrial Court.

2. The background facts, necessary for adjudication of the controversy
involved inthe writ petition, briefly stated, are that the petitioner was appointed
as medical attendant grade-2 on 9.6.1977 on probation for a period of six:
months in the hospital of the respondent No.1 (hereinafter referred to as 'the
company') at Habibganj. The petitioner remained absent from 15.4.1978 for
a period exceeding thirty days. Thereupon a notice dated 4/16.5.1978 was
sent by registered post to the petitioner by which he was asked to resume his
duty within three days. It was further informed that if the petitioner remains
absent for more than thirty days, it would be presumed that he is not interested
in serving the company and shall be deemed to have left services of the
company and his name shall be struck off. The aforesaid notice was received
by the petitioner on 20.5.1978. However, the petitioner neither joined the
duty nor submitted an application for his unauthorised absence. Thereafter in
exercise of power under clause 42 (10) of the Standing Orders, the name of
the petitioner was struck off from the roll of the company with effect from
15.4.1978 on the ground that he has voluntarily abandoned his services.

3. The petitioner approached the company on 21.9.1978 and requested
for supply of copy of the order dated 4.6.1978 which was supplied to him on
the same day. The petitioner thereafter filed an application on 22.8.1980 under
Section 31 (3) of the M.P. Industrial Relation Act, 1961 (in short 'the Act’) on
the ground that his services have wrongly been terminated without holding the
departmental enquiry which constitutes violation of Section 25-F of the
Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 (in short 'the 1947 Act'). The Labour Court
vide order dated 9.9.1985 held that the claim of the petitioner is barred by
limitation. However, the Labour Court found that in similar circumstances
other employees have been re-employed and, therefore, the company should
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consider the case of the petitioner for reemployment. Being aggrieved by the
aforesaid order the petitioner as well as the company filed the appeal before
the Industrial Court. The Industrial Court by the order dated 28.2.1992 decided
both the appeals and remanded the matter to the Labour Court to decide all
the issues afresh.

4. The Labour Court vide order dated 11.3.1995 inter alia, held that the
petitioner was submitting the representations and there is delay of five months.

Accordingly, the Labour Court found that sufficient cause for condonation of
delay is made out. Labour Court further held that termination of the services
of the petitioner amounts to retrenchment and the same constitutes violation
of Section 25- F of the 1947 Act. Accordingly, a direction was issued for
reinstatement without backwages, Being aggrieved by the aforesaid order,

the petitioner as well as the company preferred appeals before the Industrial
Court. The Industrial Court vide order dated 27.6.2002, held that the Labour
Court has no power to condone the delay in filing the application under Section
31 of the Act. Accordingly, the appeal filed by the petitioner was dismissed
whereas the appeal preferred by the company was allowed. The petitioner
challenged the order passed by Industrial Court in writ petition before this
Court. The Full Bench of this Court in Mohd. Sagir v. Bharat Heavy
Electricals Ltd., 2004 (2) MPLJ 359 held that the Labour Court has power
to condone the delay in filing the application under Section 31 of the Act.

Accordingly, the matter was remanded to the Industrial Court. The Industrial
Court vide order dated 16.3.2005 inter alia, held that the delay in filing the
application under Section 31 of the Act could not have been condoned in the
. absence of any application for condonation of delay. It was further held that
the petitioner failed to prove that the order dated 4.6.1978 was passed in
violation of the Standing Order. Accordingly, the Industrial Court came to the
conclusion that the name of the petitioner was rightly struck off from the roll of
the company. In the aforesaid factual backdrop, the petitioner has approached
this Court,

5. Learned senior counsel for the petitioner submitted that the Industrial
Court ought to have appreciated that the termination of the services of the
petitioner amounts to retrenchment in the facts of the case. It is further submitted
that absence without leave is misconduct and, therefore, an enquiry ought to
have been held and the services of the petitioner could not have been terminated
on the ground of abandonment of the services. It is also submitted that automatic
termination of services of the petitioner under Standing Order without holding
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departmental enquiry is violative of principles of natural justice. In support of
his submissions, learned senior counsel has placed reliance on the decisions
in State Bank v. N.S. Money, AIR 1976 1111, Delhi Cloth and General
Mills Co. Ltd. v. Shambhu Nath, AIR 1978 SC 8, L. Robert D'Souza v.

Executive Engineer, Southern Rly., AIR 1982 SC 854, D.X. Yadavv. JM.A.

Industrial Ltd., AIR 1993 SC 259, Ail India Trade Union of Food
Corporation Employees and Workers and Another v. Food Corporation
of India and Others, 1994 MPLIJ 482, Uptron India Ltd. Shammi Bhan,

AIR 1998 SC 1681, Lakshmi Precision Screws Ltd. v. Ram
Bahagat,(2002) 6 SCC 552 and Krushnakant B. Parmar v. Union of India,

(2012) 3 SCC 178. It is further submitted that the Industrial court grossly
erred in holding that in the absence of an application for condonation of delay,
the delay in filing the application under Section 31 of the Act could not have
been condoned. It is further submitted that there was only a delay of five
months and the Labour court had power to condone the delay by taking into
account the material on record even without an application for condonation
of delay was filed. In support of the aforesaid proposition, learned senior
counsel has placed reliance on the the decisions in 2004 (103) FLR 32 and
State of Haryana v. Chandramani, AIR 1996 SC 1623 and Joy Xavier v.

Madmaloats, 2000 (1) Current Labour Reports 451. It is also submitted
that the petitioner in the facts of the case is entitled to backwages. In this
regard reference has been made to the decisions in UP, StateBrasware v,
Udai Narayan, (2006) SCC (L&S) 250. -

6. On the other hand, learned counsel for the company submitted that
the petitioner was given notice to join the duty but despite notice the petitioner
neither explained his unauthorized absence nor joined the duty therefore, as
per standing order applicable to the company, the services of the petitioner
were terminated. It is further submitted that no enquiry was reuired to be held
in the facts of the case and the order of termination of employment does not
amount to retrenchment as the action against the petitioner has been taken as

“per standing order. It is further submitted that in any case, the Company cannot

be saddled with the liability to pay backwages. In support of his submissions,
learned counsel for the Company has placed reliance on the decisions in
Syndicate Bank v. General Secretary, Syndicate Bank Staff Association,
2000 SC (L&S) 601, Punjab & Sindh Bank v. Saktar Singh, 2001 (88)
FLR 383, Viveka Nand Sethi v. Chairman, J & K Bank Ltd, 2005 SCC
(L&S) 689, Mohd. Sagir (supra), '
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7. I have considered the respective submissions made by learned counsel
for the parties. In Synidcate Bank (supra) the Supreme Court was dealing
with clause 16 of the bipartite agreement which provided that if a workman
remains absent from the work for a period of ninety days or more consecutive

_days thereafter the Company shall serve a notice calling upon him to report on
duty within thirty days of the notice. If the employee on receipt of aforesaid
notice, fails to explain his absence or to join the duty, the employee shall be
deemed to have voluntarily retired from the services of the bank. It was held
that principles of natural justice are inbuilt in clause 16 of the bipartite settlement
and since the employee neither explained his unauthorized absence nor reported
on the duty, therefore, the bank rightly came to the conclusion that the employee
voluntarily retired from the services of the bank and, therefore, no enquiry
was necessary to be held. Similar view was taken in Punjab and Sindh Bank
(supra). In Viveka Nand Sethi (supra), the Supreme Court while considering
the scope and ambit of clause 2 of the bipartite settlement, held that itis a
complete code by itself and lays down a complete machinery as to how and in
what manner employer can arrive at satisfaction that the workman has no
intention to join the duty . Clause 2 of the bipartite agreement raises a legal
fiction. Once the action on the part of the employer is found to be fair, no
interference in the matter is called for.

8. Before proceeding further it is appropriate to notice clause 42 (10) of
the Standing Order which reads as under:

"42 (10) An employee who remains absent from duty without
leave, or permission or in excess of the period of leave originally
sanctioned or subsequent extended, shall be liable to disciplinary
action unless he is able to explain his absence in a manner
satisfactory to the sanctioning authority. Where the period of
such absence exceeds 30 days, the employee shall be presumed
to have left the service of the company of his own accord
without notice and shall be liable to deduction of wages for the
notice period. In case of overstayal of leave without competent
sanction and authority, the period of such overstayal should
be treated as leave on half pay to the extent such leave is due
and as extraordinary leave i.e. leave without pay to the extent
of the period of half pay leave is not due or falls short of the
period of overstayal. The employee will not be entitled to leave
salary during such overstayal of leave nor covered by an

~
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extenson of leave by the competent anthority. In other words,
though the period will be debited to the half pay leave account
of the employee (if he is due leave, on half pay), no leave
salary will be paid for the full period of overstayal of leave."

9. The aforesaid clause is clear and unambiguous. The first part of the
clause provides that an employee who remains unauthorisedly absent from
the duty without leave or overstays the leave, shall be liable to disciplinary
action unless he is able to explain his absence in a manner satisfactory to the
sanctioning authority. Where the period of such absence exceeds thirty days,
the employee shall be presumed to have left the service of the company on his
own accord without notice. Thus, the presumption with regard to abandonment
of services arises only after a period of thirty days. This Court is conscious of
the fact that the language employed in clause 2 as well as clause 16 of the
bipartite agreement with which the Supreme Court was dealing in Viveka
Nand Sethi (supra) and Syndicate Bank (supra) and in clause 42 (10) of the

Standing order, are different.

10.  Now, I may advert to the case at hand, Admittedly, the petitioner-was
employed in the company on 9.6.1977 as medical attendant grade-1I on
probation for a period of six months. The period of probation was extended
for a period of three months each twice. By letter dated 6.12.1977, the
petitioner was warned with regard to his unauthorized absence. The petitioner
absented himself from the duty with effect from 15.4.1978 without leave.
Thereupon, the notice dated 4th May, 1978 was sent by registered post by
the Company to the petitionier by which the petitioner was informed that he is
unauthorizedly absent from the duty w.e.f. 15.4.1978 and in case he remains
absent for a period more than thirty days the presumption shall arise under
clause 42 (10) of the Standing Order that he has abandohed the services. The
petitioner was further advised that he should join his duty within three days
failing which his services shall be terminated. However, despite the receipt of
‘the aforesaid notice, the petitioner neither joined the duty nor submitted any

. explanation for his unauthorized absence. Thereafter, the then Labour Welfare

Supervisor was deputed to visit the petitioner who met the petitioner on
30.5.1978 at his residence and persuaded him to join the duty. However, the
petitioner did not resume the duty. Thereafter the presumption was drawn by
the Company under clause 42 (10) of the Standing Order that the petitioner
has voluntarily abandoned his services. Accordingly, the name of the petitioner

.was struck off from the roll of the company w.e.f. 15.4.1978. The intimation
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was sent to the petitioner vide letter dated 4.6.1978 by registered post.
However, the petitioner refused to accept the aforesaid letter. The petitioner
thereafter approached the company only on21.9.1978 i.e. after a period of
three months with a request to supply copy of the order dated 4.6.1978 which
was supplied to him on the same day. Thus, in the facts of the case, the
principles of natural justice were complied with and the action of the employer
in dispensing with the services of the petitioner is found to be fair which does
not call for any interference. ’

.11, For yet another reason, no relief can be granted to the petitioner.
Section 2 (00) (bb) of the 1947 Act provides that if the services of a workman
are terminated as a result of non-renewal of contract of employment or such a
contract is terminated under stipulation on that behalf contained therein, the
same would not amount to retrenchment. The services of the petitioner have
been terminated in accordance with the stipulation contained in the Standing
Order which admittedly applies to him. Therefore, the same does not amount
to retrenchment.

12.  Inview of the preceding analysis, the order passed by the Industrial
Court neither suffers from any error apparent on the face of the record nor
any jurisdictional infirmity warranting interference by this Court in exercise of
power under Article 227 of the Constitution of India. In the result, the writ
petition fails and is hereby dismissed.

Petition dismissed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 820
. WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Alok Aradhe
W.P. No. 2345/2012 (Jabalpur) decided on 13 February, 2013

K.K. SINGH CHOUHAN ... Petitioner
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

A, Municipal Corporation Act, M.P. (23 of 1956), Sections 52,
53, 420 & Municipal Corporation (Appointment and conditions of Service.
of Officers and servants) Rules, M.P. 2000, Rule 13(2) & Civil Services
(Classification, Control and Appeal) Rules, M.F. 1966, Rule 9 - Petitioner
Additional Commissioner, Municipal Corporation, Bhopal was suspended
" by the Municipal Commissioner in terms of the directions of the State
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Government - Commissioner has failed to exercise the discretion vested -
in him u/r 9 and has exercised the same at the dictates of the Appellate
Authority - Order of suspension quashed. (Paras 8,9 & 11)

. TIRGIe® frrT g, 7.0 (1956 @7 23), grery’ 52, 53,
420 7 TIEUHferE [T (EfreiRal 7 TRyl B g va dar ad)
fam a.u. zo00, 07 13(2) 7 RifSer dar (affavo, s oa arfie)
o 7.4, 1966, 9% 9 — AT AW Y, TRAMAS B, mara &t
TRANAS AT ERT T TR 3 PR #) wl ¢ sqar frafa
foar T — agE, fraw 9 @ oo s Pifte fReTReR <1 9@
B A Fawd TEr AN Al T $ e W 9w &1 wAT fear —
freias &1 amder afrefeq)

B. Administrative law - When the statute confers a
discretion on the authority to take action in the prescribed manner,
the authority has to exercise the discretion independently on its own -
If an Authority exercises the discretion vested in it by law under
dictation from or at the behest of the Superior Authority in a specific
manner, the same would tantamount to non-exercise of discretionary
power by the authority and such an action or decision cannot have any
sanctity in law. . (Para 8)

. yarafaw fafr — 94 &E, e B fiRw <v 9
FRfard) o3 &1 RAFRGR e[ var 2, a9 yIiter o RReRerR
BT 9T WAT WA T | ST AT & — ARy BIF wRten vt fafr
g1 i fReifter o1 gai, e e & sR9uR a1 9ua g
w fafdfde <7 4 foar o 2, 98 gt T fadsirer < oifsg
&1 g Y. 5 @Y sife & mmm‘}?marra‘mtﬁmﬁrﬂuaﬁﬁﬁ:
aﬁaﬁs‘mqﬁ‘rﬁml

Cases referred ;

AIR 1970 SC 1498, AIR 1994 SC 2296, (2010) 7 SCC 678, 2005(4)
MPLJ 524, AIR 1984 SC 626, AIR 1994 SC 1262, (1996) 2 SCC 145,
(1993) Suppl. 3 SCC 483, 2012 (1) MPLJ 479, (1995) 5 SCC 440, (1996)
6 SCC 634, (1989) 2 SCC 505, AIR 1995 SC 2390, (2008) 7 SCC 117,
(1997) 6 SCC 75, (1996) 4 SCC 708.

Shobha Menon with C.A. Thomas, for the petitioner:
V. Sharma, P.L. for the respondents No. 1 & 2.
Sanjay K. Agrawal, for the respondents No. 3 & 4.
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ORDER

. ALOK ARADHE, J.: In this writ petition the petitioner, inter alia, has

assailed the validity of the orders dated 10.9.2007 and 29.6.2011 passed by
the Commissioner, Municipal Corporation, Bhopal as well as by the State
Government respectively. The petitioner also seeks quashment of the charge-
sheet dated 18.10.2007.

2. Background facts leading to filing of the writ petition, brleﬂy stated,
are that the petitioner at the relevant time was posted as Additional
Commissioner in Municipal Corporation, Bhopal and was holding the charge
of building permission and illegal colony cell, On 05.4.2007 a search and
seizure operation was carried out by the Income Tax Department at the
residence of the petitioner. In the said operation a sum 0f Rs.4.82 lacs in cash

"+ was recovered forom the petitioner and evidence of investment in immovable

* properties and several bank accounts were found. The Income Tax Department
also reported that the petitioner was having relations with several builders
. from whom he received the amount. On receipt of aforesaid information from
" the Income Tax Department, the State Government vide order dated 10.9.2007
directed the-Commissioner, Municipal Corporation, Bhopal to forthwith
suspend the petitioner and institute departmental enquiry against him. The
- Commissioner, Municipal Corporation, Bhopal keeping in view the gravity of
~ accusations made against the petitioner, by order dated 10.9.2007 placed the
petitioner under suspension. The Commissioner reported the matter to the
appointing authority, namely, Mayor-in-Council, which in its meeting dated
12.9.2007 granted ex facto approval to order of suspension passed by the
Commnissioner. .

3. Being aggrieved by the order of suspension the petitioner preferred an -
appeal on 27.10.2007. Thereafter, the petitioner filed writ petition, namely,
W.P.No0.203/2008 which was disposed of by a Bench of this Court vide order
dated 10.1.2008 with a direction to the Appellate Authority to decide the
appeal. Thereafter, the petitioner submitted a representation dated 30.1.2008,
which failed to evoke any response. The petitioner, thereafter, again filed writ
petition, namely, W.P.No.134/2009 which was disposed of by order dated
20.4.2010 by a Bench of this Court with a direction to the Appellate Authority
to decide the appeal preferred by the petitioner within stipulated period. The
Appellate Authority by the impugned order dated 29.6.2011 remanded the
matter to the Municipal Corporation to reconsider the matter and to take
action in accordance with the instructions issued by the General Administration
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Department, Government of Madhya Pradesh from time to time. In the ‘
aforesaid factual backdrop the petitioner has approached this Court. )

4. Learned senior counsel for the petitioner submitted that the Disciplinary
Authority of the petitioner is Mayor-in-Council which is the competent
authority to place the petitioner under suspension, however, thé order of
suspension was passed by the incompetent authority, namely, Commissioner,
Municipal Corporation at the dictates of the State Government. It is further
submitted that the order of suspension suffers from vice of non-application of
mind and has been passed in casual and routine manner. It is also urged that
ratification of the order which is per seillegal cannot be done and there is.no
material on record to show compliance of provisions of Sections 52 & 53 of
the Municipal Corporation Act, 1956 (hereinafter referred to as the 'Act")
and Rule 3(2)(ii) of M.P. Civil Service (Conduct) Rules, 1965 (for short
'Conduct Rules'). Lastly, it is submitted that the charge-sheet has been issued
by the incompetent authority, namely, Commissioner, therefore, the same is
liable to be quashed and for past about five years no proceeding in the
departmental enquiry initiated against the petitioner has been taken. In support
of her submissions, learned senior counsel has placed reliance on the decisions
in the cases of V. P. Gindroniya vs. State of Madhya Pra desh and another, .
AlIR 1970 SC 1498, AIR 1994 SC 2296, (2010) 7 SCC 678 and Suresh

Kumar Purohit vs. State of M.P. and another, 2005 (4) MPLJ 524.

S. On the other hand, learned Panel Lawyer for the respondents No. 1
& 2 submitted that the State Government has remanded the matter to-the .
Municipal Corporation to reconsider the matter relating to suspension of the
petitioner. Learned counsel for the respondents No.3 & 4 while inviting the
attention of this Court to second proviso to Rule 9 of M.P. Civil Services
(Classification, Control & Appeal) Rules, 1966 (for brevity 'CCA Rules") -
submitted that the order of suspension can be passed an authority lower than
the appointing authority and such authority is required to forthwith report to
the appointing authority the circumstancés in which the order of suspension
was passed. It is submitted that the Commissioner passed the order of
suspension and placed the matter for consideration before the appointing
authority i.e. Mayor-in-Council which accorded ex facte approval on
12.9.2007. It was further submitted that though the State Government has
passed an order dated 10.9.2007 directing the Commissioner, Municipal
Corporation, Bhopal to place the petitioner under suspension, yet the order
of suspension does not reflect that the same was issued at the instance of the -
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State Government. The Commissioner taking into account the nature of
accusations and the material which was available against the petitioner and on

due consideration has passed the order of suspension. It is further submitted

that under section 420 of the Act, if in the opinion of the State Government

any officer or servant of the Corporation is negligent in the discharge of his

duties, the Corporation shall on the requirement of the Government, suspend,

fine or otherwise punish him. It is also submitted that the charges contained in

the charge-sheet have nothing to do with the proceeding which is pending

against the petitioner under the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988 and the

charge-sheet has been issued by the Commissioner who is the competent

authority being the Controlling Authority of the petitioner. In this connection,

learned counsel for respondents No.3 & 4 has referred to section 25(1)(a)

and Section 55 of the Act. In support of his submission, learned counsel has

placed reliance on the decisions in Corporation of the City of Nagpur Civil

Lines, Nagpur and another vs. Ramchandra G. Modak and others, AIR
1984 SC 626, State of Haryana vs. Hari Ram Yadav and .others, AIR
1994 SC 1262, Inspector General of Police and another vs. Thavasiappan,

(1996) 2 SCC 145, U. P.Rajya Krishi Utpadan Mandi Parishad and others

Vs. Sanjiv Rajan, (1993) Suppl. 3 SCC 483 and N.K.Pandey vs. State of
M.P. and others, 2012 (1) MPLJ 479.

6. I have considered the respective submissions made by learned counsel
for the parties. Before proceeding further it is appropriate to notice relevant
statutory provisions. Admittedly, the services conditions of the petitioner are
governed by Madhya Pradesh Municipal Corporation (Appointment and
Conditions of Services of Officers and Servants), Rules, 2000 (hereinafter
referred to as the 2000 Rules'). In view of Rule 13(2) of 2000 the provisions of
1966 Rules as well as provisions of CCA Rules apply to the officers and servants
of the Corporation. Under Rule 9(1) of the CCA Rules it is provided that the
appointing authority or any authority to which it is subordinate or disciplinary
authority or any other authority empowered in that behalf by the Governor by
general or special order may place a Government servant under suspension
where a disciplinary proceeding against him is contemplated or is pending or
any criminal offence is under investigation, inquiry of trial. Second proviso of
" Rule 9 stipulates that where the order of suspension is made by the authority
_ lower than the appointing authority, such authority shall forthwith report to the
appointing authority the circumstances in which the order was made.

7. Section 53 of the Act provides the manner in which the proceedings



LL.R.[2013]M.P. K.K. Singh Chouhan Vs. State of MP. 825

of the Corporation, Mayor-in-Council or any committee shall be recorded.
Section 420 thereof provides notwithstanding anything contained in this Act,
if in the opinion of the Government any officer or servant of the Corporation
is negligent in the discharge of his duties, the Corporation shall, on the
requirement of the Government, suspend, fine or otherwise punish him, and if
in the opinion of the Government he is unfit for this employment, the
Corporation shall dismiss him.

8. It is well settled legal principle that when a statute prescribes a mode
of doing an act in a particular manner, that act has to be done in that manner
alone and other modes of its performance are forbidden. [Sce: Bhagwant
Rai and others vs. State of Punjab and others, (1995) 5 5CC 440 and
L.T.C.Bhadrachalam Paper Boards and another vs. Mandal Revenue
Officer, A.P. and others, (1996) 6 SCC 634]. It is equally well settled rule
of Administrative Law that when the statute confers a discretion on the authority
to take action in the prescribed manner, the authority has to exercise.the

~ discretion independently on its own. If an authority exercises the discretion

vested in it by law under dictation from or at the behest of the Superior Authority
in a specific manner, the same would tantamount to non-exercise of
discretionary power by the authority and such an action or decision cannot
have any sanctity in law. In State of U.F. vs. Maharaj Dharmendra Prasad
Singh (1989) 2 SCC 505, the Supreme Court has held that Statutory Authority
cannot permit its discretion to be influenced by the dictation of others as the -
same would amount to abdication and surrender of its discretion. Similarly, in
Anirudhsinghji Karansingji Jadeja vs. State of Gujarat, AIR 1995 SC
2390, Supreme Court has held that discretion exercised under the dictates or
instructions of a Higher Authority amounts to failure to exercise the discretion
altogether. In-Panchmchand vs. State of Himachal Pradesh, (2008) 7 SCC
117, the Supreme Court has held that an authority has to act within the four
corners of the Act and not under on the dictates of a Superior Authority.

9. ' After having noticed relevant statutory provisions and the well settled
legal principles of law, I may advert to the facts of the case. Admittedly, the
_Disciplinary Authority' of the netitioner is Mayor-in-Council and against the
order of suspension, admittedly, an appeal lies under Rule 23 of 1966 Rules
to the State Government. In the instants case, the State Government by by
order dated 10.9.2007 directed the Commissioner, Municipal Corporation,
Bhopatl to forthwith suspend the petitioner and to institute a departmental
enquiry. Thereupon the Commissioner on the same day suspended the
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petitioner. If the order (Annexure-P-1) is read in its entirety it leaves no iota
of doubt that same has been passed at the behest of the appellate authority
i.e. the State Government. Thus, in the facts of the case the Commissioner has
failed to exercise the discretion vested in him under Rule 9 of 1966 Rules and
has exercised the same at the dictates of the appellate authority, therefore, the
order cannot have any sanctity in law. So far as the contention made by learned
counsel for respondents No.3 & 4 that the State Government has the power
‘under section 420 of the Act to direct suspension of an employee is concerned,
suffice it to say, the order dated 10.9.2007 has been passed by the
Commissioner and not by the State Government. Therefore, apparently, the
order of suspension has not been passed by the State Government in exercise
of powers under section 420 of the Act.

10.  Section 55 of the Act provides that Commissioner shall be the principal
executive officer of the Corporation and all other officers and servants of the
Corporation except the servants and officers of the Corporation office shall
be subordinate to him. Thus, in view of section 55 of the Act the Commissioner
is the Controlling Authority of the petitioner. In (1997) 6 SCC 75 and (1996)
. 48CC 708 it has been held by the Supreme Court that the Controlling Authority
can also initiate the disciplinary proceedings. In the instant case, the charge-
sheet has been issued by the Controlling Authority, namely, the Commissioner,
who is competent to issue the charge-sheet. Therefore, the charge-sheet issued
to the petitioner cannot be quashed on the ground that it has not been issued
by the competent authority. However, in view of the statement made by learned
counsel for the respondents No.3 & 4 that the charges contained in the charge-
sheet do not have any relation with the proceedings pending against-the
petitioner under the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988 as the same relates
to the misconduct under the provisions of Conduct Rules and in view of the
fact that Corporation has expressed its willingness to expeditiously conclude
the departmental enquiry which is pending against the petitioner for past about
5 years, in the facts of the case the proceeding in the departmental enquiry
needs to be expedited.

11.  Inthe preceding analysis the order of suspension dated 10.9.2007
(Annexure-P-1) and the order passed by the State Government dated 9.6.2011
are hereby quashed. Needless to state, the competent authority would be at
liberty to take appropriate action in accordance with the law to place the
petitioner under suspension. The competent authority is further directed to
ensure that the disciplinary proceeding initiated against the petitioner shall be *
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concluded expeditiously preferably within a period of six months from the
date of production of certified copy of the order passed today. Needless to
state, the petitioner shall cooperate with the proceeding in departmental
enquiry and shall not seek unnecessary adjourniments.

12.  Accordingly, the writ petition is disposed of.
' ' Petition disposed of.
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ORDER

Susoy Paur, J.: By filing this petition under Article 226 of the
Constitution, the petitioner, Vice Chancellor of J iwaji University, Gwalior, has
challenged the order dated 15.10.2005, whereby by invoking Section 13(1)
of M.P. Vishwavidyalaya Adhiniyam, 1973 (for short “the Adhiniyam”). The
Chancellor has directed him to relinquish the post of Vice Chancellor with
immediate effect. Brief facts necessary for adjudication are as under:-

(1) The petitioner was appointed as Vice Chancellor of the said University
by order dated 02.01.2002 for a period of four years. He was served with a
show cause notice (Annexure P-2) dated 30th August, 2005. The petitioner
submitted his reply (Annexure P-8) dated 18.09.2005. In this reply, the
petitioner prayed for following relief:-

“24. The noticee reiterates that-

(1) The noticee hereby\denies all the charges against
the noticee as being false and without any basis and prays that
the inquiry be dropped immediately.

(if) In case, the Hon'ble Chancellor decides to proceed
with the inquiry then all the evidence on which the Hon'ble
Chancellor relies shall be examined in the presence of noticee
and the noticee or his counsel shall be permitted to cross-
examine the witnesses and thereafter

(iii) the noticee shall be permitted to examine himself

and to examine his defence witnesses. Thereafter,

(iv) apersonal hearing should be given to noticee and
then the matter be dropped.

Itis, therefore, humbly prayed that this reply may kindly
be accepted and all further proceedings with regard to the
said cause notice may kindly be dropped at this stage only.”

(2)  The said reply was followed by a supplementary reply to the said
show cause notice. This supplementary reply is dated 26th September, 2005
(Annexure P-9). The petitioner prayed that in the show cause notice, there
are reference of certain complaints on the strength of which show cause notice
was issued. The petitioner prayed that the copies of complaints be provided

L]
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to him with a view to provide him a reasonable opportunity to show cause. It
is prayed that the complaints be provided to the petitioner immediately and,
thereafter, he be given a reasonable opportunity to show cause and till such
time, the aforesaid documents are provided, the reply be treated as a tentative
reply. It is further stated that an investigation must have been done on the
complaints preferred against him. The said investigation report be also provided
to him at the earliest and, thereafter, a reasonable time be provided to him to
put forth his defence. Yet another request dated 04.10.2005 (Annexure P-10)
was made to the Chancellor requesting him to provide the copy of complaint
referred in the opening paragraph of the show cause notice. It is again prayed
that the investigation report be also provided to him so that he can file an
effective reply to the show cause. It prayed that in absence of these documents,
the reasonable opportunity is denied to him. In para 5 of this reply, the
petitioner again stated as under:- o .

“(v) It may kindly be appreciated that unless the
Hon'ble Chancellor examines the evidence, on which he relied,
in my presence and permits me to cross-examine the witnesses,
it will not be possible for me to examine my evidence in
rebuttal.

In the aforesaid circumstances, I very humbly pray that
I may even now be supplied with the copies of the complaints
and investigation report and the evidence of which the Hon'ble
" Chancellor relies be examined in my presence and I be
permitted to cross-examine them and thereafter I be permitted
to examine myself and my defence evidence. It may kindly be
appreciated that unless thic is done, the stage of personal
hearing would not arise. It is in this context that my humble
submission before the Hon'ble Chancellor is that the aforesaid
necessary procedure may kindly be followed and thereatter
my personal hearing be made.”

(3)  Thisis not in dispute between the parties that the provisions of the
Adhiniyam will govern the field. Shri K.N. Gupta, learned senior counsel has
advanced two fold submissions:-

‘ (i) The documents referred in the show cause notice
and investigation report are not provided to the petitioner and
in absence thereof the reasonable opportunity of defence is
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denied to the petitioner.

(ii) No oral evidence was led by the department to
prove its case. The petitioner's valuable right to lead evidence
and to establish that he is innocent is also infringed and taken
away.

He also relied on the judgment of the Supreme Court in SLP (c)24314
of 2008 (Professor A.D.N. Bajpai Vs. State of Madhya Pradesh and
others). By relying on Section 14(3)(4) of the Adhiniyam it is stated that the
reasonable opportunity of show cause has not been given to him.

(4)  PerContra, Shri Nitin Agrawal, learned counsel for the respondent
No. 2 submits that the relevant material was provided to the petitioner. Petitioner
has not shown any prejudice being caused to him because of non-supply of
the documents demanded by him. He relied on following judgments;:-

© (1987) supp SCC 518 [Chandrama Tewari Vs.
Union of India (Through General Manager, Eastern
Railways)]

(i) (1996) 5 SCC 474 [State of TN. Vs. Thiru K.V,
Perumal and others] '

(iii) (2001) 6 SCC 392 [State of U.P. Vs. Harendra
Arora and another]

) (2002) 3 SCC 443 [State of U.P. and others Vs.
Ramesh Chandra Mangalik].

Further reliance is placed on the judgment of this Court rendered in
Shri Kishan Mittal Vs. Uco Bank and others [2003 ILLJ 156 MP]. On the
strength of these authorities, it is stated that mere non-supply of documents
will not render the proceedings as invalid. One has to show that such non-
supply has caused prejudice. Shri Agrawal submits that this aspect has not
been dealt with by the Supreme Court in the case of Professor A.D.N. Bajpai
(supra) and, therefore, the said judgment cannot be pressed into service by
the petitioner. On the contrary, the consistent stand of learned senior counsel
of the petitioner, is that the petitioner reserved his right to file detailed reply
after receiving the documents. Unless those documents are supplied to him,
he was unable to file detailed reply on merits. The replies by the petitioner
were tentative reply. It is further argued that non-supply of documents has an



a

[LL.R. [2013]M P. Satya Prakash (Prof.) Vs. Jiwaji Univ. Gwalior 831

adverse impact on the petitioner and grave prejudice is caused to petitioner.
Petitioner was deprived from filing an effective and adequate reply in absence
of those documents. It is further stated that in the proceedings, no evidence is
recorded by respondent No. 2 nor the petitioner was afforded with an
opportunity to lead evidence. '

(5)  Shri Tapan Trivedi, learned counsel appearing for the respondent No.
1, has stated that the petition is mainly directed against the order of respondent
No. 2 and he is a formal party. Noother point is pressed by the learned counsel ‘
for the parties.

(6)  Ihaveheard the learned counsel for the parties and perusedthe record.

(7)  Before proceeding further, it is apt to quote the relevant portion of
Section 14 of the Adhiniyam:-

“14, (1) xxx XXX XXX
{2) xxX XXX XXX
(2-A) XXX XXX XXX

(3) If at any time upon representatlon made or
otherwise and after making such enquiries as may be deemed
necessary, it appears to the Kuladhipati that the Kulapati:

§)) has made default in performing any duty
imposed on him by or under thlS Act;or

- (i)  hasacted inamanner prejudicial to the interests
of the University; or

(i) is incapable of managing the affairs of the
University the Kuladhipati may, notwithstanding the fact that
the terms of office of the Kulpati has not expired, by an order
in writing stating the reason therein, require the Kulpati to
relinquish his office as from such date as may be specified in
the order.

(4)  No order under sub-section (3) shall be passed
unless the particulars of the grounds on which such action is
proposed to be taken are communicated to the Kulpati and
he is proposed to be taken are communicated to the Kulpati
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and he is given a reasonable opportunity of showing cause
against the proposed order.

(5) XXX XXX XXX
(6) xxx xxx xxXx”

The aforesaid provision and the Adhiniyam nowhere prescribes the
meaning of “reasonable opportunity of showing cause”. This aspect was dealt
with by the Apex Court in Para 10 of Professor 4.D.N. Bajpai (supra). The
said para reads as under:-

“The expression 'reasonable opportunity of hearing' has
not been defined in the Act. Therefore, the same has to be
interpreted keeping in view the fact that an order made under
Section 14(3) of the Act has grave adverse impact not only on
the image, reputation and integrity of the person holding the
high office of the Vice- Chancellor, but also the institution of
which he is the academic and administrative head, and in
consonance with the expansive meaning given by the courts to
the rule of audi alteram partem. The rules of natural justice in
the context of Section 14(3) and (4) of the Act would mean
that the Vice-Chancellor is made aware of the specific
allegations on which an inquiry is proposed to be made and he
is also informed about the material/evidence sought to be used
against him at such inguiry and is given an opportunity to
controvert/rebut 'such material/evidence, The Vice-
Chancellor can also _ask for an opportunity to lead
evidence {o prove that the allegations levelled against
him are false and baseless and that he is innocent. The
Chancellor is required to evolve an appropriate mechanism by
which the Vice-Chancellor gets an effective opportunity to
challenge the grounds enumerated in the show cause notice.
After receiving reply of the Vice Chancellor, the Chancellor
has to consider the entire record of inquiry as well as the
defence put forward by the Vice Chancellor and then pass a
speaking order.”

(8)  TheApex Court has taken note of judgment of the Supreme Court in
the case of State of Orissa V. Binapani Dei [1967 (2) SCR 625], the relevant
portion of the said judgment reads as under:-
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i) § D He is however under a duty to give the person
against whom an enquiry is held an opportunity to set up his
version or defence and an opportunity or to controvert any
evidence in the possession of the authority which is sought to
be relied upon to his prejudice. For that purpose the person

s ' against whom in enquiry is held muist be informed of the case
he is called upon to meet, and the evidence in support thereof.
The rule that a party to whose prejudice an order is intended
to be passed is entitled to a hearing applies alike to judicial
tribunals and bodies of persons invested with authority to
adjudicate upon matters involving civil consequences. It is one
of the fundamental rules of our constitutional set-up that every
citizen is protected against exercise of arbitrary authority by
the State or its officers. Duty to act judicially would therefore
arise from the very nature of the function intended to be
performed; it need not be shown to be super-added. If there
is power to decide and determine to the prejudice ofa person,
duty to act judicially is implicit in the exercise of such power.
If the essentials of justice be ignored and an order to the
prejudice of @ person is made. the order is a nullity. Thatisa’

basic concept of the rule of law and importance thereof
transcends the significance of a decision in any particular case.”

(9) - The Apex Court also relied on the judgment of the Supreme Court in
the case of Sayeedur Rehman V. State of Bihar reported in (1973) 3 SCC

. 333, the relevant portion of the same reads as under:-
“12........ we are, however, clear that if the order, dated April
« 22. 1960, is to be reconsidered then the appellant must be .

afforded adequate opportunity of hearing and presenting his
case. This unwritten right of hearing is fundamental to a just
decision by any authority which decides a controversial issue.
affecting the rights of the rival contestants. This right has its
roots in the notion of fair procedure. It draws the attention of
the party concerned to the imperative necessity of not
overlooking the other side of the case before coming to its
decision, for nothing is more likely to conduce to just and right
decision than the practice of giving hearing to the affected
parties. The President of the Board of Secondary Education
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would be deciding a controversy affecting the rights of the
parties before him if and when he chooses to reconsider the
order, dated April 22, 1960, whatever be the source of his
power to do so — a point left open by us. He is required to
decide in the spirit and with a sense of responsibility of a tribunal
with a duty to mete out even-handed justice. The appellant
would thus be entitled to a fair chance of presenting his version
of facts and his submissions on law as his rights would be
directly affected by such proceeding. The omission of express
requirement of fair hearing in the rules or other source of power
claimed for reconsidering the order, dated April 22, 1960, is
supplied by the rule of justice which is considered as an integral
part of our judicial process which also governs quasi-judicial
authorities when deciding controversial points affecting rights
of parties.”

(10) By taking stock of the said judgments, the Apex Court opined in Para
13 that the documents forming part of the show cause notice were not provided
to the petitioner therein. It is held that without adverting to the grievance of
the petitioner regarding non-supply of copies of documents forming part of
the show cause notice and without recording a finding that the documents
were not relevant or were not being relied upon for taking action prejudicial
to him, the Chancellor passed the order which runs contrary to the rule of
audi alteram partem.

(11) It cannot be doubted that in the first page of show cause notice, the
respondent No. 2 has specifically referred about various complaints received
against the petitioner. On a bare perusal of the show cause notice shows that
the action against the petitioner was initiated on the basis of certain complaints.
However, admittedly, copies of complaints and the investigation report desired
by the petitioner were not supplied to him. The respondent No. 2 in his final
ordet (Annexure P-1) dealt with this aspect. In Para 22 of the impugned
order, the respondent No. 2 has referred about the request of the petitioner
for supply of the documents coupled with the request of leading evidence.
However, in this paragraph, the respondent No. 2 has partially dealt with the
request of the petitioner. It is stated that the petitioner had prayed for an
opportunity, whereby the witnesses of the other side be examined in their
presence and they be permitted to be cross-examined. However, there is no
whisper about the petitioner's request to lead his own evidence in this

L)
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paragraph. Thereafter, by placing reliance on Section 14(3)(4) of the
Adhiniyam, the respondent No. 2, opined that the show causenotice is replied
by the petitioner and a supplementary reply was also filed. He further opined
that providing the copies of complaints is not the legal requirement. The only
requirement is to inform the gist (faf¥ifea) of it. It is held that the said gist was
provided to the petitioner and all the relevant record was in possession of the
Vice Chancellor himself, therefore, it was not felt necessary to record evidence
of any witness. Hence, there was no question of any cross-examination of
any witness. In the light of rival contentions, the question is whether the
opportunity provided to the petitioner by respondent No. 2 amounts to a
“reasonable opportunity”. '

(12) The Apex Court had an occasion to consider Section 14(3)(4) of the
Adhiniyam in the case of Professor 4. D.N. Bajpai (supra). Professor A.D.N.
Bajpai was Vice Chancellor of Awadesh Pratap Singh Vishwavidyalaya, Rewa
and was directed to relinquish the charge before completion of his tenure.
The reproduced paragraph of the judgment of Professor 4. D.N. Bajpai (supra),
makes it crystal clear that the Apex Court has applied the principles of natural
justice and held it is necessary to inform the other side about the material/
evidence, which is sought to be used against him. The said material was held
to be relevant material/evidence. It is not in dispute that the entire action against
the petitioner is founded upon and initiated pursuant to certain complaints.
Considering the said backdrop, the petitioner prayed for supplying the said
documents/complaints to enable him to file an effective and adequate reply. It

- was denied on the ground that gist of it has been supplied to him. However, it

was not the stand of respondent No. 2 that those documents/complaints were
not relevant. This is settled principle that justice is not only to be done but it
should appear to be done. The petitioner also prayed for an opportunity to

. lead his own evidence after recording of the evidence of the other side.

However, this request of the petitioner was at all considered.

(13) No doubt, mere non-supply of documents will not vitiate the
proceedings. The ratio of the judgments cited by Shri Agrawal is on the same

-aspect, i.e., one has to show the prejudice in cases of non-supply of documents.

However, ] am unable to accept the contention of Shri Agrawal that judgment
in Professor A. D.N. Bajpai’s case cannot be pressed into service. In Professor
A.D.N. Bajpai's case, the same provision of the Adhiniyam was considered
and interpreted by the Supreme Court. Thus, the said judgment is a binding
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- precedent and the ratio decidendi of the said judgment is also applicable in
the present case.

(14)  Atthecost of repetition, it can be referred that in Professor 4. D.N.
Bajpai (supra), the Apex Court held that non-supply of the relevant documents
and not providing opportunity to lead evidence amounts to denial of reasonable
opportunity. In view of stand of the petitioner in his reply, it is clear that the
petitioner reserved his right tofile a detailed reply after perusing the complaints
and other relevant documents. He also reserved his right to lead evidence and
cross-examine the witnesses of the other side. If the relevant material is not
provided to him, prejudice is certainly caused to him because it deprived him
to put forth his defence in effective and adequate manner.

(15)  Thus, in tlie opinion of this Court, prejudice is certainly caused to the
petitioner because the complaints aforesaid were not provided to him. The
petitioner is further prejudiced when no evidence was led by the other side
nor he was permitted to lead any evidence. The impugned order (Annexure P-1)
does not deal with the prayer of the petitioner to lead his own evidence in
rebuttal. The respondent No. 2 only opined that since petitioner was afforded
‘with an opportunity to show cause and in turn, he submitted his reply, the
requirement to “provide reasonable opportunity” is satisfied. It is opined on
the strength of the finding that the relevant documents were also in possession
of the University and the finding are based on documentary evidence. However,
admittedly, the complaints were not provided to the petitioner by stating that
it is not a legal requirement. When the Adhiniyam does not define what is
“reasonable opportunity”, it has to be seen as per the principles of natural
justice whether the documents demanded by the petitioner are relevant
documents and whether non-supply of these documents caused any prejudice.
Petitioner has established the relevance of the documents by referring to the
show cause notice itself where those documents are specificaily referred and
relied upon for the purpose of taking action against the petitioner. In the
impugned order also it is not the stand of the respondent No. 2 that those
complaints were not relevant documents. The stand of respondent No. 2 is
that it is not a legal requirement to provide those documents.

(16) Inmy opinion, this finding runs contrary to the principles of natural
justice and law laid down by the Apex Court in Professor 4.D.N. Bajpai's
case. Since the entire action was founded upon certain complaints, in all
fairness, the respondents should have provided copies of those documents to
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the petitioner. The petitioner's valuable right to lead evidence is also taken
away by the respondent No. 2 which was held to be a right flowing from
Section 14(4) of the Act by the Supreme Court in Para 10 of the judgment in
Professor A.D.N. Bajpai (supra). Thus, in my opinion, decision making
process is vitiated. : '

(17)  Onthe basis of aforesaid analysis, the petition deserves to be allowed.
Accordingly, the impugned order Annexure P-1 dated 15.10.2005 is set aside.
The parties shall bear their own costs.

Petition allowed.
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W.P. No. 867/2013 (Gwalior) decided on 21 February, 2013

CENTRAL HOMEOPATHIC & BIOCHEMIC

ASSOCIATION, GWALIOR & ors. ...Petitioners
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

A Natural Justice - Whether impugned order is outcome
of a quasi judicial act or an administrative act - In both the situations
the principle must be complied with. - (Para22)

. FgfiF =y — Far angfua e fooxfy st srfardY
®1 giRormg € arerar fed) wemaite sRfEE &1 — 39 Reft 7 Rgra
&1 AuTa foear ST =nfeg )

B. Society Registrikaran Adhiniyam, M.P. (44 of 1973} -
Section 32 - Enquiry and settlement of disputes - Natural Justice -
The principles of natural justice are implicit and are required to be
read into section 32(4) of the Adhiniyam - In cases, whether after
supplying the result of the enquiry, the Registrar receives the response
of the society and if he intends to pass any order which affects the
right of the society in any manner or which may entail civil
consequences, the Registrar is bound to follow the principles of natural
justice and fair play in action. : (Para 24)

A wharaet oreiavor IfEfaan, 70 (1973 &1 44) — &1 32 —
w17 §9 fawrel &7 fgery — Fuffe =m - Fufte = 1 figra afsT -
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2 U9 aftrre Y arr 32 (4) @ 9§ uer oer andfda 8 — ueRun #,
g 3 9o 9t URE o @ U afe PRgR, A @ gikifsa
UTed BT 8 FHIN TG 9% BT AR Gikd ST gredr & e fed we
aaEd § after gaifyg 8 & a1 sRverasy Sarllarg sw=t ghar 2,
Mo Sfag srdard) v Fufifs =g @ fugia o1 uem o &g 9y 2

-G Constitution - Article 226 - Alternative Remedy -
Exhaustion of alternative remedy is not a rule of law but is a rule of

policy, convenience and discretion - It is not a compulsion but discretion.
(Para 25)

/A GIEerT — qge87 226 — IFfeq® BUTIR — ABo4F ITAR
&1 9w foar s, faftr &1 frem ) e fa, gftar o fRefer
@1 Fram @ — a7 afEdar i e fderfer 2

" Cases referred :

2003(2) MPLJ 377, AIR 2004 SC 1280, 2006(4) MPLJ 403, (2001)
8 SCC 509, 1964 AC 40, (1978) 1 SCC 248, 1969 MPLJ 516, AIR 1970
SC 150, (1978) 1 SCC 405, (1981) 1 SCC 664, (1980) 4 SCC 379, (1994)
4 SCC 328, (2010) 9 SCC 496, AIR 1958 SC 86, (1998) 8 SCC 1.

Harish Dixit, for the petitioners. -

Praveen Newaskar, Dy. G.A. for the respondents No. 1 to 3.
D.P. Singh, for the respondent No.4.

Deepak Khot, for the respondent No.5.

ORDER

Suioy PauL, J.: This is second visit of the petitioners to this Court.
Petitioner No.1 is aregistered society under the provisions of Madhya Pradesh
Society Registrikaran Adhiniyam, 1973 (in short the Adhiniyam). The
registration certificate of petitioner No.1 is filed as Annexure P/2. It is tated
that earlier election of the society took place on 31.7.2011 and the next elections
are due on completion of three years from the said date as per the bye-laws.
The petitioner No.1 was served with a show- cause notice by respondent
No.2 dated 30.6.2012 (Annexure P/13). The petitioner No.1 submitted its
reply to the same but the said authority issued communication Annexure P/25
and stated that petitioner No.1 did not file its reply. At this stage, petitioner
No.1 filed W.P.N0.6995/12 before this Court. This Court disposed of the
said petition on 27.9.2012. On perusal of the material, it was found by this
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Court that petitioner No.1's reply was very much received by the Assistant
Registrar, and therefore, his finding that reply has not been received runs
contrary to the record. On the basis of aforesaid, it was found that there is
violation of principles of natural justice and the making process was not proper.
Consequently the order, Annexure P/1 therein, was set aside and direction
was issued to the parties to appear before the said authority on an appointed
date and the Assistant Registrar was directed to procaed further in accordance
with law.

2. Shri Harish Dixit, learned counsel for the petitioners, submits that after -
the order of this Court dated 27.9.2012 although certain dates of hearing
were fixed by the Assistant Registrar, but he ultimately passed the order
Annexure P/1 dated 24.1.2013 wherein there is no consideration of the reply
submitted by petitioner No.1. This communication (Annexure P/1) is called in .
question on following counts:

@ The petitioner No.1's reply has not been considered and
dealt with and in absence thereof, the impugned order is vitiated.

(i) . intheenquiryreport, certain allegations were found
proved against the petitioner/society. In the impugned
communication, Annexure P/1, Assistant Registrar has opined
in addition to the said finding of the enquiry officer and travelled
- beyond the finding of the enquiry officer for which no
opportunity of hearing was provided to petitioner No.1.

(i)  Asperheading of Section 32 of the Adhiniyam, enquiry
can be conducted only when the ingredients of Section 32(2)
are satisfied i.e. the application is preferred by more than 1/3rd
members or by majority of members of the governing body
and such application is supported by an affidavit. It is stated
that the heading of Section 32 of the Adhiniyam makes it clear
that it deals with 'enquiry and settlement’.

(iv)  Theprinciples of natural justice and fair play in action
are grossly violated in issuing Annexure P/1. There is no
consideration of the defence of petitioner No.] and direction
so issued by Annexure P/1 causes prejudice to the petitioner/
society because there is a direction to conduct election much
before completion of normal tenure of the society.
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(v)  As per the bye-laws (clause 3 (ii)), there is no
requirement for homeopathy practitioner to get his name
registered, and therefore, the Assistant Registrar has erred in
law in relying on M.P. Gazette (extraordinary) dated 14th May,
2009 which deals with requirement of renewal of membership.
In other words, Shri Dixit submits that bye-laws which were
made in the year.1 953 makes it crystal clear that any medical
practitioner can become member and there is no need to get
his name registered, and therefore, the said Gazette notification
is wrongly applied by respondent No.2.

3. Shri Dixit, learned counsel for the petitioners, in support of his
contentions, relied on 2003 (2) M.P.L.J. 377 (Shramadham Uchchatar
Madhyamik Vidyalaya Sanchalan Samiti and others Vs. State of M.P.
and others) and AIR 2004 SC 1280 (Mangzlal Vs. State of Madhya
Pradesh).

4. Shri Praveen Newaskar, learned Deputy Govt. Advocate for
respondents No.1 to 3, supported the communication Annexure P/1 and
submits that communication is appealable under Section 40 of the Adhiniyam.
He submits that two appeals are available to the petitioners under Section 40
of the Adhiniyam, and therefore, this petition is not entertainable. He submits
that merits and demerits of the matter cannot be gone into at this stage by this
Court, more so when there exists an alternatlve efficacious remedy to the
petitioners.

5. Shri D.P.Singh and Shri Deepak Khot, learned counsel for the private
respondents, submit that as per amended rule published in 2009 Gazette
notification of the State Government, one has to be aregistered practitioner.
Relying on the parent Adhinfyam and Rules, it is stated that 'medical practitioner
means a practitioner who is duly registered under the statute and in absence
thereof he cannot be treated as a medical practitioner under the bye-laws.
They submit that authority to practice homeopathy as a practitioner is available
only when one is duly registered under the provisions of M.P. Homeopathy
Council Adhiniyam, 1976 (in short 1976 Adhiniyam). They submit that enquiry
officer has given finding about the members on the basis of documents and
record of the society. The finding of enquiry is not binding on respondent
No.2 and it was open for respondent No.2 to apply the Gazette notification
which makes it clear as to who can be the member and in which capacity.
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* Thus, it is stated that there is no deviation from the enquiry officer's report

and 'in fact respondent No.2 has applied the legal provision and his
comimunication is only an outcome of consideration and application of Gazette
notification. It is further stated that petitioner/ society was given ample
opportunities, the records were permitted to be produced by it and reasonable

" opportunity in accordance with Section 32 of the Adhiniyam was afforded to

the petitioner/society. It is further stated that the powers exercised by
respondent No.2 are ‘suo motu' powers which are flowing from Section 32(1)
of the Adhiniyam. By placing reliance on Annexure P/8, it is stated that the
said document makes it crystal clear that the said anthority has exercised suo
motu powers. It is the common stand of learned counsel for the respondents
that the powers to take action suo motu can be based on an application
preferred by any complainant. In other words, it is stated that if an application
is preferred by any person, on the basis of said application, it is open for
respondent No.2 to take action by exercising suo motu powers under Section
32(1) of the Adhiniyam. It is also the common stand of the respondents that
petition is not entertainable because of a specific remedy avaIIabIe under
Section 40 of the Adhlmyam

6. Lastlyitis stated that petitioners have not shown any prejudice which
warrants interference either in the decision making process or on
communication Annexure P/1. For that, reliance is placed on 2006 (4) M.P.L.J.
403 (para 35 and 36) (Maharaja Jiwajirao Education Society and another
Vs. State of M.P. and others). By placing reliance on (2001) 8 SCC 509
(Shri Sant Sadguru Janardan Swami (Moingiri Maharaj) Sahakari Dugdha
Utpadak Sanstha and another Vs. State of Maharashtra and others), it is
argued that election process is on and when it is in full swing, there is no
justification in making any interference at this stage. In addition, it is stated
that certain members of petitioner No.1/society have already participated in
the election.

7. In rejoinder submission, Shri Harish Dixit, learned counsel for the
petitioners, submits that petitioner No.2 and 3's registration was renewed by
Annexure P/27 dated 16.1.2012 and Annexure P/28 dated 9.10.2012
respectively. He submits that despite this renewal in accordance with 2009
Rules, their names do not find place/not counted by the impugned order which
will deprive them from their right to vote and participate in the election. He
submits that petitioners No.2 and 3 are also prejudiced by this.action. In
addition, he submits that the members of the society are from different states,
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including M.P., U.P. Rajasthan, and 2009 Gazette notification of the State of
M_.P. has no application on State of Rajasthan and U.P. Since this new point
was considered for the first time in Annexure P/1, no opportunity was available
to the petitioners to put forth their case and for this reasons also, petitioners
are prejudiced. He submits that there is no application of mind in the order of
Assistant Registrar on this aspect i.e. applicability of Gazette notification of
the State of M.P. on the members who are practising outside the territory of
State of M.P. '

8. No other point is pressed by the learned counsel for the parties before
this Court.

9. I'have heard learned counsel for the parties at length and perused the
record.

10.  Thebone of contention of the petitioners is that pursuant to show cause
notice, they submitted their reply and respondent No. 2 by impugned order opined
that the election of governing body of the petitioners' society was invalid. This
finding is adverse and entails civil consequences. The pivotal question is therefore,
whether principles of natural justice and fair play in action have any application in
the facts and circumstances of this case. The case of the petitioners is that by
impugned order, an adverse decision has been taken and petitioners' elections
were held to be illegal and new elections are directed. Thus, it was obligatory on
the part of the respondent No. 2 to deal with the reply filed by the petitioners. In
absence thereof, the principles of natural justice and fair play in action are grossly
violated. I deem it proper to deal with this facet first. The stand of the other side is
- that Section 32 nowhere prescribes that the opportunity should be granted to the
petitioner before passing of Annexure P-1. It is the common stand of the respondent
that under Sub-Section (4) of Section 32, the Registrar is only obliged to provide
result of the enquiry to the society and, therefore, principles of natural justice have
no application in the present matter. It is apt to quote Section 32, which reads as
under:-

"32. Enquiry and settlement of disputes.-(1) The
Registrar may, on his own motion or on an application made
under sub-section (2) either by himself or by a person
authorised by him, by order in writing, hold an enquiry into the
constitution, working and financial conditions of a society.

(2) Anenquiry of the nature referred to in sub-section (1)
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shall be held on the application together with an affidavitin
support of its contents of-

(a)  amajority of the members of the governing body of
the society: or ’ '

(b}  notlessthan one-third of the total number of membets
of the society. - -

(3) The Registrar or the person authorised by him under sub-
section (1) shall for the purpose of an enquiry under this section
have the following powers, namely:-

(@)  he shall at all times have free access to the books,
accounts, documents, securities, cash and other properties
belonging to, or in the custody of, the society and may summon
any person in possession, or responsible for the custody of
any such books, accounts, documents, securities, cash or other
properties to produce the same, if they relate to the head office
of the society at any place at the headquarter thereof and if
they relate to any branch of the society, at any place in the
town wherein such branch thereof is located or in his own
office:

(b)  he may summon any person who he has reason to
believe has knowledge of any of the affairs of the society to
appear before him at any place at the headquarters of the
society or any branch thereof or in his own office and may
examine such person on oath: and

() (i) he may notwithstanding any regulation or bye-laws
specifying the period of notice for a general meeting of the
society, require the officers of the society to call a general
meeting of the society at such time at the head office of the
society or at any other place at the headquarter of the society
and to determine such matters as may be directed by him and
where the officers of the society refuse or fail to call such a
meeting, he shail have power to call it himself; '

(i) any meeting called under sub-clause (i) shall have all
the powers of a general meeting called under the regulations
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or bye-laws of the society and its proceedings shall be re gulated
by such bye-laws. -

(4) When an enquiry is made under this section the Registrar
shall communicate the result of the enquiry to the society and
may issue appropriate direction to the society, which shall be
binding on all parties concerned."

(Emphasis Supplied)

1. Theaforesaid provision deals with the power of the Registrar to conduct
enquiry regarding the constitution, working and financial condition of a society.
For the purpose of this enquiry, he is equipped with certain powers enumerated
in Sub-Section (3). He has free access to the books, accounts, documents,
properties and other relevant material of the society, he may summon any
person in whose possession or custody, the aforesaid documents are there.
He may summon any person who he has reason to belicve as knowledge of
the affairs of the society to appear before him. He can examine such person
on oath. Thus, various powers for the purpose of enquiry are given to the
Registrar under the aforesaid provision. Sub-Section (4) is amended on
04.09.1998. The first portion of Sub-Section (4) makes it obligatory on the
part of the Registrar to communicate the result of the enquiry to the society.
The word "shall" is employed in the first portion of Sub-Section (4), whereas
the second portion envisages the power of the Registrar to issue appropriate
directions to the society. For the purpose of exercising this power, the legislature
has chosen to employ the word "may". A careful reading of Sub-Section (4)
shows that it is obligatory on the part of the Registrar to communicate the
result of the enquiry to the society. However, it is not always necessary or
mandatory for the Registrar to pass any appropriate direction to the society.
An element of discretion is there with the Registrar to pass appropriate
directions to the society. For example, if result of the enquiry is in favour of -
the society and no action is required to be taken on it nor any appropriate
directions are required, the Registrar may not issue any such directions.
However if on the basis of enquiry report, any adverse order, directions to
comply with the provisions of the Act, cure the defects etc. are to be done,
the Registrar is equipped with the power to issue appropriate directions. For
this purpose, the legislature has used the words "may issue appropriate
directions to the society". Thus, first portion of Sub-Section (4) is mandatory,
wherein Registrar is bound to communicate the result of the enquiry whereas
. the second portion is an enabling provision, wherein the Registrar, if required
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and as the case may be, may issue appropriate directions to the society.

12.  Inthe present case, the respondent No. 2 issued a show cause notice
on 20.06.2012 and copy of the enquiry conducted by Shri M.L. Kudape was
supplied to the petitioner. In last line of this notice (Annexure P-13), the
petitioner was directed to submit his reply (q&&=w). In turn, petitioner
submitted his reply. The respondent No. 2 passed the order dated 14.09.2012
and gave a finding that petitioner did not submit his reply pursuant to said
show cause notice and enquiry report. The petitioner filed W.P. No. 6995/
2012 and stated that the said reply was very much filed and is in the records
of the respondents. This Court noticed the other side, summoned the record
and gathered that the reply was very much received by the Assistant Registrar.
Thus, it was opined by this Court that decision making process is polluted
and principles of natural justice are violated. Accordingly, the matter was
remitted back to the respondent No. 2 to proceed after the stage petitioner
had submitted the reply (Annexure P-19 with W.P. No. 6995/2012). In turn,
the respondent No. 2 has passed the impugned order (Annexure P-1). A
microscopic reading of Annexure P-1 shows that the respondent No. 2
although has referred about the filing of reply of the petitioner but did not deal
with the said reply. In other words, the contention and the stand of the petitioner
in the said reply was not discussed, analyzed, considered and dealt with. A
mere finding is given that said reply is filed.

13. Inthe oi)inion of'this Court, the respondent No. 2 has taken both the
actions as provided in Section 32(4). Firstly he communicated the result of
the enquiry to the society and then issued appropriate directions to the society.

14.  Theultimate direction, which is given to the society, contains a finding
that the election of existing governing body is found to be illegal/invalid. Findings
are also given on various aspects including membership, audit report, income
and expenditure etc. This is also not in dispute between the parties that before -
preparation of enquiry report the relevant documents/material were summoned
from the petitioner No. 1. The main contention of respondents is that under
Section 32(4), the communication made is not an order and since respondent
No. 2 is only obliged to forward the enquiry report to the society, principles
of natural justice has no application.

15.  Inthe opinion of this Court, in the factual matrix of this matter, itis
clear that firstly the respondent No. 2 communicated the result of the enquiry
and then based on such result passed an adverse order against the petitioner's
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society. The question is whether in this situation, the principles of natural jﬁsﬁce
and fair play in action have any role to play.

16.  The nature of powers given to the Registrar under Section 32 shows
that be can summon relevant documents, record evidence on oath and therefore
this nature of power is not purely administrative in nature. More so when he is
given further power to act on the enquiry report by issuing appropriate directions
to the society. This kind of action, which can effect the rights of the society or
a person adversely, is a quasi judicial power. The dictionary meaning of the
word "quasi" is "not exactly". In "principles of administrative law (by M.P.
Jain and S.N. Jain (revised by Justice G.P. Singh and Alok Aradhe Advocate -
as his Lordship then was) (Page 37, 5th Addition), it is opined that a quasi
judicial act is just in between a judicial and administrative function.

17.  InRidge Vs. Baldwin[1964 AC 40), it was held that the duty to act
judicially may arise from the very nature of the function performed by the
authority. The ratio of Ridge (supra) was approved by the Constitution Bench
of the Supreme Court in the celebrated case of Maneka Gandhi Vs. Union
of India[(1978) 1 SCC 248]. A Division Bench of this Court in Sukhlal Sen
Vs. Collector, District Satna and others [1969 MPLIJ 516], opined that the
nature of duty to determine whether licensee has committed any breach of
terms or conditions of his licence and whether for that reason the licence
should be cancelled, imposes upon the authority the duty to act judicially and
to comply with the principles of natural justice. In Sukhlal (supra) Justice GP.
Singh speaking for the Bench held as under :

s TR Ridge V. Baldwinin establishes that judicial character
of a duty may be inferred from the nature of the duty itself and
there need not be any express language used by the Legislature
requiring the body on which the duty is impose to act judicially;
duty to act judicially will be implicit in the duty to determine
what the rights of an individual should be."

- TOT— Cancellation of a licence is a serious matter as it
deprives, the licencee of his right to carry on business. In our
opinion, the nature of the duty to determine whether the licensee
has committed any breach of terms or conditions of his licence
and whether for that reason the licence should be cancelled,
imposes upon the authority the duty to act judicially. It
necessarily follows that the authority must follow the
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requirements of natural justice and must give an opportunity
to the licensee to meet the allegations of breaches of terms
and conditions of the licence reported against him before
cancelling the licence . As in the instant case, this opportunity
was not given to the petitioner, it has to be held that the
cancellation of his licence was invalid or void."

18.  Itisalsoaptto mention that the dividing line between an administrative
power and a quasi judicial power was held to be thin and was treated to be
gradually obliterated by various judgments of the Supreme Court. In 4. K. Kraipak
Vs. Union of India [AIR 1970 SC 150], the Apex Court opined as under:

"13.. The dividing line between an administrative power and a
quasi-judicial power is quite thin and is being gradually
obliterated. For determining whether a power is an
administrative power or a quasi-judicial power one has to look
to the nature of the power conferred, the person or persons .,
on whom it is conferred, the framework of the law conferring
that power, the consequences ensuing from the exercise of
that power and the manner in which that power is expected to
be exercised. Under our Constitution the rule of law pervades
over the entire field of administration. Every organ of the State
_under our Constitution is regulated and controlled by the rule
of law. In a welfare State like ours it is inevitable that the
jurisdiction of the administrative bodies is increasing at a rapid
rate. The concept of rule of law would lose its vitality if the
instrumentalities of the State are not charged with the duty of
discharging their functions in a fair and just manner. The
requirement of acting judicially in essence is nothing buta
requirement to act justly and fairly and not arbitrarily or
capriciously. The procedures which are considered inherent
" in the exercise of a judicial power are merely those which
facilitate if not ensure a just and fair decision. In recent years
the concept of quasi-judicial power has been undergoing a
radical change. What was considered as_an administrative
power some vears back is now being considered as a quasi-

judicial power."

(Emphasis Supplied)
In the same judgment, the Court observed - "the horizon of natural
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justice is constantly expanding” and "if the purpose of rules of natural justice is
to prevent miscarriage of justice, one fail to see why those rules should be
made inapplicable to administrative enquiries". In Mohinder Singh Gill Vs.
Chief Election Commissioner [(1 978) 1 5CC 405}, the Apex Court opined
as under in para 53 and 55:-

...... To-day, in our jurisprudence, the advances made

' by natural justice far exceed old frontiers and if judicial creativity

belights penumbral areas it is only for improving the quality of
government by injecting fair play into its wheels.... Law lives
not in a world of abstractions but in a cosmos of concreteness
and to give up something good must be limited to extreme
cases. If to condemn unheard is wrong, it is wrong except
where it is overborne by dire social necessity....."

In Swadeshi Cotton Mills Vs. Union of India [(1981) 1 SCC 664],

the Apex Court opined as under:

19.

"44........ this rule of fair play "must not be jettisoned save invery
exceptional circumstances where compulsive necessity so
demands", The court must make every effort to salvage this cardinal
rule to the maximum extent possible, with situational modifications."

In the opinion of this Court, the impact of impugned order entails civil

consequences on the petitioners. The Apex Court in Mohinder Singh Gill
(supra), opined as under:

20.

"66........."Civil consequences' undoubtedly cover infraction

of not merely property or personal rights but of civil liberties,
material deprivations and non-primary damages. In its
comprehensive connotation, everything that affects a citizen in
his civil life inflicts a civil consequence......."

The Constitution Bench in Maneka Gandhi (supra) has emphasized

that natural justice is a great "humanising principle" which intended to invest
law with fairness and to secure justice. The soul of natural Justice is "fair play
inaction". On the basis of this, it can be said that there is no distinction between
a quasi judicial and an administrative function for the purpose of applicability
of the principles of natural justice. The aim of both administrative enquiry and
quasi judicial enquiry is to arrive at a just decision and if a rule of natural
justice is calculated to secure the justice, or, to put it negatively, to prevent



LLR. [2013]M P. Central.Hom.& Bio.Asso. Gwahor Vs. State of M.P. 849

miscarriage on justice, it is difficult to see why it should be applicable to quasi
judicial enquiry and not to administrative enquiry. It must logically apply to
both. Bhagwati J. in Maneka Gandhi (supra) opined as under:-

"12.....The law must, therefore, now be taken to be well settled
that even in an administrative proceeding, which involves civil
consequences, the doctrine of natural justice must be held to be
applicable.”

In Mohinder Singh Gill (supra), the Apex Court opined as under:-

"44 The dichotomy between administrative and quasi-judicial
functions vis-a-vis the doctrine of natural justice is presumably
obsolescent."

In S.L. Kapoor Vs. Jagmohan [(1980) 4 SCC 379], the Apex Court -
opined as under:-

"7. The old distinction between a judicial actand an administrative
* act has withered away and we have been liberated from the
psittacine incantation of "administrative action......"

21.  Onthebasis of the development of law and its interpretation aforesaid
shows that the principles of natural justice are implicit in quasi judicial as well
as administrative action. The same view was taken by the Supreme Court by
following Swadeshi Cotton Mills (supra) in Mangilal (supra), the Apex Court
opined as under in Para 10:-

"10. Even if a statute is silent and there are no positive
words in the Act or the Rules made thereunder, there could be

nothing wrong in spelling out the need to hear the parties whose
rights and interest are likely to be affected by the orders that
may be passed, and making it a requirement to follow a fair
procedure before taking a decision, unless the statute provides
otherwise. The principles of natural justice must be read into
unoccupied interstices of the statute, unless there is a clear
mandate to the contrary. No form or procedure should ever
be permitted to exclude the presentation of a litigant's defence
or stand. Even in the absence of a provision in procedural
laws. power inheres in every tribunal/court of a judicial or

quasi-judicial character, to adopt modalities necessary to
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achieve requirements of natural justice and fair play to ensure
- better and proper discharge of their duties. Procedure is mainly
grounded on the prineiples of natural justice irrespective of the
extent of its application by express provision in that regard in
a given situation. It has always been a cherished prineiple.
Where the statute is silent about the observance of the
principles of natural justice, such statutory silence is taken to
imply compliance with the principles of natural justice where

substantial rights of parties are considerably affected. The
application of natural justice becomes presumptive, unless found

excluded by express words of statute or necessary intendment.
(See Swadeshi Cotton Mills v. Union of India.) Its aim is to
secure justice or to prevent miscarriage of justice. Principles
of natural justice do not supplant the law, but supplement it.
These rules operate only in areas not covered by any law validly
made. They are a means to an end and not an end in themselves.
The principles of natural justice have many facets. Two of them
are: notice of the case to be met, and opportunity to explain.”
(Emphasis Supplied)

22,  Thelegal position stated above makes it clear that, whether impugned
order is outcome of a quasi judicial act or an administrative act in both the
sttuations, principles of natural justice and fair play in action were the
requirement of law. In other words, the impugned order could have been
passed only after following the principles of natural justice and fair play in
action. Faimness is an integral part of good administration. In the present case,
in the first round, the petitioners succeeded because despite filing reply by
him, the respondent No. 2 opined that reply has not been filed. When it was
found to be incorrect on perusal of record, this Court directed the respondent
No. 2 proceed further from that stage. Now in the impugned order, the
respondent No. 2 mentioned about factum of filing of reply but did not deal
- with the contentions and averments of the reply in his order/communication.
He has given a finding, which is detriment to.the petitioner and an elected
body is ousted before completion of normal tenure. In my considered opinion,
it has serious consequences on the petitioners and this order certainly falls
within the ambit of "civil consequences". The requirement of principles of natural
justice and fair play was to examine, deal with, consider and discuss the reply
filed by the petitioner. In absence thereof, the impugned order runs contrary
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to principles of natural justice and fair play in action. '

23.  Thisissettled in law that principles of natural justice does not supplant
the law but supplements the law. Its application may be excluded either
expressly or by necessary implication (Dr. Umrao Singh Chaudhary Vs.
State of M.P. and another) [(1994) 4 SCC 328)]. In Mohinder Singh Gill
(supra), it is held by the Supreme Court that it is not permissible to interpret
any statutory instrument so as to exclude natural justice. Unless the language
of the instrument leaves no option to the Court. It is further observed that
natural justice is so integral to the good government that the onus is on him
who urges exclusion to make out why.

24.  Inthelight of this legal position, in my opinion, the principles of natural
justice are implicit and are required to be read into Section 32(4) of the
Adhiniyam. In cases, whether after supplying the result of the enquiry, the
Registrar receives the response of the society and if he intends to pass any
order which affects the right of the society in any manner 6r which may entail
civil consequences, the Registrar is bound to follow the principles of natural
justice and fair play in action. Accordingly, he is under an obligation to deal
with the stand of the party going to be effected in his order. In absence of
thereof, the order would be an order without assigning any reason on the
defence of the petitioners. The necessity to assign reason is emphasized by
the Supreme Court in Kranti Associates Private Limited v. Masood Ahmed
Khan, (2010) 9 SCC 496, in following words:-

“(a) In India the judicial trend has always been to record
reasons, even in administrative decisions, if such decisions

affect anyone prejudicially.

(b) A _quasi-judicial authority must record reasons in
support of its conclusions.

(c) Insistence on recording of reasons is meant to serve
the wider principle of justice that justice must not only be
done it must also appear to be done as well. .

(d)  Recording of reasons also operates as a valid
restraint on any possible arbitrary exercise of judicial and
guasi-judicial or even administrative power.

(e) Reasons reassure that discretion has been exercised
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by the decision-maker on relevant grounds and by
disregarding extraneous considerations.

o Reasons have virtually become as indispensable a
component of a decision-making process as observing
principles of natural justice by judicial, quasi-judicial and
even by administrative bodies.

(2)  Reasons faciliate the process of judicial review by
superior courts.

(h)  The ongoing judicial trend in all countries
committed to rule of law and constitutional governance is
in favour of reasoned decisions based on relevant facts.
This is virtually the lifeblood of judicial decision-making
fustifying the principle that reason is the soul of justice.

(i) Judicial or even quasi-judicial opinions these days
can be as different as the judges and authorities who deliver
them. All these decisions serve one common purpose which
is to demonstrate by reason that the relevant factors have
been objectively considered. This is important for sustaining
the litigants' faith in the justice delivery system.

() Insistence on reason is a requirement for both
fudicial accountability and transparency.

(k)  If ajudge or a quasi-judicial authority is not candid
enough about his/her decision-making process then it is
impossible to know whether the person deciding is faithful 1o
the doctrine of precedent or to principles of incrementalism.

't Reasons in support of decisions must be cogent, clear
and succinct. A pretence of reasons or "rubber-stamp reasons”
is not to be equated with a valid decision-making process.

(m) It cannot be doubted that transparency is the sine
qua non of restraint on abuse of judicial powers.
Transparency in decision-making not only makes the judges
and decision-makers less prone to errors but also makes
them subject to broader scrutiny.

»
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(n)  Since the requirement to record reasons emanates
from the broad doctrine of fairness in decision-making,
the said requirement is now virtually a component of
human rights and was considered part of Strasbourg
Jurisprudence.

(o) Inall common law jurisdictions judgments play a vital
role in setting up precedents for the future. Therefore, for
development of law, requirement of giving reasons for the
~ decision is of the essence and is virtually a part of "due process”.

25.  Inthelight of aforesaid, in my opinion, the impugned order suffers
from serious infirmity because the reply of the petitioners has not been
considered. The principles of natural justice and fair play in action are grossly
violated. No doubt, this Court can refuse to exercise its jurisdiction under
Article 226 of the Constitution in certain cases of availability of alternative
remedy. However, the said rule requiring the exhaustion of alternative remedy
before the writ court is not a rule of law but is a rule of policy, convenience
and discretion. In other words, it is not a compulsion but a discretion. The
High Court can certainly issue an appropriate writ in case of denial of natural
justice. This view is taken by the Supreme Court way back in AIR 1958 SC
86 (State of UP Vs. Mohd. Nooh). The same was followed by the Division
Bench in Sukhlal Sen (supra). The Apex Court also took the same view in
catena of judgments including in Whiripool Corporatzon Vs. Registar of
Trace Marks [(1998) 8 SCC 1].

26. In view of aforesaid, I am not inclined to relegate the petitioner to
avail the alternative remedy. The objection regarding entertainability of this
petition because election process is on, is also of no substance. Admittedly,
petitioners society's normal tenure is not over and without considering the
stand of the petitioners, its election was held to be invalid. It not only entails
civil consequences, it is a drastic order qua petitioners. Elections, in the present
case, have not taken place whereas in the judgment of Shri Sant Sadguru
Janardan Swami (supra) of the Supreme Court cited by Shri D.P. Singh, the
election had already taken place. In the peculiar facts and circumstances of
this case, the said judgment has no application. At the cost of repetition,
principles of natural justice and fair play in action coupled with the duty to act
judicially is not observed by respondent No. 2. Consequently, the said order
cannot be upheld.
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27.  Inview of the analysis aforesaid, other points raised by the parties are
not required to be dealt with. Consequently, petition is allowed. The impugned
order dated 24.01.2013 (Annexure P-1) is set aside. However, liberty is
reserved to the respondent No. 2 to pass order in accordance with law.

It be noted that this Court has not expressed any opinion on the merits
of the case.

Petition is allowed to the extent indicated above. No costs.
Petition allowed.

LL.R. [2013] ML.P., 854
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice Shantanu Kemkar &
Mr. Justice Prakash Shrivastava
F.A. No. 676/2012 (Indore) decided on 21 September, 2012

4

VARTIKA (SMT.) ...Appellant
Vs.
ANKIT JAIN ...Respondent

Hindu Marriage Act (25 of 1955), Section 13B - Divorce by
mutual consent - Not living as husband and wife - Petition for divorce
by mutual consent was filed with specific averment that the parties are
not living as husband and wife since last one year - Petition was
dismissed on the ground that the appellant is living separately in her
parental house since 19.02.2011 and the petition was filed on 11.01.2012
- Held - Living Separately connotes not living like husband and wife -
It has no reference to place of living - Further the requisite period of
one year under Section 13B(1) of the Act was already elapsed when
the judgment was delivered - Judgment of Family Court set aside -
Decree of divoree is granted to the parties by mutual consent.

(Paras 6 to 10)
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Prateek Maheshwari, for the appellant.
V.K. Zelawut, for the respondent.

ORDER

The  Order of the court was delivered by:
SHANTANU KEMKAR, J:- This appeal under section 28 of the Hindn Marriage
Act, 1955 (for short, 'the Act') is directed against the judgment dated
21.08.2012 passed by 2nd Additional Principal Judge, Family Court, Indore
in Hindu Marriage Act Case No.50 of 2012.

2. Brief' facts necessary for disposal of this appeal are that on 11.01.2012
the appellant (wife) and the respondent (husband) had filed a petition for
dissolution of marriage by a decree of divorce by invoking the provision under
section 13B of the Act. In the petition it was averred that the marriage was -
solemnised between them on 13.02.2009. .The wife is living in her parental
house since 19.02.2011. It was further averred that they are having no
relationship as husband and wife since last one year and that it is not possible

_ for them to live together. They further stated that they have mutually agreed

for dissolution of their marriage. The petition was also supported by the
affidavits of the parties. -

3. The learned Judge after recording the evidence led by the parties vide
impugned judgment dated 21.08.2012 dismissed the petition by observing
that since the parties are residing separately only from 19.02.2011, they could -
not have filed the petition on 11.01.2012 i.e. prior to completion of 1 year
from the date of their residing separately. The learned Judge accordingly,
dismissed the petition by holding it to be not maintainable. Feeling aggrieved,
the appellant (wife) has filed this appeal.

4. . The respondent (husband) has appeared. He did not oppose the
grounds raised and the prayer made in this appeal.

5. We have considered the submissions made by learned counsel for the
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parties and perused the pleadings.

6. We find that in the petition filed under section 13B of the Act the
appellant and the respondent, apart from stating the fact that the wife is residing
separately in her parental house since 19.02.2011 have also stated that both
the parties are not living as husband and wife since last one vear' (emphasis
supplied). This part of the pleading raised by the parties have been completely
lost sight of by the learned court below and considering only the first part of
the pleading that since 19.02.2011 the appellant is residing in her parental
house, declined to grant decree by holding that from the date of her living
separately in the parental house one year has not elapsed. However as is
clear from the averment in the petition when it was very categorically pleaded
that 'both the parties are not living as husband and wife since last one vear' .
our considered view there was no legal impediment of not completing the
requisite period as provided under section 13B(1) of the Act in allowing the
petition for grant of decree of divorce by mutual consent.

7. Our view finds support by the ratio of judgment of the Supreme Court
laid down in the case of Smt. Sureshta Devi vs. Om Prakash (1992 SC
1904). The Supreme Court while dealing with the expression "living separately”
has observed thus

"The expression 'living separately’, connotes not living like husband
and wife. It has no reference to the place of living. The parties
may be living under the same roof by force of circumstances, and
yet they may not be living as husband and wife. The parties may
be living in different houses and yet they could live as husband
and wife. What seems to be necessary is that they have no desire
to perform marital obligations and with that mental attitude they
have been living separately for a period of one year immediately
preceding the presentation of the petition."

8. This Court in the case of Deepak (Dr.) vs. Smt. Tanuja (2003 (2)
JLJ 121] in paragraph 14 has observed thus :-

"14.-From the aforesaid decisions, it is clear that the trial Court -
as well as the appellate Court at any stage of the proceedings
can grant a decree by mutual consent if the conditions laid down

_ in Section 13B and Section 23 of the Act of 1955 are fulfilled
and can grant a decree for divorce in a case where the dispute is
pending for more than a year and parties have been living

‘

L{]
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separately for a period of more than one year and they have not
been able to live together and have mutually agree that the
marriage should be dissolved and the consent has not been
obtained by force, fraud or undue influence. Under Section 13B
of the Act of 1955 application can be filed and accepted by the
Court and after an enquiry Court can dissolve the marriage
between the parties by mutual consent. There is nothing in
Section 13B of the Act of 1955 to indicate that the parties
seeking divorce by mutual. consent are required to prove
anything in addition to that laid down under Section 13B of the
Act of 1955. Therefore, this Court is fully competent to accept
the application filed by the parties for divorce by mutual consent
under Section 13B of the Act of 1955."

9. A Division Bench of this Court in the case of -  Smt. Rupali Singh
and another vs. Aneel Kaur (AIR 2005 MP 203) in similar set of facts
where the Family Court had dismissed the application filed under section 13B
of the Act on the bedrock that as per the statement of the appellants before
the Family Judge to the effect that they were residing separately from December
2003 and the application preferred under section 13B of the Act was presented
before the Court on 3.09.2004 and therefore, the requisite condition stipulated
under section 13-B(1) of the Act was not complied with inasmuch as they
were living separately for less than one year, set aside the order passed by the
learned Family Court Judge and granted decree of divorce.

10.  Keepingin view the aforesaid pronouncement of the Supremé Court and
of this Court and the clear averments of the parties in the petition stating therein :-

SIS & W TP 9 | FIS rU Hdy R T8 U E |

and the fact that even otherwise more then the requisite period of one
year provided under section 13B(1) of the Act was already elapsed when the
judgment was delivered by the trial court, we are of the considered view the
judgment of the court below is liable to be setaside.

11.  Accordingly, we set aside the judgment passed by the trial court and
grant the decree of divorce to the parties by mutual consent under section
13B of the Act.

12.  The appeal stands allowed. Parties to bear their own costs.
Appeal allowed.
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APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice R.S. Jha
S.A. No. 455/1995 (Jabalpur) decided on 5 February, 2013

RAM NARAYAN TIWARI & ors. ...Appellants
Vs. .
UMA SHANKER PACHOLI & anr. _ ...Respondents

A Succession Act (39 of 1925), Section 63 - Will - Proof - It
is necessary for the propounder of the Will to prove that the testator
signed it, that he understood the nature and effect of the depositions of
the Will, and that he had affixed his signatures on the Will knowing
what it contains. (Para 12)
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-B. Succession Act (39 of 1 925), Section 63 - Registration
of Will - Registration of Will would not attach presumption as to the
correctness or regularity of the attestation and a person claiming
through the Will is required to specifically plead and prove through the
attesting witness that the requirement of Section 63 of the Act, 1925
and 68 of Evidence Act, 1872 have been complied with. (Para 15)
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C. . Succession Act (39 of 1925), Section 63 - Will - Testator
was blind and apparently could not see what was written - Nothing on
record to show that the Will was prepared and written on the instructions
of the testator, it was typed and read out to the testator to make sure
that it was in accordance with the instructions issued by her and as per
her wishes, and she understood the same before affixing her thumb
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impression on the Will - Further after the death of her husband, the
testator was never looked after or kept by the propounder of the Will
- Her stay in the house of the defendant was only for a very short
period - Execution of will not proved. ’ (Paras 19 to 23)
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Cases referred :

AIR 1959 8C 443, AIR 1962 SC 567, (2003) 12 SCC 35, C.A.No.
1153/1966.

Ravish Agrawal, V.S. Shrotz with Ashish Shroti & Amit Nagpal for
the appellants.

Arun Kumar Choubey & Jagtendra Prasad, for the respondent No.1.

Sudesh Verma, G.A. for the respondent No.2. :

JUDGMENT

R.S. Jua, J. :- The appellants have filed this appeal being aggrieved
by the judgment and decree dated 23.3.1995 passed by the Additional Judge
to the Court of District Judge, Hoshangabad in Civil Appeal No. 14-A/90 -
affirming the judgment and decree dated 28.02.1990 passed by the Civil Judge
Class-II, Seoni Malwa, in Civil Suit No. 34-A/1987.

2. Before adverting to the issue involved in the appeal itis necessary to
take note of the genesis ofthe dispute.

3. The land in question initially belonged to one Anant Ram and thereafier
to his son Kanhaiyalal. Kanhaiyalal had two sons, Sunderlal and Shyam!al.
Sunderlal died in the year 1919 issue-less leaving behind his widow Smt.
Rajkunwar Bai. Shyamlal had three sons. The appellants are the sons of
Shyamlal whereas the original respondent, Uttra Bai, is the daughter of the



860 Ram Narayan Tiwari Vs. U.S.Pacholi LL.R.[2013]M.P.

brother of Smt. Rajkunwar Bai, widow of Sunderlal. Rajkunwar Bai died on
7.9.1982 before which she is said to have executed a Will on 26.7.1982 in
favour of Uttra Bai, her brother's daughter.

As Uttra Bai had filed an application for recording her name in the
disputed property on the strength of the Will dated 26.7.1982, the appellants/
plaintiff filed a suit for declaration and injunction in respect of the disputed
area of 3.009 Hectares of land out of the total area of 5.715 Hectares of
Khasra No.376/1 and 376/3, Patwari Halka No.33, Seoni Malwa.

" The suit was opposed by the respondent/defendant on the ground that
the land in question had been bequeathed to Uttra Bal by Rajkunwar Bai by
registered Will dated 26.7.1982, Exhibit D-1 and, therefore, the appellants
had no right on the same.

4, Both the courts below have dismissed the claim of the appellants by
recording a finding to the effect that the Will dated 26.7.1982 executed in
favour of Uttra Bai was a registered document and, therefore, the appellants
have no right or claim on the land in question.

5. This second appeal was admitted by this Court on the following
substantial question of law:-

"Whether the will executed dt. 26.7.82, by Smt. Rajkunwar
*  Bai, has been proved in accordance with law, as per section
63 of Indian Succession Act 7"

6. Arguments before this Court have, therefore, been limited to the
aforesaid substantial question of law.

7. It is submitted by the [earned Senior Counsel for the appellants that
the Will dated 26.7.1982 was a registered document and one of the attesting
witness, husband of Uttra Bai, Ramashankar who has prosecuted the entire
matter as Power of Attorney Holder of Uttra Bai, has deposed in support of
the Will as DW-1. It is submitted that a bare reading of his statement makes it
clear that the requirement of proving and establishing a Will as provided by
Section 63 of the Indian Succession Act, 1925 (hereinafter referred to as 'the
Succession Act’) and Section 68 of the Indian Evidence Act, 1872 (hereinafter
referred to as 'the Evidence Act’), have not been fulfilled. It is submitted that
the sole attesting witness Ramshankar, D.W-1, has nowhere stated that
Rajkunwar Bai understood the nature and effect of the Will; that the contents
of the same were read out to her; that she understood the contents thereof
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which were explained to her; and that she had affixed her signature/thumb
impression on the same knowing what it contained.

8. It is submitted that in the absence of any such statement on the part of
the attesting witness, the Will could not have been relied upon by the courts
below to dismiss the appellants claim as the requirement of Section 63 of the*
Succession Act and the requirement of Section 68 of the Evidence Act, were
not fulfilled. It is submitted that in the absence of fulfilling the requirement of

. proving the Will as contained in the aforesaid provisions, mere registration of

the Will would not confer any authenticity on it as far as the contents, nature
and effect of the same is concerned.

0. The learned Senior Counsel for the appellants, in support of his
submissions, has relied upon the decision of the Supreme Court rendered in
the case of H. Venkatachala Iyengar vs. B. N. Thimmajamma and others,
AIR 1959 SC 443, Rani Purnima Debi and another vs. Kumar Khagendra
Narayan Deb and another, AIR 1962 SC 567, Bhagat Ram and Another
vs. Suresh and Others, (2003) 12 5CC 35 and an unreported judgment of
the Supreme Court rendered in Civil Appeal No.1153/1966 (Smt. Maya Devi
vs. Anant Ram (deceased) and others) decided on 31.10.1969.

10.  The learned counsel for the respondent no.1, per contra, submits that
the Will was duly typed out and was read out to Rajkunwar Bai and thereafter
she affixed her thumb impression on the same in front of the Registrar. It is
further stated that as provided for and required by Section 63 of the Succession
Act, one of the attesting witness namely Ramshankar, D.W-1, has given his
statement in affirmation thereof and in such circumstances no fault can be
found with. the findings recorded by the trial court and affirmed by the appellate
court.

11.  Itis submitted that the courts below have rightly dismissed the claim
of the appellants as there is a concurrent finding of fact in this regard which
does not suffer from any perversity or material irregularity and, therefore,
does not warrant interference and the substantial question of law as framed
by this Court does not arise for adjudication in the present appeal.

12. I have heard the learned counsel for the parties at length. From a
perusal of the decision of the Supreme Court rendered in the case of H.
Venkatachala Iyengar (supra), it is clear that the Supreme Court, while
analyzing the provisions of Sections 59 and 63 of the Succession Act and
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Sections 67 and 68 of the Evidence Act, has held that it is necessary for the
propounder of the Will to prove that the testator signed it; that he understood
the nature and effect of the depositions of the Will; and that he had affixed his
signature on the Will knowing what it contains, in the followin g terms:

"18 ....Section 59 provides that every person of sound mind,
not being a minor, may dispose of his property by will and the
three illustrations to this section indicate what is meant by the
expression " a person of sound mind " in the context. Section
63 requires that the testator shall sign or affix his mark to the
will or it shall be signed by some other person in his presence
and by his direction and that the signature or mark shall be so
made that it shall appear that it was intended thereby to give
effect to the writing as a will. This section also requires that the
will shall be attested by two or more witnesses as prescribed.
Thus the question as to whether the will set up by the
propounder is proved to be the last will of the testator has to
be decided in the light of these provisions. Has the testator
signed the will ? Did he understand the nature and effect of the
dispositions in the will ? Did he put his signature to the will
knowing what it contained 7 ....."

13.  Inthe case of Smt. Maya Devi (supra) the Supreme Court while taking
into consideration the judgment rendered in the case of H. Venkatachala
Iyengar (supra), has further held that a claim based on a Will must fail in the
absence of any evidence to show that the executor of the Will had informed
anybody previonsly that he was going to make a Will or that the scribe of the
Will had been given instructions by the executor for drawing up a Will moreso
in the absence of examining the scribe of the Will, in the following terms:-

"In our view, the District Judge and the High Court had come
to the correct conclusion about the will not being a genuine
document. No evidence was led to show that Shankar Dayal
had even informed anybody previously that he was going to
make a will. The scribe of the. will who could have given
evidence about the testator’s giving instructions for the drawing
up of the will was not examined ...."

14.  In the case of Rani Purnima Debi (supra) the Supreme Court has
. again analyzed the law in this regard while specifically laying down that the
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aforesaid requirements are not exchuded nor can they be overlooked merely
on the ground or on the fact that the Will has duly been registered in the
following terms in paras 23 & 24:- '

"23. There is no doubt that if a will has been registered, thatis a
circumstance which may, having regard to the circumstances,
prove its genuineness. But the mere fact that a will is registered
will not by itself be sufficient to dispel all suspicion regarding it
where suspicion exists, without submitting the evidence of
registration to a close examination. If the evidence as to the
registration on a close examination reveals that the registration
. ‘was made in such a manner that it was brought home to the testator
that the document of which he was admitting execution was a will
disposing of his property and thereafter he admitted its execution
and signed it in token thereof, the registration will dispel the doubt
as to the genuineness of the will. But if the evidence as to
registration shows that it was done in 2 perfunctory manner, that
the officer registering the will did not read it over to the testator or
did not bring home to him that he was admitting the execution of
awill or did not satisfy himselfin some other way (as, for example,
by seeing the testator reading the will) that the testator knew that
it was a will the execution of which he was ddmitting, the fact that
the will was registered would not be of much value. It is not
unknown that registration may take place without the executant
really knowing what he was registering. Law reports are full of
cases in which registered wills have not been acted upon (see for
example, Vellasaway Sarvai v. L. Sivaraman Servai, ILR 8
Rang 179; (AIR 1930 PC 24), Surendra Nath Lahiri v.
Jnanendra Nath Lahiri, A.LR. 1932 Cal. 574 and Girji Datt
Singh v. Gangotri Datt Singh), A.LR. 1955 8.C. 346.
Therefore, the mere fact of registration may not by itself be enough
to dispel all suspicion that may attach to the execution and
_attestation of a will; though the fact that there has been registration
would be an important circumstance in favour of the will being
genuine ifthe evidence as to régistration establishes that the testator
admitted the execution of the will after knowing that it was a will
the execution of which he was admitting.

24.  The question therefore is whether in the circumstances
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of the present case the evidence as to registration discloses
that the testator knew that he was admitting the execution of a
will when he is said to have put down his signature at the bottom
of the will in the presence of Arabali. We have scrutinized that
evidence carefully and we must say that the evidence falls short
of satisfying us in the circumstances of this case that the testator

_ knew that the document the execution of which he was
admitting before Arabali and at the bottom of which he signed
was his will. Therefore we are left with the bald fact of
registration which in our opinion is insufficient in the
circumstances of this case to dispel the suspicious circumstances
which we have enumerated above. We are therefore not

+ satisfied about the due execution and attestation of this will by
the testator and hold that the propounder has been unable to
dispel the suspicious circumstances which surround the
execution and attestation of this will. In the circumstances, no-
letters of administration in favour of the respondent can be
granted on the basis of it."

15.  In the case of Bhagat Ram (supra) the Supreme Court while again
analyzing the aforesaid aspect has held that on mere registration of a Will, a
presumption as to the correctness or regularity of the attestation cannot be drawn
and a person claiming through the Will is required to specifically plead and prove
through the attesting witness that the requirement of Section 63 ofthe Succession
Actand Section 68 of the Evidence Act, have been complied with inspite of due
registration in the following terms in paras 21 & 22:-

"21. - Registration of a document does not dispense with the
need of proving the execution and attestation of a document
which is required by law to be proved in the manner as
provided in Section 68 of the Evidence Act. Under Section 58
of the Registration Act the Registrar shall endorse the following
particulars on every document admitted to registration:

(1)  the date, hour and place of presentation of the
document for registration;

@ the signature and addition of every person admitting the
execution of the document, and, if such execution has been
. admitted by the representative, assign or agent of any person, the
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. signature and addition of such representative, assign or agent;

(3) the signature and addition of every person examined
in reference to such document under any of the provisions of
this Act, and

(4)  any payment of money or delivery of goods made in
the presence of the registering officer in reference to the
execution of the document, and any admission of receipt of
consideration, in whole or in part, made in his presence in
reference to such execution.

22, Such particulars as are referred to in Sections 52 and

58 of the Registration Act are required to be endorsed by

Registrar alongwith his signature and date on document under

Section 59 and then certified under Section 60. A presumption
by reference to Section 114 (Illustration (¢)) of the Evidence
Act shall arise to the effect that the events containing in the

endorsement of registration, were regularly and duly performed
and are correctly recorded. None of the endorsements,

required to be made by the Registrar of Deeds under the

Registration Act, contemplates the factum of attestation within
the meaning of Section 63(c) of the Succession Act or Section
68 of the Evidence Act being endorsed or certified by the

Registrar of Deeds. The endorsements made at the time of
registration are relevant to the matters of the registration only
(See: Kunwar Surendra Bahadur Singh v. Thakur Behari
Singh, AIR 1939 PC 117. On account of registration ofa
document, including a will or codicil, a presumption as to

correctness or regularity of attestation cannot be drawn. Where
in the facts and circumstances of a given case the Registrar of
Deeds satisfies the requirement of an attesting witness, he must
be called in the witness box to depose to the attestation. His
evidence would be liable to be appreciated and evaluated like
the testimony of any other attesting witness." '

16.  Inview of the law as aforesaid laid down by the Supreme Court, it is
clear that the Court while looking into these aspects is required to record a
finding to the effect that apart from due registration of theWill, the attestator
knew that he/she was singing a Will, that he/she has infact signed it; that he/ .
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she understood the nature and effect of the deposition in the Will, that it was
read out to him/her and he/she understood its content and that he/she puts his/
her signature on the Will knowing what it contained. '

17.  The substantial question of law, as framed by this Court, in the present
appeal has to be decided on the basis of the aforesaid parameters prescribed
by Section 63 of the Succession Act and Section 68 of the Evidence Act, as
has been held by the Supreme Court in the cases referred to above.

18.  Inthe instant case Exhibit D-1 is the registered Will dated 26.7.1982.
A perusal of this document indicates that it contains the thumb impression of
Rajkunwar Bai and that it has been written by one Manaklal Sharma who has
not been examined. It also contains the signatures of two attesting witnesses
Bhajan Singh and Rama Shankar (D.W-1) who is the husband of the beneficiary
of the Will, Uttra Bai and is the Power of Attorney holder who has prosecuted
the matter on her behalf before all the courts. The note on the back side of the
Will further indicates that at the time of execution of the Will Rajkunwar Bai
was blind as she could not see and that she chose to affix her thurmb impression
as her hand was not steady and was shaking and, therefore, could not affix
her signature.

-19. The only aftesting witness in support of the Will isRama Shanker, D.W-1.

From a perusal of his statement it is clear that he has not stated anywhere in his
examination-in-chief that the Will was written and prepared on the instructions
of Rajkunwar Bai; that it was typed out and read out to her to make sure that it
was in accordance with the instructions issued by her and as per her wishes or
that the contents thereof were ever read out to her and that she understood the
same before affixing her thumb impression on the Will.

20.  In the instant case, the aforesaid aspect assumes tremendous
importance in view of the fact that the Registrar, while registering the Will, has
specifically endorsed that Rajkunwar Bai; at the time of execution of the Will,
was blind and apparently could not see what was written and in such
circumstances it was all the more important that the attesting witness should
have clearly stated that the Will was drafted out as per her instructions; that it
was written down in accordance with her instructions; that it was read out to
her; and that she understood the contents thereof before affixing her thumb
impression on the same. Surprisingly, the scribe of the Will Manaklal Sharma
has also not been examined in this regard nor had the other attesting witness
Bhajan Singh been examined. The statement of the Registrar has also not
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been recorded and, therefore, there is no indication or evidence on record to
indicate that the Will in question was written down in accordance with the
wishes of Rajkunwar Bai; that it was ever read out to her or that she understood
the contents of the same before she affixed her thumb impression on the Will.

21. - Apart from the aforesaid aspects, it is also apparent from a perusal of
the oral and documentary evidence that Rajkunwar Bai, after the death of her
husband in the year 1919 was living in her maternal village and was regularly
being given her share of the produce by the appellants as stated by Rama
Shankar, D.W-1 himself in his statement; that she continued to stay in her
maternal house till May 1982 when the respondent Uttra Bai and her husband
Rama Shankar, D.W-1, brought her to their village; that the Will in question
dated 26.7.1982 was executed within two months of her shifting to the house
- of the respondent/defendant whereafter she died in September 1982 as
admitted by Rama Shankar, D.W-1 in his statement, that admittedly her stay
in the house of the respondent/defendant was only for a very short period of
four months and, therefore, apparently Rajkunwar Bai had neither been looked
after or kept by the respondent/defendant for a very long time, that Rajkunwar
" Bai was blind at the time when the Will was executed and there is nothing on
record to show that she had ever expressed any desire or issued any
instructions to the respondent/defendant or any other person regarding
bequeathing of her share of the property to the respondent/defendant and
that the Will mentions the existence of a previous Will which has neither been
produced and is non-existant and mentions Khasra No.376 as the land in
question although much prior to the date of the execution of the Will, Khasra
No.376 had been renumbered as Khasra No.376/1 and 376/3.

22.  When tke aforesaid attendirg circumstances are re-read alongwith
the fact that there is total absence of any evidence to the effect that Rajkunwar
Bai had ever issued any instructions for drawing up the Will in favour of the
respondent Uttra Bai or that the testator at the relevant time was in a sound
and disposing state of mind or that the Will was every read out to her and
- explained to her at the time of'its execution or that she knew that she was
executing a Will in favour of Uttra Bai and that the scribe of the Will, the
Registrar and other witnesses, have not been examined and Bhagirath Prasad,
P.W.1, who is alleged to have been present at the time of execution of the Will
by Rama Shankar, D.W-I in his statement, has specifically denied any
knowledge about the Will, then in my considered opinion,it has to be held that
. the Will has not been proved in accordance with the provisions of Section 63



868 MPSEB Vs. Girvan Dhakad IL.R.[2013]M.P.

of the Succession Act and Section 68 of the Evidence Act and the findings
recorded by the courts below in ignorance of the aforesaid aspect, apparently
suffers from perversity. '

23.  Inview of the aforesaid evidence, oral and documentary, on record I
am of the considered opinion that the findings recorded by both the courts
below to the effect that the respondent/defendant had pleaded, proved and
established the Will as required by Section 63 of the Succession Act and
Section 68 of the Evidence Act is perverse and suffers from material irregularity.

24, 1 am also of the considered opinion that in view of the law as
consistently laid down by the Supreme Court in the aforementioned judgments,
the substantial question of law framed by this Court in the present appeal
deserves to be and is hereby answered in favour of the appellants.

25.  The appeal, filed by the appellants, is accordingly allowed. The
impugned judgment and decree dated 23.3.1995 passed by the Additional
Judge to the Court of District Judge, Hoshangabad in Civil Appeal No. 14-A/
90 and the judgment and decree dated 28.02.1990 passed by the Civil Judge
Class-II, Seoni Malwa, in Civil Suit No.34-A/1987 are hereby set aside'and
it is accordingty held that the appellants are entitled to a decree of declaration
and injunction as prayed for in respect of the land bearing Khasra Nos.376/1
and 376/3, Patwari Halka No.33, Seoni Malwa.

26. In the facts and circumstances, there shall be no order as to costs.

. Appeal allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 868
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
F.A.No. 284/2005 (Gwalior) decided on 11 February, 2013

MADHYAPRADESH STATE ELECTRICITY BOARD ...Appellant
Vs.
GIRVAN DHAKAD & anr. ...Respondents

" A. Tortuous Act - Strict liability - A person or authority
undertaking an activity involving hazardous or risky exposurgf"tq human
life - Liable to compensate for injury suffered irrespg‘gﬁve of any
" negligence or carelessness on the part of the manager of such
undertaking. (Para 8)
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B. Assessment of Quantum of Compensation - If the specific
provisions are not available in the concerning enactment, then the court
may take into consideration the provisions of some other enactment
like Motor Vehicle Act and its interpretations for the assessment of
Compensation. ' (Para9)
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Cases referred :
2002(1) JLJ 240, (2009) ACJ 1298.

K.N. Gupta with Anmol Khedkar, for the appellant.
Sunil Jain, for the respondents. -

JUDGMENT

U.C. MAHESHWARI, J. :- The appellant /M. P. Electricity Board has
filed this appeal under Section 96 of CPC being aggrieved by the judgment
dated 31.3.2005 passed by 3rd Additional District Judge, Shivpuri in Civil
Suit No.3-B/04 whereby suit of the respondents for compensation of damages
in respect of electrocution death of their son Rajendra has been decreed for
the sum of Rs.1,59,000/- along with the interest @ 6% p. a. from the date of
filing the suit. In addition to it, cost of the suit has also been awarded.

2. The facts giving rise to this appeal in short are that on 21.7.2003
between 9-10 am son of the respondents namely Rajendra was going towards
some agricultural filed for cultivation purpose, on the way he came into the
contact with the open and live electricity wire laying on the way resultantly by
sustaining the electricity current, died on the spot. The incident was reported
to P. S. Kolaras by respondent No.1, on which an inquest intimation was
registered. In its inquiry besides the other formalities autopsy of the dead
body was carried out according to which, he had died dueto electrocution.
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As per further case of the respondents the appellant Electricity Board has
committed grave negligence in maintaining such electricity line and the same
was not repaired within time and that is why the alleged incident was happened.
In further averments it was stated that the deceased being young person was
the only earning member of the family and was earning of Rs.5,000/- p. m.
and due to his untimely death the respondents have come in starvation. With
these averments the impugned suit was filed for compensation of Rs.5,00,000/
-along with the interest @ 12% p. a.

3. On behalf of the respondents by filing the written statement by denying
the material averments of the suit it was stated that the deceased was neither
earning member of the respondents' family nor they were dependent on him.
It is also stated that such wire at that time was not laying on the way due to
any mistake of the appellant Board. In any case, the place where the wire was
laying the same was not the way to approach the field. Besides this, it is also
stated that Electricity Board was never informed about such breaking the wire
and laid on the road otherwise it could have been repaired within time. In such
premises no negligence has been committed on behalf of the appellant. There
is no evidence to show that appellant has violated any rules, regulations and
failed in performing its duty. One more thing is stated that it appears from the
postmortem report that the deceased voluntarily caught hold-the aforesaid
naked wire, and consequently died hence no liability of compensation could
be imposed on the appellant Board. With these averments the prayer for
dismissal of the suit was made.

4. After framing the issues the evidence was recorded, on appreciation
of the same respondent's suit was decreed as stated above, on which the
appellant has come to this Court with this appeal.

3. Shri K. N. Gupta, Senior Advocate after taking me through the record
of the trial Court along with impugned judgment, said that in the available
circumstances the respondents/ plaintiff have utterly failed to prove that on
account of any gross negligence or violation of the duties by the officials of the
appellant the incident was happened. So, firstly on that count the impugned
decree is not sustainable. In continuation he said that unless specifically it is
proved that some duty was viclated by the officials of the appellant and due to
that the deceased died, no liability could be imposed on the appellant Board
and prayed for setting aside the impugned judgment and decree by dismissing
the suit. In alternate he said that in case Court comes to conclusion that there
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is no scope for rejection of the suit then considering the available evidence
according to which, the deceased was not the earning member of the family
the sum awarded by the trial Court being higher side be reduced reasonably
and prayed to allow the appeal accordingly.

6. On the other hand Shri Sunil Jain, learned counsel for the respondent
responding the aforesaid arguments by justifying the impugned judgment and
decree said that same being based on proper appreciation of the evidence
available on record, is in conformity with law, the same does not require any
interference at the stage of appeal. In continuation, he said that the impugned
decree being passed keeping in view of the principle of "strict Liability" could
not be interfered or set aside. In support of such argument by placing his
reliance on a decision of the apex Court in the matter of M. . Electricity
Board Vs. Shail Kumari and others reported in 2002 (1) JLJ 240, he said
that Electricity Board being an institution running the business of electricity
supply and such department knows the risk and other things of such business.
In such premises during the course of such business if some unhappy incident
is happened then in view of principle of strict liability the Board could not
escape from its liability to pay the compensation and by referring the pleadings
and evidence available on record said that it is apparent from the postmortem
report and the depositions of the witnesses that the deceased died on the way
due to sustaining the injuries of electricity current from the open and live wire
laying on the floor. As such the same was not repaired by the officials working
with the appellant Board to look after and maintain the electricity lines and
prayed for dismissal of this appeal.

7. Having heard keeping in view the arguments advanced after perusing
the record of the trial Court along with the impugned judgment, I am of the
considered view that the trial Court has not committed any error or perversity
either in appreciation of the evidence or in decreeing the suit of the respondents.

8. As per available evidence including the postmortem report said
Rajendra had died due to electrocution death. So in such premises, this Court
has to answer only one question, whether in the lack of any information about
breaking tile live wire laying on agricultural filed the liability to pay the
compensation could be saddled on the appellant-Board. Before proceedings
further to examine this question, I would like to reproduce the relevant para
of the decision of the Apex Court in the matter of "Shail Kumari and others"
(Supra), in which considering the identical question it was held as under.
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"Even assuming that all such measures have been adopted, a
person undertaking an activity involving hazardous or risky
exposure to human life, is liable under law of torts to
compensate for the injury suffered by any other person,
. irrespective of any negligence or carelessness on the part of
the managers of such undertakings. The basis of such liability
is foreseeable risk inherent in the every nature of such activity.
The liability cast on such person is known, in law, as "strict
liability". It differs from the liability which arises on account of
the negligence or fault in this way . e. the concept of negligence
comprehends that the foreseeable harm could be avoided by
taking reasonable precautions. If the defendant did all that
which could be done for avoiding the harm he can not be held
liable when the action is based on any negligence attributed.
But such consideration is not relevant in cases of strict liability
where the defendant is held liable irrespective of whether he
could have avoided the particular harm by taking precautions.”

In view of aforesaid dictum of the Apex Court, on examining the
case at hand, I am of the view that in the available factual matrix, the
principle of "strict liability" as laid down in the cited case is applicable,
The appellant Board khow /knewit business hazardous, risk and liabilities.
So, on happening the alleged incident, the appellant could not be escaped
to pay the compensation. So, in such premises, I have not found any
perversity, in the impugned judgment holding the liability to pay
compensation on the appellant.

9. It is apparent on record that the impugned suit was filed by the
respondents for compensation under the law of torts and damages, I agree
with the submission of learned Senior counsel of the appellant that for
assessment of the compensation regarding electrocution death, neither the
specific rules have been enacted nor any specific direction in this regard has
been given by the Legislature in any existing law. But to assess the reasonable
quantum of compensation, if the specific provisions are not available in the
concerning enactment then the Court may on consideration such question
keeping in view the provisions of some other enactments and if's interpretations
in which the question of compensation has been considered and adjudicated
and in such premises, the approach of the trial Court could not be said to be
arbitrary or contrary to law.

i
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10.  Undisputedly the respondents are the parents of the deceased and
not the wife and children and in such premises on examining the
reasonableness of the awarded sum of compensation then in view of
aforesaid discussions, there is no option with the Court except to assess
the compensation keeping in view of the provisions of Motor Vehicles
Act and its interpretations.

11.  Assuch in the light of the aforesaid, Court has to answer that if a
person of 18 years is died in an accident then, how much his income could be
assessed and out of which, how much amount could be awarded as
compensation to the dependents of such deceased.

12.  True it is that the Court has not to decide the dependency but to
decide the just and reasonable compensation for the respondents.
Therefore, keeping in view the provisions of Motor Vehicles Act relating
to accidents claims and taking into consideration the principle laid down -
by the Apex Court in the matter of Sarla Verma and others Vs. Delhi
Transport Corporation and others reported in (2009) ACJ 1298, on
examining the case at hand in the available circumstances, I have not
found any force or substance in the matter to reduce the sum decreed by
the trial Court in in favour of the respondents. As such the trial Court has
asses the income of the deceased Rs.2000/- pm which comes to
Rs.24,000/- that the impugned suit has been filed by the parents of
deceased, thus on deducting 50% sum, which would have been spent by
the deceased on himself, had he been alive, the annual dependency of the
respondents comes to Rs. 24000-12000=Rs.12000/- and on adopting
the multiplier of 16, then the dependency comes about one lac ninety five
thousand besides the traditional expenses. I am also of the view that in
the year 2003 the income of young boy of 18 years Rs.5000/-P.M. as
held by the trial Court could not be said to be higher side. So in such
premises also, the quantum of sum decreed by the trial Court is not required
any interference.

13.  Inthe aforesaid premises, by affirming the impugned judgment and
decree, this appeal is hereby dismissed. The appellant shall bear it's own cost
of the appeal as well as the cost of the respondents.

14.  Appeal is dismissed as indicated above.

Appeal dismissed.
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APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice N.K. Mody
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MANJU SAHU & ors. ...Appellants
Vs.
GYANI SINGH RAJPUT & ors. -..Respondents

A. Motor Veliicles Act (59 of 1988), Section 163 -
Compensation - Income - Claimants filed and proved the last pay
certificate - Name of bank is also mentioned in certificate - Employee
maintaining the record was also examined - Tribunal erred in holding
that claimants have failed to prove that deceased was teacher and was
getting salary of Rs. 4,284/- - Compensation enhanced.(Paras 6 & 7
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B. Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Sections 10 & 147 -
Liability of Insurance Company -License - Road roller is a different
class of vehicle requiring separate license - Driver was possessing
license of L.M..V. - As driver was not possessing valid driving license
but since the deceased was a third party, Insurance Company shall pay
with right of recovery from owner and driver - Appeal allowed (Para 8)
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Pramod Thakire, for the appellants.
Amrit Ruprah, for the respondents/Insurance Company. -
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ORDER

N.K. Moby, J.: This order shall also govern the disposal of MA
No.16/2009, filed by the respondent No.3. As in both the appeals the award
under challenge is dated 24/10/2008 passed by MACT, Narsinghur, in claim
case No.77/07, whereby claim petition filed by the appellant was allowed
and compensation of Rs 2.47,120/-, was awarded present appeal has been
filed. In the appeal filed by the appellant, the prayer is for enhancement of the
compensation, while in the appeal filed by the respondent No.3, the prayer is
that respondent No.3 be exonerated.

2. Short facts of the case are that appellant filed a claim petition alleging
that on 28/09/2007, Shivkumar was going on his motor bike along with his
wife and children, at that time road roller, which was owned by respondent
No.2 and insured with respondent No.3 and was being driven by respondent
No.1, rashly and negligently, dashed the motor bike of the deceased, with the
result deceased sustained head injuries and passed away. It was alleged that
deceased was Teacher and was earning Rs.4,284/- per month. It was alleged
that claim petition be allowed and adequate compensation be awarded.

3. The claim petition was contested by respondent No.3 on various
grounds including on the ground that respondent No.1 was not possessing
valid driving license. It was alleged that the offending vehicle was being driven

by respondent No.1 in violation of terms of the policy, therefore, claim petition

be dismissed. After framing of issues and recording of evidence, learned
tribunal allowed the claim petition and awarded a sum of Rs.2,47,120/- as
compensation, against which present appeal has been filed.

4. Learned counsel for the appellant submits that learned tribunal assessed
the income Rs.2,000/- per month and after deducting 1/3 towards personal
expenses applied the multiplier of 12. It is submitted that there was no
justification on the part of learned tribunal to assess the income ~ Rs.2,000/-
per month. It is submitted that the appeal filed by the appellant be allowed
and the compensation be enhanced.

5. Learned counsel for the respondent No.3 supports the award, so far

" as amount of compensation is concerned, learned counsel submits that since

the offending vehicle was road roller and the respondent No.1 was possessing
driving license to drive Light Motor Vehicle, therefore, learned tribunal was
not justified in holding the respondent No.3 liable for payment of compensation.
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Itis sﬁbmitted that the appeal filed by the respondent No.3 be allowed and
the findings whereby respondent No.3 has been held liable, be set aside.

6. From perusal of the record, it appears that Ex.P. 1, is the Last Pay
Certificate, wherein salary paid to the deceased @ Rs.4,284/-, The name of
the bank is also mentioned in the certificate. The employee who is maintaining
the account , was also examined. In the circumstances, there was no
justification in holding that appellant failed to prove that deceased was Teacher
and was getting salary of Rs.4,284/-. Thus, the appellants are entitled for the
following amount:

Rs  5,80,120/- Towards loss of dependency
Rs. 5,000/- Towards funeral expenses
Rs. 5,000/- Towards consortium
Rs, 5,000/~ Towards loss of estate
Rs. 20,000/- Towards love and affection
Rs. 6,15,000/- Total
7. In other words, in view of this, the claimant is held entitled for a total

sum of Rs.6,15,000/- by way of compensation for the injuries sustained by
appellant in the accident. The enhanced amount of Rs 3,6 8,000/- shall carry
interest @ 8% p.a. from the date of application. The amount awarded shal] be
deposited by the Insurance Company with the learned tribunal and the learned
tribunal is directed to invest 80% of the said amount on long term fixed deposit
in the name of appellant in the nearest Nationalized Bank, in the area where
the appellant is residing, with the condition that the bank will not permit any
loan or advance. Interest on the said amount shall be credited on monthly
basis in S.B. Account of appellant, which shall be opened by the appellant
from where appellant can withdraw the amount as per his needs. Howéver, on
an application by the appellant this condition could be modified by the learned
tribunal in exceptional circumstances, if made out by the appellant.

8. Undoubtedly the offending vehicle was road roller. Section 10 of the
Motor Vehicles Act, deals with different types of license. Road rolleris a
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different class of vehicle, for which separate license is necessary. Undoubtedly
respondent No.1 was possessing the license to drive Light Motor Vehicle, in
the circumstances respondent No.1 was not possessing valid driving license.
Since the deceased was a third party, therefore, instead of holding the
respondent No.3 liable, right of recovery ought have been given to the
respondent No.3. In view of this, the appeal filed by the appellant is allowed
and the amount of compensation is enhanced. -

9. So far as liability is concerned, keeping in view that the respondent
No.1 was not possessing valid driving license, the respondent No.3 shall pay
and shall have a right to recover the same from respondents No. 1 and 2.

10.  With the aforesaid modification both the appeals stand di sposed of.
1. Copy of the order be placed in the connected case.
" Appeal disposed of.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 877
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
M.A. No. 1107/2005 (Gwalior) decided on 27 February, 2013

OM PRAKASH GUPTA & ors. . ...Appellants
Vs.
WAJEER AHMED ALINAYAK WADI & anr. ...Respondents

Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Section 173 - Enhancement of
Compensation - Tribunal as well as appellate court are bound to take
into consideration not only the present scenario or the present income
of the deceased but also his education status and future prospects -
Even the non earning person of the family if suffers the injury or dies
in the vehicular accident, then on the basis of notional income the victim
or dependent are entitled to get compensation - In such cases
compensation may he awarded either on the basis of principle of
notional income or as per the rate of minimum wages fixed by the State.

(Paras 9 to 10)
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Case referred :

(2009) 6 SCC 121.

Anvesh Jain, for the appellants.
None for the respondent No.1.
Mahesh Goyal, for the respondent No.2.

ORDER

U.C. MAHESHWARY, J.:- The appellants/claimants have filed this appeal
under section 173 of the Motor Vehicle Act (in short “the Act') for enhancement
of the sum awarded by the Vth MACT, Morena in claim case No.31/04 vide
award dated 12/8/2005 whereby their claim with respect of vehicular death
of Tarun aged 22 years the son of appellant No.1 and 2 while brother of
appellant No.3 and 4, has been awarded against the respondents for the sum
of Rs.2,43,500/- along with interest at the rate of 6% per annum from the
date of filing the claim petition if the payment is made within two months and
if the payment is made beyond this period then @ 9% per annum. The liability
to pay such sum is saddled jointly and severally against both the respondents.

2. The facts giving rise to this appeal in short are that the appellants
herein filed the claim petition in the aforesaid tribunal contending that on 19.8.03
at about 12 O' clock in the nizht, the aforesaid Ta-un Agarwal, aged 22 years
while riding his Yamaha motorcycle MH-14-T/1057 reached in front of the
gate of court compound, Pune. At the same time from the side of Kamguar
statute a PMT bus bearing registration No. MH-12-AR/7942 driven by
respondent No.1 in a rash and negligent manner, came and dashed his
motorcycle from the front side, resultantly, he fell down. The pillion rider
Sandeep (AW-2) also fell down. In such incident, Tarun Agarwal sustained
fatal injuries on his head and subsequently succumbed to such injuries. As per
further averments such bus was registered with the RTO in the name of
respondent No.2 while respondent No.1 was driving the same under the
employment of respondent No.2. On receiving the report, a criminal case
was registered at the concerning police station. After holding the investigation,
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respondent No.l was charge sheeted for the offence of section 304-A of the
IPC. In addition it is stated that deceased Tarun, at the time of accident, was
prosecuting his studies of Engineering in Computer Science and was the student
of TII year at Pune and very soon after completing such degree, he would
have got the job in some higher package in lacs. In his education, huge amount
was spent by his parents and due to his untimely death, they have not only
suffered the mental agony but have also been deprived from the benefit of
future income of the deceased so also the love and affection of the deceased.
With these averments, under different heads, the impugned claim was filed by
the appellants for the sum of Rs.76,25,000/- along with interest @ 18% per
annum.

3. Respondent No.1 inspite service of the notice did not appear before
the tribunal,hence the case was proceeded ex-parte against him.

4. In reply of respondent No.2, it is stated that the claim petition has
been filed contrary to rule 220 and 221 of the M.P.Motor Vehicle Rules,1994.
It is further stated that along with the claim petition no papers regarding
qualification or the education of the deceased have been placed or sent to
such respondents. It is also stated that the appellants No.3 and 4, being brother
and sister of the deceased, were not dependent on him. Besides this, the
deceased was not earning member of the family so the appellants have not
been deprived from any right of dependency. In further averments it is stated
that the aforesaid motorcycle was driven by the deceased in arash and negligent
manner and that was the only cause for the accident and, in such premises,
the deceased himself was responsible for the alleged accident and there was
no negligence on the part of the bus of the respondents or its driver. In alternate,
itis pleaded that, in any case, it was the case of contributory negligence tecause
both the vehicles have been collided from front side. The claim is filed by
assessing the sum on excessive side for which the appellants are not entitled
and prayed for dismissal of the claim petition.

5. In view of the aforesaid pleadings of the parties, issues were framed,on
which, the evidence was recorded. On appreciation of the same, by holding
that the alleged incident was the cause and consequence of rash and negligent
driving of the aforesaid bus by respondent No.1, it was held that due to such
negligent act of respondent No.1, deceased Tarun Agarwal had died in the
alleged incident. The appellant No.3 and 4 were held to be the unnecessary
party in the matter. The deceased was not found to be responsible to commit
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any contributory negligence in the alleged accident and, in such premises, the
claim of appellant No.1 and 2 was awarded by the tribunal for the sum of
Rs.2,43,500/- as stated above. Being dissatisfied with the awarded sum,
appellants have come to this court for further enhancement of the same.

6. Appellants counsel after taking me through the record of the tribunal
as well as the impugned award by referring the depositions of the witnesses
examined on behalf of the claimant said that looking to the nature of the
education of the deceased and his future prospects, whatsoever amount has
been assessed taking into consideration the imaginary income of the deceased
@ Rs.3000/- per month, the sum awarded by the tribunal is not sufficient.
The same is very meager and lesser side. In any case, deceased Tarun, who
was prosecuting his studies in III year of computer engineering, should have
been treated by the tribunal to be the educated person of technical side and,
in such premises, in view of the available unrebutted evidence on record, his
expected future income ought to have been assessed @ of Rs.15000/- per
month. In continuation he also said that the claim of the respondent No.3 and
4 was wrongly dismissed by the tribunal holding them to be the unnecessary
party in the matter. He further said that the Court ought to have taken the
judicial notice that on obtaining the degree of engineering after two years the
deceased would have got the job with the package of 2 to 2.5 lacs per year
had he been alive and such expected imaginary income of the deceased has
been proved by the witness Sandeep (A.W.1) and such version has not been
challenged by the respondent No.2 in his cross examination. In view of such
unrebutted evidence the income of the deceased ought to have been taken @
Rs. 2 t0 2.5 lacs per annum. He also said that multiplier of 13 was wrongly
adopted by the tribunal. Taking into consideration the age of the deceased,
the multiplier of 15 should have been adopted or in any case, keeping in view
the age 0of 41 years of his mother the appellant No.2 in the light of the principle
laid down in the matter of Sarla Verma (Smt) and others Vs. Delhi Transport
Corporation and another-(2009) 6 SCC 121 the multiplier of 14 should
have been applied and prayed for enhancement of the sum awarded by the
tribunal up to the extent prayed in the claim petition by allowing this appeal.

7. On the other hand, responding the aforesaid arguments, Shri Mahesh
Goyal, counsel of respondent No.2 by justifying the findings of the impugned
award said that the same being based on proper appreciation of the available
evidence, is in conformity with law and in the available circumstances the sum
awarded by the tribunal is just and proper. The same does not require further
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enhancement at this stage. In continuation he said that according to admission
of the claimant himself, the deceased was not the caming member of the family
and in that premises, the amount which has been awarded by the tribunal is
more than the amount of notional income. So, in such premises also it does
not require further enhancement. He further said that unless the earning of the
deceased person is proved on record, mere on the basis of assumption and
presumption or on the basis of imagination, no order for enhancing the awarded
sum could be passed against the respondents. He further said that keeping in
view the age of appellant No.1, the father of the deceased, the multiplier of
13 was rightly adopted. The same does not require any interference at this
stage and prayed for dismissal of this appeal.

8. Having heard the counsel at length, keeping in view their arguments, I
have carefully gone through the record as well as the impugned award. It is
undisputed fact on record that at the time of alleged accident, deceased Tarun
Agarwal was prosecuting the course of III year in Engineering in Computer
Science at Pune. His age 22 years, is also not in dispute. It is also undisputed
fact on record that on the date of aforesaid vehicular accident deceased Tarun
was not earning member of the family although on the expenses of the Family
and parents, he was prosecuting his studies at Pune.

9. It is settled proposition of the law that whenever the claim of
compensation under the Motor Vehicle Act is decided then the tribunal as
well as the appellate court are bound to take into consideration not only the
present scenario or the present income of the deceased on the date of the
incident but his education status and future prospects should also be taken
into consideration. In such premises Court may take notice in this regard that
now a days for higher education parents sent their children to metro cities for
higher education in which huge amount is also spent by them. It is necessary
to mention here that now a days the fees of technical education like engineering
per semester are in thousands of rupees. Besides this, to meet the expenses
of hostel, mess, conveyance, stationary, clothes, cosmetics and other necessary
things for human being in day to day life the huge sum is required. So, such
amount is also spent by the parents or otherfamily members under the
expectation that some day, after getting the degree of such technical education,
their children will serve the parents and family from his income. I the case at
hand, it could be said safely that after obtaining the degree of graduation in
computer science, deceased could have got the job and earned the money in
some lacs per year, had he been alive. But inspite spending huge amount by
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the parents the appellant No.1 and 2 on their son Tarun in connection of his
higher education due to his untimely death in the alleged vehicular accident
their all dreams and expectations from their son in future have come to an end.
Besides this they have also been deprived from the sum spent by them in
making the career and and the future of said son. In such premises they have
also been deprived from their future right of dependency on the income of the
son.

10.  So, while dealing with the claim case, the court is bound to take all
these things into consideration to assess the just and proper compensation for
the parents of the deceased. It is also settled proposition of the law that even
the non-earning person of the family if suffers the injury or dies in the vehicular
accident, then on the basis of notional income or the available interpretation
of such provision of notional income the victim or the dependents as the case
may be are entitled to get the compensation. Such compensation is awarded
either taking into consideration the principle of notional income or on the basis
of rate of minimum wages fixed by the State. Simultaneously court is also
bound to assess the compensation keeping in view the educational status of
the deceased along with his expected income after obtaining the degree of his
education so also the future prospects of the professional course in which the
deceased was studying.

11.  So,keeping in view the aforesaid,on examining the case at hand then
as per findings of the tribunal the deceased was studying in Il year of computer
science engineering. Their cannot be two opinions on the question that after
passing the Engineering course or getting the degree of B.E in computer science,
the deceased would have got the job in some institution or company where in
normal course, the annual package between 4 to 5 lacs is initially given and
thereafter within 9 to 10 years, such annual package comes upto Rs. 10 lacs
or more. So, such future prospects could not be ignored while deciding the
claim of the students of technical side.

12.  Itisnotin dispute that the tribunal has also considered this aspect and
held that the deceased was prosecuting the study of Il year in engineering but
keeping in view that he was not the earning member, his imaginary future
income was assessed and taken only Rs.3000/- per month and on that basis,
keeping in view the principle laid down by the Apex Court in the case of Sarla
Verma (supra) the sum of compensation was assessed. According to which
fifty percent sum was deducted on account of expenses of the deceased which
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he would have spent on himself, had he been alive and assessed the dependency -
of the appellants No.1 and 2 on the deceased to be fifty percent and taking
into consideration the age of father 46 years and not the age of mother 42
years, the multiplier of 13 was adopted and compensation was assessed and
awarded accordingly.

13.  Butinview of the aforesaid discussion, I do not agree with the approach
of the tribunal whereby the income of the deceased was taken only @
Rs.3000/- per month which is normally taken into consideration as income of
the unskilled laborer and not for the person of the technical side. So, the
impugned award requires the modification on the assessment of imaginary
monthly income of the deceased so also in respect of adopting the multiplier.
Because the tribunal has committed error in adopting the multiplier in view of
the age of the father of the deceased while the same ought to have been
adopted in view of the age of mother which is at lower side.

14. In view of the aforesaid discussion, keeping in view the future
prospects and the scope of Engineering jobs in our country, according to
which, the junior engineer at his initial stage of the career is getting the package
of between Rs.3 to 5 lacs per annum and as per evidence of the colleague of
the deceased, namely, Sandeep (A.W. 2), now a days, Engineers are getting
the job with the package of 2 to 2.5 lacs per annum and it is apparent fact on
record that such part of the deposition of in-chief has not been cross-examined
on behalf of respondent No.2. So such part of the deposition being unrebutted
on record in the available facts and circumstances of the case and in existing
legal position could not be ignored and on that basis, the court has to decide
the quantum of compensation.

15. Iwould like to mention here that after death of grown-up son of 22
years who was student of IIl year Engineering in computer science, his parents
the appellant No.1 and 2 who were expécting support from the deceased in
future have been deprived from such expectation and support so also from
their future dependency on the deceased. The parents have also been deprived
from the huge sum spend by them on the deceased for making the educational
career in engineering course. The provisions of the claim under the Motor
Vehicle Act, being the provision of social welfare, the appellants/claimants
could not be deprived from the just and proper compensation regarding death
of their son Tarun Agarwal.
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16.  Inview ofthe aforesaid discussion, taking into consideration the future
prospect of the engineers in our country and availability of jobs in such branch
so also the expected imaginary salary of the Engineering branch, in the available
scenario, especially in view of the deposition of Sandeep (A.W.2) who
categorically stated about initial package of the job between Rs.2 t0 2.5 lacs
per annum, I take the expected imaginary income of the deceased Rs. 15000/-
per month which he could have earned just after two years on obtaining the
degree, had he been alive, the same comes to Rs.15 X12=1,80,000/- per
annum and in the available scenario, the claimants being his parents, father
and mother then in view of the aforesaid decision of the Apex Court in the
matter of Sarla Verma (supra), the court has to deduct first the fifty percent

sum on account of expenses of the deceased which he would have spent on
himself, had he been alive then the annual expected dependency of appellants
No.1 and 2 comes to Rs.90,000/- per annum. Keeping in view the age of
mother 42 years, which is less than the father, in view of the aforesaid case of
Sarla Verma (supra) , the multiplier of 14 is applicable. On applying the same,
the total dependency comes to[Rs.12,60,000/-. Besides this, appellants No.1

and 2 are also entitled to get Rs.15,000/- towards traditional heads hke funeral
expenses, loss of estate and love and affection.

17. Iwould like to mentlon here that any of the findings of the tribunal
holding responsibility of the impugned claim against the respondents jointly
and severally, has not been challenged by either of the respondents before this
court by way of appeal or by filing any cross-objection in the present appeal.
So, such approach and findings of the tribunal have attained finality between
the parties, hence the same does not require any interference.

18.  Inview of the aforesaid discussion, by allowing this appeal in part, the
impugned award is modified and the sum awarded by the tribunal is further
enhanced from Rs.2,43,500/- to Rs.12,75,000/- as discussed above. The
enhanced sum shall carry the interest @ 6% per annum from the date of filing
the claim petition, if the same is paid within three months from today otherwise
the same shall carry interest @ 9% per annum. Till this extent, the impugned
award of the tribunal is modified while the other findings of the same are
hereby affirmed. '

19. Inthe facts and circumstances of the case, there shail be no order as
to the cost.

. Appeal partly allowed.
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KISHANLAL o Appellant
Vs. - . . .
ASHOK KUMAR & anr.. - ...Respondents .

A, Specific Relief Act (4 7. of 1963), Section 16 - Specific
Performance of Contract - Defendant having 21 acres of land deriving -

profit out of it - No evidence that the defendant wanted to establisha - o
business or was unable to manage the land or was not obtaining profit - -

from the said land - Only 5 acres out of 21 acres of land was agreed to
be sold - No evidence that defendant was in need of money - No

explanatuon that why defendant agreed to sell the land to the plaintiff- -~ .. ¥ *:‘

Agreement of sale surroundeéd by heavy dark clouds. . (Para 20)
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B. Specific Relief Act (47 of 1963), Section 16 - Spec:f ic -
Performance of Contract - Plaintiff is alleged to have agreed.t_o purchase .

5 acres of land for a consideration of Rs. 50,000/- - Rs. 45,000 wére - "?"

paid on the date of execution of agreement - When the 90% of the
total consideration was already paid then why sale deed was'not. got
executed by paying the entire amount - Explanation given by plan_mff

that defendant was going to his village is not plausible becal'lse"'the_" -

agreement to sell was executed in Tehsil Kachehari - Why the sale
deed was not executed in the office of sub'-registrar which is situated
in the same locality is an another circumstance which makes the
agreement of sale hlghly susplclous. : (Para 21)
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C. Specific Relief Act (47 of 1963), Section 16 - Specific
Performance of Contract - Defendant alleged to have approached the
plaintiff to sell 5 acres of land on 07.03.1990 and agreement to sell was
executed on the same day - Normally intending purchaser will never
purchase an immovable property without examining it - Suit property
is also adjacent to river and growing good crops - Evidence available
_ on record also shows that defendant was threatened by putting him
into fear of his arrest by police and under coercion and undue influence
he put his signatures upon the document of agreement of sale -
Circumstances available on record clearly show that the agreement to
sell was suspicious document - Suit dismissed - Appeal allowed.

(Paras 25 to 37)
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V.S. Shroti with Vikram Jc;hri, for the appellant.
None for the respondent No.1/Plaintiff though served.
Akhilesh Singh, P.L. for the respondent No. 2/State.

St



v

”»

LLR.[2013]MP. . Kishanlal Vs.Ashok Kumar 887
S JUDGMENT

~A.K. SHRIVASTAVA, J. :- Feeling aggrieved by the judgment and decree
dated 7th March, 1996 passed by learned Second Additional District Judge,
Hoshangabad in Civil Suit No. 2-A/1991 whereby the suit of plaintiff-
respondent for specific performance of contract has been decreed, this first
appeal under Section 96 CPC has been filed by the defendant.

2. In this judgment, wherever the expression 'defendant’ is used it would
mean first defendant Kishanlal because second defendant, the State of M.P,
has been impleaded as formal party in view of Order I Rule 3(B) State
Amendment in the CPC.

3. In brief, the suit of plaintiffis that the suit land is 5 acres of agricultural
land situated in Mouza Banada, Tehsil Seoni Malwa, District Hoshangabad
is owned by appellant-defendant in his Bhumiswami right having possession
over it. The defendant approached respondent-plaintiff on 7.3.1990 at Seoni
Malwa and expressed his desire to sell 5 acres of his land at the market rate
Rs.10,000/- per acre and the said proposal was accepted by the plaintiff and
he asked the defendant to execute a document of agreement of sale and
eventually on 7.3.1990 a document of agreement of sale was executed. It is
the further case of plaintiff that the sale consideration was agreed between the
parties to be Rs.50,000/- and out of this amount a sum of Rs.45,000/- was
paid on the date of agreement of sale and this has also been embodied in the
document of agreement of sale. According to the plaintiff it was agreed between
the parties that the balance amount of consideration Rs.5,000/- shall be paid
at the time of execution of the sale deed and it was agreed that the sale deed
will be executed on or before 30.6.1990 at the pleasure of the plaintiff.

4, In the plaint it has also been pleaded that the plaintiffis carrying on the
business at Banapura and the defendant is the resident of interior village Mouza
Banada of Tehsil Seoni Malwa. Further pleading of the plaintiff is that the
defendant was desirous to get the suit property sold because he wanted to
establish his business at Banapura. According to the plaint averments the
defendant was not able to manage his land properly and was not getting profits
from the disputed land and therefore, out of his entire holdings of agricultural
land he was desirousto sell 5 acres of land to the plaintiff. It has been further
pleaded in the plaint para 2(b) that because in the vicinity of Seoni Malwa the
plaintiff may not get any land @ Rs.10,000/- per acre as a result of which he
accepted the offer of defendant to purchase his 5 acres of land for a
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consideration of Rs.50,000/-. The plaintiff also expressed his willingness that
immediately he is ready to pay entire sale consideration and is ready to get the
sale deed executed, on this the defendant told that although he is ready to
execute the sale deed but he has to go out of station and therefore, instead of
executing the sale deed and getting it registered a document of agreement of
sale may be executed, eventually the aforesaid agreement of sale was executed.

5. In para-3 of the plaint it has been pleaded by the plaintiff that despite
the plaintiff orally requested defendant to get the sale deed executed but he
tried to avoid it and when it created doubt in the mind of plaintiff that defendant
may turn up from his part of contract, he sent a notice by registered A/d post
through his counsel on 11.6.1990 asking the defendant to get the sale deed
executed on 30.6.1990 and in case this date is not suitable to him, the date
which is suitable to him may be intimated so that the sale deed may be executed
on that date. This notice of plaintiff was received by defendant on 12.6.1990
but till the suit was filed on 10.12.1990 the sale deed was not executed by the
defendant. Further it has been pleaded that instead of getting the sale deed

~

executed a false reply was sent by defendant through his counsel Shri D.S.

Mandloi in which a false story has been set up but the plaintiff has nothing to
do with that story. On the basis of these pleadings the plaintiff had filed suit for
specific performance of contract.

6.  The defendant-appellant specifically denied the plaint averments. In
para-2(a) of the written-statement there is specific pleading of defendant that
he never intended to sell his land which is under his cultivation and the details
are pleaded in the additional pleading. In this para this fact has also been
denied by him that he cannot manage his agricultural land and further denied
that he is not deriving any profit from the suit land. The factum of expressing
to start a business in Seoni Malwa has also been denied.

7. In the special plea of the written-statement it has been specifically
pleaded that he never intended to sell the suit land to plaintiff-respondent
No.1. According to him, in the capacity of Commission Agent of one Vimal
Seth who is one of the relative of plaintiff, his 100 bags of grain and also 24
quintals of plaintiffs 4lsi (linseed) by loading them in a truck, he carried them
to Nagpur at the instance of said Vimal Seth on 1.3.1990 and he delivered the
goods as per the instructions of plaintiff and Vimal Seth, to the broker Pramod
Kumar of Nagpur who after taking his commission paid a sum of Rs.45,000/-
to'the defendant but when he was coming to Seoni Malwa back along with

T
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cash amount of Rs.45,000/- of said Vimal Seth and plaintiff, he was looted
and robbed at Nagpur Railway Station by some miscreants. Further it has
been pleaded that not only cash amount of Rs.45,000/- was looted but his
wrist watch, chain and rings etc. were also snatched by brandishing knife by
those miscreants. Eventually he also lodged a report to the GR.P. Police Station
on the same date on 2.3.1990. The broker Pramod Kumar also informed
Vimal Seth when he (Vimal Seth) reached to Nagpur but upon a false complaint
made by Vimal Seth who is also the nearrelative of plaintiff, the GR.P. Police
at Nagpur, came to defendant's village Banapura and took the defendant to
Nagpur for investigation and pressurised him to pay an amount of Rs.45,000/-
to Vimal Seth, he was also beaten in the police station and on giving undertaking
and assurance of making payment Rs.45,000/-to Vimal Seth and plaintiff the
police personnel released him. It has also been pleaded that Vimal Seth who
was present at Nagpur gave Rs.6,000/- as a loan to defendant to pay illegal
gratification to the police personnel at Nagpur and the said amount defendant
‘paid to said Vimal Seth when he came back to his village Banapura, but, said
Vimal Seth who is in near relation of plaintiff-respondent Ashok Kumar asked
defendant to pay an amount of Rs.45,000/- which was given by the broker
Pramod Kumar in cash to him and when he put his inability that at present he
is not having that much amount of cash a document of agreement of sale
stating therein the consideration of Rs.45,000/- was executed and threat was
given to him that if he does not execute a sale deed they will call the police
personnel of Nagpur to take penal action against him and upon this threat of
the police and under coercion the document of agreement of sale was executed.
According to the defendant in these facts and circumstances the agreement of
sale dated 7.3.1990 has no sanctity in the eye of law since it has been obtained
under coercion and undue influence and therefore, it has been prayed that the
suit be dismissed.

8. Learned Trial Court framed necessary issues and after recording the
evidence of the parties dismissed the suit. In this manner this appeal has been
filed by the defendant under Section 96 CPC. -

9. In this case the plaintiff-respondent was personally served and he also
appointed counsel but none appeared for him on 3.1.2013 when this appeal
was taken up for hearing, as a result of which this Court directed to issue
SPC to the plaintiff-respondent since his counsel Shri R.K. Pandey had passed
away. The SPC was issued to the respondent-plaintiff for a date of hearing
25.2.2013 but no one appeared on behalf of the respondent.
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10.  The contention of Shri V.8. Shroti, learned senior counsel is that the
story put forth by defendant in additional plea that he was looted by the
miscreants at Nagpur on 2nd March, 1990 in which Rs.45,000/- was looted
was found to be proved and in this regard my attention has been drawn to
para-22 of the impugned judgment. Hence, according to learned senior counsel
the entire episode is to be visualised from this spectrum with the plea of
defendant that he was robbed and a sum of Rs.45,000/- cash and other items
like wrist watch, chain and rings etc. were looted at Nagpur is proved and
therefore, the case of plaintiff become ex facie false.

11. Another contention of learned senior counsel is that before executing
the document (Ex.P-1) the plaintiff never went to the village to examine the
suit property which is highly unnatural for an intending purchaser because
certainly before purchasing an immovable property one would go and examine
the property at the spot. Learned counsel further propounded that the alleged
contract of agreement of sale is not workable because the suit land which is 5
acres is only a piece of entire land owned by plaintiff which comprises of
8.515 hectare i.e. 21.04 acres, but, which specific portion of 5 acres was
agreed to be sold to the plaintiff there is nothing in the document of agreement
of sale. Further it has been contended by him that when 90% of the
consideration (Rs.45,000/-) was paid to the defendant, why directly sale deed
was not executed especially when the plaintiffis a businessman and after paying
a meager amount of Rs,5,000/- a sale deed could be executed. Learned counsel
submits that although in the plaint it has been pleaded that defendant stated
that he is going to village, therefore, the sale deed cannot be executed on
7.3.1990 but the plaintiff has not so proved this fact in his evidence when he
appeared as PW-1.

12. " Byhammering the authenticity and hallmark of document of agreement
of sale (Ex.P-1} it has been put forth by learned senior counsel that there is
nothing in the document that the defendant was in need of money or the disputed
property was not in his use and it was lying idle.

13.  Ithasbeen further contended by learned senior counsel that although
putting signature upon the document of agreement of sale dated 7.3.1990
(Ex.P-1) is admitted by the defendant, but, he never intended to sell his suit
property and looking to the pleadings made in the written-statement as well
as the case of coercion and undue influence set up by him in additional plea of
the written-statement, the suit of plaintiff for specific performance of contract
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cannot be decreed. The contention of learned senior counsel is that there was
no prior negotiation before executing the document of agreement of sale
(Ex.P-1) and directly and straightway the document of agreement of sale was
executed on 7.3.1990. Learned counsel by inviting my attention to the evidence
of plaintiff (PW-1) who has deposed that 7 days earlier to the execution of
the document of agreement of sale the plaintiff had gone to the defendant's
village to negotiate with him. But, this evidence cannot be relied upon for two
reasons. Firstly there is no pleading to that effect of plaintiff, and secondly
during those days the defendant had gone to Nagpur where he was looted
and FIR (Ex.D-1) of G.R.P. Police Station Nagpur is on record where the
entire incident has been narrated including that a sum of Rs.45,000/- has
been looted by miscreants from defendant and therefore, in these facts and
circumstances if under coercion and under pressure of said Vimal Seth and
plaintiff the document of agreement of sale has been executed it cannot be
given effectto. Learned counsel submits that although said Vimal Seth is not
the signatory of impugned document (Ex.P-1) and he also did not sign as an
attesting witness but in the evidence of the defendant it is borne out that he
was throughout present when the document of agreement of sale was being
executed. In this regard my attention has also been drawn to the evidence of
scribe of the document Radheyshyam Anjane (DW-2) who has categorically
stated that Vimal Seth was also all the time present when the document of
agreement was being prepared and typed by him. This witness has also signed
Ex.P-1 in the capacity of the scribe. The contention of learned senior counsel
is that if the story and defence of coercion and duress which is put forth by .
defendant is not true why thronghout said Vimal Seth was present at the time
of the preparation of Ex.P-1 till it was typed by the scribe.

14.  Itis further contended that name of Vimal Seth as well as of plaintiffis
mentioned in the FIR (Ex.D-1) and therefore, it can be inferred that on account
of giving threat, coercion, duress and undue influence the defendant put his
signature on the impugned document (Ex.P-1). Learned senior counsel has
placed heavy reliance upon the decision of this Court Koze and another v.

Makhan Singh, 1973 JLJ 671 wherein the principle how the plea of undue
influence can be proved, is laid down and this decision is squarely applicable
in the present factual scenario. By further placing heavy reliance on para-12
of the decision of Delhi High Court Kishan Lal Kalra v. N.D.M.C. AIR
2001 Delhi 402 it has been contended that by playing fraud and coercion of
MISA the document was executed and it was held that the contract cannot be
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~ given effect to. Learned counsel has also placed reliance upon the single Bench

decision of this Court Mhow Hosiery Pvt. Ltd. vs. Jitendra Nirlan Singh, -
2005 (3)M.P.L.J.179 and the decisior of Mysore High Court 7. G M. Asadi
and Sons v. The Coffee Board and another. AIR 1969 Mysore 230 and
- latest pronouncement of the single Bench decision of this Court in Kashiram
vs. Mitthulal and another, 201 3(1) M.P.H.T.388.

15. Léstly it has been submitted by learned senior counsel that learned
Trial Court has wrongly drawn adverse inference against the defendant for not
examining Vimal Seth. According to leained senior counsel, looking to the
defence which has been set up by defendant in his additional plea since Vimal
Seth played a vital role adverse to the interest of defendant, no adverse inference
could be drawn against him for his non-examination and further according to
learned senior counsel how in these circumstances the defendant could examine
him. On these submissions it has been prayed by learned senior counsel for
the appellant defendant that by allowing this appeal the impugned judgment
decreeing the suit of plaintiff for specific performance of contract be set aside
and the suit be dismissed.

16. - Despite the respondent No.1 plaintiff has been after having sent SPC
to him, no one has put appearance for him. Having heard learned senior counsel
for the appellant and after going through the record throughly I am of the view
that this appeal deserves to be allowed. '

'17. - Onthe basis of the arguments placed by learned senior counsel for the
appellant the following question emerges :-

"Whether the document of agreement of sale (Ex.P-1) dated
7 3.1990 was executed under coercion and undue influence
by giving threat to defendant to arrest him by the police?

Regarding the question:

18.  Since the plea of coercion and undue influence has been taken by
defendant-appellant in the additional plea of the written-statement the burden
of proof is upon him and therefore, this Court will examine the évidence of
defendant as well as of plaintiff in order to ascertain whether this plea has
been proved.

19.  The pleading of defendant and the story which he has set up in his
additional plea of the written-statement that he was looted and robbed at
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Nagpur Railway Station has been very much found to be proved by learned
Trial Court in para-22 of the impugned judgment. Hence, the entire episode
and the case is to be visualised infer alia from this spectrum. Before I advert
myself'to the basic document of the case i.e. agreement of sale (Ex.P-1), it
would be profitable to go through the contents of the important document
FIR dated 2.3.1990 (Ex.D-1) lodged by the defendant at Nagpur. This
document is a true copy given under the signature of Sub-Inspector Lohmay
Police Station, Nagpur and the defendant by examining Head Constable
No.857, Ram Rao (DW-4) of that Police Station the original FIR was
summoned and it was brought by this constable and the same has also been
proved by him. From this document it is proved that upon the report of
defendant a case under Section 392 IPC was registered against unknown
-persons. This witness has deposed that Ex.D-1 is the copy of the original. In
the FIR it has been specifically stated that on 1.3.1990 the defendant in a
truck carried 100 bags of grain of Vimal Seth and 24 quintals of plaintiffs Alsi
(linseed) and these goods were sold to broker Pramod Kumar for Rs.45,000/-
and the said cash amount of Rs.45,000/- (the details of the currency notes
are also mentioned in the FIR)) was handed over to defendant. Thereafter, he
arrived at the Railway Station and inquired about the position of the train
Chhattisgarh Express which was reported to be late. The defendant felt to
ease as a result of which nearby a corner of wall he went to ease. At that
juncture, some miscreants came and looted the cash amount as well as wrist
watch, chain and rings etc. of the defendant. The learned Trial Court has
already found this plea of defendant to be proved in para-22 of the impugned
judgment. In the FIR the names of Vimal Seth and plaintiff are mentioned with
further averments that defendant sold the goods of these two persons to said
Pramod Kumar,

20. Now coming back to the execution of agreement of sale (Ex.P-1),
this Court finds that in this document specifically it has been mentioned that
defendant is having huge agricultural land comprising of 21.04 acres and out
of this huge land only a part of 5 acres he agreed to sell to the plaintiff. In this
document it is not mentioned that defendant is in need of money or the land
was lying idle and therefore, he is entering into agreement of sale with the
plaintiff. There is nothing in this document that from the sale price he will
establish his business at Banapura. It has also not been mentioned in this
document that defendant is unable to manage the suit property and is not
earning any profit from the agricultural land which is agreed to be sold. But,
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to bring out a full proof case, averments are pleaded in para 2(a) of the plaint
by plaintiff with uttermost object that his suit of specific performance may be
decreed. But, all these pleadings have not at all been proved by the plaintiff -
when he appeared in witness box as PW-1. In his entire statement there is no

- whisper that defendant wanted to establish a business at Banapura or he is
unable to manage the land in question and further he is not obtaining any profit
from the suit land which is a part of huge agricultural land owned by defendant.

- Hence, the plea which has been raised by plaintiff in para-2(a) of the plaint
has not at all been proved either in his testimony or from document of agreement
of sale (Ex.P-1) itself. Thus, when it is not proved that defendant was in need
of money or the suitland was lying idle and further he was earning profit from,
it by obtaining crops why it has been agreed to be sold by defendant to plaintiff,
there is no explanation of the plaintiff in this regard. At this juncture only [
would like to mention here that defendant in his deposition when he appeared
as DW-1 has categorically stated that he is deriving profit from his agricultural
land which is 21.04 acre. There is nothing in the evidence of plaintiff that out
of total area of agricultural land only the suit land which comprises of 5 acres
only is not fetching any profit and therefore, for this reason also it creates -
heavy doubt in the mind of the Court that when defendant was drawing profit
from the agricultural land and when he was not in need of money to establish
some business in Banapura why he will sell the suit property which is less than
¥™ portion of his entire holding. It is not the case of plaintiff that in order to
establish business and to become a businessman the defendant who is an .
agriculturist was desirous to sell his entire agricultural land 21.04 acres. On
the other hand, his case is that only a part of land was agreed to be sold to
him. Hence, | am of the view that when the plaintiff's evidence is totally silent
that the defendant was not deriving any profit from the suit land and defendant's
evidence is that he is deriving full profit from it and also the document of
agreement of sale is silent on this point it can be inferred that the document of
agreement of sale is surrounded by heavy dark clouds.

'21.  Onbare perusal of the pleadings of the plaintiff and by paying heed to
para 2(b) of the plaint that straightway on 7.3.1990 the defendant came to the
work place of plaintiff who is a businessman and is carrying on business in
Banapura and interacted with plaintiff and offered him to purchase the land in
question and immediately it was agreed by the plaintiff and document of
agreement of sale was executed on the same day only i.e. 7.3.1990.
Surprisingly if the total consideration of the suit land was Rs.50,000/- and an
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amount of Rs.45,000/- which is 90% of the alleged consideration was paid
on 7.3.1990 only, why directly sale deed was not executed. The explanation
which has been given in para 2(b) of the plaint by the plaintiff is that because
the defendant stated that he is going to village on that day, therefore, today
i.e. 7.3.1990 he cannot execute the sale deed. But, this fact is totally missing
from the evidence of plaintiff (PW-1) and therefore, this plea which he has
pleaded in the plaint is also not proved. Apart from this, on bare perusal of
para 2(c) of the plaint this Court finds that there is specific pleading of plaintiff
that on 7.3.1990 when the document of agreement of sale was executed,
plaintiffand defendant went to Tehsil Kachehari at Seoni Malwa and a document
of agreement of sale was executed. It be noted that the document is on Rs.5/-
stamp paper. If they had gone to Kachehari (a premises comprising different
Courts including the office of Sub-Registrar) why the sale deed was not
executed in the office of the Sub-Registrar which is also situated in the same
locality. Thus, this is an another circumstance in order to hold that there is
something black in the bottom and document of agreement of sale becomes
highly suspicious: :

22.  Atthisjuncture only it would be quite relevant to mention here that in
the examination-in-chief para-2 the plaintiff himself has stated that he is not at
all related to the incident pleaded by the defendant in written-statement which
is in regard to the defendant being looted by the miscreants at Railway Station,
Nagpur when he was coming back after selling plaintiffs linseed and 100 gunny
bags of grain of Vimal Seth. Thus, the plaintiff has admitted that defendant
went to sell his linseed and also the grain of Vimal Seth. In cross-examination
para-3, plaintiff has admitted that defendant used to sit at the work place of
Vimal Seth. In cross-examination para-4 again he has admitted that it is in his
knowledge that while returning back from Nagpur he was looted. Although
the suggestion put to him that Vimal Seth is related to plaintiff has been denied
by him. But the scribe of document (Ex.P-1) Radheyshyam Anjani (DW-2)
has specifically stated that along with plaintiff, Vimal Seth also came and except
these two persons nobody came to him to write this document which would
mean neither the defendant nor attesting witnesses were there. Specifically
the scribe (DW-2) says that defendant was not there and he did not sign
before him nor Rs.45,000/- was paid to him.

23.  Another important circumstance in order to hold that defendant never
intended to sell suit property (which is less than 114th of his entire agricultural
land) is that normally intending purchaser will never purchase an immovable
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property without examining it. According to the plaint averments directly the
suit property was agreed to be sold on 7.3.1990 when the defendant
approached the plaintiff. There is nothing in the pleadings that any prior
negotiation took place between the plaintiff and defendant but when the plaintiff
was cornered in the cross-examination and he faced a tight situation he has
deposed in cross-examination para-5 that he has seen the suit land in the year
1988-89. Surprisingly when there was no prior negotiation as per the pleading
of plaintiff why he did go to the village where defendant's agricultural land is
situated and examined the suit property. According to me, unless and until
there is prior meeting of mind to sell the suit property why a businessman will
go to a remote village and examine the suit property and that too two years
prior to the date of agreement of sale which according to the plaintiff straightway
executed when defendant approached him on that date only.

24.  Another strong circumstance which creates heavy doubt on the
authenticity and hallmark of document of agreement of sale is that as per
plaintiffs own case which he pleaded in para 2(a) and (b) of the plaint is that
defendant is not deriving any profit from the suit land and further the land in
question is of inferior quality because it is far away from Narmada river, but,
when the plaintiff was cornered during the cross-examination in para-5 he has
admitted that the suit property is adjacent to river Narmada and is also growing
good crop. Thus, again the pleadings of the plaintiff is contrary to his evidence
and is not proved.

25.  Another circumstance which is carved out from the testimony of plaintiff
in order to hold that the document of agreement of sale in the manner and
fashion it is written is highly suspicious is that as per the document (Ex.P-1)
and the evidence of plaintiff Ashok Kumar (PW-1) an anount of Rs.45,000/ -
was paid in cash as advance money to the defendant on the date of the execution
of document (Ex.P-1). Normally, this figure of Rs. 45,000/- may not have any
significance, but, in the present case this figure is very much material in order
to test the plea of coercion and undue influence. It be noted that an amount of
cash Rs.45,000/- was looted while the defendant was robbed at Nagpur and
this figure finds place in the FIR (Ex.D-1) also by stating therein that this cash
amount of Rs.45,000/- was paid to the defendant towards the price of the
grain and linseed of Vimal Seth and plaintiff Ashok Kumar. The names of
these two persons are also mentioned in the document of FIR (Ex.D-1). Hence,
this is one more circumstance to hold that by giving threat to the defendant of
arrest by the police the cash amount which was looted and robbed from the

1,
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appellant has been figured in Ex.P-1 towards advance money.

26.  The plea of coercion and undue influence by putting the defendant-
appellant in the fear of arrest and humiliation by the police while procuring the
document of agreement of sale (Ex.P-1) by Vimal Seth and plaintiffis also
proved from the evidence of defendant when he appeared as DW-1. There is
specific evidence of defendant of giving threat of his arrest by the police by
exercising undue influence and coercion by Vimal Seth. Further he has deposed
that when he came to Banapura he found that Vimal Seth was informed by
Pramod Kumar about the incident as a result of which said Vimal Seth firstly
had gone to GR.P. Nagpur and thereafter arrived at Banapura along with two
constables of GR.P. who carried defendant during the odd hours at night at
2:00 a.m. to Hoshangabad and from where he was brought to Nagpur. At
Nagpur he was beaten by the GR.P. police personnel and insisted him to
return the cash amount to Vimal Seth and to pay Rs.6,000/- to the police
personnel. He has further deposed that because he was not having any cash
with himn at that time he borrowed money of Rs.6,000/- from Vimal Seth and
that amount was given to G.R.P. police personnel and he came back to
. Banapura along with Vimal Seth. In para-6 of his deposition he has also
deposed that after coming back to Banapura, Vimal Seth carried him to
plaintiffs place where plaintiff on a document of Rs.51- stamp paper which
was ready and directed him to sign it. The scribe, Radheyshyam Anjane
(DW-2) has also said that when he typed the document (Ex.P-1) at that time
only plaintiff Ashok Kumar and Vimal Seth were there. The defendant has
further deposed at that time he did not intervene because he was under fear
and was mentally disturbed because he was ill-treated and beaten by the
police personnel of Nagpur. He has also further deposed that an amount of
Rs.45,000/- was never paid to him and G.R.P. Police Nagpur gave threat to
him that in case he will not pay Rs.45,000/- he will be arrested and therefore,
he put his signature on Ex.P-1, Indeed, this plea has been taken by the
defendant in the additional plea of his written- statement and despite it has
been proved from his examination-in-chief, but, no cross-examination on this
~ very vital piece of evidence was made by the plaintiff. Hence, according to
me, this part of important evidence which goes to the root of the matter to
prove the plea of coercion and undue influence stands unrebutted. The evidence
of defendant is corroborated by the evidence of scribe Radheyshyam Anjane
(DW-2) and according to me, he is an independent witness because he is a
petition writer and is carrying his job in the Tehsil office premises. This witness
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is also the signatory of the impugned document (Ex.P-1) as he has signed the
document in the capacity of scribe and he has also proved his signature upon
it. This witness has also deposed that plaintiff and Vimal Seth came to him and
got a document of agreement of sale prepared and typed because they do not
know how and what is to be written in a document of agreement of sale. He
has specifically deposed that except these two persons third person was not
there. This witness after typing the document of agreement of sale handed
over it to the plaintiff. In very specific words this witness has deposed that the
two attesting witnesses Trilok Kothari (PW-2) and Rambabu (DW-3) were
not present and defendant was also not present.

27.  Looking to the aforesaid circumstances and pleadings of defendant
which are proved from the evidence discussed hereinabove in detail, one can
infer that the defendant was threatened by putting him into fear of his arrest by
the police and under coercion and undue influence he put his signature upon
the document of agreement of sale (Ex.P-1). There is a specific evidence of
defendant that he was brutally beaten by G.R.P. police persons in the presence
of Vimal Seth. Thereafter, when he came back to Banapura, Vimal Seth carried
him to the house of plaintiff Ashok Kumar where the document of agreement
of sale (Ex.P-1) which was already ready, was directed to be signed by
defendant.

28.  Inthe above circumstances, the role of Vimal Seth becomes very vital
and how the defendant could have examined said Vimal Seth in his evidence.
Even ifthe defendant would have examined him, certainly he would not have
deposed in favour of defendant and therefore, according to me, the learned
Trial Court erred in drawing adverse inference against defendant for not
examining Vimal Seth in his evidence.

29.  The presence of Vimal Seth while executing the document of agreement
of sale has been denied by the plaintiff when the suggestion was given to him
in his cross-examination para-5. But the independent witness, petition writer
(scribe) DW-2 has specifically deposed that on the insistence of Vimal Seth
 and plaintiffhe typed the document of agreement of sale (Ex.P-1). According
to defendant, when the document (Ex.P-1) was executed, apart from him and
defendant the attesting witnesses namely Trilok Kothari (PW-2) and Rambabu
(DW-3) were present. A suggestion given to plaintiff in cross-examination
para-6 that by joining his hands along with Vimal Seth by putting the defendant
in fear of arrest the document (Ex.P-1) was procured but it has been denied.

t¥
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However, looking to the evidence of the scribe, when the document (Ex.P-1)
was being prepared Vimal Seth was present and to me the evidence of scribe
(DW-2) is more reliable and thus it can be inferred that if Vimal Seth had
nothing to do with the impugned transaction why he was throughout present
at the time of the preparation of Ex.P-1 till it was typed and why he (Vimal
Seth) came with the plaintiff. Thus, itis apparent that the evidence of plaintiff
and the attesting witnesses who have denied the role of Vimal Seth becomes
unreliable. According to me, when there is specific plea in the written-statement
and which has been proved by the defendant in his evidence by dismantling
the evidence of plaintiff and his witnesses and there is no cross-examination
on behalf of plaintiff, it shows that the evidence of defendant on this vital point
is unrebutted and if the evidence of plaintiff and defendant is marshalled in the
aforesaid circumstances, the evidence of defendantis found to be more reliable.
Had the coercion and undue influence would not have been exercised by the
plaintiff and Vimal Seth certainly there would have been cross-examination
upon the defendant on this important evidence. Learned Trial Court has failed
to consider has important aspect of the matter particularly when it has been
found that the defence of defendant of loot has been proved (see para-22 of
the impugned judgment). At the cost of the repetition I may again reiterate
here that in the FIR (Ex.D-1) the name of plaintiff Ashok Kumar and that of
Vimal Seth is mentioned and it is specifically averred in the FIR that the
defendant was carrying a cash Rs.45,000/- of these two persons.

30.  The term coercion has been defined in Section 15 of the Indian
Contract Act, 1872 and for ready reference I would like to quote the said
provision which reads, thus:- ’

15. "Coercion" defined.-"Coercion" is the committing,
or threating to commit, any act forbidden by the Indian Penal

. Code (45 of 1860) or the unlawful detaining, or threatening to
detain, any property, to the prejudice of any person whatever,
with the intention of causing any person to enter into an
agreement.

Explanation - It is immaterial whether the Indian Penal Code -
(45 of 1860) is or is not in force in the place where the coercion
is employed.

If the facts and circumstances and the evidence of the parties and by payilig
. heed to the plea of coercion and undue influence which is also found to be
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proved on account of unrebutted testimony of defendant in this regard,
according to me, the suit cannot be decreed. According to me, a threat of
bringing a criminal charge does not amount to coercion as it is not per se
forbidden by penal law but threat of bringing a false charge and when it was -
materialized by carrying the defendant to Nagpur where he was beaten by
G.R.P. Police with an object to get the document of agreement of sale procured
it would amount to coercion and in this regard decision of Delhi High Court
placed reliance by learned counsel for thie appellant is applicable in the present
case. In this decision by giving threat to get arrested in MISA the contract
was made and the Delhi High Court held that said contract cannot be acted
upon.

31.  Thus, inthe aforesaid circumstances, it can be said that even'if consent
of the defendant was obtained and his signature was obtained upon the
document of sale (Ex.P-1), because it was procured under coercion of threat
of unlawful detention, this document (Ex.P-1) cannot be given effect to by
decreetng the suit. I may further add that act of violence is coercion if it relates
to a person intended to be harmed and there is an actionable wrong at his suit.
In this regard, Halsbury's Laws of England, 4th Edition Volume 45, para-
1524 at page 718 may be seen and for ready reference I would like to quote
that relevant para as under:

"1524. Inducement and intimidation, coercion etc.
Although it is not an actionable wrong for an individual merely
to induce a person not to serve or not to employ another when
no breach of contract is caused, yet, if the inducement is
accompanied by illegal means, such as violence, intimidation,
coercion, obstruction, molestation, fraud or misrepresentatior,
and damage results to a person intended to be harmed, there
is an actionable wrong at his suit.”

32.  Tome, the covenants in a deed are ineffective where the consent of
one of the parties to the deed has been obtained by fraud or coercion and
where one of the parties has repudiated his or her obligations under the deed,
and elected to treat it as a nullity, the other party is not bound by the covenants
" and in this regard I would like to quote the relevant portion of para 696-700
of Halsbury's Laws of England, 4th Edition Volume 13, at page 340, which
reads thus:-

- "696-700. Covenants in a deed: when ineffective.,
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Covenants in a deed are ineffective where the consent of one

of the parties to the deed has been obtained by fraud or
- coercion; and where one of the parties has repudiated his or

her obligations under the deed, and elected to treat it as a
. ‘:nulhty, the other party is not bound by the covenants."

'Thus, according to me, a contract (in the present case Ex.P-1) obtamed by

means of coercion by one party over the other, it is a voidable contract, if not
void. If the aforesaid analogy is applied in the present factual scenario and is
kept in juxtaposition to the pleadings and particularly when there is
unimpeachable and uncrossed testimony of defendant, a clear case of obtaining
impughed document of agreement of sale by exercising coercion is made out.

33.  The term coercion has also been explained in Law of Lexicon by P.
Ramanatha Aiyar 4th Edition 2010 page 1223, which reads as under:-

."To constitute coercion or duress, there must be some actual
or threatened exercise of power, possessed or believed to be
possessed, by the party coercing over the person and property
of another. Actual violence is not necessary to constitute
coercion; imaginary terrors may be sufficient for that purpose.-

.{Boyse v. Rossborough, 6 HL Case 2, 48)." -

In Black's Law Dictionary 9th Edition page 294, the expression. coercxon
‘has been explained as under:-

Mcoercion. Compulsion by physical force or threat of phy51cal .-
force. An act that must be voluntary, such as signing a will, is
' not legally valid if done under-coercion. And since a valid
L mamage requires voluntary consent coercion or duress is
grounds for invalidating a marriage." '

34 Under Section 72 of the Indian Contract Act 1872 also the expression
] coercmn has been mentioned. This section pertains to liability of personto ‘

Wwhorh the money is paid, or thing delivered by mistake or under coercion.
Aceording to this section, a person to whom money has been paid or anythlng :

- delivered, by mistake or under coercion must repay or return it: By applymg

this section to the present case in hand, if the plaintiff would have obtained
some money or anything by keeping the defendant under coercion, certainly

he was liable to repay or return it. In the present case, the document.of - -

agr_ce_ment of salé (Ex.P-1) has been obtained by keeping the defendant under .



902 Kishanlal Vs.Ashok Kumar I.L.R.[2013]M.P.

coercion and therefore, the plaintiff is not entitled to enforce any specific
performance of contract of this document.

35.  The case of defendant would also come under the expression "undue
influence" as defined under Section 16 of the Indian Contract Act, 1872,
which reads thus:-

16."Undue influence’ defined.-(1) A contract is said to be
induced by "undue influence" where the relations subsisting
between the parties are such that one of the parties is in a
position to dominate the will of the other and uses that position
to obtain an unfair advantage over the other.

(2) In particular and without prejudice to the generally of the
foregoing principle, a person is deemed to be in a position to
dominate the will of another-

(a) where he holds a real or apparent authority over the other,
or where he stands in a fiduciary relation to the other; or

(b) where he makes a contract with a person whose mental
capacity is temporarily or permanently affected by reason of
age, illness, or mental or bodily distress.

(3) Where a person who is in a position to dominate the will of
another, enters into a contract with him, and the transaction
appears, on the face of it or on the evidence adduced, to be
unconscionable, the burden of proving that such contract was
not induced by undue influence shall be upon the personin a
position to dominate the will of the othsr.

Nothing in the sub-section shall affect the provisions of section
111 of the Indian Evidence Act, 1872 (1 of 1872).

The term "undue influence" has also been explained in Corpus Juris Secundum
Vo0l.26 page 761, which reads as under:- .

"Undue influence invalidates a deed procured thereby and
generally speaking consists in a wrongful influence so exerted
over the grantor as to rob him of free agency and to substitute
the will of another for that of the grantor. Influuence which is
not undue, such as that arising from affection or from fair

.

L]
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argument, does not destroy the validity of a deed.”

By testing the plea of 'undue influence' taken by defendant in the additional
plea and looking to his unimpeachable and unrebutted testimony it is gathered
that because plaintiff and Vimal Seth were in dominating position to procure
impugned document of agreement of sale (Ex.P-1) by giving threat to arrest
defendant by Police of Nagpur and therefore, according to me, the plea of
‘undue influence' has also been duly proved from the unimpeachable and
uncrossed testimony of the defendant.

36.  The Supreme Court in Subhas Chandra Das Mushib v. Ganga
Prosad Das Mushib and others, AIR 1967 SC 878 has laid down the test
how the undue influence is to be proved. According to the Apex Court, the
Court trying the case of undue influence must consider two things; (1) relation
with the parties to each other must be such that one is in a position to dominate
the will of other and (2) once the position is substantiated the second stage
would reach to the issue where the contract has been obtained by undue
influence. Since there is overwhelming evidence that the plaintiff and Vimal
Seth were in dominating position over the defendant by giving threat to be
arrested by the police and not only this he was also carried to G.R.P. Police
Station where the police personnel had beaten him, I am of the view that the
plaintiff was in dominating position along with Vimal Seth and thereafter if
document of agreement of sale (Ex.P-1) has been procured it was on account
of undue influence. The decision of this Court in Koze (supra) placed reliance
by learned senior counsel for the appellant is applicable in the facts and
circumstances of the case. Another decision of this Court Mhow Hosiery
Pvt. Ltd. (supra) is also applicable because in that case the Company was in
financial crisis and to get rid off its workers exercised undue influence and
coercion and thereby obtained resignation of 200-250 workers, in that situation
it was found that the resignations were not voluntary.

37.  According to me, when the impugned document of agreement of sale
has been obtained by plaintiff on account of exercise of coercion and undue
influence, therefore, in these circumstances because it gives plaintiff an unfair
advantage over the defendant, the Court may refuse specific performance
and further because it will be inequitable in such facts and circumstances to
enforce specific performance. Indeed, for this only purpose Section 20(2) of
the Specific Relief Act, 1973 has been enacted. Sub-section (1) of Section
20 of the Specific Relief Act empowers the Court to exercise discretion of
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specific performance and further gives power that the Court is not bound to
grant such relief merely because it is lawful to do so; but the discretion of the
Court should not be exercised arbitrarily and should be exercised on sound
and reasonable manner guided by judicial principles and capable of correction
by a court of appeal. Thus, according to me, the discretionary power to decree
the suit has not been exercised by learned Trial Court on the grounds which
are not guided by judicial principles and they are also not reasonable and
therefore, the discretion exercised in decreeing the suit can be corrected by
this Court in appeal. In these facts and circumstances, I am unable to uphold
the decree of specific performance of contract. '

38.  The question which I framed for its determination is accordingly
decided and answered in favour of defendant- appellant,

39.  Resultantly, this appeal stands allowed, the impugned judgment and
decree passed by learned Trial Court is hereby set aside and the suit of specific
performance of contract is hereby dismissed. Since no one has put appearance
on behalf of the respondent, the appellant shall bear his own cost. Counsel
fee, according to Schedule, if pre-certified.

Appeal allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 904
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice N.K. Mody
M.A.No. 1485/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 5 March, 2013

GAYATRI SINGH (SMT.) & ors. ...Appellants
Vs.
SANTOSH CHATURVEDI & ors. ...Respondents

A. Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Section 168 -
Contributory Negligence - Deceased was going on his motor bike when
he met with an accident with truck when the deceased tried to overtake
the truck - Driver of the Truck did not appear before Tribunal to explain
under what circumstances accident took place - Contributory negligence
on the part of the deceased assessed at 25% instead of 50% as assessed
by Fribunal. " (Para 6)

z Fiev IIT ST ay (1988 #7T 59), €% 168 — TS o9&T
— A% Y Atex W W I @I 20 99 TP §F B uiel g g
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B. Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Section 147 - Liability
of Insurance Company - Driving License - Driver was not holding valid
driving license on the date of accident - As deceased was third party
therefore, right of recovery could be given to Insurance Company of
Truck - As the liability of Insurance Company of Motor Bike is limited
to Rs. 1,00,000/- therefore, Insurance Company is rightly held liable
to that extent. (Para 8)

. Tev I T AT (1988 HT 59), GRT 147 — T FTIHT BT
veoverfieT — grafdr arsHy — geea a1 fify &1 wde % U 4y
gEfaT Ty T o — qfF quF YA uAHR oy FUiAy el &I
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Case referred :
2008 AIR SCW 6512.

Pramod Thakre, for the appellants.

Rajesh Sen, for the respondent No. 1.
Shailendra Samaiya, for the respondent No.3.
Rakesh Jain, for the respondent No.4.

ORD-ER

N.K. Mooy, J.: Being aggrieved by the award dated 31.1.2011
passed by 2nd Addl. MACT, Shahdol in Claim Case No.64/2009, whereby
claim petition filed by appellants on account of death in a motor accident was
allowed and deceased was held equally liable for the accident, therefore,
after deducting 50% on account of contributory negligence a sum of
Rs.2,22,500/- was awarded for which respondents No.1, 2 and 4 were held
liable to the extent of Rs. 1,22,500/- and respondent No.4 was held liable to
the extent of Rs. 1,00,000/-, present appeal has been filed.

2. Short facts of the case are that appellants filed a claim petition before
the learned Tribunal alleging that on 26.6.2009 Deepak Singh was going on
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his motor bike towards Shahdol met with an accident with the truck bearing
registration No.CG-04-G-2576, which was being driven by respondent No. 1
rashly and negligently, owned by respondent No.2 and insured with respondent
10.3. It was alleged that the motor bike was driven and owned by the deceased,
which was insured with respondent No.4. It was prayed that claim petition be
allowed and the compensation be awarded. Respondent No.l remained
exparte before the Tribunal. Respondent No 2 filed reply, wherein it was denied
that any accident was occurred because of the negligence of respondent No. 1,
However, it was submitted that in case any award is passed then it is respondent
No.3, who is liable to pay the amount of compensation. Respondent No.3
contested the claim petition on various grounds including on the ground that
respondent No.1 did not possess valid driving license, therefore, respondent
No.3 isnot liable to pay the compensation. Respondent No.4 contested the
claim petition on the ground that the motor bike was not insured with the
respondent No.4, therefore, claim petition be dismissed. After framing of issues
and recording of evidence learned Tribunal allowed the claim petition holding
that accident occurred because of negligence-on the part of respondent No. 1
and deceased Deepak Singh himself and assessed the income @ Rs.3,000/-
per month and after deducting 1/4th towards personal expenses and applying
multiplier of 15 assessed the compensation of Rs.2,22,500/- after deducting
50% on account of contributory negligence on the part of deceased himself
and further held that appellants are entitled to recover Rs. 1,22,500/-from
respondent Nos. 1 & 2 and Rs. 1,00,000/- from respondent No.4, against
which present appeal has been filed.

3. Learned counsel for appellants submits that income assessed by the
learned Tribunal is on lower side as the accident is of the year 2009. It is
submitted that on other heads also amount awarded is on lower side. It is also
submitted that learned Tribunal was not justified in deducting 50% on account
of contributory negligence. Respondent No.1 remained exparte. Criminal case
was registered against respondent No.1 for the offence punishable under
Section 304-AIPC. In the circumstances learned Tribunal was not justified in
holding that deceased was equally liable for accident. It is submitted that
deduction of 50% on account of contributory negligence on the part of
deceased is illegal. It is submitted that appeal be allowed, amount be enhanced
and the findings regarding deduction of 50% on account of contributory
negligence be set aside.

4. Learned Counsel for respondents No.3 and 4 submit that after due
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appreciation of evidence learned Tribunal found that deceased was equally
liable for the accident. It is submitted that findings recorded by the learned
Tribunal are based on due appreciation of evidence, which requires no
interference. It is submitted that respondent No.1 was not possessing valid
driving license. It is submitted that since respondent No.l was possessing
driving license, which was valid from 30.5.2002 to 15.2.2009, therefore,
learned Tribunal was justified in exonerating respondent No.3. It is submitted
that compensation assessed by the learned Tribunal is just and proper, which
requires no interference. It is submitted that appeal be dismissed.

5. Learned counsel for respondent No.4 supports the contention of
respondent No.3 so far as the amount assessed by the learned Tribunal is
concerned. Learned counsel submits that learned Tribunal was not justified in
holding the respondent No.4 liable to the extent of Rs. 1,00,000/- on the
ground that under the policy respondent No.4 is liable to pay compensation
upto the extent of Rs. 1,00,000/-. It is submitted that since the claim petition
was filed under Section 166 of the Motor Vehicles Act and it was found that
deceased himself was also liable for the accident; therefore, no liability could
be fastened over respondent No.4. It is submitted that appeal be dismissed.

6. From perusal of the record it is evident that two eye witnesses were
examined by the appellants, who were also travelling at the relevant time
alongwith the deceased on the road. Respondent No.1 did not appear before
the learned Tribunal. No steps were taken by respondent No.1 to explain
that in what circumstances accident occurred. Criminal case was registered
under Section 304-A of IPC of which outcome is not known to any of the
parties. It has also come on record that accident occurred when deceased
tried to overtake the truck and the respondent No.1 turned the vehicle towards
road side. It appear that in the facts and circumstances of the case contributory
negligence on the part of the deceased could be assessed @ 25% instead of
50%. So far as exoneration of respondent No.3 is concerned, undoubtedly, .
respondent No.1 was not posséssing valid license to drive the offending vehicle.
Respondent No.1 was having license, which was expired prior to accident
and was renewed after the accident. In the matter of National Insurance
Co.Ltd. Vs. Swaran Singh, reported in 2004 ACJ 1, Hon'ble Apex Court
observed that the breach of policy conditions, e.g., disqualification of driver
or invalid driving license of the driver, as contained in sub-Section (2)(a)(ii) of
Section 149, have to be proved to have been committed by the insured for

. avoiding liability by the insurer. Mere absence, fake or invalid driving license
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or d1squa11ﬁcat10n of the driver for driving at the relevant time, are not m o

_ themselves defences available to the insurer against either the’ insured or:the.-

- by duly hcensed driver or one who was not disqualified to drive at the releva.nt
time. . : -

'7. " in the matter of of Ram Babu Tzwart Vs. United india Insurance

. C6.Ltd., reported in 2008 AIR SCW 6512, wherein driver of offending traetor '

was not having valid license from the time when accident took place and was

not renewed within 30 days from the date of expiry, Hon'ble Apex Court held-
that renewal of license would not take effect from retrospective date but from -
the date of its renewal and breach of contract of insurance is thus established

insurer is not liable to indemnify insured.

8. Insurance Company has examined Atul Jain who is Admlmstratlve
Officer posted at Rewa. In his statement he has stated that respondent No.1
was the driver of the vehicle, who was having the license, which was issued
on 15/09/09. He has further stated that respondent No.I was possessing the
old license on the basis of which new license was issued w.e.f. 15/09/09 to
14/09/2012. The old license which the respondent No.1 was possessing was
from 31/05/02 to 30/05/07. Since the date of accident is 26/06/09 and new
license was issued on 15/09/09, therefore, undisputedly respondent No.1 was.
not possessing the valid driving license to drive the offending vehicle on the

date. of accident. Since Deepak Singh was third party, therefore, even-if

respondent No.1 was not possessing valid driving license, then too, respondent

~ --third partles ‘To avoid its liability towards insured, the insurer has to prove' e
; that the insured was guilty of negligence and failed to exercise reasonahblé care ST
‘ ini the matter of fulfilling the condition of the policy regarding use. of > vehlcles SR

No.3 could not have been exonerated 2n that account. At the mostrightof ..

recovery could have been given to respondent No.3 as respondent Ne.1 was'«' -

'not possessing valid driving license on the date of accident. Since the llablllty
of respondent No.4 was limited to the extent of Rs. 1 ,00,000/-, therefore,
learned Tribunal has rightly held the respondent No.4 liable to that extent.

Smce deceased Deepak Singh was on motor bike when accident took place:
and respondent No.1 remained ex-parte and also criminal case was reglstered’. Cor
againstrespondent No. 1 for an offence punishable under Section 304-A of " -

“+IPC,of which outcome is not known to any of the party, this, Court ﬁnds that:
‘th¢ learned Tribunal was not justified in holding the deceased ligble: ta
extent of 50% However, at the same time it can safely be'said that the ac i

) could have been avoided, if the deceased would have ﬁJIly cqnc1ous In Ih
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zfacts and 01rcumstances of the’ case neghgence on the part of deceased which
Y assessed as 5 0% is rcduccd 1025%. Thus, appellants are entitled for a sum

L of Rs 3 23 750/— 1nstead of Rs.2,22,500/-, out of which respondent No.4
Do shal] be; hable to:pay to ‘the: extent of Rs.1,00,000/- and balance amount of

'000!- shaII be payable by respondent Nos. 1 to 3. Respondent No.3

e shall have’ nght torecover the Samie from 'respondent Nos. 1 & 2. The amount

shall cany mterest at’ the same rate as awarded by the learned Tribunal.

91 ;e The amount awarded shall be deposited by the respondent Nos. 3 &

- 4 w1th the leamed tnbunal and the learned tribunal is directed to invest 80%

ofthe said amount on long term fixed deposit in the name of appellant No.1 in
the ncarestN ationalized Bank, in the area where the appellant No.1 is residing, -
with the condition that the bank will not permit any loan or advance. Interest
on the said amount shall be credited on monthly basis in S.B. Account of
appellant No.1, which shall be opened by the appellant No.1 from where
appellant-No.1-can withdraw the amount as per her needs. However, on an
apphcatlon by the appellant No.1 this condition could be modified by the
learned tribunal in exceptmnal circumstances, if made out by the appellant
No.l. Since no amount has been enhanced by this Court and it is only
percentage of contributory negligence of the deceased is reduced from 50%
to 25%, therefore, no Court fee is payable on that account.

10. _Wn_h,tl_lq aforesaid observations, appeal stands disposed of.

Appeal disposed of.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 909
) _ APPELLATE CIVIL
' : Before Mr. Justice N.K. Mody
M A No 4057/2009 (Jabalpur) decided on 6 March, 2013

SHYAMA MALVIYA (SMT.) & ors. ' ...Appellants
Vs..:
MUKESH KUMAR GOYAL & ors. '_ ’ Respondents
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Cases referred :
(2009) 6 SCC 121, (2011) 4 SCC 689.

Vishal Dhagat, for the appellants.
Dinesh Koushal, for the respondent No.3.

ORDER

N.K. Mooy, J.: This is an appeal filed by the claimants under Section
173 of the Motor Vehicles Act against an award dated 16.7.2009 passed by
1* MACT, Hoshangabad in claim case No.82/2008. By impughed award,
the Claims Tribunal has awarded a total sum of Rs. 11,74,552/- with interest
to the claimants for the death of one Kailash, who died in vehicle accident.
According to claimants, the compensation awarded is on lower side and hence,
need to be enhanced. It is for the enhancement in the compensation awarded
by the Tribunal, the claimants have filed this appeal. So the question that arises
for consideration is whether any case for enhancement in compensation
awarded by the Tribunal on facts / evidence adduced is made out in the
compensation awarded and if so to what extent?

2. It is not necessary to narrate the entire facts in detail, such as how the
accident occurred, who was negligent in driving the offending vehicle, who is
liable for paying compensation etc. It is for the reason that firstly all these findings
are recorded in favour of claimants by the Tribunal. Secondly, none of these findings
though recorded in claimants' favour are under challenge at the instance of any of

the respondents such as owner/driver or insurance company either by way of
cross appeal or cross objection. In this view of the matter, there is no justification
to burden the judgment by detailing facts on all these issues.

3. As observed supra, it is a death case. On 3.3.2008, Kailash aged 52
years, met with a motor accident and died, giving rise to filing of claim petition
by legal representatives (appellants herein) out of which this appeal arises
seeking compensation for his death. The case was contested by the
respondents. Parties adduced evidence. The Claims Tribunal by impugned
award partly allowed the claim petition filed by claimants and as stated supra,
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awarded a sum of Rs.11,74,552/-.

4. Learned counsel for the appellants submits that the learned tribunal
assessed the income of the deceased @ Rs. 12,586/- per month and after
deducting 1/3rd towards personal expenses applied the multiplier of 11. It is
submitted that the income of the deceased is assessed on lower side and on
other heads also amount awarded is on lower side. It is submitted that learned
Tribunal committed error in not taking further prospects into consideration. It
is submitted that the appeal filed by the appellants be allowed and the amount
of compensation be enhanced.

5. Learned counsel for Insurance Company submits that the amount
awarded by the learned Tribunal is just and proper and no case for
enhancement is made out. It is submitted that since deceased was above 50
years in the age group of 52-53 years, therefore, for future prospects the law
laid down in the matter of Sarla Verma Vs. Delhi Road Transport
Corporation, reported in (2009) 6 SCC 121, deals with future prospects in
the cases, where age of the deceased is below 50 years. It is submitted that
the appeal be dismissed.

6. I[n the matter of K.R. Madhusudan Vs.Administrative Officer,
reported in (2011) 4 SCC 689, the Hon'ble Apex Court had an occasion to
re-consider the judgment rendered in the matter of Sarla Verma and also in
the matter of Sarla Vermathe Hon'ble Apex Court has held that there should
not be any addition where age of the deceased was more that 50 years. It
was further held that rule of thumb is to be applied to those cases where there
is no concrete evidence on record of definite rise in income due to future
prospects. It was further held that it can be deviated from in exceptional
circumstances where income of deceased was found to increase.

7. After going through the above position of law, this Court finds that it is
not a case, which comes under the purview of exceptional circumstances,
therefore, thumb rule has to be applied. However, a case for enhancement is
made out and the same is enhanccd by Rs.50,000/-.

8. Thus, the appellants are entitled for a total sum of Rs. 12,24,552/-
instead of Rs.11,74,552/-.The enhanced amount of Rs.50,000/- shall carry
interest @ 8% p.a. from the date of application. The cross objections filed by
the respondent No.3 stands dismissed.

9. With the aforesaid modification the appeal stands disposed of.
Appeal disposed of.
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LL.R. [2013] M.P., 912
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice R.C. Mishra
Cr. A. No. 2017/1997 (Jabalpur) decided on 29 November, 2012

VIRENDRA SINGH ...Appellant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 306 - Abetment to commit
suicide - Evidence of Sister with regard to cruelty and harassment due
to non-satisfaction of demand for watch and cycle did not find place in
police statements - Parents of the deceased not examined - Independent
witness stated that the deceased and her devrani had run away from
the house after taking all their ornaments - Both were reprimanded by
appellant and co-villagers and therefore, deceased committed suicide
by feeling ashamed for the misconduct - Conviction of appellant under
Section 306 not sustainable. (Paras 9 & 10)

JUT §iear (1860 FT 45), €INT. 306 — 3IcAECdl HIT &ed &7
g% — a5t U@ wiEfea 3 W @ 7 5 9 $ SR mwar ge
solied & Waa § sfes o1 wiew gfaw afieem & Y wrar war — fe
P Ara-far F1 WNa 78 - wod weh &1 sud 5 qfter v 9w
A AU ER AR A7 B 9 'x @ Anl — ardienelf 1§ g arear 1,
i @Y o B st gEfag qfeer 9 aue qrreRe @ g wifeh
HEqH PR & BRI ATl BT — ORT 306 @ Agia fiarelf @)
TNfafE T @ T TE |

Cases referred :
1995 Supp.(3) SCC 731, AIR 2005 SC 3100.

A. Usmani, for the appellant.
Ajay Tamrakar, P.L. for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

R.C. MisHRA, J. :- This appeal has been preferred against the
judgment-dated 11.9.1997 passed by Fourth Additional Sessions Judge,
Chhatarpur in S.T. No.79/97, whereby the appellant has been convicted and
sentenced as under -

Ly
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[Convicted under Sentenced to under-

Sections

498A of the IPC undergo R.L for 1 year and to pay a fine of Rs.500/-
& in default, to suffer R.1. for 2 months.

306 of the IPC undergo R.I. for 3 years and to pay a fine of Rs.1000/-"
& in defanlt, to suffer R.I. for 6 months.

With the direction that the jail sentences shall run concurrently

2. The appeal, so far as it relates to other appeltant Laxmi Bai, has abated
consequent to her death during pendency thereof.

3. Prosecution story, in short, may be narrated as under -

"Guddo Bai @ Durgesh Nandini (since deceased), a resident
of Damoh, was the daughter of Munna Singh & Tulsa Bai and
younger sister of Sulekha (PW5). Her marriage was
solemnized with the appellant on 29.5.1994. Her matrimonial _
life was not happy and cheerful as she had been persistently
subjected to cruelty and harassment by the appellant and his
mother Laxmi Bai. She was made to starve and work hard.
Ultimately, on 20.10.1996, in a seriously burnt condition,
Guddo's dead body was found in Kotha (room) of appellant's
house only. Cause of her death was ascertained as shock due
to ante-mortem bums.

4. The appellant pleaded false implication at the instance of Sulekha
(PW5) who, according to him, had demanded money for not speaking against
him. Inthe examination, under Section 313 of the Code of Criminal Procedure,
he further asserted that his marriage with Guddo had taken place nearly 8
years prior to the incident. To substantiate the defence, he preferred to examine
only himself as a witness. His statement also contained an explanation that
Guddo had accidentally sustained burn injuries while cooking.

5. Legality and propriety of the impugned convictions have been
challenged on the ground of what has been termed as mis-appreciation of the
evidence on record. According to learned counsel, none of the convictions is
sustainable in law in view of the following facts -

@ Parents of the deceased, whose case diary statements
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were recorded by Investigating Officer Bhaskar Datt Tripathi
(PW8) on 22.10.1996, were not even cited as witnesses in
charge sheet.

(i) Probable cause of the suicide, not attributable to the
appellant, was given by none other than Kripal Singh (PW1),
the Sarpanch of Gram Panchayat.

(iiy  No external injury on the body of Guddo was noticed
by Autopsy Surgeon Dr. R.C. Malarya (PW4) and availability
of undigested and digested food in the intestine was sufficient
to belie the allegation as to starvation.

In response, learned Panel Lawyer, while making reference to the

incriminating pieces of evidence, has submitted that the convictions are well
founded.

6. In order to appreciate the merits of the rival contentions in a proper
perspective, it is necessary to first advert to the medical evidence as well as to
the nature of death.

7. Dr. R.C. Malarya (PW4) testified that the autopsy was conducted by
a panel comprising himself as well as Dr. Smt. Sushma Khare. He further
reiterated these findings, as recorded in the post mortem report (Ex.P-4) -

(a) Guddo's dead body was having pugilistic appearance
and burns to the extent of 90% were found thereon.

(b)  Noexternal injury was found on the body of Guddo.

(c) Mode of death was shock caused by ante-mortem
burns.

Correctness of this opinion was not questioned by the defence. Further,
no suggestion was made that death of Guddo was accidental in nature. As
reflected in the inquest panchnama (Ex.P-1) and spot map (Ex.P-11) prepared
respectively by B.P. Pavaiya (PW7), the SDO(P) and Bhaskar Datt (PW8),
the investigating officer, Guddo's dead body was not found in the kitchen. In
the face of these surrounding facts and circumstances of the case, learned trial
Judge did not commit any error in holding that it was a case of suicide.

8. Adverting to the other incriminating evidence on record, it may be
observed that Sulekha (PW5) was not cross-examined in respect of her
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assertion that marriage of Guddo was solemnized with the appellant nearly 2
years prior to her untimely death. It could, therefore, easily be concluded that
appellant's statement on oath suggesting that a period of more than 8 years
had already elapsed after the marriage was apparently an afterthought.

9. According to Sulekha, during their meeting at Chitrakoot on the
occasion of Somwati Amavasya, Guddo revealed as to how she had been
persistently subjected to cruelty and harassment by the appellant and his mother
Laxmi Bal due to non-satisfaction of demand for a watch and a cycle in dowry
and even made to starve for days together. However, these allegations did
not find place in her police statement (Ex.D-1) recorded on 5.2.97 i.e. nearly
2% months after the untimely death of Guddo. Further, charge sheet submitted
after due investigation did not relate to the offence under Section 304B of the
IPC. Moreover, Kripal Singh (PW1) clearly stated that no custom of dowry
was prevalent in the Society to which the appellant belong. As pointed out
already, the parents of the deceased, who could be the best witnesses to
describe the instances of cruelty meted out to her in the matrimonial home,
were not examined. Amongst the neighbours, only Kripal Singh (PW1) was
produced in evidence and he did not state any incriminating fact against the
appellant. According to him, -

(8)  Onthe preceding day only, Guddo and her Devrani
known as Revnawali, after taking all their ornaments, had run
away from matrimonial home,

(b)  Onbeing brought back from Chandla by Bhawanideen,
deputed by him only for the purpose, both Guddo and
Revnawali were reprimanded by him and the co-villagers.

(¢)  Feeling ashamed for the misconduct, Guddo had
committed suicide by setting herself ablaze.

10.  To sum up, the statutory presumption under Section 113-A of the
Indian Evidence Act was applicable to the facts and circumstances of the
case as the marriage was less than seven years old yet, there was no evidence
as to any proximate direct or indirect cause attributable to the appellant that
could drive Guddo to take the extreme step of self-immolation. In such a
situation, the conviction of the appellant under Section 306 of the IPC merely
.on the allegation of harassment to the deceased was not sustainable
(Mahendra Singh v. State of M.P. 1995 Supp (3) SCC 731 referred to).
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11.  However, acquittal of the appellant of the offence inder Sectlon 306
would not, by itself, be sufficient to recotd the finding of not: guilty in respect
of the offence under Section 498 A of the IPC in view of the basic difference
that under the former, the suicide is abetted and intended whereas under the

latter, cruelty drags the women to commit suxclde (See. Sushzl Kumar Sharma .

v. Union of India AIR 2005 SC 3100). A

12.  Sulekha (PW5) clearly deposed that Guddo had v1v1dly descnbed the
cruel treatment meted out to her at the hands of the appellant. Nothing could
be elicited in her cross-examination so as to suggest that she was, in any way,
interested in securing conviction of the appellant.on absolutely false grounds

For want of corresponding suggestion in her ¢ross-exathination; the storythat -

she had demanded money for keeping quiet was rightly réj jected as concocted

one. This apart, her act of leaving the matrimonial home also warranted irrestible -

inference that Guddo had been subjected to cruelty within the rneamng of
Section 498A of the IPC. The conviction under this penal provision deserves
to be affirmed as well merited for the reasons mentioned above. ©oa

13. Coming to the question of sentence, it may be observed that a
considerable period of more than 16 years has already elapsed. after the
incident in question and meanwhile, the appellant’ has already suffered

imprisonment for nearly 9 months. As such, no useful putpose would be served - o

by sending the appellant back to jail for undergomg rémaining part of sentence
14.  Consequently, the appeal is allowed i in part In the result -

(i) The conviction of the appellant tinder Sect1on 306 of
the IPC and consequent sentences-are hereby .set aside:
Instead, the appellant is acqultted ofthe offence o

(ii) His conviction under Sectlon 498 A of the IPC 1s
maintained but the term of custodial sentence is reduced tfothe
period already undergone by him and the amburit: of fini
enhanced from Rs.500/- to Rs.1500/- with the stlpulatm [ th
in default, he would suffer 1mprlsonment for a penod of 3
months. = : - -

Needless to say that the amount of fine already dep031ted shaII be

adjusted against the fine hereby enhanced.

Appeal pqrtl); allowed, .

. =&
Ty
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Smt. Justice Vimla Jain
Cr. A. No. 181/2004 (Jabalpur) decided on 23 January, 2013

BHURIA & ors. ...Appellants
Vs. - .
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

A. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 32 - Dying Declaration
- Deceased suffer 45 injuries including gun shot injuries thereby
sustaining fatal injuries to the internal organs - Deceased died because
of excessive haemorrhage from injuries - It would not be safe to place
reliance on the oral dying declaration by holding that deceased was in
fit state of mind and body to make a dying declaration. (Para 22)

Z. I e (1872 T 1), %7 32 — JoyHiferwd weyT —
ya& 1 45 &faar wgd B R wiell & w9 waifase & faud ves
FTal® AT P UIdH &RGT WgT B — YAF B Yog g9E@l § Fnfere
AEEATT B FIRY §3 — T8 OV B4 gY (& a6 I FMAE FAF B
7 fay sfaw wafas v ardiRs Refa 3 o, wifes gagafas som w
faeara s gIfa =Y wiam)

B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 149 & 302 - Murder -
Common Object - P.W. 4 had admonished accused No. 9 when he went

" to site and asked his labourers to discontinue work - This provoked

the accused persons to teach a lesson to P.W. 4 and therefore, the
common object of the assembly was to commit murder of P.W. 4 -

. However, deceased was attacked when he was seen with P.W. 4 who

escaped unhurt - It cannot be said that the common object of the
assembly was to commit murder of deceased - Appellants No. 1,3, 5,7
& 8 were unarmed and did not cause any injury - It cannot be said that
appellants No. 1, 3, 5, 7, & 8 had shared common object to kill the
deceased - Appeals of Appellants No. 1,3, 5, 7 & 8 are allowed and
they are acquitted - Conviction and sentence of remaining appellants
who had actually caused injuries to the deceased are maintained -
Appeal partly allowed. (Paras 25 to 28)

& gvs wiear (1860 #45), GINTY 149 T 302 — 5T — QI
TFYT — AN 4 7 I B. 9 B! SleT 99 98 AP W T AR 0D
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AorgRl | M AT B HeT — THY ARG, AL 4 B G9e @™
& fay s@fer 81 1@ v gufy woe &1 WA= 92Ty .91 4 9Y gr
SR $ &7 o — fog [a® U2 g7a f5ar 747 99 98 A4 4 3 9
<@ T Wt & gt 93 frear — a8 98 o9 o 9ear B wEE a7
WM SRR qaF @7 vl TIRT &3 oT — fiareff #. 1357 9 8
frrerex o it sl @Y =3ic o T8 ) - g T w1 W gedar 6
afterreff $. 1,357 T 8 & WA SKRW YTF B WH G ARAT o7 —
adfrereff %. 1,3,57 3 8 @) afid woR iy 9= whwaa fear wmar @ -
ww arffareffaor 3% <tufafy 9 Jsy, ™ arwfde ey 9 que &
aftrar S1id Y, s1aw @7 9T 8 — afia, s A9y

Cases referred :
AIR 1983 SC 554, AIR 1984 SC 1717, AIR 1989 SC 1456.

Sharad Verma, for the appellants No. 1 to 7 & 9.
Manoj Mishra, for the appellant No.8.

Umesh Pandey, G.A. for the respondent/State.
Gitesh Singh Thakur, for the complainant.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
RAKESH SAKSENA, J. - Appellants have filed this appeal against the judgment
dated 19.12.2003, passed by First Additional Sessions Judge, Chbhatarpur, in
Sessions Trial No.127/1992 convicting them under Sections 302/149 and
148 of the Indian Penal Code and sentencing them to imprisonment for life
with fine of Rs.2000/- and rigorous imprisonment for three years with fine of
Rs.500/-, on each count respectively.

2. In short, the prosecution case is that on 23.4.1992 when complainant
Sudhir Singh (PW-4) was getting some rehabilitation work done at Banshiya-
Bhura Purwa passage by labourers, accused Mahendra reached there and
asked labourers to discontinue work there by next day and to work at his
godown. Sudhir remonstrated Mahendra Singh saying that he should not come
to his site. After a hot altercation, Mahenera went towards village threatening
Sudhir to stay there, saying that he would come back with Rajaram. In the
evening, at about 4.30 pm, uncle of Sudhir viz. Chunni, while returning from
village Chandla, met Sudhir and both of them started proceeding towards
village on a bicycle. Chunni was driving the bicycle and Sudhir Singh was
sitting on its carrier. At about 5 O'clock, when they reached near the godown,

ey
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accused persons came there in a tractor from the front side. They were armed
with guns, spears and Lathis. The tractor was being driven by accused Chhota.
As soon as tractor reached near, accused persons started alighting from it.
Rajaram exhorted accused Dhillu @ Ram Vishal to assault them. Sudhir
jumped from the bicycle and ran away. While Chunni was turning his bicycle
back, Dhillu @ Ram Vishal fired a shot from his rifle, which hit in the abdomen
of Chunni. Other accused persons also rushed towards Chunni and assaulted
him with Lathi, Ballam and feet. When Sudhir asked them notto beat Chunni,
some of the accused persons ran after him, therefore, he moved away from
there. Sudhir Singh (PW-5), who was at his threshing floor and Ram Bahadur
Singh, who was coming from the side of village also shouted, but accused
persons intimidated them, therefore, they did not interfere. Complainant Sudhir
(PW-4) went running to his village and informed his father Himmat Singh (PW- ~
12), who alongwith Sudhir (PW-4) and other persons reached the spot, where
Chunni was lying in injured condition. On way, they saw accused persons
going in their tractor towards village Harrai. When Himmat Singh and other
persons reached at the spot, Chunni narrated the incident to them. While they
were taking Chunni to Police Station, Chandla, on way he died. They carried
dead body to police station where Sudhir (PW-4) lodged first information
report (Ex.P/3) at 7.15 pm.

3. Investigating Officer Devesh Kumar Pathak (PW-13), after inquest,
sent the body of Chunni for postmortem examination to PHC Chandla where

" Dr. M.K. Prajapathi (PW-9) conducted postmortem examination and found

about 46 injuries on the body of deceased including gun shot and stab wounds
vide his postmortem examination report Ex.P/7.

4. During investigation, spot map was prepared, statements of witnesses
were recorded, accused persons were arrested and at their instance weapons
of offence were recovered.

5. After investigation, charge sheet was filed against 11 accused persons.
Two of the accused persons viz. Rajaram and Ram Kishore @ Raju however
died during trial.

6. On charges being framed, accused persons abjured their guilt and
pleaded false implication due to enmity.

7. Upon trial and after appreciating the evidence adduced by prosecution,
learned trial judge held the accused persons guilty, convicted and sentenced
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them as aforesaid. Being aggrieved by their conviction and sentence, appellants
have filed this appeal.

8. Learned counsel for the appellants submitted that the evidence of
alleged eyewitnesses viz. Sudhir (PW-4) and Sudhir Singh (PW-5) was not
reliable. It was not possible for them to have witnessed the incident. Similarly,
the evidence of Jaikaran Singh (PW-2) and Himmat Singh (PW-12) in regard
to the oral dying declaration allegedly made by deceased to them was not
reliable. It was not possible for deceased to have made such dying declaration
in view of the serious nature of injuries suffered by him. Learned counsel
furthér submitted that since accused Chhota, who is alleged to have been
driving the tractor and accused Bhuria, Abbu, Natthu and Prakash who are
not stated to have wielded any weapon in the first information report, could
not have been held to have shared common object of the assembly for
committing murder of deceased. Learned trial judge since misappreciated the
evidence in this regard, their conviction deserved to be set aside. On the other
hand, Iearned counsel for the State submitted that the evidence of eyewitnesses
as well as of witnesses who deposed about the dying declaration was reliable.
The impugned judgment of conviction was just and proper, as such did not
call for any interference.

9. We have heard the learned counsel for the parties and perused the

impugned judgment and the evidence onrecord carefully.

10.  Ithasnotbeen disputed by the learned counsel for the appellants that
the deceased died of a homicidal death. It has been deposed by Sudhir Singh
(PW-4), Sudhir Singh (PW-5), Jaikaran Singh (PW-2) and Himmat Singh
(PW-12) that deceased suffered injuries and died while being taken to police
station. First information report (Ex.P/3) was lodged by Sudhir Singh (PW-
4). Inspector Devesh Kumar Pathak (PW-13), after conducting inquest, sent
dead body of deceased for postmortem examination to PHC Chandla. Dr.
M.K. Prajapati (PW-9) performed postmortem examination of the body and
found 46 injuries on it. The injuries comprised of one entry and exit wound of
firearm, 4 lacerated wounds, 3 stab wounds, 26 contusions and 11 abrasions.
These injuries were caused by firearm, stabbing object and hard and blunt
objects. On internal examination, PW-9 found fracture of frontal and parietal
bones, fracture of radius and ulna bones of right hand, fracture of tibia bone
of left leg and breaking of costal margin. By the entry wound of gun shot on
right side of the chest, ribs of the right side were broken, lung was ruptured

[}
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and the omentum was coming out from the exit wound. A piece of bullet or
pallet was recovered by him from the lacerated part of liver. In his opinion,
the cause of death was shock due to excessive bleeding from the injuries
caused by firearm and other weapons.

11.  From the aforesaid evidence it has been undoubtedly established that
deceased met with a homicidal death.

12.  Now the question before us is whether the appellants have been rightty
convicted for committing the murder of deceased.

13.  The prosecution case rested on the evidence of two eyewitnesses viz.
Sudhir (PW-4) and Sudhir Singh (PW-5) and the oral dying declaration made
by deceased to Himmat Singh (PW-12) and Jaikaran Singh (PW-2).

14.  Sudhir Singh (PW-4) stated that Chunni Singh, the deceased, was his
uncle. In the month of April he had taken a contract for putting soil on the
passage between Banshiya and Bhura Purwa. On the day of occurrence,
labourers viz. Sadhu, Pancha, Ram Ratan, Babu and Chutua were throwing
soil. At about 3.00 O'clock, accused Mahendra Agnihotri came there and
asked labourers to not to work there and to work at his godown from the
next day. When he admonished Mahendra that he should not come to his site
and he should go, Mahendra went to his village threatening him that he would
come back with Rajaram. At about 4.00 O'clock when his uncle came, he
alongwith his uncle proceeded back to his village on his bicycle. He was
sitting on the carrier and uncle was driving bicycle. As soon as they reached
near the godown, they saw the tractor of accused Rajaram approaching
towards them. Tractor stopped near them and accused Rajaram exhorted
Dhillu @ Ram Vishal to kill him. He jumped fror the bicycle and ran away.
Ram Vishal fired gun shot from his rifle at deceased. From some distance he
saw the incident. According to him, the tractor was being driven by accused
Chhota Agnihotri. Ram Vishal and Ram Sharan were sitting on its mudguards
having rifle and a Ballam. Other accused persons viz. Rajaram, Chhutta,
Mahendra, Raju, Bhuria, Abbu, Prakash and Natthu were present in the trolley
attached with the said tractor. Rajaram and Chhutta were armed with Ballams.
Mahendra had 12 bore gun whereas others had Lathis. After the gun shot
fired by Ram Vishal hit Chunni, all the accused persons rushed towards Chunni
and assaulted him by their respective weapons. When he asked accused
persons to refrain from assaulting Chunni, accused Mahendra, Bhuria and
Chhota ran after him to beat, whereupon he ran away but stopped on the
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other side of a culvert and saw accused persons assaulting Chunni. At the
time of occurrence, Sudhir Singh (PW-5) was also present at his threshing
floor and had seen the occurrence. After the incident he went to his house and
informed the incident to his father Himmat Singh. He, his father,uncle Jaikaran
and Kuber then proceeded for the spot in a tractor. On way they saw accused
persons going on their tractor trolley towards village Harrai. When they reached
near Chunni, he was alive. Chunni narrated the incident to Hinmat Singh,
Jaikaran Singh and Kuber Singh. They carried Chunni in the tractor to Police
Station, Chandla, but, on way, he expired. At police station, he lodged first
information report (Ex.P/3). He further stated that when they alongwith
investigating officer came back to spot, the bicycle of deceased was not there.
The same was later on recovered from the possession of accused Rajaram.

15. Leamed counsel for the appellants submitted that the evidence of Sudhir
Singh (PW-4) was not reliable because his presence with the deceased was
doubtful. If the dispute of accused persons in respect to labourers was with
Sudhir Singh (PW-4), there was no reason for them to have assaulted
deceased. Learned counsel further submitted that if at all this witness was
present at the spot, accused persons would not have left him alive. In fact
deceased was killed by some unknown persons and when his dead body was
found, false evidence was created by this witness (PW-4).

16.  Sudhir Singh (PW-4) was subjected to a very lengthy cross-
examination, but nothing could be elicited out to indicate that he was not present
at the place of occurrence. He categorically stated that when he alongwith
deceased was going on the bicycle, as soon as he saw tractor of accused
persons approaching towards them, and Rajaram shouting, he jumped from
the bicycle and ran away. He stated that shot of the rifle fired by .the accused
Dhillu @ Ram Vishal hit deceased from a distance of 20-22 cubit. Jt was quite
reasonable that by the time other accused persons alighted from the tractor
and reached near deceased, he could have run away to some distance to
reach a safe place. Though there appeared no apparent evidence about the
motive on the part of the accused persons to kill the deceased, but it was
categorically stated that Dhillu @ Ram Vishal fired gun shot from a distance of
22 cubit, at deceased. Since many times motive lies hidden in the heart of an
offender, it may not be proved by direct evidence, but in a case of direct
evidence, the lack of evidence in respect of motive does not affect the -
prosecution case. It was quite natural for Sudhir Singh (PW-4) to have seen
the incident from some distance, as his uncle was being assaulted. Merely by
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the fact that this witness managed to escape and did not interfere or tried to
save the deceased, his presence cannot be doubted. The evidence of this
witness finds corroboration from the first information report (Ex.P/3) lodged
by him soon after the occurrence and also by the medical evidence of Dr.
M.K. Prajapati (PW-9) who found one gun shot, 3 stab and about 40 other
injuries caused by hard and blunt objects on the body of deceased.

17.  Another eyewitness Sudhir Singh (PW-5) stated that at the time of
occurrence he was present in his Khalihan (threshing floor). He saw allthe -
accused persons coming in.a tractor trolley. The said tractor was being driven
by Chhota Agnihotri. When Sudhir Singh and Chunni came on a bicycle,
accused Rajram raised a 'Lalkar’ to Dhillu “Maar sale ko bhaga ja raha
hai’, Dhillu @ Ram Vishal jumped from the tractor and fired at Chunni. Other
accused persons also alighted from the tractor and went near Chunni. In the
meantime, Sudhir, who was sitting on the carrier of bicycle, jumped and ran
back. He stayed near a culvert and shouted not to kill his uncle. When some
of the accused persons tried to run after him, he ran away. After some time,
Himmat Singh, Jaikaran Singh, Sudhir Singh s/o Himmat Singh and Kuber
Singh came on a tractor where injured Chunni Singh was lying. He also went
at the spot. At that time Chunni Singh was alive and moaning. He stated that
he saw the incident from a distance of about 60-70 paces, but he could not
see as to at which part of the body of deceased Rajaram dealt the blow of
Ballam.

18.  Learned counsel for the appellants referring to the evidence of Shivdatt
Patwari (PW-8) stated that it was not possible for Sudhir Singh (PW-5) to
have seen the occurrence as there were shrubs between his Khalihan and the
place of occurrence. We are unable to accept the submission made by the
learned counse! for the appellants because this fact was not suggested to
Sudhir Singh (PW-5) in cross examination and further because in the map
(Ex.P/6) prepared by Patwari (PW-8) no shrubs were shown at or near about
the place of occurrence. The presence of Sidhir Singh (PW-5) at his Khalihan,
which was not far away from the place of occurrence, appeared natural. The
evidence of this witness stood corroborated from the evidence of Sudhir Singh
(PW-4) and also from the fact that his name was mentioned by Sudhir (PW-
4) in the first information report (Ex.P/3).

19.  Himmat Singh (PW-12), the brother of Chunni Singh, stated that at
about 5.00 O'clock in the evening when he was at his house, his son Sudhir
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Singh came running and informed him that accused persons were bent upon
killing Chunni. He then alongwith his brother Jaikaran, sons Kuber and Sudhir
went in a tractor trolley towards godown. As soon as they came out of village,
they saw accused persons going in a tractor trolley towards village Harrai.
When they reached near Chunni, who was lying on the way, they saw injuries
on his body. He was alive. He told to them that accused persons came in a
tractor trolley, Ram Vishal fired gun shot at him and others assaulted him with
Ballam, Lathis and the butt of gun. When they were carrying him in the tractor
for treatment, on way he died. All of them then went to Police Station Chandla
where his son Sudhir lodged report. Similar statement was given by Jaikaran
Singh (PW-2), another brother of deceased.

20.  Learned counsel for the appellants placing reliance on the case of
Darshan Singh and others v. State of Punjab-AIR 1983 SC 554 submitted
that since deceased had suffered serious gun shot and number of other serious
and bleeding injuries, it was not possible for him to speak. In fact he was
already dead. The evidence of dying declaration was fabricated by the brothers
of deceased due to enmity. Learned counsel referring to the police statement
of Himmat Singh (Ex.D/4) submitted that the name of accused Ram Sharan
was not disclosed by him in the police statement whereas he improved before
the Court in naming Ram Sharan also. Learned counsel also pointed out that
Himmat Singh did not mention in Ex.D/4 that Jaikaran Singh (PW-2)
accompanied him when he went to spot.

21.  Incase of Darshan Singh (supra) Apex Court held that the conviction
can rest on a dying declaration if it inspires confidence. When from the medical
evidence it is found that vital organs of the deceased like peritoneum, stomach
and spleen were completely smashed, he cannot be said to be in a fit state of
mind and body to make any kind of coherent or credible statement relating to
the circumstances which resulted in his death. Therefore, his dying declaration
could not be relied upon.

22.  Onperusal of the evidence of Dr. M.K. Prajapati (PW-9) it is apparent
that about 45 injuries were found on the body of deceased. Because of gun
shot injury on the right side of chest, his ribs were broken. Lung was ruptured.
His diaphragm and intestines were ruptured. Small intestine and liver was also
ruptured. The membranes were lacerated. Frontal and parietal bones of skull
were broken and bones of hands and leg were also fractured. The deceased
had died because of excessive haemorrhage from the injuries caused by firearm
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as well as other injuries. Apart from gun shot injury, he had also suffered three
stab injuries on the leg and numerous injuries on other parts of his body. In
these circumstances, in our opinion, it would not be safe to place reliance on
the evidence of the said oral dying declaration by holding that deceased was
in fit state of mind and body to make a dying declaration or that he was alive.
No doubt eyewitnesses viz. Sudhir Singh (PW-4) and Sudhir Singh (PW-5)
stated that by the time Himmat Singh and Jaikaran Singh reached the place of
occurrence, deceased was alive and had narrated the incident to them, but it
seems sheer exaggeration by them.

23.  Learned counsel for the appellants placing reliance on the ratio of
Apex Court in the case of Dajya Moshya Bhil and others v. State of
Maharashtra-AIR 1984 SC 1717 submitted that since appellants Chhota
Bhuria, Abbu, Natthu and Prakash were empty handed and did not cause any
injury to deceased, it could not held that they were aware of the intention of
remaining accused persons to kill the deceased. In the circumstances of the
occurrence, it was also not possible for them to know that others had an
object to cause death of deceased. As such, their conviction under Section
302/149 IPC was not justified. Learned counsel for the State, per contra
submitted that from the very fact that all the accused persons came together
in a tractor, some of whom were armed with deadly weapons including guns,
itcould be inferred that the common object of assembly was to commit murder
of deceased. '

24.  In case of Dojya Moshya Bhil (supra) the Apex Court while
considering the Hability of appellants 2 and 3 in the case observed that even
though they came unarmed when they chased deceased with appellant 1, who
was armed with a Dharya a weapon of cutting and pelted stones, an inference
of common intention being formed on the spur of moment cannot be made.
The fact that appellant 1 was armed with a Dharya and appellants 2 and 3
pelted stones causing injuries may permit all inference that appellants 2 and 3
could have shared the common intention with appellant 1 of causing grievous
hurt to deceased. Therefore in the circumstances, the minimum common
intention that can be attributed to appellants 2 and 3 is one of causing grievous
hurt with a sharp-cutting weapon like a dharya. Thus appellants 2 and 3 are
shown to have committed all offence under S. 326 read with S. 34 of the
Penal Code and they should be convicted accordingly.

25.  Itistrue that appellants in the case in hand have been convicted under
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Section 302 read with Section 149 of the Indian Penal Code, but if the evidence
of complainant Sudhir Singh (PW-4) is carefully scrutinized, it can be seen
that in the first information report he attributed no weapons to aforesaid five
accused persons. Accused Chhota was driver of the tractor whereas Bhuria,
Abbu, Natthu and Prakash were unarmed. He, in the court, however, improved
and stated that they were armed with Lathis. Other witness Sudhir (PW-5)
also stated that these accused persons were armed with Lathis. But, since
these accused persons were stated to be unarmed in first information report
(Ex.P/3), in our opinion, it would be safer to hold that they had no weapons
and they did not cause any injury to deceased. We, however, find it established
that remaining other accused who were armed with guns, Ballam and sticks
caused injuries to deceased as a result of which he died.

26.  Now the question before this Court would be whether accused Chhota, .
Bhuria, Abbu, Natthu and Prakash would be liable for committing murder of
deceased vicariously for the acts done by other accused persons. The Apex
Court for such a situation, in case of Allanddin Mian and others, Sharif Mian
and another v. State of Bihar-AIR 1989 SC 1456 observed:-

“In order to fasten vicarious responsibility on any member of
an unlawful assembly the prosecution must prove that the act
constituting an offence was done in prosecution of the common
object of that assembly or the act done is such as the members
of that assembly knew to be likely to be committed in
prosecution of the common object of that assembly. Under
this section, therefore, every member of an unlawful assembly
renders himself liable for the criminal act or acts of any other
members or members of that assembly provided the same is/
are done in prosecution of the common object or is/are such
as every member of that assembly knew to be likely to be
committed. This section creates a specific offence and makes
every member of the unlawful assembly liable for the offence
or offences committed in the course of the occurrence provided
the same was/were committed in prosecution of the common
object or was/were such as the members of that assembly knew
to be likely to be committed. Since this section imposes a
constructive penal liability, it must be strictly construed as it
seeks to punish members of an unlawful assembly for the offence
or offences committed by their associate or associates in
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carrying out the common object of the assembly. What is
important in each case is to find out if the offence was
committed to accomplish the common object of the assembly
or was one which the members knew to be likely to be
committed., There must be a nexus between the common object
and the offence committed and if it is found that the same was
committed to accomplish the common object every member
of the assembly will become liable for the same. Therefore,
any offence committed by a member of an unlawful assembly
in prosecution of any one or more of the five objects mentioned
in Section 141 will render his companions constituting the
unlawful assembly liable for that offence with the aid of S.
149. It is not the intention of the legislature in enacting S.149
to render every member of an unlawful assembly liable to
punishment for every offence committed by one or more of its
members. In order to invoke S. 149 it must be shown that the
incriminating act was done to accomplish the common object
of the unlawful assembly. Even if an act incidental to the
common object is committed to accomplish the common object
of the unlawful assembly it must be within the knowledge of
other members as one likely to be committed in prosecution
of the common object.

& % ¥k

Where the common object of the unlawful assembly was to
kill the father of the deceased girls and on frustration of that
object in consequence of the father who had gone inside the
house to fetch a spear, having been prevented from coming
out of the house, two of the accused killed the deceased, other
accused could not be punished for the acts of killing for
accomplishing the common object it was not necessary to kill
the two girls who were not hindrance to accused in question
from accomplishing their common object.

27.  Keeping in view the ratio of the aforesaid Apex Court's decision, if
we analyze the situation occurring in the instant case, it can be readily inferred
that the cause of incident was that Sudhir Singh (PW-4) had admonished
accused Mahendra when he went to his site and asked his labourers to
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discontinue work there. This, in all probability, infuriated accused Mahendra
who challenged him that he would come back with Rajaram. If this was the
cause, which provoked accused persons to teach a lesson to Sudhir, the
common object of the assembly formed by them must be to commit murder of
Sudhir Singh (PW-4), but when accused persons found Chunni Singh with
Sudhir, they instead attacked him and caused his death. Sudhir escaped unhurt,
In these circumstances, in our opinion, it cannot be held that initially the
common object of the assembly was to commit murder of Chunni, but suddenly
when Sudhir escaped, some of them took up in their minds to kill Chunni
Singh. In these circumstances, in our opinion, it cannot be held established
that the persons who were empty handed, and who did not cause injury to
deceased also shared the common intention or the common object of the
assembly of those accused persons who actually caused injuries and committed
murder of the deceased. Therefore, appellants viz. Bhuria, Abbu, Natthu,
Prakash and Chhota, who were not armed and caused no injury to deceased,
cannot be held liable for causing death of Chunni.

28.  For the reasons stated hereinabove, conviction and sentence of
appellant No.1 Bhuria, No.3 Abbu, No.5 Natthu, No.7 Prakash and No.8
Chhota on the charge under Sections 148 and 302/149 of the Indian Penal
Code deserves to be and is hereby set aside, They are acquitted. The conviction
and sentence of remaining appellants viz. appellant No.2 Chuttu, No.4
Ramsharan, No.6 Ram Vishal and No.9 Mahendra awarded to them by the
trial court on the aforesaid counts is affirmed.

29.  Appeal partly allowed.
Appeal partly allowed.
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Smt. Justice Vimla Jain
Cr. A. No. 274/2007 (Jabalpur) decided on 31 January, 2013

CHHABBILAL GOUD ...Appellant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 304 Part Il - Murder or
Culpable Homicide not amounting to murder - Appellant went to the
house of P.W, 5 along with his wife where they had meals and consumed
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liquor - Wife of the appellant slept on a cot and refused to go home -
Appellant slapped her twice and took her on his shoulder and threw his
wife on the floor in front of his house and started giving fist blows -
Deceased died because of severe bleeding - Held - Incident took place
without any premeditation - There was no previous quarrel - Assault
was made with an intention to cause bodily injury only - Injuries were
not sufficient in the ordinary course of nature to cause death - Appellant
is guilty under Section 304 Part I and not under Section 302 - - Appeal
partly allowed. (Paras 15 and 16)
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Durgesh Gupta, for the appellant.
Amit Pandey, P.L. For the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
VimLz.JA, J. :- Appellant Chabbilal Goud preferred this appeal under
Section 374(2) of the Code of Criminal Procedure being aggrieved by the
judgment dated 11.1.2007 passed by Additional Sessions J udge, Mandla in
Sessions Trial No.129/2006, whereby he has been convicted and sentenced
as under:~

Provision Sentence

Under Section 302 of IPC | Imprisonment for life and fine of Rs.2000/, in
default of payment of fine, rigorous
imprisonment for one year.

2. ltisthe allegation against appellant/accused Chhabbilal that on
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22.7.2006 in the afternoon at Village Naijhar, he intentionally and knowingly
caused MARPEET with his wife Sonabai and committed her murder.

3. Brief facts of the case are that on 22.7.2006, complainant Sukhniyabai
invited her brother-in-law (DEVAR) appellant Chhabbilal at her house for
meal. Accused Chhabbilal, his wife Sonabai (since deceased), Phuliabai and
Deva Goud came to the house of Sukhniyabai and consumed liquor. Accused
Chhabbilal and his wife Sonabai also had their meal. Thereafter, Sonabai slept
in the house of Sukhniyabai on a cot (KHATIYA). Phuliabai, Deva Goud,
Ratan Goud and Chhotelal had left the house of Sukhniyabai. After around %
an hour, accused Chhabilal came there and asked Sonabai to go home but
Sonabai refused to go home. On her refusal, the accused slapped her twice.
Sukhniyabai requested him not to beat Sonabai. Chhabbilal replied that
Sukhniyabai was his wife and he would take her to home. Thereafter, he took
Sonabai on his shoulder and went towards his house. Chhabilal threw his
wife Sonabai on the floor in front of the stairs of his house and started giving
fists blows and dragged her legs. Subbal Goud, a neighbour of Chhabbilal,
came there and scolded Chhabbilal. Thereafter, Chhabbilal forcibly kept his
wife Sonabai on his shoulder and entered into his house. In the evening, a
news spread in the village that Chhabbilal had killed his wife Sonabai.
Sukhniyabai (Bhabhi of Chhabbilal), Sarpanch, Upsarpanch and other
members of the village reached the house of accused Chhabbilal. Accused
Chhabbilal had admitted in front of the villagers that he caused MARPEET
with his wife and committed his murder. Dead body of Sonabai was lying in
the room of accused Chhabbilal and the blood was oozing out from her mouth.
There were number of injuries on the body of Sonabai. On the request made
by the villagers, Sukhniyabai (PW.5) went to Police Station Gughri alongwith
her husband Ratan and Kotwar Rameshdas. As the direct road towards Gughrt
Police Station from Naijhar was closed due to heavy rain, complainant
Sukhniyabai went to Police Station Gughri via Bichhia and lodged the report
on 22.7.2006 at about 11:10 pm. On the basis of her information, Marg
Intimation (Ex.P/11) and First Information Report (Ex.P/3) were registered.
On 23.6.2006 in the night, the police party reached the spot and prepared
Panchnama of the dead body (Ex.P/2). The dead body of Sonabai was sent
for postmortem. On the basis of the statement on memorandum, bloodstained
shirt was recovered from the house of accused Chhabbilal and he was arrested.

4. After investigation, charge sheet was filed under Section 302 of IPC
against the appellant before the Court of Judicial Magistrate First Class,
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Mandla, who committed the case to the Court of Sessions and ultimately it
was transferred to the learned Additional Sessions Judge, Mandla. On being
charged with the offence under Section 302 of IPC, the appellant/accused
pleaded not guilty-and complete innocence and claimed to be tried with the -
prayer that he had been falsely implicated in the case.

5. In order to bring home the charges against the appellant, the
prosecution examined eighteen witnesses and proved the documents (Ex.P/1
to P/22) onrecord. The appellant did not examine any witness m support of
his defence.

6. The learned Court below, after scanning the evidence found the
charges proved against the appellant, convicted and sentenced him as stated
hereinabove.

7. This appeal has been filed by the appellant assailing the said judgment
of conviction and order of sentence.

8. Learned counsel for the appellant submitted that the Court below has
committed an error of law in holding the appellant/accused guilty for the offence
under Section 302 of IPC. Learned counsel has prayed that appeal of
appellant/accused deserves to be allowed by setting aside the finding of
conviction and order of sentence.

9. On the other hand, learned Panel Lawyer for the State has supported
the finding of the trial Court.

10.  'Wehave considered the arguments advanced by learned counsel for
the parties and perused the record.

11. . PW.15 Dr.Parasram Dhurve conducted‘_the postmortem of deceased
Sonabai vide Ex.P/7 and found following injuries on her person:-

INTERNAL INJURIES

1. Scratch mark on left side of chest.

2. Inflammation on right side of knee joint.

3. Echymosis on both back side of chest.

4. Injury on mouth with clotted blood.

Opinion :- The cause of death of Smt. Sonabai, Aged 28 years,
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W/o Chhabbilal Goud, Police Station Gughri is shock due to
severe bleeding from mouth and internal vital organ, duration
within 26 hours from performing postmortem. Homicidal in
nature.

12.  Thereis no challenge from any side to the fact that death of deceased
Sonabai was homicidal. PW.15 Dr.Parasram Dhurve found four injuries on
the person the deceased and as per his opinion, Sonabai died as a result of
shock due to severe bleeding from mouth and internal vital organ. Therefore,
it is apparent that injuries caused on her person were fatal in nature and sufficient
to cause her death in due course. Therefore, looking to the nature of injuries,
death of Sonabai appears to be homicidal.

13.  PW.5 Sukhniyabai, who is sister-in-law (JETHANI) of deceased
Sonabai, has stated in her deposition that on the day of the incident, accused
Chhabbilal had gone to the house of Phuliabai for doing some BEGAR work.
She did not know as to what Chhabbilal consumed at the house of Phuliabai.
Phuliabai had offered liquor to Sonabai. She did not know as to how many
persons had consumed liquor. Deceased Sonabai consumed liquor at her house.
She only invited Chhabbilal at her house for meal. Sonabai, Phuliabai and
Deva had also come to her house for meal. Before having meal, they had
consumed liguor at her house. Sonabai had slept at her house. Chhabbilal,
Ratan, Deva and Phuliabai had left her house. After sometime, Chhabbilal had
come to her house as Sonabai was sleeping there and slapped twice to Sonabai
and when she requested not to beat Sonabai, Chhabbilal said that he is her
husband and what he wants he will do with her. She also stated that Chhabbilal
threw her on the floor and took Sonabai to his house. Thereafter, what
happened, she had not seen. Before the sun-set, eccused Chhabbilal had taken
his wife Sonabai from her house and in the evening, she came to know that
Chhabbilal had killed his wife Sonabai. She went to the house of Chhabbilal
and found that the body of Sonabai was lying on his corridor. She did not
know as to where Sonabai sustained injuries. All the villagers were present on
the spot. She had seen the dead body of Sonabai. She had wound on her
back. She went to Police Station Gughri alongwith her husband Ratan and
Kotwar and lodged the report (Ex.P/3).

14.  PW.7 Harish Chandra Sahu, who is a Upsarpanch of Village Naijhar,
has stated in his deposition that on the day of the incident, he was at the Bazar
Square. Accused Chhabbilal came there and said to him that some quarrel
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had taken place between Sonabai and him. He had caused MARPEET with
her and now she was not responding. At that time, Chamanlal, former Sarpanch
Ratnu and Phagulal were also present there. Thereafter, he alongwithall persons
went to the house of Chhabbilal and found that Sonabai was lying on the
corridor of the house of accused Chhabbilal. She was dead and blood was
oozing out from her mouth. Police party came to the spot in the night and next
day they started their investigation. This witness also stated that the dead
body of Sonabai was recovered from the house of accused Chhabbilal in his
presence and at the instance of accused Chhabbilal, a bloodstained shirt was
also recovered from his house.

15. Thereis no doubt that dead body of deceased was lying in the corridor
of the house of appellant/accused. From the evidence of all the witnesses
examined by the prosecution, it is apparent that the incident culminated in the
MARPEET by appellant with deceased, erupted from consumption of liquor
by deceased and refusal to go to her house with appellant. It appears from
the record that there was no previous dispute or quarrel between the appellant
and deceased. Appellant did not use any weapon for assaulting the deceased
for causing bodily injuries to her as is likely to cause her death. In the instant
case, all these facts are established from the record. The incident took place
without any premeditation of the appellant. Evidence, examined in its entirety,
shows that without any premeditation, the appellant committed the offence,
which however was done with the intention to cause a bodily injury only,
which resulted in the death of the deceased. The injuries were not sufficient in
the ordinary course of nature to have caused her death.

16.  Inview of our foregoing discussion, we are of the considered opinion
that the appellant is guilty of an offence punishatle under Section 304 Part II
IPC and not under Section 302 IPC. Hence, we set aside the impugned
conviction and sentence of imprisonment for life rendered by the trial Court
under Section 302 IPC. Instead, we convict the appellant under Section 304
Part I1 IPC and sentence him to rigorous imprisonment for the period already
undergone, which comes to six years and six months and we direct that the
appellant be set at liberty forthwith unless wanted in any other case.

17.  Intheresult, the appeal is partly allowed to the extent indicated above.
Appeal partly allowed.
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Smi. Justice Vimla Jain
Cr. A. No. 1393/2002 (Jabalpur) decided on 19 February, 2013

LAKKHU @ LAKHANLAL GOND ...Appellant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

A. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 9 - Test Identification
Parade - Person who conducted Test Identification Parade not examined
- Property was also shown in the police station prior to holding of T.L.P.
- Not creditworthy. (Paras 11 and 12)

7. I ST (1872 T 1), GIWT 9 — U&7 49§ — 99
arfyg &1 wdheer 7€ frar T e geEe RS warfad @1 off — gEE
Wws o ¥ qd gfew o ¥ waka o feamar €@ man on - fawaeda
g |

B. Evidence Act (I of 1872), Section 27 - Recovery of articles
- Blood Group - No report about blood group of deceased - In absence
of comparison of blood group of deceased with blood group of stains

found on articles no inference can be drawn against the appellant.
(Para 13)
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C. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Murder -
Circumstantial Evidence - Conviction based on memorandum of
accused and recovery of articles - Held - Circumstances sought to be
proved against the appellant were not established by cogent and
convincing evidence - Suspicion however strong can not take the place
of proof - Conviction set aside - Appeal allowed. (Para 14)
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Durgesh Gupta, for the appellant.

Amit Pandey, P.L. For the respondent.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was -delivered by :
RAKESH SAKSENA, J. :- Appellant has filed this appeal against the judgment
dated 26™ June 2002, passed by First Additional Sessions Judge, Damoh, in
Sessions Trial No.75/2000 convicting him under Section 302 of the Indian
Penal Code and sentencing him to imprisonment for life with fine of Rs.2000/-.

2. In short, the prosecution case is that in the night intervening between
24% and 25" February, 2000 Hallebhai, the deceased, slept in the back side
room of his house. In the morning, at about 7.00 am, when his elder brother
Deo Singh opened the door of the room, he found Hallebhai lying dead on the
cot. There were injuries on his neck. Deo Singh went and informed to his
father Girdhari, who was staying at his field. Girdhari and his wife reached at
the room where the dead body of Hallebhai was lying. They found that a
small portable black and white TV and Rs.2000/- which were kept in the
room were stolen. Girdhari went to police station, Jabera and lodged first
information report (ExP/1) at 11.00 am. Inspector S.K. Jain (PW-8), after
recording the first information report, went at the place of occurrence,
prepared spot map (Ex.P/17) and conducted inquest. After recording inquest
memorandum (ExP/4), he sent the dead body for postmortem examination to
Primary Health Centre, Jabera. Assistant Surgeon Dr. K.C. Koshta (PW-12)
conducted postmortem examination and found injuries on the bady of deceased
caused by some sharp edged weapon.

3. On 7.3.2000, three accused persons viz. Lakkhu (appellant), Guddu
@. Ganesh, and Harchat Gaud were arrested. On the information given by
appellant, a wrist watch, axe and clothes were recovered. Broken pieces of a
television were also recovered from a Talaiya on the information given by the
accused persons. Wrist watch and the pieces of TV were identified by Girdhar
(PW-1) and Deo Singh (PW-2). After completion of investigation, charge
sheet was filed and the case was committed for trial.

4. On charges being framed, accused persons abjured their guilt and
pleaded false implication in the case. Upon trial, after appreciating the evidence
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onrecord learned Additional Sessions Judge held appellant Lakkhu guilty and
convicted and sentenced him as mentioned above. However, finding the
evidence insufficient against accused Harchat and Guddu © Ganesh learned
trial judge acquitted them. Aggrieved by his conviction and sentence, appellant
Lakkhu @ Lakhanlal has filed this appeal.

5. Learned counsel for the appellant submitted that the learned trial judge
misappreciated the evidence and erred in holding the appellant guilty. The
identification of recovered property was improper and illegal. It was not
established that the property, allegedly recovered on the information of
appellant, belonged to deceased. As such the conviction of the appellant was
illegal and deserved to be set aside. On the other hand, learned counsel for
the State supported the impugned judgment of conviction and submitted that
the evidence adduced by the prosecution was correctly appreciated. Appellant
was rightly convicted.

0. We have heard the learned counsel for the parties and perused the
impugned judgment and the evidence on record carefully.

7. It has not been disputed by the learned counsel for the appellant that
the deceased died of a homicidal death. The dead body of deceased was
seen by Girdhari (PW-1) and Deo Singh (PW-2), respectively, the father and
brother of deceased. Girdhari lodged the report (Ex.P/1) about the death of
deceased. After conducting inquest, investigating officer S.K. Jain (PW-8)
sent the body of deceased for postmortem examination. On examination of
the body, Dr. K.C. Koshta (PW-12) found following injuries on it:

"1. Incised wound 6" x 4" extending from the bone of chin to
the cervical bone of neck, Mandible was crushed and the bone
of vertebral column was cut. Respiratory tract, trachea and
main blood vessels of the neck were cut.

2. Incised wound 2" x 1/8"x1/2" onright jaw.
3. Incised wound 3" x 1/2" x bone deep on lower neck..

In the opinion of doctor, the cause of death of deceased was
excessive haemorrhage due to injuries on the neck, respiratory
tract, trachea and large blood vessels of the neck. The injuries
were ante-mortem and homicidal in nature."

From the aforesaid evidence it stood established that deceased met with a
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homicidal death.

8. Now the question before us is whether it was appellant who caused
the homicidal death of deceased. There being no direct evidence, the case
rests on the circumstantial evidence of recovery of the incriminating articles
from the possession of the appellant. Learned counsel for the appellant
submitted that it was not established by the prosecution evidence that the

- articles recovered from the possession of appellant belonged to, or were in

possession of the deceased at the time of his death and that the identification
of the articles was improper and unreliable.

0. Investigating officer S.K. Jain (PW-8) deposed that on 7.3.2000 in
the presence of two witnesses appellant gave information about a TV, axe, a
watch and the clothes which he had worn at the time of occurrence. He
recorded the said information in the memorandum (Ex.P/ 6) and, on the same
day, at the instance of appellant, he seized a Seiko wrist watch, an axe with
blood stains, a jeans and a yellow T-shirt having blood stains vide seizure
memo Ex. P/9. On the same day, on the information given by all the three
accused persons, he recovered broken pieces of a black and white TV from
a Talaiya vide seizure memo ExP/12. Clothes and axe seized from the
possession of the appellant were sent to FSL, Sagar. As per FSL report (Ex.P/
21) and serology report, the clothes and the axe were found to be stained
with human blood.

10.  Independent witnesses of memorandum and recovery of the aforesaid
articles from the possession of appellant viz. Komal Singh (PW-5) and Harlal
(PW-6) did not support the prosecution case. They were declared hostile.
But, in our opinion, the evidence of investigating officer S.K. Jain (PW-8),
who recovered the aforesaid articles, cannot be doubted in this regard in the
absence of any grudge on his part against the appellant.

11.  Recovered articles were identified by Girdhari (PW-1) and Deo Singh
(PW-2) in the test identification conducted by Surat Singh, the Block President
of village Jabera. Learned counsel for the appellant urged that the evidence of
identification conducted during investigation cannot be accepted since Surat
Singh, who conducted the test identification parade (Ex.P/2), was not examined
in the court. In the absence of the evidence of Surat Singh, the evidence of
identification was inadmissible. We find substance in the submission made by
learned counsel for the appellant. Apart from it, in our opinion, the identification
of property, allegedly recovered from the possession of appellant, suffers with
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number of other infirmities also. The Seiko wrist watch, which is alleged to
have been recovered from the possession of the appellant, was not mentioned
by Girdhari(PW-1) to have been lost or missing in the first information report
(Ex.P/1) lodged by him. Girdhari as well as Deo Singh (PW-2), who
participated in the test identification admitted that such type of watch could
be available in any body's house. Similar is the case with the broken pieces of
TV which are said to have been recovered from Talaiya at the instance of all
the accused persons. Since the information about the discovery of pieces of
television was given first in time by the appellant, the recovery of it was
attributed to appellant. From the evidence of Girdhari (PW-1) it is revealed
that only one set of pieces of broken TV were put up for test identification
whereas the mixed article was a working TV set. According to him, he
identified the watch because no other watch was kept for identification. Apart
from it; these articles were shown to him in the police station before the test
identification parade was conducted.

12, Girdhari (PW-1) admitted that he had no knowledge about the articles
which had been stolen. He could know about the articles only when the accused
persons were arrested. Deo Singh (PW-2) stated that a TV, two tape recorders
and a wrist watch, which the deceased had been wearing, were not found in
the room. He also admitted that before the test identification proceedings he
had gone to police station and thereafter he went to Block Office where the
test identification was conducted. He stated that the TV which was missing
from the room of deccased was of big size and he could not say of which
company it was. | le expressed his ignorance about the company of the wrist
watch also. Deo Singh (PW-2) also stated that there was only one wrist watch
and broken pieces of TV. It is true that both the aforesaid witnesses identified
the aforesaid articles in the court, but, in our opinion, the evidence of
identification of articles cannot be held credit worthy. It does not appear
probable that a person, who comes from a rural background can identify the
broken pieces of TV set especially when he did not know the name of company
which manufactured the said TV and in the absence of any specific mark of
identification. Similar is the position with respect to wrist watch. In these
circumstances, we are of the opinion that learned trial judge misappreciated
the evidence and committed error in accepting the evidence of identification
of property allegedly recovered from the possession of the appellant.

13.  Nextcomes the recovery of the axe and the clothes from the appellant
which were found to have stains of human blood. The T-shirt was found to be
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stained with 'B' group of blood. Admittedly no report about the blood group
of decéased was made available. In the absence of the comparison of blood
group of deceased with the blood group of stains found on the articles
recovered from the possession of the appellant no incriminating inference could
be drawn against the appellant. It could merely be a corroborating piece of
evidence when there is other clinching evidence against the appellant connecting
him with the crime. In absence of such evidence, the appellant cannot be held
to be the perpetrator of crime solely on the basis of human blood being found
on the articles recovered from him.

14.  For the aforesaid reasons, we are of the considered opinion that the
circumstances sought to be proved by the prosecution against the appellant
were not established by cogent and convincing evidence. Suspicion howsoever
strong cannot take place of proof. Accordingly, the conviction and sentence
awarded to appellant under Section 302 of the Indian Penal Code is set aside.
He is acquitted. He be released forthwith, if not required in any other case.

15.  Appeal allowed.
Appeal allowed.

I.L.R. [2013] M.P., 939
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Smt. Justice Vimla Jain
Cr. A. No. 1669/2001 (Jabalpur) decided on 25 March, 2013

GAJENDRA SINGH CHOUHAN ...Appellant
Vs.. :
STATE OF M..P. ...Respondent

-

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302, Evidence Act (1 0f1872),
Section 32 - Murder - Dying Declarations - In written dying
declarations, information given by one of the deceased to the Doctor
and the Dehati Nalishi lodged by the deceased clearly speaks that the
appellant poured kerosene oil and ignited the deceased persons - There
is nothing on record to show that-the dying declarations were result of
imagination, tutoring or prompting - Dying Declarations were made
voluntarily - Appellant guilty of committing murder - Appeal dismissed.

(Paras 15 & 21)
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Case referred :

(2005) 9 SCC 113.

V.K. Lakhera with Neena Khera for the appellant.
Umesh Pandey with A.X. Chaurasiya, G.A. For the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
RAKESH SAKSENA, J. :- Appellant has preferred this appeal against the judgment
dated 19" September, 2001 passed by Sessions Judge, Bhopal in Sessions
Trial No. 73/2001, convicting the appellant under Section 302 of the Indian
Penal Code on two counts and sentencing him to imprisonment for life with
fine of Rs. 500/- on each count. In default of payment of fine, further
imprisonment for three months. Both the sentences to run concurrently.

2. In short, the prosecution case is that the deceased persons viz. Guddu
and his wife Basanti Bai lived in village Kajalikheda. On 20.1 1.2000, around
8-9 O' clock in the night, when they were at their house in which they used to
run tea shop also, appellant Gajendra along with his two associates reached
there and demanded money. On refusal by Guddu, he picked up a can of
kerosene kept in the shop and poured kerosene on him and Basant Bai, and
set fire to them. When Guddu tried to extinguish the fire of his wife, he also
got burnt. Papoo (PW2) and his mother Rajo (PW3) reached there and
extinguished the fire. Appellant and his associates ran away. Papoo, in his
truck carried Guddu and Basanti Bai to Hamidia Hospital, Bhopal for treatment.
Guddu gave a report to Sub Inspector Purnendra Singh (PW13) which was
recorded by him at Hamidia Hospital as Dehati Nalishi Ex. P/18. On the basis
of said report, first information report Ex. P/18-A was registered at police
station Kolar Road under Sections 307 and 34 of the Indian Penal Code. Due
to burn injuries, both the injured persons died. Thereafter, the case was
converted to one under Section 302 of the Indian Penal Code.

3. During treatment, dying declarations Ex. P/13 and Ex. P/14 of both
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the deceased persons were recorded by Executive Magistrate Magsood
Ahmed (PW?7). After the death, dead body of Guddu was sent to Medico
Legal Institute, Bhopal, where Dr. Ashok Sharma (PW4) conducted autopsy
of his body. The dead body of Basanti Bai was sent to Gandhi Medical College,
Bhopal, where Dr. V.K. Athwal (PW11) conducted autopsy of her body.
After arrest of the accused/appellant and further requisite investigation, charge
shect was filed and the case was then committed for trial.

4. During trial, appellant abjured his guilt and pleaded false implication.
According to him, though he did not know to deceased persons, but false
dying declarations were made by them against him.

5. Learned Sessions Judge, upon trial after appreciation of evidence held
appellant guilty, convicted and sentenced him as mentioned above.

6. Learned counsel for the appellant submitted that the eye witnesses
and other main witnesses of the prosecution did not support the prosecution
case, yet learned Sessions Judge mis-appreciating the evidence of dying
declarations held the appellant guilty. Learned Sessions Judge committed error
of law and facts in holding the dying declarations reliable in the absence of
any supporting evidence. On the other hand, learned counsel for the State
submitted that the evidence of dying declaration of deceased Guddu recorded
by Executive Magistrate was clear and reliable. It stood corroborated from
the evidence of dying declaration of Basanti Bai, the statement of deceased
Guddu recorded by Investigating Officer Purnendra Singh (PW13) and also
by the evidence of Dr. Pankaj Tiwari, C.M.O.

7. We have heard the learned counsel for the parties and perused the
impugned judgment and the evidence on record carefully.

8. It has not been disputed by appellant that both the deceased persons
died of burn injuries. Mangilal (PW1) and Rajobai (PW3), respectively the
father and mother of deceased Guddu, and Papoo Singh (PW2) deposed
that on hearing cries they reached at the spot and saw Guddu and Basanti Bai
in burnt condition. They extinguished the fire. Papoo carried deceased persons
to hospital in his truck. Papoo also gave information Ex. P/6 about the burning
of deceased persons at police station Kolar Road which was recorded by
Head Constable Sultan Singh (PW9). Dr. Pankaj Tiwari (PW10) stated that
on 20.11.2000, he examined the injuries of Guddu and Basanti Bai. According
to him, there was smell of kerosene in their bodies. There were 90% burn
injuries on the body of Guddu, whereas Basanti Bai had suffered 100 % burn



942 G. S. Chouhan Vs. State of M.P.(DB) LL.R.[2013]M.P.

injuries. He recorded medical reports Ex. P/16 and Ex. P/17. Both the injured
persons died in the hospital. Police conducted inquest proceedings and
recorded memorandums Ex. P/1 and Ex. P/2 and referred the bodies of
deceased persons for postmortem examination.

9. Dr. Ashok Sharma (PW4) of Medico Legal Institute, Bhopal conducted
autopsy of the body of Guddu and found second and third degree burns on it.
The burns were on face, chest, abdomen, both thighs, back and scalp, Except
burn injuries, there was no other injury on the body. The death of deceased, in
his opinion, occurred due to anti-mortem burn injuries. He recorded the
postmortem examination report Ex. P/9 and signed it.

10.  Dr. VK.Athwal, Assistant Professor of Gandhi Medical College,
Bhopal conducted autopsy of the body of Basanti Bai and found burn injuries
of second and third degree on her face, neck and chest.Similar burn injuries
were found on her both hands, shoulders, back, neck, both legs, knees, face
and foot.These burn injuries were also anti-mortem in nature.

From the aforesaid evidence, it stood established that both the
deceased persons died due to anti-mortem burn injuries.

11.  Now, it's to be seen whether burn injuries to deceased persons which
resulted into their death, were caused by appellant.

12. Executive Magistrate Maqsood Ahmed (PW7) deposed that on
20.11.2000, police requisitioned him for recording the dying declarations of Guddu
and Basanti Bai, who were admitted in Hamidia Hospital, Bhopal. He went there
and recorded their dying declarations. Before recording the said dying declarations,
he sought opinion of the doctor on duty about their fitness. The doctor endorsed
his opinion abcut the fitness of the patient on the dying declaration Ex. P/13. On
questioning, Guddu stated that "while he and his wife were sitting in his shop, his
mother was cooking, Gajendra Singh reached there and poured kerosene on him
and ignited". According to Maqsood Ahmed (PW?7), in the dying declaration Ex,
P/14, Basanti Bai stated that "at about 8-9 O’ clock, at her house while she was
warming up milk on a stove in her shop, that ignoble person poured kerosene on
her. Since, she was standing near a stove, she got burnt. He was dairy wala. She
knew him by face, but did not know his name. Mother-in-law was cooking and
her husband was warming up in the courtyard. When she caught fire her husband
came to save her and stuck to her, therefore, he also got burnt, Kerosene was
kept ina canin the shop. Assailant had come in a jeep. There were three persons”.
Both the deceased persons stated that the incident occurred because of some
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money dispute. Magsood Ahmed (PW?7) in respect of Basanti Bai had also
obtained opinion of the doctor about her fitness to make statement and had got it
recorded on Ex. P/14.

13.  Dr. Nitin Garg (PW8) who was posted as R.S.0. in Hamidia Hospital,
Bhopal deposed that Guddu and Basanti Bai were admitted in Hamidia Hospital
as a burn case. Executive Magistrate had come to record their dying declarations.
After examining both the patients, he had certified that both the persons were
mentally and physically fit to give dying declarations. He had recorded his
endorsements on Ex. P/13 and Ex. P/14. Both the dying declarations were recorded
in his presence. He had signed both the endorsements. He firmly denied that he
recorded his endorsements under compulsion of police.

14.  Despite roving cross examination of Executive Magistrate Magsood
Ahmed (PW?7) and Dr. Nitin Garg (PW8), there appeared nothing to indicate
that they had any grudge or animosity against the appellant. Even otherwise
both of them were public servants and had recorded the dying declarations in
discharge of their duties.

15.  Apart from the above evidence of dying declarations, there is also evidence
of Dr. Pankaj Tiwari (PW10), who examined both the deceased persons when
they were brought in burnt condition to hospital. Dr. Pankaj Tiwari deposed that
twhen Guddu and Basanti Bai were brought to hospital, they informed him that
around 8 O clock in the night, Gajendra Singh poured kerosene and ignited
them. This fact was recorded by him in their injury reports Ex. P/16 and Ex. P/17.
In our opinion, there appears no reason to disbelieve the evidence of Dr. Tiwari.
From hisevidence, it is manifestly clear that immediately after Guddu and Basanti
Bai were brought to hospital they disclosed to Dr. Tiwari that appellant Gajendra
Singh set fire to them after pouring kerosene. Evidence of Dr. Tiwari (PW10)
supplied a strong corroboration to the evidence of Executive Magistrate Magsood
Ahmed (PW7). Yet another piece of evidence appeared in the form of Dehati
Nalishi Ex. P/18 recorded by Inspector Purnendra Singh (PW13) on the information
given by deceased Guddu. In this report, details about the occurrence were
furnished by Guddu. For the sake of convenience, the contents of Ex. P/18 are
reproduced as under:
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16.  Learned counsel for the appellant argued that the aforesaid dying
declarations were suspicious because father and mother of deceased viz.
Mangilal (PW1)and Rajobai (PW3),and Papoo Singh (PW2) did not support
the prosecution case and expressed their ignorance about the person, who
caused burn injuries to deceased persons. Learned counsel submitted had the
aforesaid witnesses seen appellant setting fire to deceased persons, they would
have certainly spoken so before the Court. Before entering into appreciating
the evidence of aforesaid witnesses, it is significant to note that Papoo Singh
(PW2) and Rajobai (PW3) disowned their versions which they had given
under Section 161 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, therefore, they were
declared hostile.

17.  Asfarasthe evidence of Mangilal (PW1) is concerned, he stated that in
the night Guddu and Basanti Bai got burnt; they were taken to hospital where they
died, but he expressed his ignorance as to when and how the incident occurred
and how Guddu and Basanti Bai got burnt. When he received information in the
night atabout 11 0' clock, he went at the shop and found two policemen present
there. The evidence of this witness is of no use since neither he happened to be an
eye witness nor he met deceased persons before their death.

18.  Rajobai (PW3) stated that in the night while she was cooking food
she heard some sound then she saw Guddu and Basanti Bai burning. According
to her, she and Papoo extinguished the fire and then she became unconscious.
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Papoo took Guddu and Basanti Bai to hospital in his truck where they died.
She stated that neither she saw how Guddu and Basanti Bai got burnt nor
Guddu told anything about it to her. This witness was declared hostile. She
was confronted with her police statement Ex. P/8, wherein she stated that
Gajendra Singh along with his two associates burnt Guddu and Basanti Bai,
but she denied of having made any such statement. Similarly Papoo Singh
(PW2), who carried deceased persons to hospital in his truck stated that he
saw Guddu and Basanti only in burnt condition. He extinguished their fire, but
none of them told to him how they caught fire. He lodged report Ex. P/6 at
police station mentioning that injured persons caught fire from stove, but he
explained that he did not see with his own eyes that they caught fire from
stove. Since he saw stove kept at the place of occurrence, he presumed that
they must have caught fire from stove and for this reason he mentioned the
said fact in the report Ex, P/6.

19. Onaclose scanning of the evidence of aforesaid witnesses it can be
gathered that there was something which persuaded them to disown themselves
to be the eye witnesses of the occurrence, though they remained present at
the time of occurrence. But on the basis of negative evidence of such witnesses,
the dying declaration made by deceased Guddu which stood corroborated
from Dehati Nalishi Ex. P/18 and the evidence of Dr. Pankaj Tiwari (PW1 0)
cannot be discredited. There appears no reason for deceased persons to
have falsely implicated the appellant. A person may make false dying
declaration implicating some body, who is inimical to him, out of suspicion
when the incident occurs in darkness or in such circumstances that the assailant
could not have been seen or identified by him or some time when deceased
person commits suicide feeling harassed, frustrated or traumatised by the
conduct of that person. But we find no such situation in the present case
which could have induced deceased persons to make false dying declarations
implicating the appellant.

20.  The Apex Court in case of Muthu Kutty and another Vs. State-
(2005) 9 SCC 113 observed:

"16. In the light of the above principles, the acceptability of .
the alleged dying declaration in the instant case has to be
considered. The dying declaration is only a piece of untested
evidence and must like any other evidence, satisfy the court
that what is stated therein is the unalloyed truth and that it is



946 State of M.P. Vs. Narayan Singh (DB) -LL.R.[2013]M.P.

absolutely safe to act upon it. If after careful scrutiny, the court
is satisfied that it is true and free from any effort to induce the
deceased to make a false statement and if it is coherent and
consistent, there shall be no legal impediment to make it basis
of conyiction, even if there is no corroboration. (See Gangotri
Singh v. State of U.P.,, Goverdhan Raoji Ghyare v. State of
Maharashtra, Meesala Ramakrishan v. State of A.P. and
State of Rajasthan v. Kishore.)"

21.  After a careful consideration of the dying declarations made by
deceased Guddu in the light of the law laid down by the Apex Court, we find
that the said dying declarations were not the result of imagination, tutoring or
prompting. They appeared to have been made by the deceased voluntarily. In
our opinion, the dying declarations made by Guddu are trustworthy and
creditable and learned trial Judge committed no error in holding that it stood
established beyond doubt that appellant Gajendra Singh set fire to deceased
persons after pouring kerosene on them.

22.  Intheresult, the conviction of appellant as recorded by the trial Court
and the sentence imposed by it, warrant no interference. The appeal being
without any merit is dismissed accordingly.

Appeal dismissed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 946
. CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice A.K. Shrivastava & Mr. Justice G.D. Saxena
Cr. Rev. No. 08/2013 (Gwalior) decided on 29 January, 2013

STATE OF M.P. ...Applicant
Vs. '
NARAYAN SINGH ...Non-applicant

A, Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 409, 420, 467 & 471 -
Cheating - Respondent was alleged to have withdrawn the amount by
forging the signatures of complainant - Evidence of Bank Manager
and Handwriting Expert shows that the signature of complainant on
the cheque do tally with her admitted signatures - Evidentiary value of
testimony of Bank Manager is having high credential value since he
must be tallying and comparing thousands of signatures on the
withdrawal forms - Revision dismissed. (Para 4)
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B. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Sections 45 & 47 - Expert
Opinion - As a matter of extreme caution and judicial sobriety, the
Court should ot normally take up itself the responsibility of comparing
the disputed signatures with that of admitted signatures or handwriting
- In the event of doubt, it should leave the matter to the wisdom of
experts. (Para5)
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Case referred :
(1997) 7 SCC 110.

B.K. Sharma, for the applicant/State.
None for the non-applicant.

ORDER

The Order of the court was delivered by :
A.K. SnrivasTava, J: The respondent/accused was tried for the offences
punishable under sections 467,471 409 and 420 of IPC, but after recording
the evidence, the charges were not found to be proved and he was acquitted.
After obtaining leave to file appeal, an appeal was preferred before the learned
First Additional Sessions Judge, Datia who has dismissed the appeal by the
impugned judgment.

2. The contention of the learned Public Prosecutor appearing on behalf
of the revisionist/State is that the complainant has categorically stated in her
testimony that by putting her forged si gnatures on the withdrawal form, the
respondent/accused has withdrawn an amount of Rs. 1 9,000/- from Gram



948 State of M.P. Vs. Narayan Singh (DB) I.L.R.[2013]M.P.

Panchayat's account No.5837 of Punjab National Bank, therefore, her
testimony should be given credence and not that of handwriting expert Rajendra
Verma (PW 17) who has stated in his testimony that the admitted signatures
of complainant Angoori Devi (PW 1) do tally with that of the disputed signatures
on the withdrawal form etc. and, therefore, the accused /respondent be
convicted holding the charges to be proved.

3. Considered the submissions.

4. On a bare perusal of the impugned judgment, this Court finds that at
the relevant point of time, complainant Angoori Devi (PW 1) was serving on
the post of Sarpanch while the accused/respondent was serving on the post of
Panchayat Secretary. The allegation against the respondent is that he has
withdrawn an amount of Rs.19,000/- of Gram Panchayat's account of which
the complainant was the Sarpanch for his own use and has tampered the
record, therefore, he has committed the offences under sections 467,471,
409 and 420 IPC. On a bare perusal of the findings recorded by the two
courts below, this Court finds that although there is a statement of complainant
Angoori Devi (PW 1) accusing the respondent, but if her statement is kept in
juxtaposition to the testimony of the Branch Manager of the Bank namely
A K Saxena (PW 14) as well as the statement of handwriting expert Rajendra
Verma (PW 17), we find that there is positive evidence of both these
independent witnesses that the admitted signatures of the complainant Angoori
Devi (PW 1) do tally with that of the signatures on the disputed documents.
According to us, the evidentiary value of the testimony of the Branch Manager
A X .Saxena (PW 14)is having high credential value since he being a Branch
Manager must be tallying and comparing thousands of signatures on the
withdrawal forms of the customers including the signature of the complainant
Angoori Bai (PW 1) with their admitted signatures kept in the Bank and if he
has stated that the disputed docuiments bear the signatures of the complainant
Angoori Devi (PW 1), we do not find any scintilla of doubt in our mind to hold
that the charges for which the respondent was tried are not proved.

5. Apart from the evidence of Bank Manager, the handwriting expert
Rajendra Verma (PW 17) is prosecution's own witness and not only this, he is
also a handwriting expert of the State Government and, as such, his testimony
carries high weightage. The Supreme Court in the case of Ajit Savant
Majagvai vs. State of Karnataka, (1997)7 SCC 110 has categorically held
that section 73 of the Evidence Act does not specify by whom comparison of
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handwriting should be made. However, looking to the other provisions of the
Act, it is clear that such comparison may either be made by a handwriting
expert under section 45 or by anyone familiar with the handwriting of the
person concerned as provided by section 47 or by the Court itself. In para
38, the Supreme Court has further held that as a matter of extreme caution
and judicial sobriety, the court should not normally take up itself the
responsibility of comparing the disputed signature with that of the admitted
signature or handwriting and in the event of the slightest doubt, leave the
matter to the wisdom of experts..

0. According to us, it appears that since the investigating agency was
itself under certain doubt that the disputed signatures on the withdrawal form
etc. were of respondent/accused or not or the signatures on the disputed
docurments are of the complainant and therefore, her admitted signatures were
taken and they were sent to the handwriting expert. Accordingly, the
Government handwriting expert tallied the signatures of the complainant
Angoori Devi (PW 1) on the disputed documents with that of her admitted
signatures and gave an opinion that they, do tally with each other. According
to the Government handwriting expert, the person who has signed the specimen
( admitted ) signatures is the same person who has signed the disputed
documents, therefore, according to us, since the handwriting expert has been
cxamined as a prosecution witness and he was not declared hostile, therefore,
his evidence is also having high credential value.

7. At this juncture, we may further add that no specific mode is provided
in the Evidence Act that how the handwriting on a document or signature can
be proved. Under section 47 of the Evidence Act, when the Court has to
form an opinion as to the perzon by whom any document was written or
signed, the opinion of any person acquainted with the handwriting of the person
by whom it is supposed to be written or signed that it was or was not written
or signed by that person, is arelevant fact and therefore, according to us, this
can be proved from the statement of Branch Manager A.K.Saxena (PW 14)
because he must have come across several times with the si gnatures of the
complainant Angoori Devi (PW 1) since she was serving on the post of
Sarpanch and used to sign cheques etc. on several occasions. The Bank
Manager is totally an independent witness and we have already held herein
above that his testimony is having great weightage in the case.

8. The Apex Court in the aforesaid decision of 4jit Savant Majagvai
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(supra) has further held that the Court can also compare the disputed signature
with the admitted signature as this power is clearly available under section 73
of the act, however, this should be done in exceptional cases and normally as
a matter of extreme caution and judicial Sobriety the responsibility should be
assigned to the handwriting expert, although the Court may accept or not
accept his opinion on the basis of facts and circumstances of each case.

9. Thus, according to us, if both the courts below by considering the
evidence of A.K.Saxena (PW 14) and Rajendra Verma (PW 17) vis-a-vis the
testimony of the complainant Angooti Devi (PW 1) have come to a definite
conclusion that the charges are not proved, that finding is a pure finding of fact
and we decline to interfere in it in our revisional jurisdiction.

10.  Eventually, this revision application is dismissed summarily.
Revision dismissed.

I.L.R. [2013] M.P., 950
CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
Cr. Rev. No. 1823/2012 (Jabalpur) decided on 8 February, 2013

BASANT KUMAR RAWAT ...Applicant
Vs,
STATE OF M.P. ...Non-applicant

A. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 211,
Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 467 & 468 - Framing of charge -
Applicant is alleged to have involved himself in conspiracy with main
accused in fabricating and forging mark sheet and facilitated the main
accused to appear in the counselling - Prima facie evidence that the
applicant had signed the mark sheet as Principal of School - Revision
dismissed. ) (Para9)

@ zvg gfyar @iear, 1973 (1974 BT 2). €% 211, TUs @iear
(1860 BT 45), GTEIY 467 T 468 — AT [IvfyT v — IR W ART
fr wiTel o Al A mE AT @ usA A 9% WY qEd afgEd @ wier
afirer o @R g Aftgea & el ¥ Wi w9 § weraar a6 - 9o
g Wi % ardes 3 wren & grard @ #Rwa 9@ g% g swnala
T — gFTHET TR

B. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 0of 1974), Section 211
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- Framing of Charges,- Documents produced by accused - Documents

placed on record by accused cannot be taken into consideration to. .

examine the sustainability of charges - Charges should be framed only
on the basis of documents filed along with charge sheet. (Para 6)

& §U8 UipAr wiedl, 1973 (1974 &7 2), g7 211 — ey
faefam e — afgE g URgE TR — IRt @ aherfrer @
weer § gfgad gRT aftetE ¥ uwE s W AR ad R o
wEHaT — #ﬁmwﬁa?muuqaawr&rﬁdwwermqﬁnﬁa
f&d @ =rfeyg ) .

C. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sec{iﬁn 211 .

- Framing of Charges - If the Court is satisfied that evidence produced
only gives rise to suspicion as distinguished from grave suspicion he
can discharge the accused - While framing charges, the broad test to
be applied is that whether the materials on record, if unrebutted, makes

a conviction reasonably possible, then charge should be framed
(Para 11)

T.  TU GLFAT GiRar 1973 (1974 @7 2) GNT 211 — FRIG
et wear — af =maern 3 Wi B @ B oxge we ik Wl
| =1 S99 WlE S FRar 8, 97 APRgE B @RIV g3 BY b
g — aRly fRfg o< w@, @1 O W 18 QT ang ST ARy e
T AftrelE & W afy arefea 2, ﬁﬂﬁrﬁaﬁgﬁﬂgﬁwd'ﬂw
TN ?, 99 ARty faxfra = =rfg)

Cases referred : el .' a.

AIR 1987 SC 955, AIR 1992 SC 1815, Cr.A. 744/2008 (2007) 5

SCC 403, AIR 2005 SC 359, .

Vishal Bhatnagar, for the applicant.
Punit Shroti, P.L. for the non-applicant.

ORDER e

U.C. Manesawari, J.: The applicant accused has preferred ﬂ'llS -

revision being aggrieved by the order dated 31.5.2012, (Ann: A-l) passed .

by the Vth Additional Sessions Judge in Sessions Trial No. 55 8/2011 whereby ) N ,

charges of Section 120-B, 467 and 468 of IPC were framed agalnst h1m

TaiE

2. The facts giving rise to this revision in short are that.uo dated o
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24.11.2009 at Police Station, Gandhi Nagar, Bhopal an First Information
Report as Crime No. 429/2009 for the offence of Sections 420, 467 and 468
of IPC was registered against one Ku. Akansha Bajpai, D/o Gayacharan
Bajpai. As per averments of such FIR, the complainant M.S. Patel, A.S.I.
Police posted at Gandhi Nagar Bhopal received a letter of Rajeev Gandhi
Proudyogiki Vishwavidyalya from the office of SHO, Police Gandhi Nagar
for holding the enquiry regarding the mark sheet of said Ku. Akansha Bajpai
submitted by her in the Counselling of P.E.P.T. 2009. In the course of such
enquiry by the said Police Officer, he interrogated Shri Pankaj Jam, Counselling
Incharge, so also Shri B.K. Sethi, the Secretary of R.G.V.V. and found such
mark sheet of Ku. Akansha was false and fabricated, on which aforesaid FIR
was registered and the matter was investigated. In the course of aforesaid
enquiry and investigation it was revealed that Ku. Akanksha was failed in
Class 12th in three subjects while such mark sheet submitted in the University
for the aforesaid counselling was showing her as passed out student. In further
investigation of the case, it was also found that original mark sheet was signed
by the present applicant of this revision as Principal of Maharishi Vidya Mandir,
Rewa and in such premises, it has been prima facie established that the present
applicant has involved himself in criminal conspiracy of the main accused Ku.
Akansha in fabricating and forging such mark sheet and in such manner the
applicant has facilitated to the aforesaid co-accused Akansha to apply and
appear in the alleged competitive counselling of the aforesaid examination,
while she being failed in three subjects in Class 12th was not qualified and
entitled to appear in such counselling. In such premises, alongwith Ku. Akansha
Bajpai, the applicant was also charge sheeted for the offence of Sections
420, 467 and 471 and 120-B of IPC. After committing the case to the Sessions
Court, on evaluation of the charge sheet, the charges of the offence of Sections
467, 468 and 120-B of IPC against the applicant while of Sections 467, 468,
471, 420/511 and 120-B of IPC against co-accused Ku. Akansha were
framed, on which they abjured the guilt and thereafter the applicant has come
to this court with this revision.

3. The applicant's counsel after taking me through the papers of the charge
sheet alongwith the averments of revision petition, the copies of the recorded
depositions of the prosecution witnesses, (those are fourin numbers), argued
that the alleged mark sheet was neither found in possession of the present
applicant nor was seized from his possession and there is no chain of evidence
to show that the applicant was involved in any such conspiracy with the
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impugned mark sheet was fabricated with forgery. In the lack of such material
ingredients of Sections 467, 468 and 120-B of IPC in the charge sheet, the
charges framed against the applicant is not sustainable. In continuation he
said that mere on account of signature of the applicant over the mark sheet or
the report of the hand writing expert in that connection was not sufficient to

frame the impugned charges. He also argued that even on taking into
consideration the papers of the charge sheet as accepted in its entirety, even
then the ingredients of any of the aforesaid offences are not made out against
the applicant and prayed for quashmient of the aforesaid charge by admitting
and allowing this revision. He also placed his reliance on decisions of the
Apex Court in the matter of Paramhansh Yadav & Sadanand Tripathi Vs.

State of Bihar and others, reported in 1987 AIR SC 955 and of Punjab

National Bank and others Vs. Surendra Prasad Sinha, reported in 1992

AIR SC 1815, so also of Yogesh @ Sachin Jagdish Joshi Vs. State of
Maharashtra decided by the Apex Court on 24th April 2008 in Appeal (Cri.)
744/2008.

4. On the other hand with the assistance of the case diary, learned PL
has justified the impugned charges framed against the applicant saying that
same being in consonance with the charge sheet is not required any interference
at this stage with further submission that sufficient prima facie ingredients of
the alleged offence have been established against the applicant for framing
such charges and in such premises the trial court has not committed any error
either in passing the impugned order or in framing the charges and prayed for
dismissal of this revision. In support of his submission he also placed his reliance
on a decision of the Apex Court in the matter of Soma Chakravarty Vs.
State through CBI reported in (2007) 5, SCC, 403.

5. Having heard the counsel! at length, keeping in view the arguments
advanced by them, I have carefully gone through the case diary as well as
papers of the charge sheet available on record, so also the case laws cited by
the parties.

6. I'am of the considered view that at the stage of framing the charge
against the applicant whatsoever papers or the documents placed on behalf
of the applicant either before the trial court or before this Court with this
revision which are not the part of charge sheet, in the light of decision of the
Apex Court in the matter of “State of Orissa Vs. Debendra Nath Padhi”
reported in AIR 2005 SC 359 could not be taken into consideration to examine
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and quashing the sustainability of the impugned order or the charges framed
against the applicant, as such the court is bound to consider the question of
framing the charge strictly only on the basis of papers, evidence and documents
submitted alongwith the Police report (the charge sheet) filed under Section
173 of Cr.P.C.

7. ‘On evaluation of the papers of the charge sheet, if the ingredients of
~ the alleged offences are prima facie established, then there is no option with
the court except to frame the charges of such offence against the accused.
The court has not to consider at the stage of framing the charge whether trial
shall be culminated in conviction or not. My such approach is based on a
decision of the Apex Court in the matter of Soma Chakravarty Vs. State
through CBI reported in (2007) 5, SCC, 403.

8. It is apparent from the papers of the charge sheet that such Akansha
had failed in three subjects in the alleged examination of 12th Class, inspite of
that the disputed mark sheet to show that she had passed out in such examination
was given to her with the signature of the applicant from the institution of the
applicant. So prima facie, it could be assumed at this stage that at the time of
signing of such mark sheet, it was known to the applicant that such mark sheet
has been fabricated and forged with intention of some ulterior purpose to
commit the fraud by submitting the same in some other institution for taking
.admission of participating in the competitive examination or counselling. In the
" case at hand, it is undisputed fact that such mark sheet was filed by Ku.
~ Akansha in the above mentioned University to appear in the competitive
_counselling but on having doubt, the to the management of University, the
impugned complaint was made by. the institution to some Police Station and
~ subsequent to it, in accordence with the procecure, the enquiry was made
and on establishing the offence, the crime was registered and in further
investigation the involvement of the applicant in the alleged conspiracy in
fabricating the aforesaid mark sheet, which could be deemed and termed to
be a valuable security on account of his signature as Principal of the Institution
from where the same was issued, was found, on which he was also implicated
as accused in the matter. So in such premises, there are prima facie evidence
against the applicant for framing the alleged charges. So in such premises,
mere on account of non seizure of such mark sheet or the relevant documents
from the possession of the applicant the impugned charged could neither be
quashed nor the applicant could be discharged.

s
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9. ] have carefully gone through the above mentioned case laws cited on
behalf of the applicant. The case of Paramhansh Yadav & Sadanand Tripathi
Vs.State of Bihar and others, (supra) was decided on the background thata
clear link in respect of the alleged conspiracy was not established between
the accused and in the lack of the same, such case was decided but such
situation is not in the case at hand. In the case at hand, it is prima facie apparent
fact that the alleged fabricated mark sheet was signed by the applicant as
Principal of the Institution and thereby he has involved himselfin the alleged
conspiracy with the student, Ku. Akansha. So this citation is not helping to
the applicant.

10.  So far the other case law in the matter of Punjab National Bank and
others Vs. Surendra Prasad Sinha, (supra) is concerned, the same was
decided taking into factual matrix of some private complaint, so also
considering the situation that prima facie evidence for the alleged offence
was not available in such case for framing the charges. But in the present case
in investigation carried out by the Police, prima facie evidence with respect of
the alleged offence has been collected against the applicant and placed with
the charge sheet and on that basis the impugned charges have been framed.
So this citation is also not helping to the applicant.

1.  So far the case law of the Apex Court in the matter of Yogesh @
Sachin Jagdish Joshi Vs.. State of Maharashtra (supra) is concerned, the
same was decided taking into consideration the legal position that where there
is no sufficient ground for proceeding against the accused, then the charge
could not be framed and trial could not be proceeded against him. In addition,
it is also observed in such judgment that where on evaluation of the charge
sheet, if two views are equally possible and th= judge is satisfied that the
evidence produced before him gives rise to suspicion only as distinguished
from grave suspicion, then he will be fully within his right to discharge the
accused. Simultancously, it was also stated in such judgment that at the time
of framing the charge, the Magistrate has not to see as to whether the trial will
end in conviction or not. The broad test to be applied is whether the materials
on record, if unrebutted, makes a conviction reasonably possible, then the
charge should be framed. Keeping in view the observation of the Apex Court
of this case, on examining the case at hand, it is apparent that in the present
case there are prima facie ingredients in the evidence showing that inspite of
knowing that the impugned mark sheet of Ku. Akansha is false and fabricated
and prepared under some conspiracy, the same was signed by the applicant.
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So in such premises, at this stage, it could not be inferred that there are two
views and any of such views creates suspicion with respect of the alleged
offence against the applicant whether the same was committed by him or not.
Hence this citation is also not helping to the applicant in the present case.

12, Inview of the aforesaid discussion, I have not found any perversity,
infirmity, illegality or anything against the propriety of law in the order impugned
framing the aforesaid charges against the applicant. Consequently this revision
being devoid of any merits is hereby dismissed.

Revision dismissed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 956
CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice N.K. Gupta
Cr. Rev. No. 534/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 8 February, 2013

TARACHAND VISHWAKARMA ...Applicant
Vs.
SMT. PUSHPADEVI VISHWAKARMA ...Non-applicant

A. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 125
- Maintenance - Legally wedded wife - Respondent was already married
and without obtaining diverce from first husband she claims to have
married the applicant - Second marriage during the subsistence of first
marriage is no marriage in the eye of law - Period of live-in-relation
has no concern in the present case. (Paras 8 to 10)

z. TUS FIBAT WIeT, 1973 (1974 @7 2), ST 125 — FRO—gi§or
~ Feif% fRarfea goft — yoaeff tedt @ frarfig off @iv gga iy @ aarw
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B. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 125
- Maintenance - Compromise Deed - If the wife wants to get the
compromise deed complied with, she can proceed by any legal procedure
to get the compliance of compromise deed - However, she is not entitled
for maintenance amount under Section 125 of Cr.P.C. _ (Para12)

& TUS UfHaT GIETT, 1973 (1974 &7 2), €I 125 — SXOT—qPq07 -
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Case referred :

(2010) 10 SCC 469.

Ashok Pandey, for the applicant.
Arun Kakoniya, for the non-applicant.

ORDER

N.K. Gurta, J.: The applicant has preferred the present revision
against the order dated 21.2.2011 passed by the Principal Judge, Family Court,
Jabalpur in MJC No.605/2009. whereby a maintenance of Rs.2,000/- p.m.
was granted to the respondent alongwith a cost of Rs.1,000/-,

2. The facts of the case, in short, are that, the respondent moved an
application under section 125 of the Cr.P.C. that she came into the contact of
the applicant in the year 1988. In July, 1989, marriage of the respondent took
place with the applicant in a temple. She resided as wife of the applicant upto
December, 2005. Thereafter, the applicant started misbehaviour with the
respondent and therefore, a compromise deed was executed on 6.1.2006 for
alimony till the life-time of the respondent but, after giving the alimony for few
months, the applicant stopped the payment and therefore, an application under
section 125 of the Cr.P.C. was initiated.

3. The applicant in his reply denied the application. He pleaded that
Mooratlal Vishwakarma, the first husband of the respondent is alive and no
divorce took place between the respondent and her husband. No marriage
ceremony took place between the parties. The applicant was an old aged
person and the respondent was a house maid, who was a domestic assistant
with the applicant. However, the applicant was kind enough to pay a sum of
Rs.600/- p.m. to the respondent. It was paid through her brother Mukesh
Vishwakarma but, after sometime the respondent refused to receive the sum,
though the amount was sent by the money order. Compromise as submitted
by the respondent is forged one. The respondent had a female child from her
husband and she performed the marriage of her daughter at Bhopal on her
own. She did not inform the applicant about that marriage, which shows that
there was no relation of husband and wife between the parties. The applicant
is burdened with expenditure of his younger son and his children. In meager
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amount of his pension, he is unable to pay any maintenance to the respondent
and therefore, he prayed that the application may be dismissed.

4, The learned Principal Judge, Family Court, Jabalpur, after considering
the entire evidence of the parties, granted a maintenance of Rs.2,000/- p.m.
to the respondent on the basis of their live-in relations for a very long period.

5. I have heard the learned counsel for the parties.

6. The learned counsel for the applicant has submitted that the respondent
was already a married woman and na divorce took place between the
respondent and her husband. Therefore, the respondent could not be said to
be the valid wife of the applicant and maintenance under section 125 of the
Cr.P.C. can be granted to the wife only. In this connection, the judgment passed
by Hon'ble the Apex Court in case of “D.Velusamy vs D. Patchaiammal”
[(2010) (10) SCC 469, is referred by the learned counsel for the applicant.
Itis also submitted that looking to the pension amount of the applicant, a huge
amount of maintenance could not be granted to the respondent. If it is found
that a compromise deed was executed between the parties then, the respondent
was to prosecute a civil suit for execution of that compromise. She could not
get anything under section 125 of the Cr.P.C.

7. On the other hand, the learned counsel for the respondent has
submitted that the respondent was a married wife of the applicant. It is
mentioned in the compromise deed and therefore, the applicant is estopped
to say contrary to that fact. The younger son of the applicant is an earning
member and he or his children are not the liability of the applicant. Looking to
the pension amount of the applicant, he can easily give the amount of

maintenance directed by the trial Court and therefore, it is prayed that the
'~ revision application filed by the applicant may be dismissed.

8. After considering the submissions made by the learned counsel for the
parties, it is apparent from the evidence adduced by the parties that the marriage
ifat all took place between the applicant and the respondent is not material in
the present case because the respondent Pushpa (P.W.1) has accepted in
para 14 that her husband is alive. She did not say that any divorce took place
with her husband from any Court or by any customary arrangement and
therefore, if any marriage was performed between the parties then, it cannot
be said to be a valid marriage in the eye of law because in Hindu Marriage
Act, bigamy is not permitted and therefore, no married woman can marry
with another man, without taking any divorce ete. from her previous husband.
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Therefore, it is not under dispute that whether any marriage took place between
the parties or not because if any marriage took place then, that was nota
valid marriage in the eye of law and therefore, the respondent was not a
wedded wife of the applicant.

9. The learned Principal Judge has twisted the law laid in various
judgments and gave an order in favour of the respondent. The judgment passed
by Hon'ble the Apex Court in case of D. Velusamy (supra) was referred before
the trial Court. This was the judgment passed by Hon'ble the Apex Court in
the year 2010. The latest precedents given by Hon'ble the Supreme Court
shall be given preference over the previous precedents given by Hon'ble the
Supreme Court itself and therefore, if any previous order or judgment is found
of the similar Bench of Hon'ble the Apex Court on that point then, the latest
view shall apply. Also, if any judgment passed by Hon'ble the Apex Court at
any span of time then, the contrary judgments given by various High Courts
shall turn per incuriam and such adverse judgments cannot be considered as a
precedent at that time. Under such circumstances, the faw laid by Hon'ble the
Apex Court in case of D. Velusamy (supra) has superseded all the previous
judgments, which were contrary to the view taken by Hon'ble the Apex Court.
In case of D. Velusamy (supra), Hon'ble the Apex Court has distinguished
between the provisions under section 125 of the Cr.P.C. and the provisions
of Protection of Woman from Domestic Violence Act, 2005 (hereinafter it
will be referred to as "The Act'). It is mentioned that for the relief under section
125 of the Cr.P.C., a woman should be a wife or a divorced wife and therefore,
a valid marriage is necessary for the woman, so that she can be considered as
a wife, whereas 'Live-in' relations are accepted in the Act and therefore,
marriage is not at all required for getting relief in that Act.

10.  Case of such a woman is different when she was residing with a man
for a longer period to the case when she claims that she was a married wife of
that man. If wife is unable to prove her marriage by direct evidence then, such
relationship should be proved by conduct of the man and time period should
be such that they were living as husband and wife. In the present case, duration
of live-in relation is not relevant because the respondent was already married
with someone else and no divorce took place with her husband and therefore,
if marriage took place between the parties then, it was not a valid marriage.
Under such circumstances, the period of live-in relations has no concern in
the present case. The learned Principal Judge could not distinguish between
the provisions of section 125 of the Cr.P.C. and the provisions of the Act.
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The present application was not filed under the provisions of the Act but, it
was filed under section 125 of the Cr.P.C. No inherent powers under section
482 of the Cr.P.C. were granted to the Family Court, who was enjoying the
Magisterial powers for consideration of application under section 125 of the
Cr.P.C., so that the Principal Judge of Family Court could grant the relief
under the Act, where the application was filed under section 125 of the Cr.P.C.
Hence, the learned Principal Judge of the Family Court has committed an
error of law in granting the maintenance to a woman under section 125 of the
Cr.P.C., who was not the wife of the applicant in the eye of law,

11. Sofarasthe amount of maintenance is concerned, the amount of pension
received by the applicant is proved. He could not prove any liability upon
him. His younger son is grown up. He had 2-3 children and therefore, they
were not dependent upon the applicant and looking to the contention of the
applicant, the maintenance amount computed by the trial Court, may not be
said to be excessive.

12. On the basis of the aforesaid discussion, it is apparent that the
respondent applied for maintenance under section 125 of the Cr.P.C., whereas,
she was not the wife of the applicant at all and therefore, she could not get any
maintenance amount from the respondent under the provisions of section 125
of the Cr.P.C. If the respondent wants to get the compromise deed to be
complied with then, it may be a separate procedure and she can proceed by
any legal procedure to get the compliance of the compromise deed. However,
she is not entitled to get any maintenance under section 125 of the Cr.P.C. A
legal mistake has been committed by the learned Principal Judge, F amily Court,
Jabalpur that he applied the provisions of Domestic Violence Act, 2005 in the
application filed under section 125 of the Cr.P.C. and therefore, looking to
that legal error, an interference is required from the side of this Court by way
of a revision. Hence, the revision appears to be acceptable.

13. Onthebasis of the aforesaid discussion, the revision filed by the applicant
is hereby allowed. The impugned order passed by the learned Principal Judge,
Family Court, Jabalpur is hereby set aside. The application under section 125 of
the Cr.P.C. filed by the applicant is hereby dismissed. However, the order relating
to the cost passed by the trial Court shall be maintained.

14. A copy of the order be sent to the trial Court alongwith its record for
information.
Revision allowed.
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I.L.R. [2013] M.P,, 961
CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice N.K. Gupta
Cr. Rev No. 1053/2012 (Jabalpur) demded on 14 February, 2013

"SUBHAM ‘ ...Applicant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. ...Non-applicant

A. Juvenile Justice (Care and Protection of Children)

Act (56 of 2000), Section 7, Juvenile Justice (Care and Protection
of Children) Rules, 2007, Rule 12 - Enquiry - Date of birth of
applicant is 01.10.1995 as per matriculation certificate whereas the
incident took place on 18.04.2012 - Age of accused should be
considered on the date of incident - When the matriculation or
equivalent certificate is available, then it would be the basis of
computation of date of birth - - Applicant was below 18 yesdrs of age.
5 (Para 7)

F. freriv =g (arael & fE—a Fiv geav) glefvaT
(2000 BT 56), €T 7, (e g (FrEw B I@m-IE FIV G
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HAOHAT $T HIEMR FIT — ARTH 18 99 & $H ATY FT AT

B. Juvenile Justice (Care and Protection of Children)
Act, (56 of 2000), Section 7 - Ossification Test - As per the
Ossification test, the age of the accused could be between 16 years
and 4 months to 18 years and 4 months - Where there appears to
be a doubt in computation, then the benefit is to be given to the
accused. (Para 8)

24 frev =g (Frael B Fe—er giv gvevy) Jfefraa
(2000 @7 56), rer 7—afer fwra g¥levr—afer fyera @ @
AU FRTYEFT ST 97 16 I A 4 A€ § 18 I ¥ 4 Mg @& A
#T 8 9edl ¥—wgl $& STl ¥ WRE Soue Bian €, 99 "I
aftrgaa =1 fam wsrar JAfeg
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Cases referred :
2011 AIR SCW 4632, (2009) 6 SCC 681.

K.S. Rajput, for the applicant.
P.C. Gupta, P.L. for the Non-applicant/State.

ORDER

N.K. Gurta J.: The petitioner has challenged the order dated
23.5.2012 passed by the learned Sessions Judge, Burhanpur in criminal
appeal No.61/2012, whereby the appeal filed by the petitioner was
dismissed and order dated 7.5.2012 passed by the Chief Judicial
Magistrate, Burhanpur in criminal case No.71/2012 was kept intact, by
which it was found that the petitioner was not a juvenile in the eye of law.

2. The prosecution's case, in short, is that on 18.4.2012, at about
12 O'Clock, the petitioner and other children were playing cricket. The
boy Sachin had a liability of Rs.50 to 60 thousands and therefore, they
planned to kidnap a boy Kaushal, so that some ransom may be demanded
from his father. Kaushal was also playing cricket with these persons. He
did not agree and therefore, the petitioner and other accused persons
held the deceased Kaushal and tried to take him away. His hands and
feet were tied by a rope and during such a procedure, the deceased
Kaushal expired, due to strangulation. Thereafter, the dead body of the
deceased Kaushal was disposed off by throwing it in a dry well and
ultimately, a sum of Rs.6 Lacs were demanded from his father. After
enquiry, one accused Dipesh was found to Le juvenile and therefore, his
matter was directed to be considered by the Juvenile Justice Board.

3. The petitioner had also applied to assess his age and declare him
juvenile and therefore, an enquiry was done by the learned Chief Judicial
Magistrate, Burhanpur, as per the provisions of section 7 (a) of the Juvenile
Justice (Care and Protection of Children) Act, 2000 (hereinafter it will
be referred to as 'The Act’) and rule 12 of the Juvenile Justice (Care and
Protection of Children) Rules, 2007 (hereinafter it will be referred to as
'The Rule') and after getting the enquiry done, it was directed that the
applicant was not a juvenile and therefore, the application filed by the

leey
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applicant was dismissed. On preferring an appeal, the learned Sessions
Judge has found that the appeal was not maintainable and therefore, no
interference was done in the order passed by the learned Chief Judicial
Magistrate, Burhanpur.

4. I have heard the learned counsel for the parties.

5. The learned counsel for the petitioner has submitted that the
petitioner is a juvenile in the eye of law and the learned Chief Judicial
Magistrate has committed an error in making the observations regarding
the age of the petitioner. Age of the petitioner was to be computed
according to the provisions of rule 12 of the Rules, which was no where
computed. In support of his contention, reliance is placed upon various
judgments and orders of Hon'ble the Apex Court in cases of “Shah Nawaz
Vs.State of UP. & Anr. ", [2011 AIR SCW 4632], “Ram Suresh Singh
Vs. Prabhat Singh @ Chhotu Singh & Anr”, [(2009) (6) SCC 681],
“Madhuri Patil Vs. Additional Commissioner, Tribal Development”,
[AIR 1995 SC 94], “Dharambir Vs. State (NCT of Delhi) & Anr”,
[(2010) (5) SCC 344]. The learned counsel for the petitioner has also
relied upon the orders passed by the single Bench of this Court in case of
“Devendra Singh Vs. State of M.P.”, [(1998) (1) MPLJ 529]. Also
one order passed by the single Bench of Jharkhand High Court was
referred in case of “Poulush Pahan Vs. State of Jharkhand & Anr.”,
[(2000) Cr.L.J. 785] and therefore, it is prayed that the petitioner may
be declared to be a juvenile and his matter may be directed to be tried
by the Juvenile Justice Board. '

6. On the other hand, the learned Panel Lawyer has submitted that
the learned Chief Judicial Magistrate, Burhanpur has discussed the entire
case laws in his order and it was found that the report received from
ossification test was accepted by the doctor. A certificate issued by the
Sarpanch, Shiv Thakur (P.W.1) has no value and therefore, the ossification
test done by Dr.Azad Jain (P.W.3) is to be relied and therefore, the
petitioner was above 18 years of age at the time of the incident.

7. If age of anyone is to be cbmputed then, evidence should be
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considered in a particular order. If date of birth of a person is found
registered as required by the registration of Births and Deaths Act, 1969,
soon after his birth then, that entry amounts to be admissible under section
76 of the Indian Evidence Act and it is a conclusive proof to that fact but,
if registration of birth was done after sometime then, the Court has to
consider the reasons of such delay and genuineness of the entry. Secondly,
when a person continues with his shown date of birth for a longer period
then, he is estopped to say contrary to that fact and therefore, he could
be believed for that entry because when the date of birth was informed to
a particular authority and it continues for 4 longer period then, it cannot
be said that a particular date of birth was mentioned due to a particular
reason but, such a principle is not acceptable in case of the prosecutrix
of any case. The reason behind the principle is that the computation of
age should be done in a manner that if any doubt is created then, benefit
of doubt should be given to the accused. Therefore, when a date of birth
of the accused is to be counted then, his entry relating to date of birth
given to the school, which continues till his high school examination then,
that entry of date of birth shall be considered in favour of the accused, if
no cognate evidence is submitted by him contrary to that entry, whereas
in case of a prosecutrix, it is to be considered as to whether the entry
given to the school authorities was given on the basis of any document
and what was the source of that entry. Otherwise, that entry becomes
doubtful and benefit of doubt is to be given to the accused. Similarly, in
ossification test, if age of the accused is computed then, variation of two
years may be considered on the lower side to assess as to whether he is
a juvenile or not, whereas, age of the prosecutrix assessed by the
ossification test, may be added by two years on upper side, so that the
benefit of doubt may be given to the accused. However, age of any person,
if it is computed by the ossification test then, two years may be added or
deleted, according to the other symptoms of that person and factual
position of the case and therefore, it cannot be said that it is a hard and
fast rule, by which age may be computed.

8. The learned counsel for the petitioner has cited some of the
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judgments passed by Hon'ble the Apex Court and the single Bench of
this Court as well as the Jharkhand High Court. In case of Dharambir
(supra), Hon'ble the Apex Court has mentioned the effect of amendment
in the Act in the appeals pending before various Courts. It was mentioned
in the judgment that the age of the accused be considered on the date on
which the offence was committed. In case of Devendra Singh (supra),
the single Bench of this Court has directed to consider the age of the
accused on the basis of mark-sheet of the school because the Court did
not take any consideration of the affidavits given by the parents of the
accused and therefore, matter was remanded back. The judgment passed
by Hon'ble the Apex Court in case of Madhuri Patel (supra) is not
relevant for assessment of the age of the juvenile. In the present case,
Dr.Azad Jain (P.W.3) found the age of the petitioner to be 18 to 19 years
but, in his cross-examination he has accepted that his assessment of age,
according to the x-ray report Ex.P/6 was 17.5.1995. He has further
accepted that there may be a variation of six months in his assessment
and therefore, assessment of the age of the petitioner by the ossification
test could be 17 to 19 years. The assessment was done on 27.12.2012
and the incident took place on or about 18.4.2012 and therefore,
according to the judgment passed by Hon'ble the Apex Court in case of
Dharambir (supra), age of the accused should be considered on the date
of the incident. Therefore, the age of the accused on the date of the
incident, according to the ossification test would be 16 years, 4 months
to 18 years 4 months. The range given by Dr.Azad Jain (P.W.3) is such
that the petitioner could be below 18 years of age at time of the incident
or he could be above 18 years of age at the time of the incident. However,
as discussed above there appears to be a doubt in computation then, the
benefit was to be given to the accused and therefore, when there was a
possibility that he could be below 18 years of age, according to the
ossification test then, he should be determined to be a juvenile being
below 18 years of age at the time of the incident.

9. In the case of Shah Nawaz (supra), Hon'ble the Apex Court has
referred the procedure of computation of age as mentioned in the rule 12
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of the Rules, 2007. In that rule, exclusion of next procedure is given, if
the document presented by the accused refers to the previous provision
of sub rule 3 of the Rule 12. In sub rule 3, it is mentioned that if the
matriculation or equivalent certificate is available then, it would be the
basis of computation of the date of birth. In the present case, the
matriculation certificate is shown to the Chief Judicial Magistrate, in which
the Date of Birth of the petitioner was mentioned to be 1.10.1995 and
therefore, the petitioner was below 18 years of age at the time of the
incident. When the matriculation certificate was available then, according
to the provisions of rule 12 (3) (b), no other evidence is required to be
considered for computation of the age and therefore, the ossification test
done by Dr.Azad Jain loses its value.

10.  Hence, in the light of judgments passed by Hon'ble the Apex Court

in cases of Shahnawaz (supra) and Ramsuresh Singh (supra) and also,
the computation which took place on the basis of rule 12 (3) (a), the
petitioner appears to be below 18 years of age at the time of the incident.

11. It appears that the learned Chief Judicial Magistrate decided the
age of the petitioner being sentimental with the gravity of the crime alleged
to have been committed by the petitioner. It is strange that in the order
dated 7.5.2012, the learned Chief Judicial Magistrate did not discuss the
Date of Birth of the petitioner, which was mentioned in the matriculation
certificate, whereas on perusal of his order-sheet dated 26.4.2012, such
matriculation certificate was produced before him by Shyam Singh, father
of the petitioner. Under such circumstances, where the matriculation
certificate is available and the Date of Birth given in that certificate clearly
indicates that the petitioner was below 18 years of age at the time of the
incident then, nothing more could be seen at the time of assessment of his
age. The learned Chief Judicial Magistrate has committed an error of law
in the assessment of age done by the petitioner. Hence, it is a good case,
in which interference is required from the side of this Court by way of a
revision.

12.  On the basis of the aforesaid discussion, the revision filed by the
petitioner is hereby allowed. The order dated 7.5.2012, passed by the
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learned Chief Judicial Magistrate, Burhanpur and order dated 23.5.2012
passed by the learned Sessions Judge, Burhanpur are hereby set aside.
It is declared that the petitioner Subham was a juvenile at the time of the
incident. Therefore, his name may be removed from the trial which is
pending before the Sessions Court. The SHO Police Station Lalbag,
District Burhanpur is directed to produce the charge-sheet against the
petitioner before the concerned Juvenile Justice Board. The trial Court

shall fix a date of appearance of the petitioner before the Juvenile Justice
Board. |

13. A copy of the order be sent to the trial Court forthwith, so that
the petitioner should not face the trial before the Sessions Court.

Revision allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 967
MISCELLANEQUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. Justice Brij Kishore Dube
M.Cr.C. No. 3416/2012 (Gwalior) decided on 6 March, 2013

BALWANT SINGH TOMAR @ BALWANTA ...Applicant
Vs.
TIGMANSHU DHULIA & ors. ...Non-applicants

A. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section
156(3) - The Complaint must disclose the material ingredients of
cognizable offence - If there is flavour of civil nature, the same cannot
be agitated in the form of criminal proceeding - The magistrate cannot
act merely as a post office and he is bound to apply his mind before
ordering investigation u/s 156(3). ' (Paras 16 to 17)

Z. §US FiFar wiedr, 1973 (1974 &7 2), g7 156(3) — URaTs
¥ H9 AW & aies ges yHe B Ay — afk fifd| wer @ o
frety 2, 99 wiftss sfad @ ov & T SerT W1 wPar — =grEEhT
A ST R B IU A B e B "dar Al 3w ORT 156(3) @ araw
9T AR F @ usd arvR Afkass BT wET Y B frg Tmew 2

B.”  Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 482
- If there is no infirmity or illegality in the order - No interference can
be called for u/s 482 - Petition is liable to be dismissed. ~ (Para2l)
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@ qUe giBar wiadar, 1973 (1974 &7 2), £I¥T 482 — A% e ¥
¥ 31 &N g1 adgar = € — ORI 482 B AN SEAT B AAIIDAT
T — artrer @R fed @™ @)

C. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 420 - Complaint reveals
that the allegations are of civil nature and do not prima facie disclose the
commission of criminal offence of cheating-Hence mere use of expression
"Cheating" in the complaint is of no consequence. (Para 19)

7 TUS wIRaT (1860 FT 45), ENT 420 — ¥HTAq yHe HAl =3

Fr aiftreem fifae wew ® ¢ &R U2 §%d1 od @7 TUSH AU
R g9 =8 gurd — o Rrerd ® A9 ‘Bd’ e © YA B BIS
uged TEl |

Cases referred :

2009(2) CCSC 798(SC), 2009(2) CCSC 962(SC), 2002
CR.L.R.(SC) 221, 2008(I1I) MPWN 25(SC), 2008(IIl) MPWN 73(SC),
2007 (2) CR.J. 104, 2007(5) CRJ 195 AlL, (2000) 2 SCC 636, (2011) 3
SCC 412, (2005) 10 SCC 228.

A.S. Bhadoriya, for the applicant.

Udita Singh, Priyankush Jain & Anand V. Bhardwaj, for the non-
applicants No. 1 & 2.

Mukund Bhardwaj, P.P. For the non-applicant No.3./State.

ORDER

B.K. DusE, J.: This petition under Section 482 of Cr.P.C. is
preferred by the petitioner/complainant for quashing the order dated
17.04.2012 passed by J.M.F.C., Gwalior in Complaint Case No.__ /2012
(Balwant Singh Tomar v. Tigmanshu Dhulia Film & Ano.) by which
an application under Section 156 (3) of Cr P.C. filed by the petitioner/
complainant has been dismissed.

2. Brief facts of the case are that the petitioner/complainant, Balwant
Singh Tomar submitted a complaint in writing on 23.02.2012 to the Station
House Officer, Police Station Madhoganj, District Gwalior and the
Superintendent of Police, District Gwalior alleging therein that the
respondents No.1 & 2 had approached while he was at his house in Guda
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and sought his assistance for the purpose of making film ‘Paan Singh Tomar'
for which they offered to pay Rs.40.00 lacs but after seeking and procuring
his assistance for making of the film they had not paid Rs.40.00 Lacs.
Therefore, it was prayed that after registering the case against the
respondents No.1 & 2 for commission of the offence of cheating, they
may be punished. Thereafter, on 24.02.2012 petitioner preferred writ
petition bearing No.1608/12, alleging inaction of the police authorities
for not taking action against the respondents No.1 & 2 on the basis of
the aforesaid complaint dated 23.02.2012 and prayed for issuance of
writ of mandamus to the police authorities for registering the FIR against
the respondents No.l & 2 in respect of commission of the offence of
cheating as alleged in the complaint dated 23.02.2012. The writ petition
was disposed of by this Court vide order dated 01.03.2012 with an
observation that if the petitioner prefers a representation, the authorities
will deal with it in accordance with the law. Thereafter, on 06.03.2012,
the petitioner preferred an application before the Superintendent of Police,
Gwalior praying for registration of FIR against the respondents. On
09.04.2012, the petitioner filed an application under Section 156 (3) of
Cr.P.C. before the Court of J.M.F.C., Gwalior seeking a direction to the
Station House Officer, Kampoo, District Gwalior to register FIR in
respect of commission of offence punishable under Sections 419 and 420
of IPC against the respondents No.1 & 2 and for investigation thereof.
The application was rejected by the Court vide the impugned order dated
17.04.2012. The relevant portion of the impugned order reads as under:-

“gaq AafweEt ¥ wea: wRafed star 8 5 afreem &
FATATHAOT BT AR G BYg VT AT BT TE I way § e
I AT | UNA © B T 3T HIE A9 wEd o B yHR
7 aftrpem 2 99 ug 3R gar @ fr eImdgwTor F oA
T9q B QX € a1 & Sl AELF | AW A P T B
gy foan e wwar ufksfye S 7 faar | e sfreerm
wew: 9iasr @ F7 & Qo @ # ar gikefhe 9 e @ Y99y
¥ & e uR R 54 @AWY @ oy smaifers afraisya
B argET farar s oftm 99 2 o a9 uwgd e 9 AR
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W Yo AT € BA T AW F T ATHG T8 ST 9Ig
e § SR 99 ifiw fade @1 suah 9 e w9
FIRATHI B fIwg awRIE Uoflag o3 &1 IRy 37 B Ay
e ST wad sfam 981 @ e ag =uiie 9fean &1 gegam
B 8 e e Sudtuel ar 9 o W R uTRa B STuRTe
gsiiag #XA @ fay ey R s fafv afa 91 aferma
el @l Wl TR ATE 9g9 9adl € oY 3% S0 qaditie
FftreRY w1 w9 B Sk 39 fhgra @ gfewa v gy e
Aferege ¥ fAfzd foeg 1y farirer &1 Sugiv s9 =amafsa &
wraer gd @ &t =grfie wu | a9y AEEE oA |
IRIE ATaRA e e e €

T fafgg safy & afes yais & goar B e

3. Being aggrieved by the aforesaid order, this petition has been
preferred by the petitioner.

4. Shri A.S. Bhadoriya, learned counsel appearing on behalf of the
petitioner submits that the petitioner had submitted a complaint in writing
for commission of offence of cheating by the respondents No.l1 & 2 to
the Station House Officer and the Superintendent of Police, District
Gwalior but the complaint has not been registered by the police.
Thereafter, in compliance with the direction of this Court in W.P.No.1608/
12, the petitioner submitted an application dated 06.03.2012 before the
Superintendent of Police, Gwalior for registering the FIR against
respondents-Nc.1 & 2 but the FIP. has not been registercd, then, the
petitioner filed an application under Section 156 (3) of Cr.P.C. but the
application was dismissed by the impugned order observing that the
alleged dispute i.e., the breach of contract is of civil nature. It is further
submitted by the learned counsel that sub-section (1) of Section 156 of
CrPC empowers the Police Officer incharge of the Police Station to
investigate cognizable offences. The police has statutory duty to
investigate the circumstances of an alleged cognizable offence but on failing
to do so, the petitioner submitted an application before the Magistrate
under Section 156 (3) of Cr.P.C.. Sub-section (3) of Section 156 of
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Cr.P.C empowers any Magistrate to order for an investigation. The power
under Section 156 (3) of Cr.P.C. has been conferred on the Magistrate
to check the arbitrary action of the police in matters of registration of
FIR of cognizable offence. It is mandatory under Section 156 (3) of
Cr.P.C. that if the Magistrate found prima-facie the cognizable offence is
made out from the contents of the application, he is bound to order to
register the case and order to investigate the matter. As per facts
mentioned in the application, it is clear that the offence of commission of
cheating which is cognizable offence is made out against the respondents
No.1 & 2. Learned counsel has further submitted that merely because
alleged act has civil profile, not sufficient to denude it of its criminal outfit.
He has placed reliance on the following decisions:-

(i) State of Punjab v. Pritam Chand and others,
2009(2) CCSC (Criminal cases of Supreme Court) 798
(SC);

() ~ Smt. Rumi Dhar v. State of West Bengal and
another, 2009 (2) CCSC 962 (SC);

(ii))  Suresh Chand Jain v. State of Madhya Pradesh
& Anr., 2002 Cr.L.R. (SC) 221;

(tv)  Lalita Kumariv. Government of U.P. and others,
2008 (II]) MPWN 25 (SC);

(v)  Sakiri Vasu v. State of UL.P., 2008 (IIl) MPWN
73 (SC);
(vi)  Rajwativ. State of U.P,, 2007 (2) CRJ 104, and

(vii)  Smt. Santosh Kumar v. State of U.P., 2007 )
Criminal Reported Judgments, 195 All.

5. Miss. Uditya Singh, learned counsel appearing on behalf of the
respondents No.1 & 2 argued in support of the impugned order and
submitted that the impugned order is a speaking order and does not call
for any interference by this Court in exercise of powers under Section
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482 of Cr.P.C. The allegations by the petitioner are completely false and
baseless, made with malafide intention of extorting money from the
respondents No.1 & 2. At no point of time, the respondent No.2 visited
the petitioner's house either before the commencement of the film, during
its production nor at any time after it. Respondent No.1 was desirous of
making a film based on the life of 'Paan Singh Tomar'. For the said purpose,
he alongwith his associates came to Gwalior, where the petitioner who is
the nephew of Paan Singh Tomar met and offer to provide the information
regarding the life and activities of Paan Singh Tomar voluntarily to the
respondent No.1. No talk took place regarding monetary consideration
for the information and assistance being provided by the petitioner. It is
further submitted that Sauram Singh Tomar who is the son of Late Paan
Singh Tomar has consented to the making of the film, “Paan Singh Tomar”
based on the biography and activities of his father. In this respect, a letter
of agreement dated 19th June, 2008 was executed between the respondent
No.2 and Sauram Singh. According to the terms and conditions of the
said agreement, a sum of Rs.15 lacs was paid to him. It is further submitted
that if the allegations contained in the complaint/application were taken
to be true in their entirety, then also, the subject-matter is of civil in nature.
The Supreme Court deprecated the practice of registering criminal cases
in purely civil cases. She has citedthe case of G. Sagar Suri and another
v. State of U.P. And others, (2000) 2 SCC 636 in support of her
contention.

6. In order to undeistand the rival contenticns, it is useful to refer to
the complaint/application dated 09.04.2012 under Section 156 (3) of
C1.P.C. which was made by the petitioner before the J.M.F.C., Gwalior
in which the respondents No.1 & 2 herein have been shown as the accused.
The said criminal complaint/application was made for the commission of
offence punishable under Sections 419 and 420 of IPC. The following
averments in the complaint/application are relevant for consideration,
which reads as under:-
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7. The complaint is concerned with Sections 419 and 420 of IPC which
reads thus:- .

%419, Punishment for cheating by personation -

Whoever cheats by personation shall be punished with
imprisonment of either description for a term which may
extend to three years, or with fine, or with both.

420. Cheating and dishonestly inducing delivery of
property -

Whoever cheats and thereby dishonestly induces the person
- deceived to deliver any property o any person, or to make,
alter or destroy the whole or any part of a valuable security,
or anything which is signed or sealed, and which is capable
of being converted into a valuable security, shall be punished
with imprisonment of either description for a term which
may extend to seven years, and shall also be liable to fine.”

8. Now, this Court has to find out whether the ingredients of Sections
419 and 420 of IPC have been made out from the complaint and whether
the J.M.F.C. was justified in rejecting the application? Simultaneously,
this Court has to consider the decisions relied upon by the learned counsel.

i
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9. In Pritam Chand and others (supra), the respondents were

charged for alleged commission of offence punishable under Section 406

of IPC. They were partners of one Jagdamba Rice Mills to whom the

paddy was entrusted for milling by the Punjab State Civil Supplies

Corporation Ltd., during the year 1983-84. It was alleged that the

accused failed to account for the paddy and thus misapproriated the same.

Pursuant to arbitration clause between the parties, an arbitrator was

appointed and an award of Rs.1,81,315.43 was rendered in favour of
the Corporation. The trial court acquitted the accused on the ground that

the matter arose out of breach of contract, the same was of ctvil nature

and a criminal case against the accused was not made out. High Court

endorsed the view and dismissed the appeal. The Apex Court held that

the High Court should not have in a summary manner dismissed the appeal -
after having recorded that a criminal case may arise even when breach of
contract is also there and there is no bar for prosecution under the criminal

law. Having said so, the High Court came to an abrupt conclusion because

two views are possible as to whether the allegation made was a civil

dispute or of a criminal nature, no interference was called for. The

approach is clearly erroneous. The Apex Court set aside the impugned

judgment of the High Court and remitted the matter to it for fresh

consideration in accordance with law.

10.  In Smt. Rumi Dhar (supra), the appellant and her husband
alongwith various other persons including the officers of the Oriental Bank
of Commerce Khidirpur Branch, Calcutta were prosecuted for alleged
commission of offences under Sections 120B/420/467/468 and 471 of
IPC. The officers of the Bank had also been prosecuted under Section
13 (2) read with Section 13 (1) (d) of the Prevention of Corruption Act,
1988. A charge-sheet was filed against the appellant and seven others.
She (appellant) was inter alia charged for taking the benefit of overdrafts
between the period 8th February, 1993 to 5th March, 1993 without
furnishing any security. The Bank filed application for recovery before
D.R.T. The appellant and Bank entered into settlement and Rs.25.51
lakhs paid by appellant to Bank. The question was whether the appellant
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entitled to be discharged from criminal proceedings on account of said
settlement and repayment. The Apex Court held that the appellant shall
not absolved of criminal liability. A civil proceeding and a criminal
proceeding can proceed simultaneously.

11.  In Suresh Chand Jain (supra), the Apex Court while explaining
the scope of Section 156 (3) of CrPC observed that any Judicial
Magistrate, before taking cognizance of _t'he offence, can order
investigation under Section 156 (3) of Code. Even.if the Magistrate does
not say in so many words while directing investigation under Section 156
(3) of the Code that an FIR should be registered, it is the duty of the
officer-in-charge of the police station to register the FIR regarding the
cognizable offence disclosed by the complaint because that police officer
could take further steps contemplated in Chapter XII of the Code only
thereafter.

12. While considering the grievance in regards that the police
authorities do not register FIRs' unless some direction is given by the
Court and investigations do not commence even after registration or FIRS'.
The Apex Court in the case of Lalita Kumari (supra) has ruled as under:-

“I et order dated 14th July, 2008, and this order be put on
the website of the Supreme Court of India so that the people
of India may know what directions have been given by this
Court and they may take appropriate steps in case of any
inaction on the part of the concerned officer of the police
station in instituting a case and the Chief Judicial Magistrate/
Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, as the case may be, shall
take action in a case of inaction upon filing of complaint
petition and give direction to institute the case within the
time directed in the said order failing which the Chief Judicial
Magistrate/Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, as the case may
be, shall not only initiate action against the delinquent police
officer but punish them suitably by send them to jail, in
case the cause shown is found to be unsatisfactory. Apart
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from this, the Chief Judicial Magistrate/Chief Metropolitan
Magistrate, as'the case may be, shall report the matter to
the disciplinary authority at once by fax as well upon receipt
of which the disciplinary authority shall suspended the
concerned police officer immediately in contemplation of
departmental proceeding.”

13. InSakiri Vasu (supra), the Apex Court ruled that if a person has
a grievance that his FIR has not been registered by the police station, his
first remedy is to approach the Superintendent of Police under section
154 (3) CrPC or other police officer referred to in section 36 CrPC. If
despite approaching the Superintendent of Police of the officer referred
to in section 36 his grievance still persists, then he can approach a
Magistrate under section 156 (3) CrPC instead of rushing to the High
Court by way of a writ petition ora petition under section 482 CrPC.
Moreover, he has a further remedy of filing a criminal complaint under
section 200 CrPC.

14.  In Smt. Santosh Kumari (supra), a Single Bench of Allahabad
High Court held that once.a cognizable offence is disclosed in the
complaint the Magistrate is bound to direct the FIR to be registered and
the matter be investigated. Similar view has been taken by the Single
Bench of Allahabad High Court in the case of Rajwati (supra).

15.  Inthe case cited by learned counsel for the respondents No.1 &
2, the Apex Court in G Sagar Suri (supia), while explaining the scope
of Section 482 of CrPC in case of civil nature has ruled that ‘jurisdiction
under Section 482 of the code has to be exercised with great care. In
exercise of its jurisdiction the High Court is not to examine the matter
superficially. It is to be seen if a matter, which is essentially of a civil
nature, has given a cloak of criminal offence. Criminal proceedings are
not a short cut of other remedies available in law.

16.  The Apex Court in the case of Thermax Limited and others v.
K.M. Johny and others, (2011) 3 SCC 412, held that for proceeding
under Section 156 (3) of the Code, the complaint must disclose relevant
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material ingredients of cognizable offence. If there is flavour of civil nature,
the same cannot be agitated in the form of criminal proceeding.

17. It is pertinent to mention here that the power conferred under
Section 156 (3), the Magistrate should not mechanically pass order
directing the police to investigate the case. The need for investigation by
police is necessary only in cases where the Magistrate is prima facie
satisfied that the allegations contained in the complaint point to the
commission of cognizable offence. For ordering investigation by police
under Section 156 (3) of CrPC, the Magistrate cannot act merely as a
post office and he is bound to apply his mind before doing so.

18.  Inthis case, admittedly, no complaint was filed. The petitioner
chose to file only a complaint under Section 156 (3) of Code before the
Magistrate.

19.  Ona bare perusal of the complaint/application would only reveal
that the allegations as contained in the application are of a civil nature
and do not prima-facie disclose commission of allegation criminal offence
under Section 420 of IPC. In Anil Mahajan v. Bhor Industries Ltd.
and another, (2005) 10 SCC 228, a three Judges Bench of Apex Court
analyzed the difference between a breach of contract and cheating and
held as under:-

“The substance of the complaint is to be seen. Mere use of
the expression “cheating” in the complaint is of no
consequence. Except mention of the words “deceive” and
“cheat” in the complaint filed before the Magistrate and
“cheating” in the complaint filed before the police, there is
no averment about the deceit, cheating or fraudulent
intention of the accused at the time of entering into MOU
wherefrom it can be inferred that the accused had the
intention to deceive the complainant to pay ................ L

20.  The essential ingredient for an offence under Section 420 of IPC
is that there has to be dishonest intention to deceive another person. The
relevant allegations made in the complaint and on perusal of the same,.

1
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reproduced hereinabove, it is evident that no such dishonest intention of
the respondents No.1 & 2 can be seen or even inferred inasmuch as the
entire dispute pertains to contractual obligation between the parties. Since,
the very ingredients of Section 420 of IPC are not attracted, the JEM.F.C.
has rightly disallowed the application. Even for the sake of arguments,
this Court admit that allegations in the complaint do make out a dispute,
still it ought to be considered that the same are merely a breach of contract
and the same cannot give raise to criminal prosecution for cheating unless
fraudulent or dishonest intention is shown right from the beginning [Relied
upon Thermax Limited (supra)].

21.  Therefore, in the'peculiar facts and circumstances of the present
case and in the aforesaid legal dictum and for the reasons given
hereinabove, I do not find any infirmity or illegality in the impugned order
which may call for interference in exercise of powers under Section 482
of Cr.P.C. This petition is devoid of any merit and is, therefore, dismissed.

Petition dismissed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 979
MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. Justice Brij Kishore Dube
M.Cr.C. No. 1367/2013 (Gwalior) decided on 7 March, 2013

BAZEER KHAN ALIAS LALLAKHAN ...Applicant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. . ...Non-applicant

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 167(2) &
482 - Filing of Charge sheet during pendency of application for statutory
bail does not affect the right of the accused to Bail u/s 167(2) - The
orders of both the courts below set aside - Petition allowed. ,
(Paras 6 to 11)
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Cases referred :

2013 CR.L.R.(SC) 126, 2012 AIR SCW 6026, 2011 AIR SCW
5551, AIR 2001 SC 1910.

A.K. Nirankari, for the applicant,
Anil Kumar Shrivastava, P.L. for the non-applicant/State.

ORDER

B.K. DuBg, J.: This petition under Section 482 of Cr.P.C., is
preferred by the petitioner herein/accused for quashing the order dated
02/01/13 passed by the Additional Sessions Judge (FTC), Sabalgarh,
District Morena in Criminal Revision No.303/12 affirming the order dated
14/12/12 passed by the Additional Chief Judicial Magistrate, Sabalgarh
in Criminal Case No.1096/12 whereby an application under Section
167(2) of Cr.P.C., filed by the petitioner/accused has been dismissed.

2. Learned counsel for the petitioner submitted that the petitioner/
accused has been arrested on 13/10/12 in connection with Crime No.411/
12 under Sections 306 & 498A read with 34 of IPC registered at Police
Station, Kailaras, District Morena and produced before the Court on the
same day. The learned Magistrate has granted judicial remand against the
petitioner and lastly, it was granted till 17/12/12. The police authority has
not filed challan within sixty days, therefore, the petitioner is entitled to
be released on bail as per the statutory provisions of Section 167(2)
Cr.P.C,, accordingly, he has submitted an application on 13/12/12. The
learned Magistrate fixed the case for 14/12/13 for hearing on the said
application. Before that the police submitted the challan on 13/12/12,
and, therefore, the application was rejected on the ground that the challan
has been filed in the matter. Learned counsel further submitted that the
police did not submit the challan within statutory period, i.e., sixty days
but it was submitted on sixtyfirst day, i.e., after filing of the application
under Section 167(2) of Cr.P.C., by the petitioner/accused. In such
circumstances, the petitioner is entitled for grant.of statutory bail and
merely by filing challan subsequently by the police his right of bail remains
unaffected and, therefore, the impugned orders deserves to be quashed.

‘4
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He placed reliance on three Judge Bench decision of the Apex Court in
Sayed Mohd. Ahmed Kazmi Vs. State, GCTD and others, [2013
Cr.L.R.(SC) 126] = 2012 AIR SCW 6026.

3. In response, learned Panel Lawyer argued in support of the
impugned orders and submitted that since challan has been filed, therefore,
the right of the petitioner/accused to be released on bail wiped out. He
has cited in support of his contention two J udge Bench decision of the
Apex Court in the case of Sadhwi Pragyna Singh Thakur Vs. State of
Maharashtra, 2011 AIR SCW 5551 wherein it has been held as under:

“23. From the discussion made above, it is quite clear that
even if an application for bail is filed on the ground that
chargesheet was not filed within 90 days, before the
consideration of the same and before being released on
bail if chargesheet is filed, the said right to be released on
bail, can be only on merits. So far as merits are concerned
the learned counsel for the appellant has not addressed
this Court at all and in fact bail is not claimed on merits in
the present appeal at all.”

4. It is transpired from a perusal of the record that on 24/09/1 2, the
Police, Kailaras registered the FIR at Crime No.411/12 under Sections
306 & 498A read with 34 of IPC against the petitioner and the mother of
the petitioner. At 10.30 a.m., on 13/1 0/12, the police apprehended the
petitioner, Bazeer Khan alias Lalla Khan and produced before the learned
Magistrate on the same day, i.e., on 13/10/12 who remanded the
petitioner/accused for 15 days in judicial custody, i.e., till 19/10/12.
Subsequently, the period of remand was extended, by extending the period
of investigation and the custody of the petitioner from time to time. On
12/12/12, the learned Magistrate further extended the period of
investigation and the custody of the petitioner by another 15 days, i.e.,
till 17/12/12. On 13/12/12, an application had been made under Section
167(2) of Cr.P.C., seeking default bail on the ground that charge sheet
was not filed within the prescribed statutory period of sixty days of the
petitioner's custody. The learned Magistrate adjourned the hearing and
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fixed 14/12/12 for consideration of the aforesaid application.
Subsequently, on the same day, i.e., on 13/12/12, the police submitted
the challan. The order dated 13/12/12 passed by the learned Magistrate
reads as under:

“OITAT DA B IR | AW THF 411 /12 € 306, 498 T
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5. The learned Magistrate declined to allow the application filed
by the petitioner on the ground that the charge sheet has been
submitted by the police. The aforesaid order was affirmed by the
Revisional Court.

6. It is apparent from the record that the police has not submitted
the charge sheet within the statutory prescribed period of sixty days of
the petitioner’s custody. The charge sheet was submitted on 13/12/12,
i.e., on sixtyfirst day of the custody of the petitioner. Admittedly, before
submitting the charge sheet by the police, the petitioner had submitted an
application under Section 167(2) of Cr.P.C.,

7. Now, the core question is whether the right of the petitioﬁer/

¥
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accused to be released on bail under Section 167(2) of Cr.P.C,, is
defeated by filing of the charge sheet by the police?

8. A three Judge Bench of the Apex Court in Uday Mohanlal
Acharya Vs. State of Maharashtra, AIR 2001 SC 1910 while
considering the earlier judgments on the point of right of accused being
released on bail observed as under:

“Where after expiry of period of 60 days for filing challan
the accused filed an application for being released on bail
and was prepared to offer and furnish bail, however, the
Magistrate rejects application on erroneous interpretation
about non application of S.167(2) of Cr.P.C., to case
pertaining to MPID Act of 1999 and accused approaches
higher forum and in meanwhile chargesheet is filed, the
indefeasible right of accused being released does not get
extinguished by subsequent filing of chargesheet. The
accused can be said to have availed of his right to be
released on bail on date he filed application for being
released on bail and offers to furnish bail. Such an accused,
who thus is entitled to be released on bail in enforcement
of his indefeasible right will, however, have to be produced
before the Magistrate on a chargesheet being filed. in
accordance with S.209 of Cr.P.C., and the Magistrate must
deal with him in the matter of remand to custody subject
to the provisions of the Code relating to bail and subject
to the provisions of cancellation of bail.”

9. A three Judge Bench of the Apex Court in Sayed Mohd. Ahmed
Kazmi (supra) has ruled that filing of the chargesheet during pendency of
application for statutory bail does not affect the right of the accused to
bail under Section 167(2) of Cr.P.C.,

10.  Considering the submissions of the learned counsel for the parties
and facts of the case as well as the law laid down of the Apex Court
referred to hereinabove, it is held that the petitioner/accused rightly availed
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the benefit to be released on bail under Section 167(2) of Cr.P.C. and,
therefore, this petition deserves to be and is hereby allowed.

11.  Consequently, the impugned orders dated 02/01/13 passed by the
Additional Sessions Judge (FTC); Sabalgarh, District Morena in Criminal
Revision No.303/12 and the order dated 14/12/12 passed by the Additional
Chief Judicial Magistrate, Sabalgarh in Criminal Case No.1096/12 rejecting
the application of the petitioner/accused under Section 167(2) of CrPC,
stand set aside. The petitioner/accused is directed to be released on bail
on his furnishing a personal bond in the sum of Rs.20,000/( Rupees twenty
thousand only) with one solvent surety of the like amount to the satisfaction
of the learned Magistrate on the condition that he shall remain present before
the Court concerned during the trial .

12.  With the aforesaid, petition stands allowed and disposed of.
Petition allowed.

I.L.R. [2013] M.P., 984
MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. Justice Brij Kishore Dube
M.Cr.C. No. 1675/2013 (Gwalior) decided on 8 March, 2013

PRAMOD GUPTA ...Applicant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. ...Non-applicant

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 391 &
482 - Additional Evidence - The whole scheme of this section
suggests that like civil cases an application for taking additional
evidence on record should be considered and disposed of after
hearing the criminal appeal on merits -~ Such application should not
be decided in isolation i.e. Without hearing the appeal on merits -
If so, there may be cases of failure of justice. (Para 6)
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Case referred :

2006(1) MPLJ 436.
Rajiv Sharma, for the applicant.
Prabal Solanki, P.P. for the non-applicant/State.

ORDER

B.K. Dusg, J.: . This petition under Section 482 of Cr.P.C. is
preferred for quashing the order dated 21.11.2012 passed by the Sessions
Judge, Bhind in Criminal Appeal No.177/2012 whereby an application
under Section 391 of Cr.P.C. filed by the petitioner herein/accused has
not been decided.

2. Learned counsel for the petitioner submits that during the course
of hearing of criminal appeal, the petitioner herein/accused submitted
an application under Section 391 of Cr.P.C., for taking additional
evidence, i.e., examining Head Constable, Shiv Dayal, who had been
mechanically examined the vehicle but the Court below neither allowed
the application nor rejected the same, but deferred for deciding it at
the time of final hearing. It is further submitted that Section 391 of
Cr.P.C. provides that the application has to be decided before hearing
the final arguments of appeal. Learned counsel further submits that the
impugned order passed by the Courf below is against the law, therefore,
the impugned order may be set-aside and a direction may be issued to
decide the application before hearing the appeal finally to the Court
below,

3. In response, learned Public Prosecutor has argued in support of
the impugned order and prayed for rejection of the petition,

4. It is transpired from the record that vide judgment of conviction

_and order of sentence dated 08.05.2012 passed by J.M.F.C., Bhind in
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Criminal Case No.152/09, the petitioner herein/ accused, Pramod Gupta
has been convicted under Sections 304- A, 338 and 337 of IPC and
sentenced to suffer two years rigorous imprisonment with fine of Rs.2,000/
-, six months rigorous imprisonment with fine of Rs.600/- and three months
rigorous imprisonment with fine of Rs.400/- respectively. Feeling aggrieved
thereof, the petitioner preferred an appeal on 04.06.2012, it was admitted
on 05.06.2012 for final hearing and during the pendency of appeal on
19.10.2012, the petitioner filed an application under Section 391 of
Cr.P.C. for taking additional evidence, i.e., for examining the Head
Constable Shiv Dayal. The application was considered and vide order
dated 21.11.2012, the learned Sessions Judge kept the application pending
with an observation that the same shall be considered and decided at the
time of final arguments and fixed the case for final arguments. The relevant
part of the order reads as under:-
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5. It would be useful to quote the Section 391 of Cr.P.C which reads
as under:-

“391. Appellate Court may take further evidence or direct
it to be taken:-

(1)  Indealing with any appeal under this Chapter, the
Appellate Court, if it thinks additional evidence to be
necessary, shall record its reasons and may either take such
evidence itself, or direct it to be taken by a Magistrate, or,
when the Appellate Court is a High Court, by a Court of

s
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Session or a Magistrate.

(2)  When the additional evidence is taken by the Court
of Session or the Magistrate, it or he shall certify such
evidence to the Appellate Court, and such Court shall
thereupon proceed to dispose of the appeal.

(3)  The accused or his pleader shall have the ri ght to
be present when the additional evidence is taken.

(4)  The taking of evidence under this section shall be
subject to the provisions of Chapter XXIII, as if it were
an inquiry. ”

6. From a reading of the aforesaid provision, it is evident that the
opening words of sub-section (1) of Section 391 clearly suggests that
the application moved under Section 391 of Cr.P.C. should be considered
by the Appellate Court while dealing with the criminal appeal and when it
comes to the conclusion that this additional evidence is necessary, such
application can only be dealt with after going through the entire record of
the Trial Court and after hearing both the parties. Therefore, the provisions
of Section 391 of Cr.P.C. suggests that the application moved under this
section should not be considered in isolation but should be considered
after hearing the parties on merits. If after hearing parties on merits, the
Court if comes to the conclusion that the additional evidence is
unnecessary then while deciding the appeal, application moved under
Section 391 CrPC can be dismissed. If such additional evidence appears
necessary for rendering decision of the matter and without which the appeal
cannot be disposed of, then such additional evidence may be taken on
record either by the Appellate Judge himself or by the Trial Court. The
Appellate Court may also remand back the matter to the trial Court for
the purpose of recording additional evidence as provided under sub-
section (2) of the said section 391 of Cr.P.C.,, therefore, the whole scheme
of Section 391 of Cr.P.C. suggests that like civil cases an application for
taking additional evidence on record under Section 391 of Cr.P.C. should
also be considered and disposed of after hearing the criminal appeal on
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merits and such application should not be disposed of in isolation without
hearing the appeal on merits because if such applications are disposed of
without hearing the appeal on merits, then there may be cases of failure
of justice. (Dharmendra s/o Chandan Singh v. State of M.P., 2006 (1)
MPLJ 436 referred to).

7. For the foregoing reasons and peculiar facts and circumstances of
the case, this Court in exercise of powers under Section 482 of Cr.P.C.
does not find any ground to interfere in the impugned order. This petition
is devoid of any merit and is, therefore, dismissed.

Petition dismissed.
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